The Hidden Trath of
Black History



“O Daughter of Zion, your punishment is complete; He will not prolong your exile. But He will
punish your iniquity, O Daughter of Edom; He will expose your sins.” — Lamentations 4:22

“But I have stripped Esau bare; I have uncovered his hiding places, and he is not able to conceal
himself.” — Jeremiah 49:10



Table of Contents

PIEface ... VI
1. Jews and the Trans-Atlantic Slave Trade ..................ccccccoviiiiiiiii e, 7
L N 4413 (=] (0 = o SR OUPSRPRSRR 8

o Dutch West Indiad COMPANY ......oiuiiiiiiiiieieie ettt 16
Lo - LSOO PRPPPR 19

L O 1| - Vo= Lo LTRSS 29

o Jewish vs. White Slave OWNEISNIP .......ccoviiiiiiiiiiieeee e 35
2. The Jewish Role in the American Slave Economy ................ccccccceeviennnne 39
The NOIhern MIllS ... e 39

o The Garment/ApParel INAUSTIY ........ooiiiiiiieieie e 45

®  OLNEI ROIES ...ttt b ettt ettt bennenre s 48

O The COttON FACION ...ociieieee et nas 49

o Peddlers and MErChaNTS ..........ccevveieiierisie e ns 56

@ HIStOMICAl THICKEIY ..ooeeiiieiee et re e 62

o  How the Game Was PIAYEd ...........ccoiiiiiii e 66

o S0ME OF the MAJOT PIAYETS ...ttt 69

SN L1117 ] o OSSPSR 69

O INON=JBWISH ...ttt st 79

O THE BANKS ..ottt bbbttt 82

O THENOIN Lottt 84

O Great BIIAIN ...ccuveieieiie et 89

3. The Civil War Era ...........cccccco i 93
®  CONLIAL BANKS ...ttt et b ettt b e bt 93

o The Truth ADOUL the WA ....ceoiiiii e 103
LYV U - O 1 (o o SRS 114

o A JeWISh CONTEABTACY ......ooiviiiiiiiecie s 117

e Reconstruction and the Compromise of 1877 ........cccveiiiiiiiie i 127



O RECONSIIUCTION ...t e e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e reeeneans 127

o The Compromise OF 1877 .....c.cocveiiieieee e 129
4. The KKK UNVeiled ..ot 132
@ The SCOLISN RITE .....ocveiiiiiitee e 132
® The BNai B'TIth .c.ooiieee e 135
e The Knights of the Golden CirCle ... 138
L I TN 3 S RO RTRUP 142
O JAMES GUITMAN ...t 149
O DANIEI BUITOS ...t 150
5. Sharecropping and Crop Lien ................ccooo i 154
I 4T g=Tol £o] o] o T T TP PP PP TPTP U PRTRPROON 154
L O o] o I =T o TP PO PP TP PPN 156
O THE MEICNANTS ..ot 161
O The AFEIMALN ....ocviiiiiee s 171
O WHROS STOTY? oot 173
6. Black-Jewish Relations in Commerce ...................cc.cooeeiiiiieeccciee e, 176
7. Racism against BIacks ............ccccooiiiiiiii 190
@ Creating RACISIM ...c..oiiiiiiiieii bbbttt 190
@ PUSNING RACISIM ...ttt bbbt 218
e Racism against Blacks in the Jewish Community ............ccccocevieiiiiiiiccie e 233
®  JEWISN SUPIEMACY ...ecuviiviiieieiieeie ettt ettt et te et st e s be e e s aaeste e e sre e beenaesanesraenneanes 236
e White Privilege and White SUPIEMACY ......c.ooveiviiiiiiiieie e 239
8. Reparations for Black Americans .............ccccooiiiiiiniinicnc e 243
e Arguments against REPAratioNS ..........cccoueieirrierieieie et 243
o “Other people have been enslaved t00.” ........ccccovviiiiiiiiiiiiic 243
o “Africans sold their own people into slavery.” ........ccccoviiiiiiiiciiic 244
o “You give reparations to people who actually went through the injustice.” .... 248
o “The only thing that happened to Black people was slavery, and it was so long
Yo PSPPI 250
©  LOBAS .. 279



T |V V20 [ 1= TSSO 281

9. AlIeNn INVAAET'S .............oooiiiiii e 287
®  ATaDS AN ISIAM L..viiiiiicc s 288

O AIah EXPANSIONISM ...cuoiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e s 288

O SIAVEIY . 297

O RACISIM 1. et re e 305

®  EUIMOPEANS ...t are e 328
10. Africaon Their Mind ..............ccccooiiiii e 333
o Colonialism and BEYONA .........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiieieieie et 333

O HAILE 1o e 338

O CONQO e 340

oS 1 o - OSSR 343

O ChINA TN AFTICA ..o bbb 344

0 CoNClUdING REMATKS .....ccuviiiiiiiiiie e 346

e The ROl OF RElIQION ...c..oiiiiiiiicee s 348

O ISIAM Lo reas 349

O “CRIISHANILY” ..iviiiiiiiiiic i 359

11. Repairing a Damaged World ..................ccooiiiiii 367
® The D.O.C.7S BUITEN? ..ottt st nne s 367

© A PArtial SOIULION ..ottt 368

®  REPAIALIONS ...ttt 371

oS =11 - OSSR 373

O GBIMANY ...ttt b et 374

12. Setting the Record Straight ... 380



Preface

I didn’t set out to write a book, nor was any of this planned. This started out as just another one
of my usual informational pieces, but as I continued to go with the flow and it grew, | decided to
make it into an eBook. I had no idea what it would be (which is normal for my projects) so |
can’t really take credit for it. You would have to thank Yahusha/Yahushua/Jesus (my Boss).
I’m pretty sure this will go down as one of the most hated eBooks in the history of eBooks.

Much of the information is quoted, not in my own words, so most people will find this method of
conveying information unconventional, but this has become my method of revealing and
teaching hidden truths over the years, and for many different reasons. You’re more than
welcome to use any of the quoted information for your own projects, but if you use my words
please quote them and state the source.

And just to warn you, this is a Matrix red pill/blue pill moment.



https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=d6EyLVIp0WU
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=zE7PKRjrid4

Jews and the Trans-Atlantic Slave Trade

*| decided to add a little information on the Jewish involvement in the trans-Atlantic slave trade.
This is only part of the story because showing you the full extent of the Jewish involvement
would require hundreds of pages by itself.

During the trans-Atlantic slave trade people who were actually Jewish were being called a
number of different names: Jews, Portuguese, the Portuguese, the Spanish, the Dutch, the
English, Christians, New Christians, Catholics, Conversos, Marranos, Crypto-Jews, Secret Jews,
the Lancados; and by the name of every other land they resided. Sometimes the Jews with these
different identities would even compete. And Jews were so prevalent on the Portuguese side of
the slave trade that “Jewish” actually became synonymous with “Portuguese.” And if that’s not
enough, they would also change their personal names.

The names that refer to Jews exclusively are: Jews (of course), New Christians, Conversos,
Marranos, Crypto-Jews, and Secret Jews. To understand the following information it’s not
necessary to know what these different names mean; just know these people are Jewish.

“Historian Seymour Drescher emphasized the problems of determining whether or not slave-
traders were Jewish. He concludes that New Christian merchants managed to gain control of a
sizeable share of all segments of the Portuguese Atlantic slave trade during the Iberian-
dominated phase of the Atlantic system. Due to forcible conversions of Jews to Christianity
many New Christians continued to practice Judaism in secret, meaning it is impossible for
historians to determine what portion of these slave traders were Jewish, because to do so would

require the historian to choose one of several definitions of ‘Jewish’.”
Source: Jewish views on slavery
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Jewish_views_on_slavery

In other words, there are actually more Jewish slave traders than the ones you find. And the
same is true for every other profession related to slavery.


http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Jewish_views_on_slavery

““‘If they happen to be in Jewish company, they say, “We are Jewish” and when in Christian
company, “We are Christian”.” This comment comes from the anonymous Libro del Alborayque,
a famous anti-Judaic pamphlet of the late fifteenth century which stigmatized the New Christians
of Jewish origin: neither ‘Moors, nor Christians, nor Jews,’ they were like ‘Al-Burak,’ the
amorphous and terrifying mount of Muhammad, a beast composed of twenty different elements
from twenty different animal forms. Fundamentally hybrid, the monstrous creature and, hence,
Jews who had converted to Christianity, seemed impossible to grasp: A chameleon without
religion or who blended all faiths together in a polymorphous syncretism, the Jewish convert was

presented in the Libro del Alborayque as the prototype multiple being.”
Source: Being against, being with: Marrano self-identification in inquisitorial Spain (Sixteenth-Eighteenth Centuries)
https://www.jstor.org/stable/41478224?seq=1#page_scan_tab_contents

Amsterdam

First, I have to give you a crash-course on Amsterdam since none of us were ever taught
anything about it. And you’ll see why it’s left out of the story.

Note: The Dutch are the people of the Netherlands. Amsterdam is the capital of the Netherlands.
Holland was a province in the Netherlands though some people incorrectly referred to the whole
of the Netherlands as Holland.
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“New Netherland was a 17th-century colonial province of the Dutch Republic that was located
on the east coast of what is now the United States. The claimed territories extended from the
Delmarva Peninsula to southwestern Cape Cod, while the more limited settled areas are now part
of the U.S. states of New York, New Jersey, Delaware, Massachusetts and Connecticut, with

small outposts in Pennsylvania and Rhode Island.”
Source: New Netherland
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/New_Netherland

“New Amsterdam was a 17th-century Dutch settlement established at the southern tip of

Manhattan Island that served as the seat of the colonial government in New Netherland.”
Source: New Amsterdam
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/New_Amsterdam

Just keep reading, you’ll see where I’'m going with this in a little bit, and how important it is to
understanding the information in upcoming sections.


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/New_Netherland
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/New_Amsterdam

“Lower Manhattan (also known as Downtown Manhattan or Downtown New York) is the
southernmost part of Manhattan, the central borough for business, culture, and government in
New York City, which is the most populated city in the United States with over 8.8 million
residents as of the 2020 census. ... The Lower Manhattan business district, known as the
Financial District (FiDi), forms the main core of the area below Chambers Street. It is a leading
global center for commerce, housing Wall Street, the New York Stock Exchange, and the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York. ... European settlement began with the founding of a Dutch
fur trading post in Lower Manhattan, later called New Amsterdam (Dutch: Nieuw-Amsterdam)
in 1626.”

Source: Lower Manhattan
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Lower Manhattan

“While the terms ‘New York Harbor’ and ‘Port of New York’ are often used synonymously, for
the purposes of this study, a distinction is made between them. While the New York Harbor
refers to the system of waterways, the Port of New York refers to a system of those waterways
and facilities that handle the transport and transference of cargo and people. Historically, the
referenced port was called the Port of New York as port activities were concentrated on the
southern tip of Manhattan in the 1800s and early 1900s. ... The East River side of the southern
reach of Manhattan was the first of the island’s waterfront areas to experience maritime activity,
mainly because the East River provided protection from ocean winds, tides and ice floats

(Squires & Bone, 2004). South Street Seaport became the maritime epicenter (Kellner, 2006).”
Source: Port of call or port of conflict: the evolution of the port of New York and New Jersey, port-city relationships, and the
potential for land use conflicts on the Newark bay waterfront
https://digitalcommons.njit.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1362&context=dissertations

“Today lower Manhattan is a global center of financial trading. A few centuries earlier, it was a
global center of trade for more-tangible products, from rice and tea to porcelain and clothing,
thanks to the presence of one of the world’s largest natural harbors. Where this harbor meets the
East River became the site of numerous wharfs and piers, including those that are part of what is
now known as the South Street Seaport. ... By the early 19th century the Port of New York was

the busiest commercial port in the country.”

Source: The History of the South Street Seaport
https://cbwarburg.com/nabes/the-history-of-south-street-seaport/

“South Street was long known as the ‘Street of Ships’ with its waterfront lined with sailing ships
laden with goods from all over the world, creating a ‘forest of masts’ from the Battery to the


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Lower_Manhattan
https://digitalcommons.njit.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1362&context=dissertations
https://cbwarburg.com/nabes/the-history-of-south-street-seaport/

Brooklyn Bridge. The South Street Seaport secured New York’s place as America’s largest city
and home to what would become one of the world’s busiest ports by the start of the 20"

century.”

Source: Street of Ships: The Port and its People
https://southstreetseaportmuseum.org/street-of-ships-exhibition/

New Amsterdam

1. The New York Stock Exchange — America’s stock exchange.

2. The Federal Reserve Bank of New York — America’s central bank.

3. The leading financial center of the country.

4. The financial power behind slavery in America (as you’ll see later).

5. Location of a huge slave market and slave depot (as you’ll see later).

6. Contained the most important sea ports and waterways and became the shipping capital.
7. Became dominated by Jews (as far as influence and power, not numbers).

Now back to Amsterdam...

“Obstacles or no obstacles, Amsterdam harbour was always full to bursting. ‘I have never seen
anything which surprised me so much,” writes a traveler in 1738. ‘It is impossible for one who
has not seen it to imagine the superb effect of two thousand Vessels enclosed in the same
Harbour.”* A French guide, published in 1701, quotes a figure of eight thousand, ‘whose masts
and rigging form as it were a forest so dense that it seems the sun could hardly penetrate it
2000 or 8000 — the figure does not really matter. What is undeniable is the variety of flags one
could observe at leisure from the Damplatz. This boat, ‘which looks brand new’, the same guide
explains, ‘is German, flying quarters of or and gules. That one ... is from Brandenburg, it flies
argent with a sable spread eagle’; there is one from Stralsund, with a golden sun. And there are
ships from Libeck, Venice, England, Scotland, Tuscany, Ragusa (argent with a shield and a strip
inscribed Libertas). There is even a ‘Savoyard’ vessel, if that is possible. Further off are large
ships, specializing in whale-fishing. There is no need to tell the reader ‘what the white flags are,
since you are French’.*’ If the same reader had sat down to read the Amsterdam Gazette,® he
would have found the names and itineraries of hundreds of ships sailing into the harbour. ... This
maritime traffic made Amsterdam ‘the warehouse of the World, the Seat of Opulence, the

rendezvous of riches and the darling of the gods’.49”

Source: Civilization and Capitalism, 15th-18th Century: The perspective of the world by Fernand Braudel — pp. 182-184
https://books.google.com/books?id=xMZ12QEer9QC



https://southstreetseaportmuseum.org/street-of-ships-exhibition/
https://books.google.com/books?id=xMZI2QEer9QC

“During the 17th century, Amsterdam experienced what is considered its Golden Age, during
which it became the wealthiest city in the Western world. Ships sailed from Amsterdam to the
Baltic Sea, the Caribbean, North America, and Africa, as well as present-day Indonesia, India,
Sri Lanka, and Brazil, forming the basis of a worldwide trading network. Amsterdam'’s
merchants had the largest share in both the Dutch East India Company (VOC) and the Dutch
West India Company. These companies acquired overseas possessions that later became Dutch
colonies. Amsterdam was Europe's most important hub for the shipment of goods and was the
leading financial center of the western world. In 1602, the Amsterdam office of the Dutch East
India Company became the world's first stock exchange by trading in its own shares. The Bank
of Amsterdam started operations in 1609, acting as a full-service bank for Dutch merchant
bankers and as a reserve bank. Beginning during this period, Amsterdam also became involved
in the trade in African slaves. The city was a major destination port for Dutch slave ships
beginning in the 17th century, which lasted until the United Netherlands abolished the Dutch
involvement in the trade in 1814 under pressure by the British government. Amsterdam was also
a member of the Society of Suriname, an organization founded to oversee the management of

Surinam, a Dutch slave colony.”
Source: Amsterdam
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Amsterdam

“In 1602 the Dutch East India Company (Dutch: Verenigde Oostindische Compagnie or VOC)
was founded. It was the first-ever multinational corporation, financed by shares that established
the first modern stock exchange. It became the world's largest commercial enterprise of the 17th
century. To finance the growing trade within the region, the Bank of Amsterdam was established

in 1609, the precursor to, if not the first true central bank.”
Source: History of the Netherlands
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/History of the Netherlands

“The Bank of Amsterdam was not subject to official examination, but its credit was never
questioned. Toward the close of the eighteenth century it became known that the bank had not
lived up to its obligations to keep in its vaults an amount of coin and bullion equal to the ‘bank
money’ outstanding. The small committee of city ‘fathers’ responsible for its administration
made no report of its affairs, but in 1790 it leaked out that for years favored depositors had been
permitted to overdraw their accounts and that enormous loans of specie had been made to the

city and to the Dutch East India Company.”

Source: Money and Banking by John Thom Holdsworth — p. 132
https://books.google.com/books?id=Mxc5AAAAMAAJ]



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Amsterdam
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/History_of_the_Netherlands
https://books.google.com/books?id=Mxc5AAAAMAAJ

The bank was engaging in fractional reserve banking. And this bank was receiving a portion of
the profits made from the global commerce and trade that took place at that time. It loaned
money to the Dutch East India Company, helping to fuel its operation and stock value, which in
turn helped fuel the bank, the Amsterdam Stock Exchange, Amsterdam and the merchants.

How are Jews a part of this?

“From the 15th century, Jews also resided in the Northern Netherlands. Their most important
occupation was moneylending, making them dependent on the economies of the cities. In this
way, Nijmegen became an important financial marketplace where a great many of Jewish
families came to settle. Nonetheless, Jews continued to choose the large cities in the Southern
Netherlands as for their home base. In the 16th century the city of Antwerp came to be a very
important location for Jewish tradesmen and moneylenders because of its flourishing economy.
This also turned it into a refuge for a number of Marranos who had been expelled from Spain and
Portugal by the Inquisition after 1492. Jewish bankers usually settled there using a Christian
pseudonym. Francisco Mendes, born into a distinguished family of bankers, opened a branch in
Antwerp that was one of the largest banks in Europe. After his death in 1536 it was run by his
wife Gracia Nasi. The flourishing Jewish trade in Antwerp ended, however, when The
Netherlands were divided during the reign of king Philip 11 and, by the end of the century, many
Jews took refuge in the Northern Netherlands, especially in Amsterdam where they formed a

community.”
Source: The Netherlands (Holland) Virtual Jewish History Tour
https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/the-netherlands-virtual-jewish-history-tour

“In 1536, when the Catholic Church instituted the Inquisition in Portugal, many Jews fled to the
Turkish Empire and Italy. Others went to colonies in the Western Hemisphere or to Flanders,
some en route to Holland. Many relocated to Amsterdam in 1581 and became involved in the

city's commerce and shipping industries (Emmanuel 1970:39).”
Source: Merchants of Curacao in the early 18th century
https://scholarworks.wm.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=4169&context=etd

“In 1593 Maranos arrived in Amsterdam after having been refused admission to Middelburg and
Haarlem. These Jews were important merchants and persons of great ability. They labored
assiduously in the cause of the people and contributed materially to the prosperity of the country.
They became strenuous supporters of the house of Orange and were in return protected by the


https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/the-netherlands-virtual-jewish-history-tour
https://scholarworks.wm.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=4169&context=etd

stadholder.”
Source: NETHERLANDS: By: Joseph Jacobs, E. Slijper
https://www.jewishencyclopedia.com/articles/11450-netherlands

“The so-called Spanish Jews originated from Spain and Portugal, but had been expelled years
earlier. Many still remained in the Iberian peninsula, practising either their new religion in public
or Judaism in secret (see crypto-Jews or Marranos), or both. ... During the Twelve Years' Truce
the commerce of the Dutch Republic increased considerably and a period of development had
arrived. This was particularly true for Amsterdam, where the Marranos had moved their goods
and base of operations to maintain their foreign trade relationships, including previous
relationships with the Levant and with Morocco. ... The Jews strongly supported the Dutch
Republic in its struggle with Portugal for the possession of Brazil, but with its loss they would

seek refuge in other Dutch settlements including in the Caribbean and New Amsterdam.”
Source: History of the Jews in the Netherlands
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/History of the Jews_in_the Netherlands

“In other ways, however, the Netherlands’ Jewish community was atypical. While in general,
European Jews isolated themselves economically and socially as well as politically, the Jews of
the Netherlands enjoyed, as early as the seventeenth century, economic and social integration
that the rest of European Jewry would not know for hundreds of years. Professions like medicine
became very popular, and Jewish physicians were free to practice even among non-Jews. More
importantly, the Jews, particularly the Sephardim, played a large role in the economic expansion
that elevated the Netherlands to a world center in the 1600s. The Portuguese Jews, with their
knowledge of languages and connections to the international trade network of Jews and
Marranos, became important in the shipping and trading industries. Several Jews were important
shareholders in the East Indies Company, which dominated international trade during the
seventeenth and eighteenth centuries. Jews became prominent in other businesses as well,
succeeding in the tobacco, sugar refining, and printing industries. Most of all, the diamond
industry soon became an almost exclusively Jewish occupation due to their success in it. Because
of their economic integration, Jews in the Netherlands eventually united with the greater society
to a much larger extent than any other Jewish community in this period. While they continued to
be governed by the kehilla, they lived not in a ghetto, but in a Jewish quarter, which the Jews
were free to leave and which was frequented by non-Jews — the artist Rembrandt, for example,
lived and worked in the Jewish quarter. The anti-Semitic violence that was still prevalent in
Germany and eastern Europe was non-existent in the Netherlands. ... This account of the Jews’
welfare and integration, however, is subject to a caveat: It was only the Sephardic Jews who
were succeeding so well in the Netherlands. The more numerous Ashkenazim were closer to a


https://www.jewishencyclopedia.com/articles/11450-netherlands
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/History_of_the_Jews_in_the_Netherlands

proletariat than a merchant class. They continued to speak primarily Yiddish, made no lasting

contributions to Dutch culture, and, more surprisingly, made few contributions to their own.”
Source: The Netherlands (Holland) Virtual Jewish History Tour
https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/the-netherlands-virtual-jewish-history-tour

“In a letter sent from Venice on March 27, 1688, the French tourist, Maximillian Misson outdid
himself in describing the wealth of the Portuguese Jews: ‘There are some Jews at VVenice who
drive a great Trade, especially the Portuguese, who are very rich here, as well as at Amsterdam
and elsewhere.”* Following a visit to Amsterdam, he spoke with amazement about the political
status of some of the representatives of the Portuguese social elite: ‘Notwithstanding the
Inquisition against the Jews in Spain and Portugal, a Portuguese Jew (Don Jerome Nunez de
Costa) was Agent of Portugal at Amsterdam. And another, Don Emanuel de Belmonte, Resident

of Spain. This last received the Title of Count from the Emperor.’*”
Source: Religious Changes and Cultural Transformations in the Early Modern Western Sephardic Communities
https://brill.com/view/book/edcoll/9789004392489/front-6.xmlI?lang=en

“Among the stream of refugees — French Protestants, Antwerpers, Jews from Spain and Portugal
— were many merchants, often in possession of substantial capital. The Sephardic Jews™ in
particular contributed to Holland’s fortune. Werner Sombart™ claims that they brought with
them to Amsterdam capitalism, no less, which is going rather too far. But they certainly gave the
city valuable aid, in the sphere of currency exchange for instance and even more in stock
exchange transactions. In these domains they were masters, indeed pioneers. They were also
good advisers, and were instrumental in setting up commercial links between Holland and the
New World and the Mediterranean.®* A seventeenth-century English pamphleteer even suspected
that the merchants of Amsterdam had lured them to the city out of commercial interest, ‘the Jews

and other foreigners having opened their own world-wide commerce to them.”®%”
Source: Civilization and Capitalism, 15th-18th Century: The perspective of the world by Fernand Braudel — p. 187
https://books.google.com/books?id=xMZ12QEer9QC

“The arrival of Jewish merchants once again manifested itself in the names in the Bank of
Amsterdam’s books. In 1625, four years after the end of the Twelve Years’ Truce, under 6
percent of the account holders were of Portuguese Jewish origin. By 1646, this figure was 8
percent, rising to 10.5 percent in 1651. The trend leveled off after that. In 1674, more than 13
percent of the Bank of Amsterdam’s account holders were Portuguese Jews. At that time,
Portuguese Jews accounted for slightly more than 2 percent of Amsterdam’s overall population,
which meant that they were significantly overrepresented among merchants.”


https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/the-netherlands-virtual-jewish-history-tour
https://brill.com/view/title/34860#FN060003
https://brill.com/view/title/34860#FN060004
https://brill.com/view/book/edcoll/9789004392489/front-6.xml?lang=en
https://books.google.com/books?id=xMZI2QEer9QC

Source: The World's First Stock Exchange by Lodewijk Petram — p. 129
https://books.google.com/books?id=V8fbAgAAQBAJ

That’s just for the Portuguese Jews, and is not an indication of how much money Jews had in the
Bank of Amsterdam, nor is it a totally accurate indication of the number of Jewish account
holders due to their practice of hiding their identity, but this does show that Jews did have
accounts at the Bank of Amsterdam, the precursor to, if not the first, true central bank, which
oversaw the enormous amounts of capital that amassed within the area; some of which came
from the Dutch East India Company (the first multinational corporation), the Amsterdam Stock
Exchange (the first modern stock exchange), and the Dutch West India Company, all of which
Jews had significant control over. But it doesn’t stop there. In the 1700’s, many of the openly
Jewish stockholders of the Bank of England (England’s central bank, established in 1694) listed
their address as being in Amsterdam. This bank was later used to establish a central bank in
America, as you’ll see in The Civil War chapter.

Sources:

Sephardi Jews and the early years of The Bank of England

The Jew Bank of England

1966 EARLY JEWISH HOLDERS OF BANK OF ENGLAND STOCK 1694 1725

EARLY JEWISH HOLDERS OF BANK OF ENGLAND STOCK (1694-1725)

The Bank Of England A History Volume | 1694 - 1797 by Clapham, John Sir

Also see: Old and New London: Volume 1 - The Bank of England - by Cassell, Petter & Galpin — pp. 453-473: here or here

And notice how New Amsterdam “somehow” became a literal carbon-copy of Amsterdam.

Dutch West India Company

“The Dutch West India Company was a chartered company (known as the "GWC") of Dutch
merchants. On 2 June 1621, it was granted a charter for a trade monopoly in the West Indies
(meaning the Caribbean) by the Republic of the Seven United Netherlands and given jurisdiction
over the African slave trade, Brazil, the Caribbean, and North America. Its area of operations
stretched from West Africa to the Americas, and the Pacific islands. The company became

instrumental in the Dutch colonization of the Americas.”
Source: History of the Netherlands
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/History of the Netherlands



https://books.google.com/books?id=V8fbAgAAQBAJ
https://web.archive.org/web/20221230010207/http:/theinfounderground.com/smf/index.php?topic=16923.0;wap2
http://archive.today/8FKDY
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“In September of 1654 a group of 23 Jews were brought to New Amsterdam from the colony in
Brazil (which was called New Holland), where the Portuguese had just defeated the Dutch West
India Company following an eight-year rebellion. In 1655, the same year charges were made
against the Lutherans, the New Amsterdam preachers requested the province get rid of the Jews.
This matter was brought to the company directors in Amsterdam, who recommended the Jews be
segregated and allowed to practice their religion, but not be permitted to build a synagogue. In
this case toleration was granted because some of the Dutch West India Company stockholders
were Jewish merchants. In fact, in 1658 when one of these New Netherland Jews, named David
de Ferrera, was given an overly harsh punishment for a minor offence, it took the intervention of
an important Jewish stockholder in the company, Joseph d'Acosta, to have the punishment

reduced.”
Source: A Brief Outline of the History of New Netherland
http://www.coins.nd.edu/ColCoin/ColCoinlntros/NNHistory.html

“In early 1655, or just possibly late 1654, still another group of Jews arrived in New Amsterdam,
all from the republic, all probably granted passports partly as a result of the influence of the
Amsterdam parnasim. Many had been in Brazil and were part of the 1654 exodus. One, Jacob
Cohen Henriquez, was the son of principal investor Abraham Cohen, alias Francisco Vaez de
Leon. While Cohen, accused of theft and smuggling, and many of the others did not stay very
long, these early arrivals were surely influenced in their decision to go to New Amsterdam by
their coreligionist West India Company shareholders.?! This must have also applied to those on
the Peereboom. Stuyvesant seems not to have objected to those on the Peereboom or those
coming directly from Amsterdam. However, he did raise questions about the twenty-three in
several letters, which were carried by the Schaal and the Beer. Two letters, dated September 22
and 25, 1654, were to the directors of the company asking, if not insisting, that ‘these new
territories not be invaded’ by people of the ‘Jewish race.” Another letter, dated October 27, was
received via England. Stuyvesant’s writing came after the Peereboom arrival and seems to have
been a reaction to the St. Catrina’s passengers. Stuyvesant used the same objections raised by
Domine Megapolensis. The directors replied on April 26, 1655, stating that although they
recognized these objections:

We observe that it would be unreasonable and unfair, especially because of the
considerable loss sustained by the Jews in the taking of Brazil and also because of the
large amount of capital, which they invested in shares of this Company. After many
consultations we have decided and resolved upon a certain petition made by said
Portuguese Jews, that they shall have permission to sail and trade in New Netherland and
to live and remain there provided the poor among them shall not become a burden to the
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Company, or the community, but be supported by their own nation. You will govern
yourself accordingly.??

The Amsterdam parnasim had asked incoming Jews — the post-Peereboom and St. Catrina

arrivals — to provide financial aid to the twenty-three indigent Jews. As a group, however, they
were primarily interested in possibilities of commercial enterprise.l® Isaac Israel became active
in trade on the Delaware River, as did David Ferera and Joseph d’Acosta, a major shareholder in

the company.”
Source: By Chance or Choice: Jews in New Amsterdam 1654 by Leo Hershkowitz
http://americanjewisharchives.org/publications/journal/PDF/2005_57 01 02_hershkowitz.pdf

“Confirmatory evidence of the large participation of the Jews in the Dutch West India Company
is also found in another source. Menasseh ben Israel in his ‘Humble Address to Cromwell’ states
‘that the Jews were enjoying a good part of the (Dutch) East and West India Company.’ In the
Board of Directors, asserts one of the first writers on the early settlements of the Jews in

America, Charles Patrick Daly, there were a number of these Spanish Jews.”

Source: The Jews in the making of America by Cohen, George - p. 61
https://archive.org/details/jewsinmakingofam00cohe/mode/2up

As you can see, Jews had a significant amount of power in the Dutch West India Company. And
that’s just speaking of the people who were known to be Jews. There were still the secret Jews
and non-Jews who were favorable to Jews. And it’s the same with all the other trading
companies we were taught about in school. But think about it, whenever we’re told it was the
Dutch, without a question, that means non-Jewish people of the Netherlands. So, is this fair?
Why are the Dutch and Christianity being blamed, and not Jews? And many of the Jews were
not even from the Netherlands! How about this? Since the music industry (Jewish) and
Hollywood (Jewish) want to be so hands-on with Black people, especially in the ghettos, gaining
complete control of our culture and purposefully turning it into self-destructive poison that
manipulates the residents of the ghettos to carry out criminal activity, how about Black criminals
from the ghetto change their names to Jewish names and their official race to Jewish? Then
when they commit crimes it will go down in the books as Jewish crimes. And we can also have
them move to Jewish neighborhoods and commit crimes there. “That would be totally
unacceptable.” And yet, that’s exactly what Jewish people have been doing for well over a
thousand years.

And does being a major hands-on partner in the driving force behind the Dutch involvement in
the slave trade look like “a minor role” to you? And we’ve only looked at a portion of the Dutch
share of the trade.
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And now, with the combined understanding of all that you’ve just read, we can get to some info
on the trans-Atlantic slave trade. You’ll see why that previous information was so important.

Sugar

Spanish and Portuguese South America 1525-1750
https://web.archive.org/web/20230218041456/https://commons.princeton.edu/mg/spanish-and-
portuguese-south-america-1525-1750/

The story of slave-produced sugar in the Atlantic trade actually begins in the early 1400’s with
Spain and Portugal ... and Jews who were right there from the beginning, playing a very
important role once again. But let’s take a look at slave-produced sugar in the West Indies under
the Dutch (or “the Dutch”). Remember, we’ve already established that the power behind the
Dutch traders, the people who greatly influenced the decision-making and dictated where they
went and what they did, was partially Jewish.

“The Portuguese introduced sugar plantations in the 1550s off the coast of their Brazilian
settlement colony, located on the island Sao Vincente. As the Portuguese and Spanish
maintained a strong colonial presence in the Caribbean, the Iberian Peninsula amassed
tremendous wealth from the cultivation of this cash crop. ... Although the sugar trade in the
Americas was initially dominated by the Portuguese Empire, the Dutch—Portuguese War would
cause a shift which would have knock-on effects for the further growth of the sugar trade in the
Caribbean and particularly the production of rum (made from sugar cane juice). In 1630, the
Dutch seized Recife near Pernambuco in what is today Brazil (the Dutch called this New
Holland after they took over) and this territory included some sugar plantations worked by
African slaves who had been brought to the territory earlier. Some of the slave plantation owners
were Cristdo-Novo, i.e. ‘New Christian” Sephardic Jews who had been forced to convert to the
Catholic Church. As the Portuguese Inquisition was in operation and the Dutch Calvinists were
generally more tolerant of Jews, they were happy to side with them over the Catholic Portuguese
and remained in the area operating their substantial sugar-orientated slave plantations, now under
Dutch sovereignty. They even founded the first public synagogue in the Americas there in 1636;
the Kahal Zur Israel Synagogue.”
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Source: Sugar plantations in the Caribbean
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sugar_plantations_in_the Caribbean

Sephardic Jews, Jews from Spain or Portugal, were already in Brazil engaging in the slave-
produced sugar industry under the Portuguese. Once the Dutch moved in, they simply worked
under them. “As the Portuguese Inquisition was in operation and the Dutch Calvinists were
generally more tolerant of Jews, they were happy to side with them over the Catholic Portuguese
and remained in the area...” Is that why? | disagree. And as you’ll see later, while under the
Dutch, they would be joined by other Jews, mostly from Spain and Portugal. And remember,
many Spanish and Portuguese Jews joined their brethren in the Netherlands and began working
with them. So, while the non-Jewish Europeans are fighting....

“The expulsion of the Hebrews from Spain and Portugal, beginning in the year 1492, caused
many to seek refuge in Holland. In 1624, the Dutch having secured a foothold in Brazil, numbers
of Hebrews found their way to that country. The formation of the West India Company of
Amsterdam in 1638, which had for its object the opening up of trade with Brazil, was followed
by a large emigration of Hebrews to that country, 600 having left Amsterdam in the autumn of

1642 alone.”
Source: The Hebrews in America. A SERIES OF HISTORICAL AND BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES. BY ISAAC MARKENS.
(1888) — pp. 2-3
https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The_Hebrews_in_America_%28IA _hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf

“They helped to establish the first sugar plantations in Africa and in the New World. By 1695,
after Dutch authorities had granted Jewish merchants permission to plant sugar in Dutch
Surinam, Jews there owned more than forty sugar plantations employing over nine thousand

African slaves.”
Source: Jews and Judaism in African History by Richard Hall - p. 79

Note: That was just in Surinam.

“The sugar trade also was of great importance to the colonies. Aside from precious metals, it was
the chief article of trade between both portions of the New World. There is ground for believing
that sugar culture was transplanted from Madeira to Brazil and the New World by a Spanish Jew.
At one time the whole sugar industry in the West Indies and Brazil was a Jewish monopoly. It
was an industry of supreme importance in that day, as Brooks Adams has pointed out in his
volume on America’s commercial supremacy. It brought vast wealth to England and the colonies
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and to other countries also. The writer, Nieuhoff, who was in Brazil before 1650, wrote that
‘They [the Jews] had a vast traffic, beyond all the rest, they purchased sugar mills, and built
stately houses in the Receif. They were all traders.” The Council of Trade in Paris (1701)
declared ‘that French shipping owes its splendor to the commerce of the sugar producing
islands.” It was this commercial link between the Jews of the colonies and the Jews of the West
Indies and Brazil that stabilized the economic order of the colonies and gave it the basis for its
economic future. It compensated for the burden that the mother country placed upon America
and without the beneficial effects flowing from this Jewish trade the growth of the colonies

would have been difficult and slow.”
Source: The Jews in the making of America by Cohen, George - pp. 71-71
https://archive.org/details/jewsinmakingofam00cohe/mode/2up

So, they were even on the ground, hands-on in the slave-produced sugar industry, having their
own plantations.

Excerpts from Jewish Involvement In Black Slave Trade To The Americas By Rabbi Marc Lee
Raphael

The following passages are from Dr. Raphael's book Jews and Judaism in the United States: A
Documentary History (New York: Behrman House, Inc., Pub, 1983), pp. 14, 23-25.

"Jews also took an active part in the Dutch colonial slave trade; indeed, the bylaws of the Recife
and Mauricia congregations (1648) included an imposta (Jewish tax) of five soldos for each
Negro slave a Brazilian Jew purchased from the West Indies Company. Slave auctions were
postponed if they fell on a Jewish holiday. In Curacao in the seventeenth century, as well as in
the British colonies of Barbados and Jamaica in the eighteenth century, Jewish merchants played
a major role in the slave trade. In fact, in all the American colonies, whether French
(Martinique), British, or Dutch, Jewish merchants frequently dominated.

"This was no less true on the North American mainland, where during the eighteenth century
Jews participated in the ‘triangular trade' that brought slaves from Africa to the West Indies and
there exchanged them for molasses, which in turn was taken to New England and converted into
rum for sale in Africa. Isaac Da Costa of Charleston in the 1750's, David Franks of Philadelphia
in the 1760's, and Aaron Lopez of Newport in the late 1760's and early 1770's dominated Jewish
slave trading on the American continent.”

Dr. Raphael discusses the central role of the Jews in the New World commerce and the African
slave trade (pp. 23-25):


https://archive.org/details/jewsinmakingofam00cohe/mode/2up

SEVENTEENTH AND EIGHTEENTH CENTURIES JEWISH INTER-ISLAND TRADE:
CURACAQOQ, 1656

During the sixteenth century, exiled from their Spanish homeland and hard-pressed to escape the
clutches of the Inquisition, Spanish and Portuguese Jews fled to the Netherlands; the Dutch
enthusiastically welcomed these talented, skilled businessmen.

While thriving in Amsterdam - where they became the hub of a unique urban Jewish universe
and attained status that anticipated Jewish emancipation in the West by over a century - they
began in the 1500's and 1600's to establish themselves in the Dutch and English colonies in the
New World. These included Curacao, Surinam, Recife, and New Amsterdam (Dutch) as well as
Barbados, Jamaica, Newport, and Savannah (English).

In these European outposts the Jews, with their years of mercantile experience and networks of
friends and family providing market reports of great use, played a significant role in the
merchant capitalism, commercial revolution, and territorial expansion that developed the New
World and established the colonial economies. The Jewish-Caribbean nexus provided Jews with
the opportunity to claim a disproportionate influence in seventeenth and eighteenth century New
World commerce, and enabled West Indian Jewry-far outnumbering its coreligionists further
north-to enjoy a centrality which North American Jewry would not achieve for a long time to
come.

Groups of Jews began to arrive in Surinam in the middle of the seventeenth century, after the
Portuguese regained control of northern Brazil. By 1694, twenty-seven years after the British had
surrendered Surinam to the Dutch, there were about 100 Jewish families and fifty single Jews
there, or about 570 persons. They possessed more than forty estates and 9,000 slaves, contributed
25,905 pounds of sugar as a gift for the building of a hospital, and carried on an active trade with
Newport and other colonial ports. By 1730, Jews owned 115 plantations and were a large part of
a sugar export business which sent out 21,680,000 pounds of sugar to European and New World
markets in 1730 alone.

Slave trading was a major feature of Jewish economic life in Surinam which as a major stopping-
off point in the triangular trade. Both North American and Caribbean Jews played a key role in
this commerce: records of a slave sale in 1707 reveal that the ten largest Jewish purchasers
(10,400 guilders) spent more than 25 percent of the total funds (38,605 guilders) exchanged.

Jewish economic life in the Dutch West Indies, as in the North American colonies, consisted
primarily of mercantile communities, with large inequities in the distribution of wealth. Most
Jews were shopkeepers, middlemen, or petty merchants who received encouragement and
support from Dutch authorities. ...

In the British West Indies, two 1680 tax lists survive, both from Barbados; they, too, provide



useful information about Jewish economic life. In Bridgetown itself, out of a total of 404
households, 54 households or 300 persons were Jewish, 240 of them living in "ye Towne of S.
Michael ye Bridge Town." Contrary to most impressions, "many, indeed, most of them, were
very poor." There were only a few planters, and most Jews were not naturalized or endenizened
(and thus could not import goods or pursue debtors in court). But for merchants holding letters of
endenization, opportunities were not lacking. Barbados sugar-and its by-products rum and
molasses-were in great demand, and in addition to playing a role in its export, Jewish merchants

were active in the import trade.
Source: Jewish Involvement In Black Slave Trade To The Americas By Rabbi Marc Lee Raphael
http://www.rense.com/general69/invo.htm

“His forthcoming book, a historical novel entitled ‘The Jewish Slave,’ follows an 18th-century
Jewish merchant and his black slave as they investigate Dutch-owned plantations north of Brazil
in the hope of persuading Jews to divest from the slave trade. In researching the book, van de
Kamp discovered data that shocked him. In one area of what used to be Dutch Guyana, 40
Jewish-owned plantations were home to a total population of at least 5,000 slaves, he says.
Known as the Jodensavanne, or Jewish Savannah, the area had a Jewish community of several
hundred before its destruction in a slave uprising in 1832. Nearly all of them immigrated to
Holland, bringing their accumulated wealth with them. Some of that wealth was on display last
year in the cellar of Amsterdam’s Portuguese Synagogue, part of an exhibition celebrating the
riches of the synagogue’s immigrant founders. ... In the United States, the Jewish role in the
slave trade has been a matter of scholarly debate for nearly two decades, prompted in part by
efforts to refute the Nation of Islam’s claim that Jews dominated the Atlantic slave trade. But in
Holland, the issue of Jewish complicity is rarely discussed. ‘This is because we in the
Netherlands only profited from slavery but have not seen it in our own eyes,” van de Kamp said.

‘“The American experience is different.””

Source: How culpable were Dutch Jews in the slave trade?
https://web.archive.org/web/20140806024200/http://www.jewishjournal.com/articles/item/how_culpable_were_dutch_jews_in_t
he_slave_trade

“According to Jonathan Israel, by 1620, ‘most’ of the Sephardim living in Amsterdam ‘were
involved in activities related to the import of sugar or other colonial products.’53 In the 1630’s,
and even before, some Sephardim owned sugar plantations in Brazil and refineries around

Amsterdam.”

Source: Jews and Blacks in the Early Modern World by Jonathan Schorsch — p. 199
https://books.google.com/books?id=COpQcnGESRwC

Now do you see how the game was being played?
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“In the Americas, the first major venture was the capture of the sugar producing region of
Northeast Brazil (around Recife) from 1630 to 1654. Sugar was transported to the Netherlands
where there were 40 refineries by 1650. The venture in Brazil had substantial military and naval
support but the sugar plantations were run by private enterprise. Most were owned by sephardic
jews from Amsterdam, many of Portuguese origin. During the period when Portugal was
governed by Spain, the Dutch were reasonably well received in Brazil, but after Portugal
regained its independence, they were expelled. Many plantation owners then moved to the
Caribbean where they introduced the same production techniques and marketing patterns. Their
arrival transformed the economy of Barbados which the British had occupied in 1627 and grew
tobacco with white settlers. Within a short time the island had 30 000 slaves and was totally
devoted to sugar (see Eltis, 1995, for a proxy assessment of the GDP of Barbados in 1644-1701).
Emigrant plantation owners from Brazil had a similar impact in Guadeloupe and Martinique
which had been French since 1635 (see Verlinden, 1972, p. 642-4). By the 1660s and 1670s, the
British and French had driven out the Dutch, who moved their sugar activities to Surinam. In the
early seventeenth century, sugar production in the Americas had been concentrated on Brazil.
But from mid—century, Brazilian production stagnated and a hugely expanded market was
dominated by France and Britain. Dutch production in Surinam was on a much smaller scale (see
Table 2-4). Another Dutch venture in the Americas was the inadvertent discovery of a
magnificent harbour and huge river by Henry Hudson. He was on a Dutch East India Company
mission to try to discover a Northwest passage to Asia in 1609 and hopelessly off course. In
1614 the New Netherlands Company was founded to settle a colony with its capital at New
Amsterdam in 1623. In 1664 it was taken over by the British, and in 1674 formally ceded (as
New York) in exchange for a free hand for Dutch sugar interests in Surinam (de Vries and van de

Woude, 1997, pp. 397 and 467).”

Source: The Netherlands from 1600 to the 1820s
http://www.theworldeconomy.org/impact/The Netherlands from 1600 to the 1820s.html

“Rhode Island played a leading role in the transatlantic slave trade. Not only did Rhode Islanders
have slaves—they had more per capita than any other New England state—but they also entered
with gusto into the trade. By the close of the eighteenth century, Rhode Islanders had mounted at
least a thousand voyages from Africa to the Americas. Slavery in North America, however,
never achieved the scale that it did in the Caribbean or South America. Of the approximately
twelve million Africans transported to America by the mid-nineteenth century, six hundred
thousand (or 5 %) came to mainland North America, and about one hundred thousand (or 1%)
were carried in Rhode Island ships. In 1652, Rhode Island passed a law abolishing African
slavery, similar to those governing indentured European servants, where ‘black mankinde’ could
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not be indentured more than ten years. The law was evidently never enforced and the demand for
cheap labor prevailed. The market for sugar [4] and its related product, rum, was too compelling.
During the colonial period, Rhode Island was one corner of what has been named the ‘triangular
trade,” by which slave-produced sugar and molasses from the Caribbean were carried to Rhode
Island and made into rum. The rum was then carried to West Africa and exchanged for slaves

[5], to produce more sugar, more rum, and more slaves.”
Source: Slavery and the Slave Trade in Rhode Island
https://www.brown.edu/Facilities/John_Carter_Brown_Library/exhibitions/jcbexhibit/Pages/exhibSlavery.html

Side-note

“Newport was a major center of the slave trade in colonial and early America, active in
the ‘triangle trade’ in which slave-produced sugar and molasses from the Caribbean were
carried to Rhode Island and distilled into rum that was then carried to West Africa and
exchanged for captives. In 1764, Rhode Island had about 30 rum distilleries, 22 in
Newport alone.” (Source: Newport, Rhode Island) And Jews were among the players in Newport
as well. The most infamous out of the Jews was probably Aaron Lopez. “Aaron Lopez
is also credited with making Newport an important center of trade. He encouraged 40
Portuguese Jewish families to settle there, and within 14 years, Newport had 150 vessels
engaged in trade. Lopez was involved in the slave trade, as were other shipping
magnates, and the manufacture of spermaceti candles, ships, barrels, rum, chocolate,
textiles, clothes, shoes, hats, and bottles. Although Lopez became the wealthiest man in
Newport, he was denied citizenship on religious grounds....” (Source: Newport, Rhode Island)
But we’re only told about James DeWolf who started in the slave trade after Lopez had
died. “DeWolf is featured prominently in an Emmy nominated 2008 documentary,
Traces of the Trade: A Story from the Deep North, co-produced and directed by Katrina
Browne, a DeWolf descendant, which describes the DeWolf family's major role in the
United States slave trade.” (Source: James DeWolf)

“Further north in the Caribbean, the Protestant Kingdom of England was beginning to challenge
the interest of the Catholic powers in the region such as the Spanish Empire and the Kingdom of
France, taking control of a number of islands, including Jamaica and Barbados. One of these
men, Colonel James Drax who had interests in Barbados, visited Dutch Brazil in 1640 and
purchased a triple-roller sugar mill and a set of copper cauldrons (used for turning sugar cane
into molasses, i.e. sugar cane juice used in rum production). This technology, although
originating in Sicily had spread to the New World and had been improved on by the Sephardim
and the Dutch. After 1654, the Portuguese had taken the territory back and pushed the Dutch out
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of Brazil. Many of the Sephardic Jewish sugar plantation owners fled to English-controlled
Barbados, supported by Francis Willoughby and set up the Nidhe Israel Synagogue. In
competition with English merchants and due to accusations of favouring the Dutch in the sugar
trade (who continued to control Curacao), Jews were originally not allowed to own more than
two slaves in Barbados, but aided the sugar plantations in other ways, bringing their expert
knowledge of technologies in cultivating rum from the sugar cane and working as merchants,
supplying them with African slaves to work the plantations, helping to make Barbados the sugar
capital of the Caribbean and the rum capital of the world. By 1706, the laws against Jews owning

sugar plantations in Barbados has been dropped.”
Source: Sugar plantations in the Caribbean
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sugar_plantations_in_the Caribbean

After the Portuguese had taken back Brazil, many of the Sephardic Jews in Brazil fled to
Barbados under the English and helped to make Barbados the sugar capital of the Caribbean and
the rum capital of the world. But can you guess what they were called? Can you guess who got
the blame? The English.

“Without a doubt, Jewish refugees from Brazil played a significant role in instructing the English
and French in sugar production techniques and in setting up some of the first sugar refineries. ...
After they obtained the coveted Spanish slave trade asiento, the British displaced the Dutch in
the eighteenth century as the world’s greatest sugar importer and slave trading nation. The
Atlantic slave trade continued to flourish; in fact, its volume did not peak until the decade of the
1780s. Nevertheless, from the 1730s, the involvement of Jews and conversos rapidly diminished

into relative insignificance.”
Source: Jews and Judaism in African History by Richard Hall - pp. 113, 116

So, without a doubt, it was the Jewish refugees from Dutch Brazil (“the Dutch”) who played a
significant role....

“The Dutch contribution to the transatlantic slave trade has long been thought to have marginal
significance. But this depends on how one characterises significance. | suggest that the Dutch
slave trade was not just significant, but crucial in shaping the transatlantic slave trade. The total
number of slaves transported by Europeans from Africa to the Americas has been calculated to
be 10,702,656. The Dutch were responsible for around half a million of those, though figures
might be higher as Dutch ships sometimes sailed under a foreign flag in order to circumvent the
legal monopoly of their own Dutch West Indies Company (WIC). Furthermore, this figure is
mainly based on legal slave voyages. Illegal Dutch slave voyages could have accounted for the
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forced transportation of some tens of thousands more African captives. Still, we do know that
official Dutch participation in the Atlantic slave trade amounts to just under six per cent of the
total. But, at a certain point in time, the Dutch contribution was critical, belying the overall
numbers. ... In the mid-17th century, British-owned Barbados rapidly developed into a slave
society growing sugar cane. The capital and technology supplied by the Dutch were instrumental
in bringing this about, unleashing a revolution in the production of sugar cane, with the essential
ingredient being the Dutch supply of African slaves. While some historians have warned against
exaggerating the role of the Dutch in Barbados, the role they played in converting the French
colonies of Guadeloupe and Martinique into slave societies was of major consequence.
According to Wim Klooster, the Dutch ‘supplied all that the planters needed to start the sugar
revolution’, including ‘slaves ... credit ... imported horses’ and ‘technical know-how’. In short,
the pursuit of profit led the Dutch into an entangled history with Africa and the other European
powers in the Caribbean. In the long term, it would be the English and the French who would
draw the greatest profit from their slave plantation colonies, but this was partially thanks to
contributions made by the Dutch. Once they had learned from the Dutch, in the 18th century the
English and French grew the slave trade to dizzying proportions, forcibly transporting over three
and a half million African captives. The tiny British island of Barbados alone would receive
nearly half a million slaves, Jamaica over a million. We can dismiss the Dutch role in the slave
trade as having been marginal only by taking a narrow and exclusively economic approach.
When measuring the significance of the Dutch slave trade, we have to look beyond the profits
made by the Dutch alone. Their experience was pivotal in laying the basis for the European sugar

revolutions across the Caribbean and the consequent explosive growth in the slave trade.”

Source: Beyond Profit - The Dutch role in the slave trade cannot be dismissed as a matter of numbers.
https://www.historytoday.com/history-matters/beyond-profit

“The Dutch.”

“In the mid-17th century, sugarcane had been brought into the English West Indies by the
Dutch, 2418 from Brazil. Upon landing in Jamaica and other islands, they quickly urged local
growers to change their main crops from cotton and tobacco to sugar cane. With depressed prices
of cotton and tobacco, due mainly to stiff competition from the North American colonies, the
farmers switched, leading to a boom in the Caribbean economies. Sugar was rapidly becoming
more popular in Britain, where it was used in cakes and to sweeten teas. In the eighteenth
century, sugar replaced piracy as Jamaica's main source of income and Jamaica became the
largest exporter of sugar in the British Empire. Sugar became Britain's largest import by the late
eighteenth century.2” The sugar monoculture and slave-worked plantation society spread across
Jamaica throughout the eighteenth century.28 ... The oppression of the enslaved Africans in
Jamaica was considered by contemporaries to be amongst the most brutal in the world.
Punishments heaped on enslaved African populations by white enslavers included forcing one
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enslaved person to defecate in the mouth of another enslaved person and then gagging the victim
for several hours and forcing them to swallow it (a practice known as Derby's Dose), floggings,
whippings to the point of loss of life, ‘pickling” which was whipping a person until there were
open wounds and then placing the victim in a vat of salt and banana peppers (another part of
Derby's Dose), hanging by the feet, gang rape, branding on the forehead, and more. In 1739,
Charles Leslie wrote that, ‘No Country excels [Jamaica] in a barbarous Treatment of Slaves, or
in the cruel Methods they put them to Death.” %3 Some historians believe that with the
abolition of the slave trade in 1808 and slavery itself in 1834, the island's sugar- and slave-based
economy faltered.2% However, Eric Williams has argued that the British only abolished first the
slave trade and then slavery itself when they were no longer economically viable institutions.’%

“During most of the eighteenth century, a monocrop economy based on sugar production for
export flourished.2% In the last quarter of the century, however, the Jamaican sugar economy
declined as famines, hurricanes, colonial wars, and wars of independence disrupted trade.X!
Despite the British Parliament's 1807 abolition of the slave trade, under which the transportation
of slaves to Jamaica after 1 March 1808 was forbidden, sugar continued to have some success
over the next decade. By the 1820s, however, Jamaican sugar had become less competitive with
that from high-volume producers such as Cuba and production subsequently declined. When
sugar declined as a crop, the British government was persuaded to emancipate the Black people
they kept enslaved with the abolition of slavery in 1834 and full emancipation within four

years. %

Source: Colony of Jamaica
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Colony of Jamaica

“With regard to the West-Indian colonies, reference has already been made to the large
participation of Jews in the sugar trade, their chief output. They practically monopolized the

Jamaica trade in sugar, rum, and molasses in the middle of the eighteenth century.”

Source: Jewish Contributions to Civilization An Estimate By Joseph Jacobs - pp. 243-244
https://www.google.com/books/edition/Jewish_Contributions to_Civilization/px4cAAAAMAAJ

“In 1655, one year after the Jewish refugees from Dutch Brazil arrived in Jamaica, the
Columbuses’ poorly defended private island was seized by Britain. Leading the armada was
Admiral William Penn, the father of William Penn Jr., who subsequently founded Pennsylvania.
Under British rule, religious freedom flourished. By 1720, an estimated 20 percent of residents
of the capital, Kingston, were descendants of Spanish-Portuguese Jews. As elsewhere in the New
World, Jamaica’s Jews sought economic opportunities. Some built sugarcane plantations. Others
traded various commodities, including African slaves. Apart from plantation owners, Jews were
allowed only two slaves. The Jamaican community had strong commercial ties with Jewish
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businessmen in Europe including London, Bayonne and Bordeaux. Trade developed with the
mainland British North American colonial ports, such as New York, Newport, Charleston and
Savannah. BUT SOME Jamaican Jews turned to a more adventurous — and dangerous — life at
sea. Captaining ships bearing names like the Queen Esther, the Prophet Samuel, and the Shield
of Abraham, Jewish sailors began roaming the Caribbean in search of riches, sometimes obtained

under questionable circumstances.”
Source: Jewish pirates of the Caribbean
https://www.jpost.com/Magazine/Jewish-pirates-of-the-Caribbean-447397

“The British, led by Admiral William Penn (the father of the William Penn who established
Philadelphia), took over the island from the Spanish in 1655, reportedly with assistance from
local Jews and Marranos (crypto-Jews), all of whom were allowed to remain. By 1720, as many
as 20 percent of the residents of Kingston were Jews. Over time, Ashkenazi Jews arrived and
their synagogues operated alongside the Sephardic ones (the congregations all merged in the
20th century). Jewish tombstones dating back to 1672 have been found there, with Portuguese,
Hebrew and English inscriptions. Some Jews went into local Jamaican politics, and there were
so many in the Jamaican parliament in the 19th century that it became the only parliament on

earth that did not hold deliberations on Saturday.”

Source: Putting the Oy Back into ‘Ahoy’ By Steven Plaut
https://www.jewishpress.com/indepth/front-page/putting-the-oy-back-into-ahoy/2008/10/15/0/?print

Sugar & Slavery: The Building Blocks of Bristol’s 1% | Empires of Dirt
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Z24GtcMCTm 4

Curacao

Let’s take a quick look at Curagao.
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“Slavery in the Dutch Atlantic world has five distinct themes: the early colonies of Brazil and
Nieuw Nederland; the West African forts; the plantation colonies on the Wild Coast (Suriname,
Essequibo, Berbice, and Demerara); in the West Indies on the islands of Curagao, St. Eustatius,
Bonaire, Saba, St. Maarten, and Aruba; and the Dutch participation in the transatlantic slave
trade. At the height of slavery’s development during the last quarter of the 18th century, there
were over 150000 slaves in the Dutch Atlantic settlements, which amounts to just over 6 percent
of all slaves in the Americas and the West Indies. The vast majority of the slaves lived and
worked in Suriname (60000) and Essequibo/Demerara (60000). The Dutch West Indies were

more trade entrepots than a plantation complex, without a large enslaved population.”
Source: Slavery in Dutch America and the West Indies
https://www.oxfordbibliographies.com/display/document/obo-9780199730414/0b0-9780199730414-0230.xml

“By the time the Spaniards arrived in 1499 there were an estimated 2,000 Indians on Curagao.
They formed several tribes, spread over fifteen villages. In 1515, the Spanish deported the
Indians as slaves. There was a meager trade during Spanish period from 1499-1634. The
Spaniards made little use of Curacao and marked the island as a useless island. The Dutch West
India Company (WIC) saw Curagao as a potentially valuable base in the Caribbean. On July 29
1634 the Dutch took over the island. There was little resistance: there were only 32 Spaniards on
the island, of which ten were children. Along with most of the Indians, they were deported to the
mainland. Under the Dutch West India Company, Curagao became a center of trade. The town
was built with a harbor open to all commerce, including private traders. Meanwhile, the WIC

also encouraged colonization.”
Source: Curagao, an island of harbors
https://www.curacaomaritime.com/history
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- “On July 29 1634 the Dutch took over the island.”

“The arrival of Dutch and Jewish settlers from Brazil in 1654 and New Netherlands in 1664
initiated a new era in Curacao. The merchants quickly transformed the island from a military
base into a slave depot and staple market. They not only profited from the island's strategic
geographical location but also took advantage of Curacao's excellent natural harbor, which was
soon declared a free port. ... A new group of Jews came to the island in 1659 and settled a section
along the south coast which became known as the Jewish Quarter. Most Jews, however, lived in
the capital because of their commercial activities. The beautiful mansions in the capital’s center
reflected their prosperity during the eighteenth century. They were granted freedom of religion
and in 1674 built their own synagogue and established a Jewish cemetery, which is one of the
oldest in the New World. With the arrival of the Jews, the island's population consisted of three
ethnic groups: Western Europeans who mainly held the government posts, the Sephardic Jews,

who dominated trade, and the Africans, who occupied subordinate and dependent positions.”
Source: Merchants of Curacao in the early 18th century
https://scholarworks.wm.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=4169&context=etd

“After the expulsion of the Jews from Brazil in 1654, the center of Jewish and converso
commercial activity in the Caribbean shifted to the tiny Dutch island of Curacao. Within a few
decades, Curacao would have the largest Jewish community in the New World and the first
synagogue in North America. Though Jews first settled there in 1634, their population greatly
swelled two decades later, after the fall of Recife. Under Curacao’s first governor, a Jew named
Samuel Coheno, Jews were welcomed to the island and allowed the same complete freedom of
worship that they enjoyed in Amsterdam. It was not long before the tiny semi-arid island would

become a key transit point for African slaves bound for much of the Caribbean basin.”
Source: Jews and Judaism in African History by Richard Hall - pp. 112-113

“In Curacao, for example, Jewish communal life began after the Portuguese victory in 1654. In
1656, the community founded a congregation, and in the early 1670's brought its first rabbi to the
island. Curacao, with its large natural harbor, was the stepping-stone to the other Caribbean
islands and thus ideally suited geographically for commerce. The Jews were the recipients of
favorable charters containing generous economic privileges granted by the Dutch West Indies
Company in Amsterdam. The economic life of the Jewish community of Curacao revolved
around ownership of sugar plantations and marketing of sugar, the importing of manufactured
goods, and a heavy involvement in the slave trade, within a decade of their arrival, Jews owned


https://scholarworks.wm.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=4169&context=etd

80 percent of the Curacao plantations. The strength of the Jewish trade lay in connections in
Western Europe as well as ownership of the ships used in commerce. While Jews carried on an
active trade with French and English colonies in the Caribbean, their principal market was the
Spanish Main (today Venezuela and Colombia). Extant tax lists give us a glimpse of their
dominance. Of the eighteen wealthiest Jews in the 1702 and 1707 tax lists, nine either owned a
ship or had at least a share in a vessel. By 1721 a letter to the Amsterdam Jewish community

claimed that ‘nearly all the navigation...was in the hands of the Jews.””
Source: Jewish Involvement In Black Slave Trade To The Americas By Rabbi Marc Lee Raphael
http://www.rense.com/general69/invo.htm

“Between 1670 and 1815 Curagao was the center of the Dutch slave trade. Scores of thousands
of Africans were transported here to work on the plantations of South America and the
Caribbean islands. The Dutch West India Company had several bases on the West Coast of
Africa. Fort EImina, originally founded by the Portuguese, was the largest and the site of a major

slave market.”
Source: Curagao, an island of harbors
https://www.curacaomaritime.com/history

“The Atlantic slave trade has also been known as the Triangle trade as it described a vast
triangular shape linking West Africa with the Caribbean and then to New England and Europe
and thence back to Africa. As a result, in the Caribbean, in Curacao, Surinam, and Jamaica, there

were Jewish populations similar to, and linked with, those in West Africa.”

Source: JEWS IN CAPE VERDE AND ON THE GUINEA COAST by Dr. Richard Lobban
http://www1.umassd.edu/specialprograms/caboverde/jewslobban.html
https://web.archive.org/web/20120205022712/http://www1.umassd.edu/SpecialPrograms/caboverde/jewslobban.html

“Curacaon merchants engaged in a triangular trade involving Africa, Spanish America, and
Europe. The W.I.C. imported slaves from the African coast to Curacao in Company-owned
ships. At Curacao, the slaves were credited by the director to local merchants, who paid with
bottomry bonds. Slaves and European goods were then transferred to smaller ships and
exchanged on the coast of Venezuela for tropical products, including cacao, tobacco, hides,
timber, and sugar. These products, in turn, were exported by chartered W.I.C. ships to merchants
in Amsterdam, where they were sold at high profits. Part of the profits were used to buy more
European goods. Curacao also traded with the thirteen colonies in North America, exchanging

cash and ammunition for provisions from the colonies.”
Source: Merchants of Curacao in the early 18th century - p. 18
https://scholarworks.wm.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=4169&context=etd
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“The New York State archives contain an original bill of lading and an invoice of goods shipped
from Curacao to New Netherland in 1658 directed to Joshua Mordecai En-Reques. ... There are
numberless references to the commerce carried on by the Jews of New York, often with their
own vessels. These New York Jews traded with Jamaica, Barbados, St. Thomas, Canada,
Bermuda, Lisbon, Madeira and Liverpool, in all of which places the foreign commerce was in
Jewish hands. ... This commercial importance of the Jew in the colonies was not a mere accident.
Writing in 1712, in the ‘The Spectator’ the essayist Addison who held office in England declared
the “they [the Jews] are, indeed, so disseminated through all the trading parts of the world, that
they are become the instruments by which the most distant nations converse with one another,
and by which mankind are knit together in a general correspondence; they are like the pegs and
nails in a great building, which, though they are but little valued in themselves, are absolutely

necessary to keep the whole frame together.”
Source: The Jews in the making of America by Cohen, George - pp. 68-69
https://archive.org/details/jewsinmakingofam00cohe/mode/2up

“Jewish-converso involvement in the slave trades began to diminish in 1701 when the Spanish
slave trade asiento passed from Portugal to France and then to England by the Treaty of Utrecht
in 1713. The Curacaoan slave trade consequently declined, and the Dutch West India Company
shifted its focus to Suriname. Suriname became the company’s chief slave trade destination and
represented more than 60 percent of its global slave trade until 1738 when the firm, no longer
enjoying a legal monopoly, ended its role as a carrier of and trader in slaves altogether. However,
as we have seen, Jewish involvement in Suriname’s slave plantation economy was quite
extensive, with at least 115 of the 400 or so plantations under the ownership of Jews (Israel
1985: 177). But in terms of slave trading, the hand-writing was already on the wall for the Dutch
West India Company and its clients. In 1672, the heavily capitalized Royal Africa Company
received a charter in England and by 1700 had already established a strong presence in West
Africa, exporting more than 140,000 slaves to British possessions in the West Indies. As a
formidable sea power with a mammoth merchant marine, England had in the early eighteenth
century begun to surpass the Dutch Republic in total shipping tonnage. Though some Jews
shifted their business to London, they failed to gain the influence they had enjoyed in their
heyday in Amsterdam. Nevertheless, Curacaoan Jews apparently did not end their slave trading
activities. They remained leading shippers, ship owners, and marine insurers until well into the
eighteenth century. And Jewish brokers on Barbados and Jamaica became active with the
English traders. Also, in the 1750s we see Abraham and Jacob Franco and others shipping slaves

to Puerto Rico on specially chartered vessels out of England.”
Source: Jews and Judaism in African History by Richard Hall - pp. 115-116


https://archive.org/details/jewsinmakingofam00cohe/mode/2up

There was a group of merchants in the City of London (different from the city of London) who
were behind the Royal Africa Company (England’s slave trade), but for some reason they have
been totally ignored by historians.

“Concerning the cultural aspects of Jewish life and heritage, Curacao became, after 1650 a
reference for all synagogues in the Americas and for long financial and spiritual support the
Jewish diaspora, including the foundation of the first Jewish synagogues in North America
dating from the colonial era, such as The Touro Synagogue built from 1759 to 1763 in Newport,
Rhode Island, despite the fact that the Portuguese Jewish congregation itself dates back to the
mid-1650s; and The Spanish and Portuguese Synagogue built in 1897, but founded by the first
Portuguese Jews from Dutch Brazil and Dutch Antilles, who gathered together in the same

period.”

Source: The Portuguese Nation: Essays on Atlantic and Jewish Studies
https://www.brown.edu/Departments/Portuguese_Brazilian_Studies/ejph/html/issuel3/html/anogueira.html
https://web.archive.org/web/20121122012157/https://www.brown.edu/Departments/Portuguese_Brazilian_Studies/ejph/html/issu
e13/html/anogueira.html

Actual receipt:
Title: Receipt of Jacob Franks for silver from Curacao towards building synagogue in New York

Subjects: Franks family; Fundraising; Mill Street Synagogue (New York, N. Y.); New York
(N.Y.); Archival material; Correspondence

Is Part Of: Jacques Judah Lyons P-15

Creation Date: 1730

Source: http://search.cjh.org/beta:cjh_digitool1110542

Fleeing persecution? Why not immediately enslave another group of people and work them to
death; then use the money to build up your own people, even your synagogues? Even if the
official story of them fleeing persecution is true, and it wasn’t set up by someone in their
community as an excuse to disguise themselves and go where they needed to be to carry out their
own secret plans, it would still be extremely disturbing.
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Jewish vs. White Slave Ownership

Distribution of Slaves in 1860
https://www.census.gov/history/pdf/1860 slave distribution.pdf

“In 1860, according to the Gilder Lehrman Institute of American History, 75 percent of white
families in the United States owned not a single slave, while 1 percent of families owned 40 or
more. Just a tenth of 1 percent of Americans owned 100 or more slaves. That same year, 1860,
31 percent of all slaves in the U.S. were held on plantations of 40 or more slaves, while a

majority (53 percent) were held on farms of between 7 and 39 slaves, says the institute.”
Source: Slavery, by the Numbers
https://www.theroot.com/slavery-by-the-numbers-1790874492

But | thought all White people owned slaves. That’s certainly how we’re taught, and how
slavery in the U.S. is ALWAYS spoken about.

“Most Southerners owned no slaves and most slaves lived in small groups rather than on large
plantations. Less than one-quarter of white Southerners held slaves, with half of these holding
fewer than five and fewer than 1 percent owning more than one hundred. In 1860, the average

number of slaves residing together was about ten.”
Source: Statistics on Slavery
https://faculty.weber.edu/kmackay/statistics_on_slavery.htm

And yet, when we’re taught about slavery, or it’s portrayed in films, it’s always made to seem
like all White people owned slaves, and had them working by the hundreds on huge plantations.
It’s so weird, it’s almost like we’ve all been lied to for a reason ... like some Black vs. White
agenda. But that would require someone/some group to have control of the school system
through the Rockefellers, and control of the media and Hollywood. But who fits these criteria?

“The number was between 20 and 25 percent, and in some states, the rate was twice as high. As
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for black-owned slaves, they certainly existed, but they represented a tiny fraction of all slaves in
the United States, and many were likely ‘owned’ by their spouses or parents due to the prevailing

laws in many slaveholding states.”

Source: "At the PEAK of slavery in 1860, only 1.4% of Americans owned slaves. What your history books (don't) tell you is that
3,000 blacks owned a total of 20,000 slaves the same year."
https://www.politifact.com/factchecks/2017/aug/24/viral-image/viral-post-gets-it-wrong-extent-slavery-1860/

Interesting statement from that article: “Many non-slaveholding whites in the South rented slaves
from wealthier slaveholders,” he said. “So it was very common for a white Southerner to be a
'slave master' but not technically a slave owner.” So, doesn’t that make the number of White
slaveowners even less?

See Table 4 (Holdings of Southern Slaveowners by states, 1860) here.

Additional source:
https://faculty.weber.edu/kmackay/statistics on slavery.htm

But what about Jewish people?

From a very pro-Jewish book that attempts to debunk the Nation of Islam’s claims about Jews
and the slave trade:

“Farrakhan and his lieutenant Khalid Abdul Muhammad publicly claimed in 1994 that Jews
owned ‘three-fourths’ of the 4,000,000 slaves in America on the eve of the Civil War. That
statement was later amended to read that three-fourths of American Jews owned slaves, a higher
percentage than the gentile population. As a source, the Nation of Islam offered Ira
Rosenwaike’s On the Edge of Greatness. In fact, any suggestion that Jews in 1860 owned
significantly more slaves than Christians is a distortion of Rosenwaike’s conclusions. First,
Rosenwaike was using the 1830, not the 1860 census. He does, indeed, claim that the
overwhelming proportion of Jewish households, three-fifths to four-fifths in southern cities
(Richmond, Savannah, Charleston, and New Orleans) owned one or more slaves, but he also
points out the ratio was 1 in 7 in Baltimore, zero in New York and Philadelphia, the nation’s

largest cities.”
Source: Jews and the American Slave Trade By Saul Friedman - p. 200
https://archive.org/details/jewsamericanslav0000frie
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Let’s take a look at parts of an article from myjewishlearningcom: Where the False Claim That
Jews Controlled the Slave Trade Comes From. I’'ll comment to some of statements from the
article.

“The role some Jews played in the Atlantic slave trade, both as traders and as slave owners,
has long been acknowledged by historians.”

Notice how they made it a point to say “some.” That’s never done with Whites. It’s always
“Whites,” “the Portuguese,” etc. And it’s stated that their role has long been acknowledged by
historians. That is an absolutely insane statement. It was like pulling teeth just to get any
admission at all, and once it was finally admitted it was said to be “a very minor role.”

“Did Jews really own slaves? Yes. Jacob Rader Marcus, a historian and Reform rabbi,
wrote in his four-volume history of Americans Jews that over 75 percent of Jewish families
in Charleston, South Carolina; Richmond, Virginia; and Savannah, Georgia, owned slaves,
and nearly 40 percent of Jewish households across the country did. The Jewish population
in these cities was quite small, however, so the total number of slaves they owned
represented just a small fraction of the total slave population...”

That last part, that attempt to shape the reader’s feelings about what they just read by including
statements about “small,” that’s always done and it’s annoying. 20-25% of Whites owned
slaves, so if the percentage or ratio of Jews who owned slaves was greater than the percentage or
ratio of Whites who owned slaves, then doesn’t that mean that slave ownership was more of a
Jewish thing? And if we’re going to be fair and state it like we’ve been programmed to state it
about Whites, we would have to remove “more of” and say “Slave ownership was a Jewish
thing.” Correction: “Slave ownership of Africans torn from their homeland and families and
forced to work was a Jewish thing.” Now, if the population size of Jews, the number of Jews in
the country, was equal to that of Whites, then Jews, the Jewish population as a whole, would
have owned more slaves than the White population as a whole. The number of slaves they
owned would have represented the majority of the total slave population; a much larger amount
than Whites owned. Jews owned a fraction of the total slave population because they themselves
were but a small fraction of the free population. But if they hadn’t been.... Now, take all of the
things said about Whites for owning slaves, it applies to Jews 2 to 3 times more, right?

“Did Jews dominate the slave trade? Not according to scholars that have closely examined
the question. Several studies of the Jewish role in the slave trade were conducted in the
1990s. One of them, by John Jay’s Faber, compared available data on Jewish slave
ownership and trading activity in British territories in the 18th century to that of the wider
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population. Faber concludes that the claim of Jewish domination is false and that the
Jewish role in slavery was ‘exceedingly limited.” According to Faber, British Jews were
always in the minority of investors in slaving operations and were not known to have been
among the primary owners of slave fleets. Faber found that, with few exceptions, Jews were
minor figures in brokering the sale of slaves upon their arrival in the Americas, and given
the urban-dwelling propensity of most American Jews, few accumulated large rural
properties and plantations where slave labor was most concentrated. According to Faber,
Jews were more likely than non-Jews to own slaves, but on average they owned fewer of
them.”

First of all, they’re picking out the questions they can debunk. Then they define “dominate” and
“role” how they want, usually as the amount/number of Jews involved. That leaves out
impact/importance. And as | just stated, their population size was small. Then they ended it
with another one of those manipulation tactics. And if Jews in America liked a more urban
environment, were more likely to own slaves than non-Jews, and on average owned fewer slaves
than non-Jews, then aren’t they saying that whereas non-Jews got slaves for business, Jews got
slaves to be served? And I guess that actually is the case. “On the other hand, Jews who were
more firmly established in a business or professional career, as well as in their family
relationships, had every reason to become slave-owners, although, of course, some socially
prominent families took pride in employing white servants in their homes.” (Source: JEWS AND
NEGRO SLAVERY IN THE OLD SOUTH, 1789-1865: Address of the Presidenty Hmmm ... that matches this.

“Other studies, by Harold Brackman and Saul Friedman, reached similar conclusions. In a
1994 article in the New York Review of Books, David Brion Davis, an emeritus professor of
history at Yale University and author of an award-winning trilogy of books about slavery,
noted that Jews were one of countless religious and ethnic groups around the world to
participate in the slave trade: The participants in the Atlantic slave system included Arabs,
Berbers, scores of African ethnic groups, Italians, Portuguese, Spaniards, Dutch, Jews,
Germans, Swedes, French, English, Danes, white Americans, Native Americans, and even
thousands of New World blacks who had been emancipated or were descended from freed
slaves but who then became slaveholding farmers or planters themselves.”

Yes, and those people were separate people and acted as separate people. But when it came to
Jewish participation it was: the Jews in Arab lands, Jews in Berber lands, Jews in Africa, Jews in
Italy, Jews in Portugal, Jews in Spain, Jews in the Netherlands, and so on; and the Jews on one
continent worked with the Jews on another who worked with Jews on another who worked with
Jews on the first, as some Europeans even noticed at that time. So, they were everywhere and
played every role, but were a tiny population of people who didn’t even have a country of their
own.
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The Jewish Role in the American Slave Economy

The Northern Mills

Go to this link and take a look at the changes in the number of Jews in the US during the 1800’s:

Total Jewish Population in the United States
https://web.archive.org/web/20221125054319/https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/jewish-
population-in-the-united-states-nationally

Note: People from other countries, especially European countries, were also immigrating to
America during the 1800’s.

“New England is a region comprising six states in the Northeastern United States: Connecticut,
Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, and VVermont. It is bordered by the state
of New York to the west and by the Canadian provinces of New Brunswick to the northeast and

Quebec to the north.”

Source: New England
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/New_ England



https://web.archive.org/web/20221125054319/https:/www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/jewish-population-in-the-united-states-nationally
https://web.archive.org/web/20221125054319/https:/www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/jewish-population-in-the-united-states-nationally
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/New_England

“Profits of the slave trade and slave labor permeated the world capitalist economy, including the
American economy. ... Early New England manufacturing capital came from merchants who not

long before had engaged in the slave trade or in commerce related to the slave trade.”

Source: A Short History of American Capitalism by Meyer Weinberg - RISE OF THE CAPITALIST CLASS, 1790-1865
https://newhistory.org/CH05.htm

““In the decades between the American Revolution and the Civil War, slavery—as a source of
the cotton that fed Rhode Island’s mills, as a source of the wealth that filled New York’s banks,
as a source of the markets that inspired Massachusetts manufacturers—proved indispensable to
national economic development,” Beckert and Rockman write in the introduction to the book. ...
Cotton offered a reason for entrepreneurs and inventors to build manufactories in such places as
Lowell, Pawtucket, and Paterson, thereby connecting New England’s Industrial Revolution to the
advancing plantation frontier of the Deep South. And financing cotton growing, as well as
marketing and transporting the crop, was a source of great wealth for the nation’s merchants and

banks.”

Source: The Clear Connection Between Slavery And American Capitalism
https://www.forbes.com/sites/hbsworkingknowledge/2017/05/03/the-clear-connection-between-slavery-and-
american-capitalism/#5ac1e4387bd3

“By 1860, New England was home to 472 cotton mills, built on rivers and streams throughout
the region. The town of Thompson, Connecticut, for example, had seven mills within its nine-
square-mile area. Hundreds of other textile mills were scattered in New York State, New Jersey,
and elsewhere in the North. Just between 1830 and 1840, Northern mills consumed more than
100 million pounds of Southern cotton. With shipping and manufacturing included, the economy
of much of New England was connected to textiles. For years, the national dispute over slavery
had been growing more and more alarming to the powerful group of Massachusetts businessmen
that historians refer to as the Boston Associates. When this handful of brilliant industrialists
established America’s textile industry earlier in the nineteenth century, they also created
America’s own industrial revolution. By the 1850’s their enormous profits had been poured into
a complex network of banks, insurance companies, and railroads. But their wealth remained
anchored to dozens of mammoth textile mills in Massachusetts, southern Maine, and New
Hampshire. Some of these places were textile cities, really—Ilike Lowell and Lawrence,

Massachusetts, both named for Boston Associates founders.”

Source: Complicity : how the North promoted, prolonged, and profited from slavery by Farrow, Anne - p. 6
https://archive.org/details/complicityhownor0000farr

The group of investors later called the Boston Associates definitely didn’t own the majority of
the mills in New England, and most of the mills they owned were in Massachusetts. They are


https://newhistory.org/CH05.htm
https://www.forbes.com/sites/hbsworkingknowledge/2017/05/03/the-clear-connection-between-slavery-and-american-capitalism/#5ac1e4387bd3
https://www.forbes.com/sites/hbsworkingknowledge/2017/05/03/the-clear-connection-between-slavery-and-american-capitalism/#5ac1e4387bd3
https://archive.org/details/complicityhownor0000farr

not the focus of the information I’'m presenting, so don’t worry about them.

Excerpts from The Financial Role of Merchants in the Development of U. S. Manufacturing,
1815-1860

Ambitious entrepreneurs responded to the challenge of the burgeoning market, and by the
outbreak of the Civil War the creation of modern industrial America was well underway.
Manufacturing in 1815 was an inconsequential element of the U.S. economy, carried on largely
in tiny shops producing small lots; by 1860 manufacturing generated a third of the national
income, much of it in a network of factories and mills engaged in large batch or continuous mass
production. This growth in the capacity and sophistication of U.S. manufacturing resulted from a
fusion of the technological skills of mechanics and artisans with the commercial talents of
merchants. Practitioners of the new sciences of machine technology and production designed the
factories and devised ways to run them; masters of the ancient arts of trade, commerce, and
investment supplied the money to build and operate factories. They also provided the
combination of skills needed to market the rising tide of production.

This union of competencies proved ideally suited to the problems of the early U.S. economy.
Consequently, virtually every ante-bellum manufacturing firm which successfully produced for
markets outside its local area developed as a partnership between merchants and manufacturers.
In almost all such cases the merchants dominated the partnership. Sometimes they did so by
virtue of the fact that they perceived the potential of a growing market and established a
manufacturing unit to meet the new demand. In these cases merchants controlled the firm from
the beginning. In other instances mercantile dominance evolved from a manufacturer’s decision
to expand into outlying markets. Ambitious producers, no matter how great their technical skills,
inevitably encountered problems of finance and commerce that only a partnership (formal or
informal) with established merchants could solve.

First among the fledgling manufacturers’ quandaries was the need for capital. Fixed (or “long-
term”) capital was required to buy land, buildings, and machinery, the “fixed assets” necessary
for production. Successive moves toward expansion, or the need to replace obsolete plant and
equipment, required repeated commitments of long-term capital.

An even more vexing difficulty was the need for short-term (“working”) capital to buy raw
materials, pay wages, and meet other current operating costs such as taxes, advertising,
transportation, loan interest, etc.

Finally, doing business in distant markets with customers whose probity was unknown
involved severe risks not encountered in selling locally. These included the dangers of extending
credit to distant clients, and in securing payment in funds or notes negotiable at or near par
locally.

Surviving records demonstrate conclusively that virtually all antebellum manufacturers



encountered these problems and turned to merchants for help. The merchants responded, but they
did so selectively, thus exercising the power of life or death over individual enterprises. By
choosing which firms to support, the merchants turned the rising power of the machine to their
own ends. Using the crass force of their capital and the cunning finesse of their craft, they
exacted a stiff price for their aid: interest, discounts, commissions, but above all the price of
control. They controlled the destiny of the tinkerers: Oliver Evans built a steam wagon and an
automated mill; for want of capital his memory rests in the fragile hands of technology buffs.
Samuel Colt made a pistol; his mercantile creditors saw him through to commemoration in
frontier folklore, malt liquor, and professional baseball.

But merchants controlled not only the fate of individual enterprises; they often dictated policy
to the survivors, deciding what was made, where it went, and on what terms it was sold. Control
did not endure, of course. ...

Throughout the pre-Civil War period merchants controlled most of the capital available in the
United States. Many built large personal fortunes through trade based on the American
agricultural economy. Baltimore merchant Robert Oliver, for example, made a net profit of
$775,000 in 1806-07 through trade with Vera Cruz alone.® Merchants also had access to
additional funds through credit at home and abroad. Unlike manufacturers, who could obtain
bank loans only on tangible collateral, prosperous merchants could borrow extensively from
commercial banks, often on their signatures alone. This seeming paradox is explained by the
prevailing philosophy of American bankers who, unlike their British counterparts, viewed
personal wealth as a security superior to any form of commercial paper,’ and by the fact that
merchants usually were the banks. An analysis of the directors and officers of the banks of New
York, Philadelphia, and Baltimore in 1840, 1850, and 1860 reveals that more than two-thirds of
the officials were or had been merchants. The same was true of virtually all of the private
bankers in those cities.* Middlemen therefore had access both to accumulated mercantile profits

and the savings deposits of the general public.
Source: The Financial Role of Merchants in the Development of U. S. Manufacturing, 1815-1860
https://deepblue.lib.umich.edu/bitstream/handle/2027.42/33730/0000243.pdf%3Bseque

Merchants controlled the manufacturers and were the true power behind the mills.

“Who were the early capitalists? In most cases they were former craftsmen who played a
secondary part in partnerships with wealthy merchants who viewed manufactures as a supply of
goods they could sell in a market. ... While the credit provided manufacturers by merchants was
critical, it also gave the merchant-partners a major say in problems of pricing. Thus, during the
Panic of 1857, when consumer demand for iron boiler plate declined, ironmasters sought to close
operations temporarily in order to avoid cutting prices. Their source of credit— the merchants—
were able to convince them instead to reduce prices and remain open.’® After all, merchants
without goods to sell faced ruin. But so did iron-makers without credit.”


https://deepblue.lib.umich.edu/bitstream/handle/2027.42/33730/0000243.pdf%3Bseque

Source: A Short History of American Capitalism by Meyer Weinberg - RISE OF THE CAPITALIST CLASS, 1790-1865
https://newhistory.org/CHO5.htm

“Brown, Moses (12 September 1738-06 September 1836), merchant and philanthropist, was
born in Providence, Rhode Island, the son of James Brown, merchant, and Hope Power. The
father died the next year, leaving a variety of properties and businesses, which indicates that his
family was far from poor. Moses Brown had a few years of formal schooling before being
apprenticed to his merchant uncle, Obadiah, to learn the intricacies of eighteenth-century
commerce and to be adopted as a son and partner. After Obadiah died in 1762, Moses managed
the business, and in 1774 married Obadiah’s daughter Anna, who bore three children, two of
whom lived to maturity. Moses joined his three surviving brothers in the firm of Nicholas Brown
& Co. to operate the family businesses. The profits of trade were diversified by manufacturing
and money-lending. ... Brown, Obadiah (15 July 1771-15 October 1822), merchant and
manufacturer, was born in Providence, Rhode Island, the son of Moses Brown, a merchant, and
Anna Brown. He sometimes used the name Obadiah M. Brown to distinguish himself from other
Browns with the same first name. Sickly as a child, he initially was educated at home and then
attended the Friends New England Yearly Meeting School in Portsmouth, Rhode Island, between
1784 and 1788. This was followed by an informal apprenticeship with Almy and Brown, a
Providence cotton textile manufactory established by his father, one of four brothers who were
successful Providence merchants and manufacturers. The manufactory was initially managed by
Obadiah’s brother-in-law, William Almy, and a cousin, Smith Brown, although under the

watchful eye of Moses Brown...”

Source: Occupations
https://www.anb.org/browse?t=0ccupationsAndRealmsOfRenownANB%3A583&t0=0OccupationsAndRealmsOfRenownANB%
3A1112

And remember, the merchants were the ones who were actually in control.

“Textile mills, once flourishing and prosperous in Massachusetts and Rhode Island, are now
mainly historical remnants. The booming and bustling factories of the 1930s have become
deserted and decrepit buildings. This paper is an attempt to recreate the fascinating life of early
mills in this area and to present an informative discussion of their owners, many of whom were
successful Jewish entrepreneurs. Moses Brown of Providence, who was identified with the East
India trade, began cotton manufacturing in Rhode Island in 1788. Brown financed Samuel Slater,
who then built a mill in Pawtucket with new machines. This simple beginning created an
industry that grew uninterruptedly for 135 years. The introduction of English machinery and the
invention of the cotton gin (through with a thousand pounds of cotton were cleaned in the time
formerly taken to clean five or six pounds) gave an immediate impetus to the cotton industry.


https://newhistory.org/CH05.htm
https://www.anb.org/browse?t=OccupationsAndRealmsOfRenownANB%3A583&t0=OccupationsAndRealmsOfRenownANB%3A1112
https://www.anb.org/browse?t=OccupationsAndRealmsOfRenownANB%3A583&t0=OccupationsAndRealmsOfRenownANB%3A1112

Local men, guided by Samuel Slater, began their own plants.”
Source: The Jews of Rhode Island by George M. Goodwin, Ellen Smith
https://books.google.com/books?id=J6VIeZCFIgkC

- “This simple beginning created an industry that grew uninterruptedly for 135 years.” So,
wouldn’t it be fair to call it a Jewish industry?

“Qut of these efforts emerged the first permanent cotton spinning mill in the United States, in
Pawtucket, Rhode Island. English emigrant Samuel Slater—himself a former apprentice at the
English textile firm of Arkwright & Strutt—reconstructed an Arkwright water frame under the
sponsorship of Providence merchants William Almy and Moses Brown. The firm of Almy,
Brown, & Slater pioneered in the machine production of cotton yarn between 1790 and 1840.
This company expanded, gave rise to a number of other firms, and established the basic set of

business practices that came to be called the Rhode Island system.”
Source: Women and the Early Industrial Revolution in the United States
https://ap.gilderlehrman.org/essay/women-and-early-industrial-revolution-united-states

“Aaron Lopez, a ship owner, was the first Jew naturalized in Massachusetts (at Taunton, 1752).
In 1777 he founded the first Jewish community in Massachusetts, at Leicester near Worcester.
The families of Lopez and of Jacob Rodriguez Rivera, numbering 61 people, stayed in Leicester
until after the Revolution. Massachusetts’ first permanent Jewish community was established in
the late 1830s in Boston, where Central European settlers established the state's first Jewish
congregation, Ohabei Shalom, in the 1840s. For about 100 years the Boston Jewish community
exercised a powerful influence on the growth of new settlements throughout the state. The first
Jews to take up permanent residence outside Boston were German and East European peddlers
who replaced the itinerant Yankee traders in the 1840s and 1850s. Typical of these was Abraham
Kohn, later a figure in the Republican Party in Illinois. In 1842 and 1843, Kohn carried a pack
through central and northern Massachusetts, praying alone in the fields, sometimes with his
brother and partner, Judah, or with other Jewish peddlers he met on the way. Peddlers like Kohn
settled down and became storekeepers; they were followed by tailors, watchmakers, cigarmakers,
shoemakers, and dealers in dairy products, leather goods, provisions, lumber, and kerosene.
These merchants established themselves in the factory and mill towns, including Pittsfield
(1850), where most were of German origin; Worcester (1860); Holyoke (1873; first
congregation, Agudas Achim, founded 1895); Springfield (1881); Fall River (1881); Lawrence
(late 1880s); Lynn (1893); and Haverhill (1897).”

Source: Virtual Jewish World: Massachusetts, United States
https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/massachusetts-jewish-history



https://books.google.com/books?id=J6VleZCF9gkC
https://ap.gilderlehrman.org/essay/women-and-early-industrial-revolution-united-states
https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/massachusetts-jewish-history

“Aaron Lopez, a ship owner....” That’s funny. And as you can see, even poorer Jews were
making money from the mills by offering goods and services in mill towns.

“Timothy McCall, Bates Class of 2008 and a 2010-11 Fulbright scholar in Germany, provides
historical context in an essay he researched and wrote about Lewiston-Auburn’s Jewish
merchants in 2006: ‘Industrialization in Maine has provided the most tangible force in
influencing the development of the Jewish community within the state. That trend is particularly
evident in the twin cities of Lewiston and Auburn, were textile and shoe manufacturers were the
life-blood of the city. As the mills prospered and developed, so too did the Jewish merchants,
who operated small stores that catered to the needs of all levels of the mill town’s society. The
Jews were very much dependent on the mills for their livelihood and the solvency of their
businesses. The first Jewish settlers arrived in the late 1870’s, just as the mills were beginning to
shape the economies of many riverside towns and cities of northern New England.’ ... The
prosperity of the mills and the economic advantages they brought to Lewiston greatly influenced
the development of the Jewish community. The four mills which dominated the industrial
landscape of Lewiston and Auburn were the Bates Mill, the Hill Mill, the Continental Mills, and
the Androscoggin Mills. The Jews had limited direct interaction with the mills. In general, the
mills were seen as a stepping-stone for the Jewish community: a source of temporary work until
enough money could be saved to purchase or start a small business. Jews were eager to become
self-employed because it offered them a chance to escape form the demanding and often
dangerous work in the mills.... However, the thousands of workers in the mills served as
customers at the businesses operated by the Jews, so it was very much in the interests of the
Jewish shop owners to make sure the mills remained profitable and productive, so that they

continued to have paying customers.”
Source: THE JEWISH MERCHANTS OF LEWISTON'S LISBON STREET
https://web.colby.edu/jewsinmaine/files/2011/04/Jensen-Jewish-merchants-of-Lisbon-Street.pdf

Non-Jewish Europeans made up the majority of the workers in the mills (I believe), but there
were also Jews who worked in the mills. Now, if you add all of that information up, does it

equate to “no role,” “minor role,” or “White people benefitted”? And we’re just getting started.

The Garment/Apparel Industry

“Increased urbanization and industrialization in the antebellum period stimulated the


https://web.colby.edu/jewsinmaine/files/2011/04/Jensen-Jewish-merchants-of-Lisbon-Street.pdf

manufacturing of ready-made apparel. As the new country expanded geographically through the
western frontier and demographically through immigration, the garment industry grew in
response to the increased demand for men’s business dress for new managers and clerks. The
black business suit became the mark of American gentility and was adopted by all classes as
standard business wear. New York City’s small, midsized and large manufactories became the
leading producers of high quality ready-mades between 1820 and 1860; moreover, New York
emerged as the main center for shipping clothing and other products to the South and West,
which had little local manufacturing capacity of its own. Half of the garments and ready-wear
clothing produced in New York City was shipped south.® ... The apparel industry in the United
States provided a home for Jewish businessmen and workers for over one hundred and fifty
years. Indeed, one cannot fully understand this industry, or its place in the US economy over the
course of the nineteenth and early-twentieth centuries without addressing the central role played
by Jews as American entrepreneurs and apparel capitalists." German Jewish immigrants played a
major role in the expansion and growth of the men’s suit industry in America between 1840 to
1880. They moved into it in large numbers once it was already established as big business by
non-Jewish clothiers and merchant tailors, who were the first to industrialize the clothing

industry. However by 1870, the industry was primarily Jewish owned.”

Source: The evolution of the Jewish Garment Industry, 1840-1940
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/290542947 The_evolution of the Jewish Garment Industry 1840-1940

- “The apparel industry in the United States provided a home for Jewish businessmen and
workers for over one hundred and fifty years.”

“No industry in America has been more closely associated with Jewish enterprise than the
garment industry, especially in New York. Though the manufacture and merchandising of
women's clothing have perhaps received greater attention, the production of men's apparel, too,
has had an important role in American Jewish economic endeavor. It is, however, a curious fact
that Jews evinced relatively little interest or involvement in the industry during its period of
initial development. By 1861 New York City had attained the distinction of being the leading
center for the production and distribution of men's garments. Its output of both ready- and
custom-made apparel was valued at $ 17,011,370, a figure equalled by no other urban area in the

United States.'”
Source: http://americanjewisharchives.org/publications/journal/PDF/1960 12 01 00 feldman.pdf

“The most striking evidence of Hebrew progress may be witnessed on Broadway, New York,
which, within the past fifteen years, has undergone a complete transformation by the transfer of
the retail trade to the uptown thoroughfares, and the invasion by Hebrew firms. Of the 400


https://www.researchgate.net/publication/290542947_The_evolution_of_the_Jewish_Garment_Industry_1840-1940
http://americanjewisharchives.org/publications/journal/PDF/1960_12_01_00_feldman.pdf

buildings on Broadway, from Canal Street to Union Square, the occupants of almost all are
Hebrews, over 1,000 wholesale firms out of a total of 1,200 being of that persuasion. Hebrew
firms also predominate in the streets contiguous to Broadway within the territory named.

“Most remarkable has been the growth of the clothing trade, of which there are 241
manufacturers in the city of New York. Of these, 234 are Hebrew firms, some of which employ
as many as 2,000 hands, while the great majority of the 30,000 people engaged in the clothing
trade throughout the United States are also Hebrews. The New York Hebrew firms alone transact
a business of $55,000,000 annually in the manufacture of clothing. Fifteen years back the
number engaged in this business was insignificant compared with the present day; now as many
firms are found on a single block in New York as then existed in the entire city. In the city of
New York the leading manufacturers are: Alfred Benjamin & Co., August Brothers, Banner
Brothers, Bernheim, Bauer & Co., Bierman, Heidelberg & Co., H. & B. Brown, Fechheimer,
Goodkind & Co., Hammerslough Brothers, Heavenrich, Hirschberg & Co., Hornthal, White-
head & Co., Jerkowski & Ernst, Kaufman, Isidor & Co., Korn & Holzman, A. Levy & Brother,
Levy Brothers & Co., L. Lippman & Sons, Mamlock & Green, A. W. Mann & Co., Marks,
David & Sons, Mendel Brothers & Co., Myres &, Wallach, Naumburg, Kraus, Lauer & Co.,
Peck & Hauchhaus, Rindskopf & Barbier, M. Sampter, Sons & Co., Mark Samter, N. S. Schloss
& Co., Seligman, May & Co., Sinsheimer, Levenson & Co., Stark, Isidor & Brothers, Stein.
Bloch & Co., Stern, Falk & Co., B. Sturman & Son, Swartz & Jerkowski, S. Sykes & Co.

“Less than ten years back the manufacture of cloaks in this country was upon a very small
scale, the entire business in New York being confined to less than one dozen firms all told. The
Hebrews were not slow to recognize the importance of this industry. They were among the first
to perceive that it was destined to expand to an extent far beyond its proportions at that time, and
many plunged into the business, the result being that there are now in New York a large number
of manufacturers, the great majority of whom are Hebrews whose annual production is
$15,000,000.

“In the manufacture of shirts the Hebrews have secured a monopoly, it being estimated that
25,000 men and women are directly and indirectly employed in New York City by Hebrew firms
alone. The wealthiest concerns in the trade, which include several millionaires, were all in
moderate circumstances when they embarked in the business.

“In the manufacture of undergarments the Hebrews of New York control the greater part of
the trade. Those in the business carry the names of 10,000 employees on their pay-rolls, and their

annual transactions are $5,000,000.”

Source: The Hebrews in America. A SERIES OF HISTORICAL AND BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES. BY ISAAC MARKENS.
(published in 1888) — pp. 151-152

https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The_Hebrews_in_America_%28IA _hebrewsinamericaO0mark%29.pdf

“At the time that masses of Eastern European Jews were coming to America, the garment
industry was undergoing rapid expansion, and New York City was central to this development.


https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The_Hebrews_in_America_%28IA_hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf

Many immigrant Jews worked in New York garment factories. As early as 1890 almost 80
percent of New York’s garment industry was located below 14th Street, and more than 90
percent of these factories were owned by German Jews. Lower New York, therefore, was a
powerful magnet for the Eastern Europeans throughout the period of mass immigration.
Immigrants were attracted by jobs and by Jewish employers who could provide a familiar milieu
as well as the opportunity to observe the Sabbath. By 1897 approximately 60 percent of the New
York Jewish labor force was employed in the apparel field, and 75 percent of the workers in the

industry were Jewish.”
Source: Jewish Immigrants in the Garment Industry
https://www.myjewishlearning.com/article/jewish-garment-workers/

In other words, scores of Jewish immigrants came to the U.S. and made a living from U.S. slave-
produced crops and the U.S. slave system, being hired by other Jews who ran the garment
industry that operated on U.S. slave-produced crops and the U.S. slave system. That’s weird
because we are only told about non-Jewish White people benefiting from slavery. And for the
past several years Jewish-controlled sources of information have been bombarding us with the
idea of how non-Jewish Whites today are privileged and have an upper-hand because they’re
benefitting from slavery. Interesting.

Other Roles

“Cotton dominated the global economy in the early 19th century, joining tens of millions of
people in a sprawling network of economic relationships. This system linked plantations in the
American South and their slave labor with cotton factors, brokers, merchants, shippers, bankers,
and insurers on both sides of the Atlantic; and ultimately, with the workers who spun cotton into
finished cloth in factories in England and the United States. Virtually all U.S. businesses
operating in the first half of the 19th century participated in this system directly or indirectly. In
this period, the U.S. economy was a slave economy, impacting the politics, economics,
regulations and culture of every U.S State and Territory, whether in the North, South or West.
While many commodities derived from U.S. farms and plantations, cotton alone accounted for
50% of total U.S. exports and was at the heart of booms and busts through the antebellum era.
Thousands of specialist players enabled the system financially by advancing money to brokers,
traders, factors, and merchants; by financing shipbuilding, arranging shipments as principals and
agents on consignment, and insuring shipments of cotton; by supporting local banks that made
loans to planters and manufacturers; and by otherwise financing much of the movement of raw
cotton and cotton products from one side of the Atlantic to the other. Borrowers put everything


https://www.myjewishlearning.com/article/jewish-garment-workers/

on the line including land, slaves, and machinery to collateralize this system of cotton finance.”

Source: The Cotton Trade - Brown Brothers Harriman
https://www.bbh.com/us/en/bbh-who-we-are/our-story/200-years-of-partnership/the-cotton-trade.html

Huh? | thought there was only the slavemaster and his slaves; and if you weren’t the slavemaster
you didn’t play a role in slavery?

The Cotton Factor

| . s el Y
Cotton factors and others go about their
business in A Cotton Office in New Orleans by
French painter Edgar Degas, 1873

Excerpts from The Cotton Factorage System of the Southern States by Alfred Holt Stone

Like many other features of its ante-bellum agricultural economy, the factorage system was not
of Southern origin. It had its beginning in the West Indies. It is hardly possible definitely to fix
the date of the factor's emergence into the scheme of colonial staple agriculture. He followed the
trading companies, merchant adventurers, and similar instruments of colonization. He was an
important cog in effecting the transition from the group to the individualistic system of
agriculture. He was to the individual planter what the chartered companies had been to the whole
body of colonists, or to the colony itself as a distinct entity. The factor was the home agent of the


https://www.bbh.com/us/en/bbh-who-we-are/our-story/200-years-of-partnership/the-cotton-trade.html

colonial planter. He was at once his merchant and banker. He bought the goods which the planter
had to purchase at home, and sold for him the products returned in exchange. He became an
important link in the chain which brought Europe, Africa, and America into commercial
association. If an Englishman wished to embark his son in the business of sugar planting in
Jamaica or Barbadoes, he could negotiate the entire transaction with a factor in Bristol or
London. The latter could purchase the estate, arrange with the African Company for the
necessary complement of slaves, supply the needed equipment of machinery, merchandise, and
tools, and otherwise outfit the enterprise. He would furthermore engage to finance the venture
from start to finish.

The factor's business thus brought him into close and confidential relationships with many
classes of people; with those who were or sought to become planters; with those holding grants
or patents of colonial lands, and desiring settlers or purchasers therefor; with those engaged in
the African trade, whether as dealers in slaves, or as manufacturers of commodities to be sent to
Africa for slave-trading purposes; with those who handled the manifold articles used in the
plantation colonies; with those who purchased plantation products sent home in payment of the
enormous obligations incurred in undertaking and prosecuting such ventures; with the shipping
interests engaged in effecting these various exchanges of slaves and goods; with the financial
sources which supplied the reservoirs of capital which were constantly tapped in behalf of the
factor's clients. ...

In Louisiana the sugar factor became as important a part in the commercial system, as he had
been in that of the West Indies. But it was in cotton that the factorage system reached its greatest
development, became most powerful, and flourished longest. ... It is not too much to say that the
great factorage houses of the South looked quite as much to the character of a customer as to the
securities he had to offer. Millions of dollars have been advanced by Southern factors upon the
mere personal word of the planter, with no formal security at all, and with only a memorandum
to witness the amounts involved. A unique basis of agricultural credit was established, which
must be taken into account in interpreting such documentary evidence as plantation and slave
mortgages and other securities of record. Another manifestation of the personal equation was in
the opportunities offered by the factorage system to men of little or no capital, usually of the
overseer class, to embark in business for themselves. An overseer who identified with the
successful management of a plantation estate was often as well known to his employer's factor
by reputation as the planter himself was personally. Such a one, who possessed the necessary
initiative, had little difficulty in establishing a factorage connection on his own account. Many of
the largest and most successful planters of the South were men who got their start in this way. ...

We have seen that the factor furnished the planter with funds; that he acted as a commission
merchant in the purchase of plantation supplies, and that he discharged the functions of an agent
in selling the plantation product. What were the charges for these services, and what were the
characteristic features of the system, which differentiated it from any other relation of principal
and agent? And what were its general economic tendencies and effects? The interest rate varied
with times, places, and conditions. It probably ranged between eight and twelve per cent. It was



usually charged only as funds were actually drawn, though in some instances it was computed on
the face of the loan, regardless of the average time of its actual use by the borrower. There was
also in some cases a customary brokerage fee of from one half of one per cent. to two and one
half per cent. added to the interest charge. To the price of the goods, wares, and, merchandise
purchased for the planter was added a commission which varied according to custom from two to
ten per cent. or more. The customary charge for selling the crop was a commission of two and
one half per cent., but sometimes this was as high as four.

These were the only items of open profit to the factor in the transaction.' But there were others
which helped to make the business attractive, notwithstanding its hazards. In the early days
cotton sales were effected through a broker who acted as a middleman between the factor and the
resident agent of a foreign mill or merchant. To this broker was paid a commission of one half of
one per cent., nominally borne by the mill agent. In practice and custom, however, one-half of
this commission was paid by the factor and charged to the planter. This was supposed to be
divided between the factor and the broker. The planter was taxed with various other charges,
as freight, storage, insurance, drayage, weighing, sampling, mending, and repairing. These were
returned on the account of sale to the planter at a uniform rate, fixed by custom or agreement,
and were supposed to represent the actual amounts paid by the factor for the service rendered in
behalf of the planter. As a matter of fact, custom early developed a system of rebates to the factor
on practically all these charges. This seemed to be an inevitable incident of the control by the
factor of large quantities of cotton to be warehoused, drayed, insured, compressed, and otherwise
handled solely at his direction. Those who were engaged in such business at cotton ports
naturally offered the factor the inducements of special rates and drawbacks in consideration of
the heavy volume of business which he could divert to their hands.

The exaction of one of these exerted a particularly baneful influence upon the plantation
system. This was the penalty commission feature of most advancing contracts between factor and
planters, incident to the repayment of all loans in kind, rather than in money. The fundamental
consideration inducing extensions of credit under the factorage system was not the matter of
interest on the funds advanced. This, indeed, was the least of such inducements. The very
foundation of the system was the medium which it offered for the control and manipulation of
large volumes of a great staple commodity holding a recognized position of prime importance in
the commercial world. The planter's note, backed by his contract with the factor, with the latter's
endorsement, could be rediscounted with the factor's correspondents in any financial centre in
this country or abroad. The tremendous stocks of cotton accumulated in the factorage cities of
the South, warehoused, insured, and controlled by the factor, furnished him a basis of credit
unequalled by any other form of security the South had to offer. It was practically as convertible
as the best forms of commercial paper. If cotton was king, the cotton factor was the power
behind the throne. We do not need any documents to tell us that the inevitable consequence was
the elevation of the mere volume of business—the naked number of bales of cotton grown by the
planter and controlled by the factor—to a position of importance out of all true and proper
economic relation to what should have been the primary considerations of cost and profit to the



producer. The penalty commission was a simple expedient for stimulating the production of
more bales of cotton. It was a proviso coupled to the agreement for paying the customary
commission on sales, under which the planter bound himself to pay to the factor a certain sum
per bale, sometimes ranging as high as four dollars, for each and every bale by which his actual
production fell short of the stipulated number of bales which he agreed to ship. This was in
addition to the agreement to plant so many acres in cotton, calculated to produce so many bales.
Travellers and foreign observers of Southern conditions were accustomed to comment on the
South's devotion to cotton, to the neglect of the principle of proper diversification, so essential to
a permanently prosperous and well-balanced system of agriculture, and to attribute the trouble to
slavery. Such foundation as there was for this criticism was in large measure due to the
influences which we have suggested. Cotton was the only cash crop. It was moreover the only
crop which could be used as a basis of credit. Every planter who was in debt fondly dreamed of
the year when through a combination of a bumper yield and a fair price he would be enabled to
throw off his shackles. But the only avenue of escape was through this happy combination, and it
was too seldom realized. Even when a planter did finally grow independent the impulse to
enlarge his undertakings had become deep rooted and was apparently irresistible. There was a
sort of atmospheric psychology in the situation which seemed to make a man forever dissatisfied
with a stagnated sufficiency. He wanted more land and more slaves, which meant more cotton,
and as more cotton was both a means and an end, the economic circle was thus easily
established. ...

In order to render absolute the factor's control of the entire crop, one of the cardinal features of
the system was the requirement that every bale of cotton grown by the planter should be
consigned to the factor. If the total crop were one thousand bales, and the first five hundred
discharged the planter's debt, an exceedingly improbable supposition, the remaining five hundred
bales must nevertheless go forward also. There were few, if any, agricultural lien laws in those
days, but this requirement took their place. It also probably made their ultimate enactment less
difficult, through common familiarity with the practical operation of their essential principle,
which was a certain measure of control, by the financing agent, of the product grown through his
assistance. ...

The factorage centres were enormous supply depots, from which were distributed to the
interior South, through the factor in bulk, instead of through a local merchant by ordinary

processes of retail trade, all the common necessities, comforts, and conveniences of daily life.
Source: The Cotton Factorage System of the Southern States by Alfred Holt Stone
https://www.jstor.org/stable/1835857

So, the big, bad slavemaster was really just a debt slave in a bigger system where the cotton
factor had more power than he did. You’ll see more information on the slavemaster’s debt
slavery later in the How the Game was Played section of this chapter. But notice how this is
nothing like what we were told.


https://www.jstor.org/stable/1835857

“The cotton factor was usually located in an urban center of commerce, such as Charleston,
Mobile, New Orleans, or Savannah (harbor cities; there was not yet a network of railroads),
where they could most efficiently tend to business matters for their rural clients. Prior to the
American Civil War, the states of Alabama, Georgia, Louisiana, and Mississippi were producing
more than half of the world's cotton, but Arkansas, Tennessee, and Texas produced large
amounts also. At the same time, the port of New Orleans exported the most cotton, followed by
the port of Mobile. Cotton factors also frequently purchased goods for their clients, and even
handled shipment of those goods to the clients, among other services. As one source notes,

The factor was a versatile man of business in an agrarian society who performed many
different services for the planter in addition to selling his crops. He purchased or sold
slaves for his client, arranged for the hiring of slaves or the placing of the planter's
children in distant schools, gave advice concerning the condition of the market or the
advisability of selling or withholding his crop, and bought for his client a large proportion
of the plantation supplies.

“Not all factors in the antebellum and Reconstruction era South were cotton factors; some were
factors of other commodities. In 1858, for example, New Orleans boasted sixty-three sugar and
molasses factors. Louisiana produced large amounts of sugar cane, but it probably had an even

greater number of cotton factors.”
Source: Cotton factor
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Cotton_factor

“While the factorage system long dominated antebellum mercantile life, the landscape was
beginning to shift in the years prior to the Civil War, foreshadowing a major transformation that
would reach fruition in the postbellum years and would facilitate Jewish concentration in the

industry.”

Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - pg. 42
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

You’ll find out exactly what this is about and how it happened in the Sharecropping and Crop
Lien chapter.

Some of the Jewish Cotton Factors

Note: Most cotton factors in the country were not Jewish, but there were cities where the number
of Jewish cotton factors outnumbered the non-Jewish. And remember, they only made up 1-2%


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Cotton_factor
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of the population.

“Hayman Levy, a prominent merchant and cotton factor of Camden. He was Warden of Camden

in 1835, Intendant in 1843, and a director of the Bank of Camden from 1842 to 1854.”
Source: The Jews of South Carolina by Barnett A. Elzas, M.D., LL.D.
https://www.carolana.com/SC/Revolution/The Jews of South Carolina B_A Elzas 1905.pdf

“Montgomery’s Jewish population was well established and close-knit through intermarriage and
business dealings by the time the Civil War started. As fully integrated members of Montgomery
society, most of the city’s successful Jewish families would either send their sons off to war or
contribute to the war effort at home. One such family that sent loved ones to war were the Weils.
The Weil brothers, Josiah, Jacob, and Heinrich, came to Alabama from Germany in the late
1840s to take advantage of the booming cotton trade in and around the Montgomery area.
Alabama was good to the Weil brothers, and by 1861 they had successfully established
themselves as cotton ‘factors, buyers, exporters, and ginners’ and amassed a fortune of over

$180,000 in real and personal income.”

Source: The Yellowhammer War - The Civil War and Reconstruction in Alabama — p. 155
https://www.google.com/books/edition/The_Yellowhammer War/6hs7TAgAAQBAJ

“Some Jews who arrived in Texas recognized the validity of observations like these and were
quick to purchase land. Harris Kempner, the patriarch of one of Galveston’s most prominent
Jewish families, ‘had great faith in Texas and in Texas lands,’ as his son Isaac recalled. ...
Kemper, a Polish immigrant, started out as a door-to-door peddler in Coldspring, Texas, fought

in the Civil War, and became a multi-millionaire cotton factor based in Galveston.”

Source: Lone Stars of David - The Jews of Texas - p. 27
https://www.google.com/books/edition/Lone_Stars of David/oXOnaWM4ANBMC

“Moses Lopez and Mordecai Myers, both of New York City, ran land offices; they were

professional realtors, buying, selling, exchanging properties, and remitting taxes to distant
western states. Charleston’s Mordecai Cohen (d.1848) was reputed to be one of the largest
owners of real estate in the city. Having made his fortune in business as a cotton factor for

plantation owners, he retired at forty-six in order to devote his time to good works.”

Source: United States Jewry, 1776-1985. volume | - p. 169
https://digital.library.wayne.edu/item/wayne:WayneStateUniversityPress4473
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“But while the Jews mingle freely with their Christian neighbors and fellow citizens, while
numbers of Christians attend Sunday services at Temple Israel and note the breadth and tolerance
of the Jew, the Jew is, after all, still more or less separate and distinct in his social as in his
religious activities. And this feature is conserved by the Columbian Club, one of the finest social
organizations in the country. Its beautiful home is handsomely furnished and is one of the sights
of the city. Its president, J. D. Goldman, is a consistent head of such an organization. He is one
of the leading cotton factors in the country, has a home like a palace, and is the essence of
hospitality on all occasions. The visitor to the Fair should not fail to visit the Columbian Club,
and should also go to Shaare Emeth Temple, across the street from it, a place of worship of

massive architectural beauty, ideally built for its purpose.”
Source: New Era Illustrated Magazine, Volume 4 - 1903 — p. 349
https://books.google.com/books?id=n3spAAAAYAAJ

“One of Harris’s daughters married Nathan’s associate Daniel Goodman of Amsterdam, and son
Moses became a cotton factor and merchant banker at Mobile from 1837 to 1842 (with the

backing of his prosperous uncle Asher Nathan).”
Source: The Forerunners: Dutch Jewry in the North American Diaspora
https://books.google.com/books?id=BmZwDwWAAQBAJ

“One of the best known of the old-time residents of Memphis, Tenn., was Joseph I. Andrews,
who reached that city about 1850, his family joining him seven years later. After conducting a
general store he became a cotton factor. He took a deep interest in the welfare of his co-
religionists, and donated the ground for a Hebrew cemetery, in which the first interment was his

brother.”

Source: The Hebrews in America. A SERIES OF HISTORICAL AND BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES. BY ISAAC MARKENS.
(published in 1888) — p. 122

https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The _Hebrews in_ America_%28IA _hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf

“Many Arkansas Jews have been prominent in the social, public, commercial and financial life of
the state. ... and Harold Blumenthal was a cotton factor, merchant and a Past Exalted Ruler of the
local lodge of Elks.”

Source: The Universal Jewish Encyclopedia in 10 Volumes: An Authoritative and Popular Presentation of Jews and Judaism
Since the Earliest Times, Volume 1 —p. 481
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https://books.google.com/books?id=z7dtAAAAMAAJ

“Among these early Jewish immigrants was Bavarian Julius Weis. ... Weis soon plied the
country back roads as a peddler himself, armed with his pack full of notions and trinkets... Weis
traveled the dusty back roads of Mississippi in hopes of raising enough capital to open a proper
store or business in town, which he soon did. ... Weis soon joined the largest Natchez Jewish dry
goods firm, Meyer, Deutsch & Weis, as a partner, and in 1864 he married John Mayer’s daughter
Caroline—which gave him local family ties to John Mayer & Son, I. Lowenburg & Co., and
Henry Frank Goods. Soon after the war he and Meyer, Deutsch & Weis moved their operation to
New Orleans as major cotton factors. Weis became a stalwart and nexus of the Jewish mercantile
community in postwar Natchez, and, like S.D. Stockman, he primarily made his mark in the local
marketplace as a New Orleans cotton factor. He was a major financial backer of several top
Jewish firms and handled their cotton, had unlimited access to New York capital, owned or
leased many local plantations, and had close family ties to at least five prominent Jewish
mercantile families. His clout eventually superseded community lines, and several native
planters and mercantile firms received capital and did business with him by the mid-1870’s, by

which time he may have become the largest cotton merchant in the American South.**”
Source: Builders of a New South: Merchants, Capital, and the Remaking of Natchez, 1865-1914 - pp. 56-57
https://books.google.com/books?id=1-waBwAAQBAJ

Peddlers and Merchants

Excerpts from Merchants: The Marrow of the Southern Jewish Experience - Jewish Historical
Society of South Carolina

Cotton was the key raw material in the textile factories, which accelerated the industrialization
that swept across Western Europe and the United States during the first half of the nineteenth
century. Nowhere was the cultivation of cotton as productive, profitable and central to the local
economy as in the Deep South. In getting cotton to markets across the globe, Southern Jewish
creditors in the Gulf South were indispensable. The names of Julian Freyhan, Charles Hoffman,
Isaias Meyer and Julius Weis may be obscure, but such businessmen pushed the region closer to
the ganglia of international trade. They were, as historian Michael R. Cohen has demonstrated in
his recent book, “at the forefront of global capitalist expansion for much of the second half of the
nineteenth century.”18 Their success also enabled them to provide credit to peddlers—those
intruders in the dust who sold the goods that circulated throughout the rural and village South in
the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries.


https://books.google.com/books?id=z7dtAAAAMAAJ
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The peddlers can be readily categorized as distinctive. Beginning in the antebellum period,
virtually all peddlers were Jews; virtually all Jewish peddlers were first-generation Americans;*®
and virtually all Jews who established shops began their careers as peddlers. They were the
acorns from which oaks sometimes grew. The start-up expenses were small. Burdened with a
pack but with basically no overhead, peddlers needed very little capital. Prizing independence,
they did not have to endure intolerant or obnoxious bosses. Nor did peddlers face legal barriers
to bringing their wares from one plantation or farm or town to another. The specter of
antisemitism nevertheless hovered over them. A reputation for shady business practices
inevitably followed them from the Old World. Not everyone considered Jews a model
minority. One credit report described a mercantile family in the South as about as “trustworthy
as it is possible for Jews to be” and “an exception to the race, being [considered] honest.”? ...

Not everyone made the transition to owning a store. But those who did could work within a
network that included other Jews who were merchants and wholesalers—all primed to provide
goods to customers. But peddling was too grueling an ordeal to offer an inherent allure. It was
temporary. “The Jewish peddlers had no desire to stay on the road,” Diner commented, but saw
such work as “the fastest route to achieving economic security. They, too, wanted to put down
roots and become respectable merchants and citizens. And for the vast majority, in fact, life on
the road proved to be a short sentence, a brief stint before settling down.” A classic source of
such a claim is William Alexander Percy’s 1941 memoir of the Delta. He noted that “with packs
on their backs, peddlers from Russia, Poland, [and] Germany” arrived after the Civil War, selling
trinkets to the freedmen and deferring gratification so that enough profit could be squeezed and
saved from such sales to become merchants. Other ex-peddlers and their sons, Percy reported,
became bankers, landowners, physicians and attorneys,?* an ascent so swift that it is tempting to
declare that the only difference between a peddler and a professional is: one generation. ...

Why did Jews relocate themselves there? The answer that historian Anton Hieke has given is
succinct: “Jews came to the South for two main reasons: their families and the economy.”36 He
hardly needed to add that “these two phenomena were both interconnected and

interdependent.” ... Ethnic niches and kinship networks enabled many of the Main Street
shopkeepers to survive and even to thrive. The trust that they were obliged to harbor for one
another within the niche economy gave them a competitive edge, Michael Cohen argued. The
peddlers crisscrossing the region often managed to achieve upward mobility and open stores, and
could then supply other peddlers with credit and goods. That trust seems only rarely to have
been misplaced, because everyone in this niche economy could discern the benefits.*” Relatives
loaned one another money, invested in one another’s businesses, clerked in one another’s stores,
married into one another’s families. Southern Jewry was (in Evans’s phrase) “entwined like
wisteria vines™® and so many kinfolks were installed in so many stores throughout the region
that they provoked the question: Why did God create Gentiles? Somebody has to buy retail.



Many of those Gentiles were black, which makes this story Southern in a way that characterizes
no other section of the United States. Jewish peddlers and Jewish retailers could be found
throughout the nation, but only in the South did their relations with their black customers take on
historical significance. Even before the Civil War, peddlers seem to have demonstrated a
willingness to cross the color line. They didn’t want to make trouble; they merely wanted to
make a sale. Perhaps the transcendent quest for customers made such Jews a bit subversive in a
slave society that bore an equivocal relationship to the capitalist ethos. Putting the South closer
to what Tocqueville called the “commercial passions” pushed it a little further away from the
rigidities of an embattled racial order, and therefore the intrusion of Jewish tradesmen was bound
to generate a little friction. Even the most famous antebellum visitor from the North—and later a
co-founder of the Nation—was unsympathetic to them. The eminent landscape architect
Frederick Law Olmsted could not help noticing “a swarm of Jews, within the last ten years, [that]
has settled in nearly every Southern town, many of them of no character, opening cheap clothing
and trinket shops, ruining, or driving out of business, many of the old retailers, and engaging in
an unlawful trade with simple negroes, which is found very profitable.” Olmsted noticed that, in
Richmond, the German Jews were “very dirty.” Their shops emitted “their characteristic smells”
and were “thickly set in the narrowest and meanest streets, which seem to be otherwise inhabited
mainly by negroes.”39 Of course those “old retailers” may have charged higher prices, which

drove black customers to Jewish tradesmen who were less likely to exhibit overt racist hostility.
Source: Merchants: The Marrow of the Southern Jewish Experience - Jewish Historical Society of South Carolina
https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/

“Jews would place packs on their backs, travel to rural interior areas where there was little
competition, and bring goods to far-flung places. This was a nationwide pattern, and as new
interior cities such as Chicago, St. Louis, Cincinnati, and scores of smaller towns opened, Jewish
peddlers were also quickly on the scene to provision early settlers. As they became more
successful, Jewish peddlers often opened storefronts, and some store owners would then
provision other peddlers. This economic niche shaped Jewish settlement patterns across the
country, but particularly in the Gulf South, and the timing could not have been better. By the
mid-nineteenth century, Jews were acquiring the means necessary to open stores just as the
general store model was beginning to challenge the factorage system. By opening interior
general stores that purchased cotton from farmers and sold them goods on credit, Jews found
early success in the cotton industry that served as a harbinger of their postbellum niche

economy.”®”

Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - pp. 47-48
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

- “By the mid-nineteenth century, Jews were acquiring the means necessary to open stores just as
the general store model was beginning to challenge the factorage system.” This is related to the
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takeover that occurred in the sharecropping era after the Civil War.

“Young Jewish businessmen typically began as peddlers who sold merchandise to large and
small landowners and to slaves in and around communities like Natchez, Mississippi, and
Donaldsonville, Louisiana. Peddling was an apprenticeship through which immigrants learned
about the region and their customers.®® As the ‘foot soldiers’ of the mid-nineteenth-century
market revolution in America, Jewish peddlers purchased their goods from wholesale suppliers
in commercial centers like Shreveport, Baton Rouge, Natchez, and New Orleans, where they
established strong ties to Jewish friends, family, and businessmen.®® Separated from friends and
family for weeks at a time on the road, peddlers developed friendships and business relationships
with other Jews in small towns... These ties proved invaluable as peddlers became store owners
and needed city outlets for purchasing wholesale goods, securing credit, and establishing markets
for country produce and staples like cotton and sugar. ... The Planter’s Store, owned by Jacob
Lemann, a German-born merchant in Donaldsonville, Louisiana, was ‘just’ upriver from New
Orleans.*® In 1846 Lemann placed an ad in his local newspaper inviting planters with ‘cash,
credit, or barter’ to purchase farm supplies, clothing, blankets, and shoes, as well as a ‘complete
stock of groceries’ that included claret, white wine, cognac, champagne brandy, Madeira, cheese,
sardines, raisins, white and brown sugar, Havana and Rio coffee, and vermicelli.”* The friends
Lemann referred to were Jewish colleagues whom he called on for supplies and credit. After the
Civil War Lemann and his son Bernard owned several stores and sugar plantations in the area.
Like many Jewish merchants in rural Louisiana, they gave loans to cash-strapped planters during
the war and later purchased their properties when the planters declared bankruptcy following the

war.”

Source: Matzoh Ball Gumbo: Culinary Tales of the Jewish South - pp. 100-101
https://books.google.com/books?id=FVXgCQAAQBAJ

That last part....

“Vocationally, many immigrants started as peddlers. Success often came rapidly for those who
rose out of these ranks to form what Metz Kahn called, ‘peddler aristocracy.” Others began

by using their skills at intermediary trades. In a context that was both different and yet similar to
the old world, they imitated their fathers and conducted business as merchants, a trade for which
a need sorely existed in the mid-nineteenth century South. They supplied the cotton plantations
in Mississippi and the sugar plantations along the river, sold cotton bales to ginning factories,
participated in the different stages of cotton processing, and became commission brokers. Buying
the merchandise on credit and paying after the harvest in the form of commissions or once they
had made money, cotton factors lent money to the planters. Hermann Kohlmeyer, whose family


https://books.google.com/books?id=FVXqCQAAQBAJ

came from Lembach, is a financier who continues his business today with many southern
planters, and between the South and the English cotton-importing cities such as Liverpool. The
individual might become a cotton or sugar plantation owner thanks to the customer's inability to

sustain mortgaged lands.”

Source: Mercy on Rude Streams: Jewish Emigrants from Alsace-Lorraine to the Lower Mississippi Region and the Concept of
Fidelity by Anny Bloch

https://www.bjpa.org/content/upload/bjpa/bloc/Bloch-Mercy%200n%20Rude%20Streams.pdf

“The merchants formed associations with mercantile firms at port cities, known as cotton factors
or port merchants, whom the inland merchant supplied with cotton and, in return, received
supplies bought in New York or New Orleans. While the town merchant provided credit to the
farmer, he received stock also on credit from the factor in anticipation of the cotton bales the
merchant would forward at harvest time. If the crop was successful, the farmer’s debt to the
merchant would be liquidated. If the crop failed, the debt carried forward to the next year with
interest. Similarly, the merchant was obligated to settle his open accounts with the port factor.?

In this system, immense amounts of trade took place with cash rarely changing hands.”
Source: Southern Jewish History - Journal of the Southern Jewish Historical Society
https://www.jewishsouth.org/system/files/sjh_v. 8 2005 weinfeld.pdf

“While towns such as Shreveport, Natchez, and Bayou Sara were on the rise in the antebellum
years, the merchants of these towns were beginning to play an increasingly important role in the
cotton industry. As proximate farmlands opened to cotton production, the region became
friendlier to interior merchants. Peddlers, many of whom were Jews, were often the first
merchants to arrive, selling farming supplies and other wares and chasing what little opportunity
was available. But as new frontier lands opened for farming, and their scale of business
increased, many peddlers made enough money to open storefronts in towns such as Shreveport,
Natchez, and Bayou Sara. In Natchez, middle-class merchants gained financial prominence in
the 1850s. There were over 100 retail firms in 1858, and the most successful businesses in that
era were those that stocked a variety of goods to supply plantations. Some owners of these small
general stores, many of whom were Jews, may have been familiar with their clientele and their
needs from their days as peddlers, and they would have a decided advantage when general stores
ultimately made the cotton factor superfluous.

“Although these merchants played only a small role in the antebellum cotton industry, they
were in the right place at the right time to capitalize on the changes that would soon come.*®
Initially the functions that those shopkeepers fulfilled mirrored those of the factors, though on a
smaller scale. Store owners worked primarily with farmers whose crops were generally too small
to interest large-scale factors, and their most important function was supplying goods to those
living in rural areas. While some stores sold goods on the cash system, others would sell goods
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on credit in much the same fashion as the factor. Moreover, just as the factor did for larger
clients, general stores also handled the sale of the cotton crop of smaller farmers. Store owners
would purchase the small crops from a multitude of farmers, providing them the scale necessary
to work with larger factors to market the crop. Additionally, because there were no rural state-
chartered banks in Louisiana, many of these firms filled this void by also operating rudimentary
banking operations.?® As the Gulf South’s cotton economy grew in the antebellum period, so,
too, did the number and strength of general stores, which began to tread on the economic
territory of the factors. Not only were these stores, which were usually small, locally owned, and
locally managed, numerous, but a fairly significant number of them also achieved success in the
antebellum years. Their success provided store owners with a base of capital that would help

them survive the war years and thrive in the postbellum years.?*

Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - pp. 44-45
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

“More than just a retail store, S. Bernheimer & Sons reflected the multifarious role that these
merchants played in the state’s economy. Bernheimer sold general merchandise to retail
customers, including hardware like pipe, rope, paint, wire, and lumber; foodstuffs like bacon,
meat, molasses, meal, and tobacco; as well as shoes. In addition to the retail business,
Bernheimer would sell merchandise to stores in the small towns and rural areas of southwest
Mississippi. Bernheimer was also a cotton factor, buying the crop from land farmers and
accepting it as payment for debts. One of his sources of cotton was another Jewish merchant,
Morris Gilston, who owned a store in nearby Martin, Mississippi. Bernheimer would often sell

his cotton to a Jewish-owned cotton buying firm in New Orleans.”
Source: Ethnic Heritage in Mississippi: The Twentieth Century - p. 197
https://books.google.com/books?id=7smDaVayHFIC

And do you remember the Jewish garment industry?

“Leon Godchaux, who moved to New York in 1858 to begin manufacturing directly for his
stores in New Orleans, reportedly employed two hundred workers. He was one of at least ten
Jewish clothiers to do so. These manufacturing clothiers were able to extend their trade well
beyond Louisiana, selling garments in Texas, Arkansas, and California.™® ... It was not just
manufacturers who were buoyed by the spring tide of cotton that flowed through New Orleans in
the 1850s. Yet in spite of the growing presence of Jewish-owned businesses in the marketplace,
relatively few appear to have consistently purveyed large quantities of garments to the
plantations that flanked the Mississippi. ... With a few exceptions Jewish clothiers and dry-goods
merchants in New Orleans derived much of their business from rural storekeepers and peddlers,
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whose numbers swelled in the 1840s and 1850s. By 1860 nearly a third of all Jews in the South
lived in Louisiana, many along the Mississippi and its tributaries. Here they were helped by the
vast expansion of cotton cultivation in new areas of settlement. Cotton factors were accustomed
to serving the needs of larger plantations, but many of the new settlers farmed on a small scale,
far from railways and macadamized roads. Peddlers and petty storekeepers depended on people
at the margins of an economy geared toward cotton planters—including yeoman farmers, fur

trappers, townspeople, river men, and slaves—for the majority of their business.”
Source: The Rag Race: How Jews Sewed Their Way to Success in America and the British Empire — p. 139
https://books.google.com/books?id=nJvsCWAAQBAJ

Historical Trickery

Jews and the American Slave Trade is a book that aims to debunk the research done by the
Nation of Islam on the Jewish involvement in the slave trade. One reviewer stated, “This book is
of interest only to see the manipulation techniques employed by zionists.” That is a fact, and
that’s what we’re going to take a look at.

“In 1859, the state of Mississippi led the nation in production of cotton (more than 1.2 million
400 pound bales). ... The names of Mississippi’s biggest slaveholders are well known. ... None of
the major slaveholders in Florida, Alabama, or Mississippi were Jewish. Nor are there any
Jewish names among the more than fifty names of major slave traders listed in Natchez, the

principal slave market for Mississippi, between 1833 and 1859.”
Source: Jews and the American Slave Trade By Saul Friedman - p. 189
https://archive.org/details/jewsamericanslav0000frie

1. None of the major slaveholders in Florida, Alabama, or Mississippi were Jewish. When?
What year? Between which years? You might say 1859, but if you look closely, that might not
be the case. And what’s his definition of “major slaveholders”?

2. No Jewish names among the more than fifty names of major slave traders listed in Natchez
between 1833 and 1859.

He then goes on to speak of how only a few Jews lived in these areas on the eve of the Civil
War, and brings up Whites and Blacks that owned slaves. He then states that a few Jews in
Alabama and Mississippi were involved in the operations of the slave trade — this Jew was a
speculator; this one was a cotton factor; and this one was an auctioneer. And that’s it. There’s a
quick mention of a few Jews, but no details are given.
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Now let’s take a look at what’s not stated. But first, let’s look at the location in question.

“Natchez is the county seat of and only city in Adams County, Mississippi, United States. ...
Located on the Mississippi River across from Vidalia in Concordia Parish, Louisiana, Natchez
was a prominent city in the antebellum years, a center of cotton planters and Mississippi River
trade. ... In the decades preceding the Civil War, Natchez was by far the most prevalent slave
trading city in Mississippi, and second in the United States only to New Orleans. ... In 1833, the
most active slavers in the United States, John Armfield and Isaac Franklin began a program of
arbitrating low slave prices in the Middle Atlantic area by sending thousands of slaves to Deep
South markets in Natchez and New Orleans. Their company, Franklin and Armfield sent an
annual caravan of slaves, called a coffle, from Virginia to the Forks of the Road in Natchez, as
well as sending others by ship through New Orleans. Unlike other slave sellers of the day,
Franklin and Armfield sold slaves individually, with the buyers allowed to survey the people
much like items in a modern retail store. ... In the middle of the nineteenth century, the city
attracted wealthy Southern planters as residents, who built mansions to fit their ambitions. Their
plantations were vast tracts of land in the surrounding lowlands along the river fronts of
Mississippi and Louisiana, where they grew large commodity crops of cotton and sugarcane
using slave labor. Natchez became the principal port from which these crops were exported, both
upriver to Northern cities and downriver to New Orleans, where much of the cargo was exported
to Europe. Many of the mansions built by planters before 1860 survive and form a major part of
the city's architecture and identity. Agriculture remained the primary economic base for the

region until well into the twentieth century.”
Source: Natchez, Mississippi
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Natchez, Mississippi

“The late Philip Heidelbach, of Heidelbach, Ickelheimer & Co., presents another illustration of
what can be accomplished by perseverence and industry. He was a native of Bavaria, and was
born in 1814, coming to this country a poor lad and engaging for some time in trading as a
peddler. In the course of time he embarked in the clothing trade at Cincinnati and eventually
controlled the largest manufactory in the Mississippi Valley. As founder of the firm of
Seasongood & Co., he was well known throughout the country and is remembered as one of the
promoters of the Cincinnati Southern Railroad, a director of the Little Miami Railroad, and a
member of the firm of Espy, Heidelbach & Co., of the Queen City. Lazarus Hallgarten, founder
of the firm of Hallgarten & Hertzfeld, now known as Hallgarten & Co., had very little means
when he reached this country in 1849. His first occupation was note and exchange broker. This

yielded a moderate income and enabled him to start as a banker.”

Source: The Hebrews in America. A SERIES OF HISTORICAL AND BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES. BY ISAAC MARKENS.
(published in 1888) — p. 143
https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The Hebrews in_ America_%28I1A_hebrewsinamerica00mark%?29.pdf
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“Hallgarten & Company was an investment bank based in New York City that was founded in
1850 by Lazarus Hallgarten, a native of Hesse. ... The firm was part of the interlinked group of
Wall Street investment banks that had been founded in the second half of the 19th century by
German-Jewish bankers, sometimes known as the Our Crowd bankers. The group included such
firms as Bache & Co., Lehman Brothers, Goldman Sachs, J. & W. Seligman & Co. and Kuhn
Loeb.”

Source: Hallgarten & Company
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Hallgarten %26 _Company

“During the late 19th Century, Jews made up just five per cent of the Natchez population, yet
were owners of nearly one-third of the community’s businesses. Family names of these
prospering businesses included Geisenberger, Coleman, Frank, Beekman, and Lemle. For
instance, in 1863, Henry Frank started a business on Pearl Street where he sold dry goods, boots,
shoes, and notions. He served as both manufacturer and retailer, eventually becoming so
successful that he served as president of the Natchez Board of Trade. During much the same
period, another Northern Jew founded I. Lowenberg & Co. which sold groceries, cigars, and
tobacco, eventually becoming the largest cotton handler in Natchez. Other members of the
Natchez Jewish community included David Moses who was in the ‘cheap cash store’ business
and 1. N. Moses who sold buggies and accessories during the 1870s and ‘80s. Jews also started
non-retail businesses such as the Natchez Cotton and Merchants’ Exchange. The Jews of
Natchez became bankers as well. They were involved with the Moses Bank, First National Bank,
Joseph Adolph & Son Banking, and First Natchez Bank. The success of these merchants and
bankers helped draw other Jews to the area. By the late 1870s, the Jewish population of Natchez
had grown to more than 200. ... As previously mentioned, the Natchez economy was based

largely on cotton.”

Source: Southern Jewish Heritage - Natchez: “The Most Southern Place on Earth”
http://www.jhsmem.org/SHNewsletters/SHNFall2016.pdf

“Aaron Beekman and Marx Lemle, two men who would develop major mercantile and plantation
supply firms in the postbellum marketplace. In 1843 Aaron Beekman, probably the most
successful of the antebellum Jewish merchants in the postwar marketplace, arrived in Natchez. ...
If Beekman had a fast start in Reconstruction, he also had eleven children, whose marriages
eventually connected or linked him to many other prominent Jewish mercantile firms in the
postwar era, including Henry Frank Dry Goods, A. & M. Moses, and Meyer, Weis & Co.
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Beekman would remain in business from 1843 until his death in 1901, probably longer than any
other Natchez merchant on record, and his influence on Natchez was profound. He became one
of the largest cotton-buying and —supplying merchants in the area as well as a prominent cotton
planter with considerable land holdings throughout the district. ... When Lowenburg wed Ophelia
Mayer in 1865 and Henry Frank wed her sister Melanie in 1868, they joined Julius Weis as
Mayer sons-in-law and made it clear that they were committed to staying and prospering in the
Natchez Jewish community. ... Lowenburg was also the Natchez agent for his brother-in-law
Julius Weis of Meyer, Weis & Co., and the two ran several plantations on both sides of the
Mississippi River. Over the years both Lowenburg and Frank became local business stalwarts
involved in the Natchez Cotton and Merchants Exchange, the Natchez Cotton Mills, and local

railroad concerns and politics.”
Source: Builders of a New South: Merchants, Capital, and the Remaking of Natchez, 1865-1914 - pp. 57-59
https://books.google.com/books?id=1-waBwAAQBAJ

“Upriver from New Orleans, the stylish town of Natchez, Mississippi, was an important inland
cotton port in the Deep South prior to the Civil War.”” Many wealthy New Orleanians owned
plantations in Louisiana across the Mississippi River from Natchez in what was referred to as the
‘Natchez District,” and the city became an outpost of New Orleans culture and business
transactions.”® Approximately one-fourth of Temple Sinai’s congregations in New Orleans
worked in the cotton trade as factors, commission merchants, buyers, or processors, and many
had both planter and store owner clients in Natchez.*® Fortunes made from cotton plantations
contributed to Natchez’s fashionable townhouses, social clubs, and businesses that supported the
lifestyle of wealthy planters. ... Natchez Jewish merchants were an important part of these
worlds. In 1858 Jewish merchants owned eight of the city’s dry goods and clothing stores, and a
year after the Civil War there were eighteen Jewish businesses in town.'® By 1877 Natchez was
home to twenty-eight Jewish businesses, which included more than half the dry goods stores and

cotton factors.'**”
Source: Matzoh Ball Gumbo: Culinary Tales of the Jewish South - p. 102
https://books.google.com/books?id=FVXgCQAAQBAJ

“The presence of black people in Jewish homes up and down the Mississippi River was
significant, as was their influence. African Americans dressed, fed, and nursed Jews in the Deep
South. As both southerners and Jews, the Lowenburgs were surrounded by African Americans
who lived in their homes, worked in their businesses, prepared their holiday feasts, drove them to
synagogue, told their children African folktales at bedtime, and brought the Old Testament into
their homes in religious hymns. Clara Lowenburg wrote that she could not have endured the
painful loss of her mother, Ophelia, had it not been for her black cook, Jinny Shaw, who
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provided ‘comforting wisdom’ and ‘loving sympathy.”*%*”

Source: Matzoh Ball Gumbo: Culinary Tales of the Jewish South - p. 103
https://books.google.com/books?id=FVXqCQAAQBAJ

How the Game was Played

“The chief borrowers in the cotton belt were the large planters. The small farmers in the hill
country who raised their own provisions, and who bought little and sold little, had small use for
the mechanism of credit, even if they had been considered desirable debtors. Negroes were
usually sold on credit, even to the small farmer, however, provided he had already secured means
to purchase one slave for cash. The possession of one slave seemed to be a guarantee that the
owner would be able to pay for a second one. The desire to increase slave property was a
frequent cause of the planter running in debt. ‘The majority of planters would always run in debt
to the extent of their credit for negroes, whatever was asked for them, without making any
calculation of the reasonable prospect of their being able to pay their debts. When any one made
a good crop, he would always expect that his next one would be better, and make purchases in
advance upon such expectation. When they were dunned, they would attribute their inability to
pay to accidental short crops, and always were going ahead risking everything in confidence that
another year of luck would favor them and a big crop make all right.”* In addition to their slaves,
it was customary for a large part of the planters to buy on credit the provisions and clothing for
the negroes and the tools and stock needed on the plantation. The factors at the port towns where
the cotton was sold were usually the money lenders, although sometimes the merchants of New
York made advances on the growing crops. The merchants in the southern cities sold their goods
on credit, charging necessarily much higher prices than when they sold for cash. Even then the
risks were so great that in 1855 the Southern Commercial Convention recommended the
chambers of commerce and commission merchants of the southern and southwestern cities, ‘to
adopt such a system of laws and regulations as will put a stop to the dangerous practice
heretofore existing of making advances to planters in anticipation of their crops—a practice
entirely at variance with everything like safety in business transactions and tending directly to
establish the relations of master and slave between the merchant and planter by bringing the
latter into the most abject and servile bondage;’ and they also recommended ‘the legislatures of
the Southern and Southwestern states to pass laws making it a penitentiary offense for the
planters to ask of the merchants to make such pecuniary advances.”® Very little seems to be
known concerning the rates of interest or discount on loans made to the cotton planters previous
to the war. Olmsted was told that farming land in the Mississippi Valley was usually sold on the
installment plan, the purchaser paying down what he was able to pay and giving security for the
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remainder. The rate of interest in such cases was ten per cent. If the planter was unable to pay
when the notes became due, he was obliged to borrow money from the Jewish money-lenders at
New Orleans, paying often as much as twenty-five per cent. per annum for the loan, and pawning
his furniture, jewels, carpets, etc., as security. Mortgages on farming land were almost unknown
at the South, the low value of land and the exhaustive system of culture making this form of
security undesirable. A planter's wealth was gauged by the number of negroes he held, and not
by the number of acres he owned. The crops then growing or yet to be planted became, therefore,
almost the only security which could be furnished by the planter desiring to borrow money or
purchase supplies. When a planter had prepared his ground for cotton he would go to the factor
at the nearest market, describe his land, the number of acres he expected to plant, and the factor
having satisfied himself of the truthfulness of the statement would make the desired loan, taking
a lien on the crop as security. The rates of interest on these loans varied considerably, according
to the commercial integrity of the borrower, the fertility of the land, etc., but the rates were
always high as compared with interest rates at the North. ‘Every person familiar with the
condition of trade in the Southwest,” wrote a Southerner, ‘knows what an enormous tax is levied
by factors on planters for the advances made the latter. Ten, twelve, fifteen or more per cent. are
the common rates of interest charged for these loans. Besides, the planter is placed completely in
the power of the factor. The crop is often sold to satisfy the exigencies of the latter's situation.
This custom is likewise most oppressive to the factor. It obliges him to keep up a large amount of
capital, and exposes him to a variety of hazardous risks.” Many of the factors who had
outstanding accounts with the planters at the outbreak of the war were completely bankrupted,

owing to the inability of the latter to make good their promises of repayment.”

Source: The Cotton Industry: An Essay in American Economic History. The cotton culture and the cotton trade. December 1897 -
pp. 109-111

https://books.google.com/books?id=97IlyAQAAMAAJ

“The networks that brought European investment to American firms were largely ethnic in
nature. There were few means by which contracts could be enforced across vast oceans and
national borders, so in an era where, as we have seen, personal trust fostered economic trust,
ethnicity engendered separate, although overlapping, economic spheres. For example, J. P.
Morgan & Co. had Paris and London branches and acted as an intermediary between European
investors and American investments—particularly in the railroad sector. Morgan worked closely
with Kidder, Peabody & Co., the American agents for Baring Brothers, and while Jewish banks
such as Kuhn, Loeb & Co. did participate in J. P. Morgan & Co.’s syndicates, their participation
almost always ranked below Kidder, Peabody & Co. These economic relationships reflected the
social milieu in which the firms operated. J. P. Morgan & Co. continued to view itself as a bank
for the social elite in the twentieth century, identifying as an Anglo-American and non-Jewish
firm. Differentiating his bank from Jewish banks during the era of mass East European Jewish
migration, Morgan insisted that his bank and Barings’s representatives were the only ‘white
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firms in New York,” and Morgan avoided one particular opportunity that he found to be ‘a little
too Jewish.” Additionally, J. P. Morgan & Co. and its various incarnations had no Jewish
directors until the mid-twentieth century, further reflecting the limited opportunities for trust-

based relationships between Jewish and non-Jewish firms.*”

Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - p. 143
https://archive.orag/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

... and it was all a trick.

“In addition to family connections, ties of ethnicity also undergirded networks between Southern
and Northern firms. ‘As far back as 1846,” Julius Weis recalled, his firm ‘imported some
drygoods from Switzerland, for which Lazard Freres [sic ],” operated by fellow Jews to whom he
was not related, ‘had given their acceptance.’*® Additionally, family and ethnic networks
operated at a second level. Once capital reached wholesale and retail firms in the Gulf South,
those businesses then utilized ethnic networks to distribute capital and provide credit to other
Jewish firms within the local economies. For example, when wholesaler A. Beer & Co. went
bankrupt in 1855, approximately two-thirds of the customers who owed it money were fellow
Jews. Ethnic credit networks often allowed lenders to be more lenient in allowing a trusted
customer extra time to pay. For example, when a yellow fever outbreak decimated Julius Weis’s
business and ‘the payments came due for our goods,” Weis noted that his Jewish creditors ‘had
confidence in me and helped us out,” and he was soon “paid up in full.”*® ... These family and
ethnic networks stood at the center of many of the largest and strongest Jewish businesses in the

antebellum Gulf South’s cotton industry.”
Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - pp. 56-57
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

The Jewish ethnic networks were fed by sources of money and credit that were much greater
than non-Jewish networks. And those Jews in this network received large amounts of Jewish
privilege, unlike the small amount of non-Jews who happened to be a part of that network.

“Jews, much like other ethnic minorities, trusted one another more than they trusted strangers
with whom they had no connections. Such was the case for Weis, and it was also the case for the
prominent Jewish banking house of Lehman Brothers, which relied on ethnic trust networks to
conduct business, bringing European investment to the scores of Jewish merchants who fanned
out across the cotton-producing regions of the Gulf South. Leveraging these ethnic networks,
Jewish merchants created a niche economy in the nation’s most important industry—cotton. In
so doing, they positioned themselves at the forefront of global capitalist expansion for much of
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the second half of the nineteenth century.
Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - pp. 14-15
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

Some of the Major Players

We’re told that the slavemaster and his descendants were the main ones, and even the only ones,
to profit from the slave economy, right?

Jewish
Lehman

“Sometimes those transactions could extend far beyond the region and could generate an
international impact. The most famous instance occurred in the 1840s in Montgomery, where
three brothers from Bavaria landed and opened up a small fabric store. The profits from dry
goods enabled Emanuel, Henry, and Mayer Lehman to purchase slaves, buy local real estate, and
establish their own private investment bank. The brothers used it to broker cotton between the
plantations of the South and the manufacturers of the North. With the utter collapse of the
Southern economy in 1865, the Lehmans opted not to live and die in Dixie. They moved most of
the bank’s operations to New York City, while keeping important family cotton enterprises in
Montgomery and in New Orleans. The firm continued to provide capital to scores of cotton
merchants, most of whom were Jews. Some of the funds had been generated by Lehman
Brothers” own businesses, and part was funneled from European and New York Jewish-owned
banks such as Hallgarten, Lazard Fréres, J. W. Seligman, M. & M. Warburg and Kuhn,

Loeb. Circulation of capital on this scale would have been difficult for members of the National
Negro Business League to replicate. Lehman Brothers extended itself to other commaodities,
going from cotton to coffee and tobacco, and then invested in railroads and the Panama Canal,
before taking the full, fatal leap to the intangibles of high finance. Lehman Brothers became the

fourth-largest investment bank in the US....”

Source: Merchants: The Marrow of the Southern Jewish Experience - Jewish Historical Society of South Carolina
https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/



https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up
https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/

General Merchants to Commodities Brokers
http://archive.today/7WmeN

Also archived here.

- “The Lehmans often received payment for goods in their general store in the form of cotton—
an arrangement that gave impetus to their entry into the business of buying and selling cotton for
planters in the local Montgomery area. Mayer’s son Herbert H. Lehman remembered, ‘It was
largely a barter agreement. The farmers would come in with their cotton and trade it for shirts
and shoes and fertilizer . . . and seed, and all the necessities.” Located along the Alabama River
with access to the ports of Mobile and New Orleans, Montgomery provided an ideal base for the
cotton trade. ... As Lehman Brothers made the transition from general merchandisers to cotton
commodity brokers, they opened an office in New York in 1858, the center of the commodities
trading business. The firm served as brokers between farmers selling cotton and industrialists and
exporters buying it.”

- “When Mayer Lehman passed away in 1897, his memorial noted: ‘He did not build his fortune
on the ruin of other men.””

“Lehman was indeed founded by three brothers, immigrant Jews from Germany who started out
as dry-goods peddlers in the pre-Civil War south, and whose subsequent success as cotton
brokers enabled them to become one of the Confederacy's main financial backers. After the war
they moved up North to New York City, and expanded from trading commodities into
investment banking. The Lehmans also became leading members of Manhattan's wealthy
German-Jewish social aristocracy, the small group of tightly intertwined families memorably
dubbed ‘our crowd’ by writer Stephen Birmingham in his book of the same name. Several other
founding fathers of major Wall Street firms and banks were part of this social group, including

Abraham Kuhn, Solomon Loeb, Marcus Goldman, Joseph Seligman and Jacob Schiff.”

Source: Analyze This: Devaluing the Lehman name, on Wall Street and elsewhere
https://www.jpost.com/business/business-features/analyze-this-devaluing-the-lehman-name-on-wall-street-and-elsewhere

- ““...one of the Confederacy's main financial backers.” And they weren’t the only Jewish
bankers or Jewish financiers to do so. Question: Hasn’t it been drilled in all of our heads that the
Confederacy was racist and anyone who supported it was racist? “That’s White supremacy!”
And here we have Jews providing actual life to the Confederacy. And that doesn’t include
August Belmont, a Jewish Rothschild agent who everyone knew was a Rothschild agent. “... he
was chairman of the Democratic Party, which helped with the charge of Sympathy to the
Confederacy. The attacks on Belmont became a favorite sport from the press and politicians. In
1864, The New York Times accused Belmont of aiding the Confederacy, writing, ‘The great
Democratic Party has fallen so low that it has to seek a leader in the agent of foreign Jew
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bankers.’” (Source: Questioning Jewish Loyalty to the Union: Grant's General Order Number 11 and anti-Semitism during
the Civil war) And it doesn’t even stop there because there were other Jews in the Confederacy.
And then there’s Judah P. Benjamin, who you’ll learn about later. When you add all of that up
you get a Jewish-powered Confederacy. You’ll see more proof of this later on.

“When the firm was not trading or financing commodities, it engaged in many merchant banking
activities in the cotton industry as well as mining and real estate ventures in the South. Like
many of the merchant banking firms of the period, it also engaged in numerous railroad ventures.
Banking also attracted the Lehmans’ attention, and the firm helped establish many banks in and
around New York. Probably the best known of these was the Trust Co. of America, founded in
1899. ... They also formed strategic friendships with their counterparts at other Jewish-American
houses. Philip Lehman in particular was closely associated with Henry Goldman, the son of the
founder of Goldman Sachs. The House of Lehman and Goldman Sachs united in many
investment banking deals in the years before World War I; perhaps the best known was an initial
stock offering for Sears, Roebuck & Co. The two houses shared about sixty investment banking
clients, which they split when they went their separate ways, Goldman getting the lion’s share.
The two houses agreed not to actively compete with each other for business. The alliance was
crucial to Lehman’s initial success in investment banking and to the firm’s development

afterward as well.”

Source: The Last Partnerships - Inside the Great Wall Street Money Dynasties
http://www.untag-smd.ac.id/files/Perpustakaan_Digital 1/BUSINESS%20The%20Last%20Partnerships%20-
%201nside%20the%20Great%20Wall%20Street%20Money%20Dynasties.pdf

“Emanuel and Mayer Lehman, of New York, are among the leading houses in the cotton trade in
this country, and are natives of Wurtzburg, Germany, They started at Montgomery, Ala., as
store-keepers. Few merchants have shown greater enterprise, or contributed more to the
prosperity of Alabama. They have been connected with numerous railway projects and
manufacturing enterprises in that section and are, at the present time, the principal owners of a
cotton mill on the Tallapoosa River, one of the largest in the South, and whose annual output is
$1,000,000. When the credit of the State of Alabama was seriously impaired, after the panic of
1873, and it was found difficult to negotiate the bonds of the State, Messrs. Lehman promptly
subscribed to the amount of $100,000, after numerous unsuccessful efforts in other quarters.
Emanuel Lehman is a Director of the Richmond and Danville; Richmond, Terminal and Virgina
Midland Railways, and of the Mercantile National Bank and Commercial Insurance Company of
New York, Mayer Lehman is a Director of the Hamilton Bank of New York, and a most

influential member and Director of the New York Cotton Exchange.”

Source: The Hebrews in America. A SERIES OF HISTORICAL AND BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES. BY ISAAC MARKENS.
(published in 1888) — pp. 147-148
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https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The _Hebrews in_ America_%28IA hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf

“Lehman Brothers also worked with Kuhn, Loeb & Co., one of the largest Jewish banks in New
York, whose European connections—including M. & M. Warburg, a German investment house
led by Felix Warburg’s brother Max—brought European capital into American markets. Lehman
Brothers had ‘gold’ and ‘special’ accounts with Kuhn, Loeb & Co., and the two firms conducted
extensive transactions with one another.'® Lehman Brothers also worked closely with J. W.
Seligman & Co., a Jewish firm that had branches and interests across the globe and cultivated
ethnic networks that brought European investment across the Atlantic. J. W. Seligman & Co. got
its start in the antebellum cotton town of Selma, Alabama, but unable to break into Southern
markets while the factorage system had been in place, it diversified into the risky Californian

market during the gold rush.”

Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - p. 144
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

Seligman

“The first of the eight Seligman Brothers to reach this country, was Joseph, the eldest, who came
to the United States in 1838, after graduating at the University of Erlangen. ... Returning to New
York he formed a co-partnership with his brothers, Joseph, James and William, as wholesale
clothiers and importers of dry goods, in which the other brothers, Leopold, Isaac, Abraham and
Henry, were later on interested. In this business they were engaged on the breaking out of the
Civil War in 1861, and having met with great success, they determined to embark in the banking
business. In a short while they opened branches in London, Paris, Frankfort, San Francisco and
New Orleans. Mainly through their instrumentality the government was enabled, at the beginning
of the war, to place large amounts of bonds in the German markets. They were subsequently
appointed fiscal agents of the government in Europe, and are to-day recognized as among the

great bankers of the world.”

Source: The Hebrews in America. A SERIES OF HISTORICAL AND BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES. BY ISAAC MARKENS.
(published in 1888) — pp. 141-142

https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The_Hebrews_in_America_%28IA _hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf

“The Seligmans’ history in the last years of the nineteenth century was remarkably similar to that
of the Lehmans. ... Over the years, the Seligmans worked closely with the other Jewish firms as
well as J. P. Morgan and August Belmont. During the first decade of the twentieth century, they
had reached the top echelon of New York investment banks, a small club that was dubbed the
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‘money trust’ by members of Congress investigating the concentration of financial power in the
United States. In an era of trusts, suspicion abounded that there was a money trust that dominated
American banking without which it would be impossible to raise loans, bonds, or new stock
issues. In reality, the trust was more akin to an oligopoly—what today we would call a ‘shared
monopoly.” About ten New York private banks overwhelmingly controlled the money made
available for capital investment, and the Seligmans were certainly among them. ... While the
Seligmans and the Lehmans were establishing their family dynasties, yet another banking house
was being formed. The path to New York for what would become Kuhn Loeb & Co. would be

somewhat different from that of the Seligmans and the Lehmans.”

Source: The Last Partnerships - Inside the Great Wall Street Money Dynasties
http://www.untag-smd.ac.id/files/Perpustakaan_Digital_1/BUSINESS%20The%20Last%20Partnerships%20-
%201nside%20the%20Great%20Wall%20Street%20Money%20Dynasties.pdf

- “Over the years, the Seligmans worked closely with the other Jewish firms as well as J. P.
Morgan and August Belmont.”

“The Seligmans also established a relationship with Baron Lionel de Rothschild of the London
Jewish banking family, and Joseph Seligman encouraged his New Orleans branch to work with

Liverpool Jewish cotton financier J. H. Schroder & Co.**”

Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - p. 145
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

Kuhn, Loeb, Schiff and Warburg

“Abraham Kuhn and Solomon Loeb did not found their firm in New York until they had already
amassed a small fortune in the textile and clothing business in Cincinnati. ... Again, fate came
into play when Abraham met a young banker named Jacob Schiff. ... Under Schiff’s leadership,
Kuhn Loeb would grow to become a rival of Lehman Brothers and the House of Seligman by the
turn of the century. Schiff himself would become the second-best-known banker in New York

after J. P. Morgan.”

Source: The Last Partnerships - Inside the Great Wall Street Money Dynasties
http://www.untag-smd.ac.id/files/Perpustakaan_Digital 1/BUSINESS%20The%20Last%20Partnerships%20-
%201nside%20the%20Great%20Wall%20Street%20Money%20Dynasties.pdf

“Jacob Henry Schiff was an important participant in actively accelerating the rapid
industrialization of the United States economy during the late 19th and early 20th century.
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Through his firm, Kuhn, Loeb and Company, he was able to help finance the development and
growth of such corporations as Westinghouse Electric, U.S. Rubber, Armour, and American
Telephone and Telegraph. He also served as a director and advisor of numerous insurance
companies, banks and other corporations. Schiff was a prime mover in helping to consolidate and
expand the American railroad networks. Schiff was prominent in floating loans for the U.S.
government and for foreign nations. ... Schiff was a strong advocate for the gold standard and he

opposed the Silver Purchase Act of 1890.”
Source: Jacob Henry Schiff
https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/jacob-henry-schiff

“When Forbes recently reprinted its first list of the richest Americans, for its 100th Anniversary
Issue, Jacob Schiff's name stood out as one that seems to be forgotten. That list for 1918, headed
by John D. Rockefeller, consisted of well-known captains of industry or their heirs. Schiff was
tied for 23rd with a net worth of $50 million (equivalent to $875 million today), alongside
tobacco tycoon James Duke, photography pioneer George Eastman, Sears & Roebuck founder
Julius Rosenwald, and Pierre S. Du Pont, who created the chemicals empire. Schiff was one of
Wall Street's leading investment bankers from 1880 to 1920, with his Kuhn, Loeb & Co.
enabling railroads to reach every corner of the continent, helping insurance companies grow, and
lending Japan the money it needed to defeat Russia in their 1904-05 war (his revenge for the
czar's pogroms against the Jews). ... Schiff (1847-1920) was born in Frankfurt into a
distinguished family that traced its lineage in the city back five centuries. His father was a broker
for the Rothschilds and at 14 Schiff began working as an apprentice at a mercantile house and
then a bank. ... At the end of the American Civil War in 1865, Schiff, 18, decided the United
States would provide greater opportunity and boarded a ship for New York City. After a few
months of unemployment, he was hired as a clerk at a brokerage and within two years formed a
partnership, Budge, Schiff & Co. In 1874, Abraham Kuhn of Kuhn, Loeb invited him to join the
investment bank and Schiff contributed his valuable European connections. The following year,
he married Theresa Loeb, daughter of co-founder Solomon, and they would have a son and
daughter. “The partners had prospered in wholesale clothing in Cincinnati and during the Civil
War because of the Union's demand for army blankets,” wrote Naomi Cohen in ‘Jacob H. Schiff:
A Study in American Jewish Leadership.” ‘In 1867, they established Kuhn, Loeb & Co. in New
York, a banking firm that dealt primarily in government bonds ...” ... ‘The older members of the
firm recognized his financial genius ... and Kuhn, Loeb became one of the two most influential
private international banking houses in the Western Hemisphere,” wrote Cyrus Adler in ‘Jacob
Henry Schiff: A Biographical Sketch.” ‘It was characteristic of him as a banker that his activities
were all creative, looking to the development of the resources and the extension of the commerce
of the United States, particularly concerned in the financing of railway enterprises. ... He was
swift to recognize the genius of Edward H. Harriman, and the Harriman-Schiff railway
combination became the most powerful, the most aggressive, and the most successful that


https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/jacob-henry-schiff

America had ever known.” Kuhn, Loeb financed many railways, including providing the
Pennsylvania Railroad with $500 million over a quarter century. By the mid-1880s, Schiff had a
strong relationship with railroad baron James J. Hill, who controlled the Great Northern
Railroad, giving Schiff a seat on the board, while Hill sent his son to be trained by the banker.
But the economic panic of 1893 exposed corruption and inefficiencies in many railroads, and
Schiff pressured Hill to consolidate Great Northern with his troubled client, Northern Pacific.
Hill refused and turned to J.P. Morgan to fund his ambitions. ‘Schiff formed a reorganization
committee for another client in debt, Union Pacific (UNP), that included the National City Bank
and Rockefeller money, but he assumed the all-consuming task of hands-on manager,” wrote
Cohen. ... But a year later, Schiff heard that Harriman was trying to block the reorganization in
order to add the Union Pacific to his own railroad empire. They struck an agreement that would
give Harriman a position on the executive board and Kuhn, Loeb would have access to his credit
reserves. In 1897, Schiff convinced the U.S. government to provide $87 million to allow his

investment group to take full possession of the line, which prospered.”
Source: America's Railroad Titans Banked On Jacob Schiff
https://www.investors.com/news/management/leaders-and-success/americas-railroad-titans-banked-on-jacob-schiff/

Contrary to popular belief, cotton production in the South didn’t stop after the Civil War, and
thanks to the railroads cotton went from being transported over water to being transported over
land. Later on you’ll see how this all connects to sharecropping and the crop lien system.

Watch the beginning - 5:36

The Richest Family in America You've Never Heard of
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rgT-wk68000

Alternative source
https://www.bitchute.com/video/rgT-wk68000/

“After the panic of 1893 was resolved, and William McKinley was elected president, the country
went through a period of prosperity. The first great merger boom occurred and hundreds of
companies consolidated to form corporate America. In addition to U.S. Steel, other notable
companies were formed, such as General Electric, American Telephone and Telegraph, and
Westinghouse Electric and Manufacturing Co., to name but a few. The modern investment
banking business emerged and bankers were earning fees from underwriting securities and taking
equity positions in the new companies. As a result, the Kuhn Loeb partnership expanded.
Between 1897 and 1903, the firm admitted some of its best-known partners, including Felix
Warburg, Otto Kahn, Mortimer Schiff, and Paul Warburg. All were related to either Solomon
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Loeb or Abraham Loeb directly or by marriage.”

Source: The Last Partnerships - Inside the Great Wall Street Money Dynasties
http://www.untag-smd.ac.id/files/Perpustakaan_Digital_1/BUSINESS%20The%20Last%20Partnerships%20-
%201nside%20the%20Great%20Wall%20Street%20Money%20Dynasties.pdf

After the bankers caused the panic of 1893 ... the first great merger boom occurred and hundreds
of companies consolidated to form corporate America.

“Warburg family, a family whose members were eminent in banking, philanthropy, and
scholarship. ... Moses Marcus Warburg (d. 1830) and his brother Gerson (d. 1825) founded in
1798 the bank of M.M. Warburg & Co. of Hamburg. Among their descendants were five
brothers, grandsons of Moses M., of whom four were bankers: Max M. Warburg (1867-1946),
financial adviser to the German delegation to the Paris peace conference in 1919; Paul Moritz
Warburg (1868-1932), member of the U.S. bank of Kuhn, Loeb and Co. and of the Federal
Reserve Board; Felix Moritz Warburg (1871-1937), partner in Kuhn, Loeb and Co.; and Fritz
Moritz Warburg (1879-1964).”

Source: Warburg family
https://www.britannica.com/topic/Warburg-family

“Subseries 1.4 Warburg family records, 1899-1971 - Scope and Content: This subseries contains
records from the family of Felix M. Warburg (1871-1937) and his wife, Frieda Schiff Warburg
(1876-1958). Felix M. Warburg, a senior partner of Kuhn, Loeb & Company, was perhaps best
known for his humanitarian and philanthropic endeavors, particularly concerning American
Jewish issues. He was born into a banking family in Hamburg, Germany and came to the United
States at the age of 23 to marry Frieda Schiff, whom he had met the previous year. ... Frieda
Schiff Warburg was the daughter of Kuhn, Loeb & Company founder Jacob Schiff and Therese
Loeb. ... The Warburgs had five children: Carola Warburg (Mrs. Walter N. Rothschild),
Frederick M. Warburg, Gerald F. Warburg, Paul F. Warburg, and Edward M. M. Warburg.
Carola Warburg Rothschild (1896-1987) was born in Manhattan and married Walter N.

Rothschild.”

Source: Subseries 1.4 Warburg family records, 1899-1971
https://hollisarchives.lib.harvard.edu/repositories/11/archival_objects/63179

And these are the people who financed the most powerful non-Jewish (as far as we know)
industrialists and bankers like the Rockefellers and Morgans. They also created the Federal
(“Federal”) Reserve, the foreign owned central bank/banking system of the U.S. These are facts.
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Rothschild

“Nathan Mayer Rothschild (1777-1836) arrived in Britain in 1798. In 1799, he made his first
home in Manchester, the centre of the English cotton trade, and set up a cloth wholesale
business, part of his father's attempt to extend the family's trade in English printed textiles.
Encouraged by his success, Nathan then moved to London to establish himself as a banker,
establishing N M Rothschild at New Court, St Swithin's Lane in the City in 1809. By 1811 he
had wound up the Manchester wholesale business to concentrate on banking from his base at
New Court. ... With Nathan’s death in July 1836, the City of London lost a financier whose name
had become legendary in his own lifetime. However, N M Rothschild & Sons would continue to
prosper and grow at the centre of the London financial world. The business specialised in foreign
loan issues, bullion trading and the finance of public utility companies, notably foreign railways,
while maintaining in the first half of the nineteenth century a certain volume of merchant trade in

commodities such as quicksilver, tobacco, sugar and cotton.”
Source: Brief history of the London house, N M Rothschild & Sons
https://www.rothschildarchive.org/business/n_m_rothschild_and_sons_london/

“Banking and business histories have been remarkably silent regarding the relationship between
slavery and finance. Even at this relatively early point in American financial development there
was a deep reliance on British credit.? The need for credit was made manifest in the
development of the trade in cotton. George Green highlights how this credit drove economic
expansion and that often, this credit was employed productively.® Yet few histories of banking
firms discuss the cotton trade all that much... Histories of Barings and Rothschild likewise
devote little time to cotton or slavery, even though both houses were involved in the trade. Niall
Ferguson notes that the trade in cotton was important in ‘The rise of the Rothschilds: The Family
Firm as a Multinational’ yet gives less consideration to the impact of the cotton trade on the

development of the Rothschild houses in his two volume study The House of Rothschild.?*”
Source: The Common Thread: Slavery, Cotton and Atlantic Finance from the Louisiana Purchase to Reconstruction
https://dash.harvard.edu/handle/1/11745720

“The most that can be said in exoneration of a century of Rothschild authors is that only two of
them have had access to the family's huge and dispersed archives, and the remainder had little
alternative but to garner what they could from state papers and their predecessors' work.
Berghoffer had the advantage of the family's Frankfurt papers for his Mayer Amschel Rothschild
(1922), while Bertrand Gille had free access to the firm's depleted Parisian papers for the two
volumes of his La Maison Rothschild (1965). But these two sources have left a large gap in the
middle of the family saga, the early career of Nathan Meyer Rothschild (1777-1836). All
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authorities acknowledge the pre-eminence of N.M. Rothschild (or N.M. as he was usually
called), not only as the founder of the London house that still bears his name, but also as the
leader of the whole family enterprise in the vigorous second generation, when the family fortune
leaped from £80 000 in 1800 to £4 000 000 in 1825. Clearly it is this quarter of a century that
deserves the sharpest focus, and the English branch of the business that must now attract the

closest research.”
Source: XI The foundation of the English Rothschilds: N.M. Rothschild as a Textile Merchant 1799-1811
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1080/20780389.1993.10417215?journalCode=rehd19

The Rothschild’s wealth really took off to another level beginning with Nathan Mayer
Rothschild.

“Nathan M. Rothschild, who settled in London in 1798 at the age of 21 and became the head of
the family’s London banking firm, developed close financial ties in the United States. In January
1835 his firm, N. M. Rothschild & Sons, was named the financial agent of the State Department,
replacing Baring Brothers & Co., the London banking partnership whose commercial and

financial connection with America predated the Revolution.”
Source: A Financial Elite: New York's German-Jewish Investment Bankers
https://www.jstor.org/stable/23880424

“In the aftermath of the Slavery Abolition Act 1833 with the Slave Compensation Act 1837,
Rothschild and his business partner Moses Montefiore loaned the British Government £15
million (worth £1.51 billion in 2022) with interest which was subsequently paid off by the
British taxpayers (ending in 2015). This money was used to compensate the slave owners in the
British Empire after the trade had been abolished. According to the Legacies of British Slave-
Ownership at the University College London, Rothschild himself was a successful claimant
under the scheme. He was a beneficiary as mortgage holder to a plantation in the colony of
Antigua (present day Antigua and Barbuda) which included 158 enslaved Black people. He

received a £2,571 compensation payment, at the time (worth £259,582 in 2022)”
Source: Nathan Mayer Rothschild
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nathan_Mayer_Rothschild

There’s so much that can be said about that [ don’t even know where to start.

Non-Jewish
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Barings

“Barings Bank was a British merchant bank based in London, and one of England's oldest
merchant banks after Berenberg Bank, Barings' close collaborator and German representative. It
was founded in 1762 by Francis Baring, a British-born member of the German-British Baring
family of merchants and bankers. ... Barings Bank was founded in 1762 as the John and Francis
Baring Company by Sir Francis Baring, 1st Baronet, with his older brother John Baring as a
mostly silent partner. They were sons of John (né Johann) Baring, wool trader of Exeter, born in
Bremen, Germany. The company started business in offices off Cheapside in London, and within
a few years moved to larger quarters in Mincing Lane. Barings gradually diversified from wool
into many other commaodities, providing financial services for the rapid growth of international
trade, including the lucrative slave trade which enriched the family and the business considerably
and allowed significant expansion of the bank's activities and prestige. The success of Baring's
was greatly influenced by establishment of a network of corresponding houses. One of the most
valuable connections was Hope & Co., the most powerful merchant bank of Amsterdam, at that
time Europe's leading financial centre. Hope & Co played a major part in the finances of the
Dutch East India Company (VOC) and during the Seven Years' War (1756-1763) Thomas Hope
and his brother Adria profited from the Netherlands' neutral position. In 1774, Barings started
business in North America. By 1790, Barings had greatly expanded its resources, both through
Francis's efforts in London and by association with Hope & Co. In 1793, the increased business
necessitated a move to larger quarters in Devonshire Square. In 1796, the bank helped to finance
the purchase of about 1 million acres (4000 km2) of remote land that became part of the US state
of Maine. ... Barings helped to finance the United States government during the War of 1812. By
1818, Barings was called ‘the sixth great European power’, after England, France, Prussia,
Austria and Russia. A fall-off in business and some poor leadership in 1820s caused Barings to
cede its dominance in the City of London to the rival firm of N M Rothschild & Sons. Barings
remained a powerful firm, however, and in the 1830s the leadership of new American partner
Joshua Bates, together with Thomas Baring (1799-1873), son of Sir Thomas Baring, 2nd
Baronet, began a turnaround. Bates advocated a shift in Barings' efforts from Europe to the
Americas, believing that greater opportunity lay in the West. In 1832, a Barings office was
established in Liverpool specifically to capitalise on new North American opportunities. In 1843,

Barings became an exclusive agent to the US government.”
Source: Barings Bank
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Barings_Bank

Morgan

“Junius Morgan, father of J. Pierpont Morgan, arranged for his son to study the cotton trade in


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Barings_Bank

the South as the future industrialist and banker was beginning his business career. Morgan Sr., a
Massachusetts native who became a major banker and cotton broker in London, understood that
knowledge of the cotton trade was essential to prospering in the commercial world in the 1850’s.
Real estate and shipping magnate John Jacob Astor—one of America’s first millionaires and
namesake of the Waldorf-Astoria and whole neighborhoods in New York City—made his
fortune in furs and the China trade. But Astor’s ships, like those of many successful merchant-

shippers, also carried tons of cotton.”
Source: Complicity : how the North promoted, prolonged, and profited from slavery by Farrow, Anne - p. 5
https://archive.org/details/complicityhownor0000farr

“Although J. P. Morgan operated in a social milieu that confined Jews and Gentiles to largely
different social spheres, he nevertheless worked closely with Kuhn, Loeb & Co., which was led
by Jacob Schiff.”

Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - pp. 19-20
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

So, J. P. Morgan worked closely with the Seligmans and Kuhn, Loeb & Co.

Rockefeller

“It is notable that the Rockefeller Syndicate is far down on the list of the world's financial
structure. Why then is it of such importance? Although it is not the crucial factor in financial
decision in the Western Hemisphere, it is the actual working control mechanism of the American
colony. ... However much of the Rockefeller wealth may be attributed to old John D.'s rapacity
and ruthlessness, its origins are indubitably based in his initial financing from the National City
Bank of Cleveland, which was identified in Congressional reports as one of the three Rothschild
banks in the United States and by his later acceptance of the guidance of Jacob Schiff of Kuhn,
Loeb & Company, who had been born in the Rothschild house in Frankfort and was now the
principal Rothschild representative (but unknown as such to the public) in the United States.
With the seed money from the National City Bank of Cleveland, old John D. Rockefeller soon
laid claim to the title of ‘the most ruthless American’. ... These techniques convinced the
Rothschilds that they had found their man. They sent their personal representative, Jacob Schiff,
to Cleveland to help Rockefeller plan further expansion. At this time, the Rothschilds controlled
95% of all railroad mileage in the United States, through the J.P. Morgan Company and Kuhn
Loeb & Company according to official Department of Commerce figures for the year 1895. J.P.
Morgan mentions in his Who's Who listing that he controlled 50,000 miles of U.S. railways.
Schiff worked out an elaborate rebate deal for Rockefeller, through a dummy corporation, South
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Improvement Company. These rebates ensured that no other oil company could survive in
competition with the Rockefeller firm. The scheme was later exposed, but by that time
Rockefeller had achieved a virtual monopoly of the oil business in the United States. ... During
the next half century, John D. Rockefeller was routinely caricatured by socialist propagandists as
the epitome of the ruthless capitalist. At the same time, he was the principal financier of the
world Communist movement, through a firm called American International Company. Despite
the fact that the House of Rothschild had already achieved world control, the sound and fury was
directed exclusively against its two principal, representatives, John D. Rockefeller and J.P.
Morgan. One of the few revelations of the actual state of affairs appeared in Truth magazine,
December 16, 1912, which pointed out that ‘Mr. Schiff is head of the great private banking
house of Kuhn, Loeb & Company, which represents the Rothschild interests on this side of the
Atlantic. He is described as a financial strategist and has been for years the financial minister of
the great impersonal power known as Standard Oil.” ... Because of these concealed factors, it
was a relatively simple matter for the American public to accept the ‘fact’ that the Rockefellers
were the preeminent power in this country. This myth was actually clothed in the apparel of
power, the Rockefeller Oil Trust becoming the ‘military-industrial complex” which assumed
political control of the nation; the Rockefeller Medical Monopoly attained control of the health
care of the nation, and the Rockefeller Foundation, a web of affiliated tax exempt creations,
effectively controlled the religious and educational life of the nation. The myth succeeded in its

goal of camouflaging the hidden rulers, the Rothschilds.”
Source: Murder By Injection The Story of the Medical Conspiracy Against America by Eustace Mullins pp. 184-187
https://archive.org/details/MurderByInjection.EustaceMullins/mode/2up

Additional Information
The Federal Reserve Cartel: The Eight Families
https://www.globalresearch.ca/the-federal-reserve-cartel-the-eight-families/25080

“As if they weren't already well-connected enough, the world's two greatest dynasties joined
forces yesterday as Europe's Rothschild banking clan bought a stake in the Rockefeller group's
wealth and asset management business to gain a foothold in the US. ... Commenting on the deal,
Mr Rockefeller said: ‘Lord Rothschild and I have known each other for five decades. The
connection between our two families remains very strong. | am delighted to welcome Jacob and

RIT as shareholders.””

Source: Transatlantic alliance between Rothschilds and Rockefellers for wealth management
https://web.archive.org/web/20121230131603/https://www.independent.co.uk/news/business/news/transatlantic-alliance-
between-rothschilds-and-rockefellers-for-wealth-management-7805035.html
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The Banks

How do banks make money? You’ll see that answer below. But in order to make money they
need money. Most of the money being made in the economy and put into banks by customers
came from slave labor. So, if any industry profited from slavery it’s the banking industry. They
only had to sit back and receive the money.

“Any money a bank has on hand after it meets its reserve requirement is its excess reserves. It's
the excess reserves that create money. This is how it works (using a theoretical 20% reserve
requirement): You deposit $500 in YourBank. YourBank keeps $100 of it to meet its reserve
requirement, but lends $400 to Ms. Smith. She uses the money to buy a car. The Sav-U-Mor Car
Dealership deposits $400 in its account at TheirBank. TheirBank keeps $80 of it on reserve, but
can lend out the other $320 as its own excess reserves. When that money is lent out, it becomes a
deposit in a third institution, and the cycle continues. Thus, in this example, your original $500
becomes $1,220 on deposit in three different institutions. This phenomenon is called the
multiplier effect. ... Banks earn money in three ways:

« They make money from what they call the spread, or the difference between the interest
rate they pay for deposits and the interest rate they receive on the loans they make.

o They earn interest on the securities they hold.

e They earn fees for customer services, such as checking accounts, financial counseling,
loan servicing and the sales of other financial products (e.g., insurance and mutual
funds).”

Source: ABC's of Banking
https://portal.ct.gov/DOB/Consumer/Consumer-Education/ABCs-of-Banking---Banks-and-Our-Economy

“By 1800 each major U.S. port city had at least one commercial bank serving the local
mercantile community. As city banks proved themselves, banking spread into smaller cities and
towns and expanded their clientele. Although most banks specialized in mercantile lending,
others served artisans and farmers. In 1820 there were 327 commercial banks and several mutual
savings banks that promoted thrift among the poor. Thus, at the onset of the antebellum period
(defined here as the period between 1820 and 1860), urban residents were familiar with the
intermediary function of banks and used bank-supplied currencies (deposits and banknotes) for
most transactions. Table 1 reports the number of banks and the value of loans outstanding at year
end between 1820 and 1860. During the era, the number of banks increased from 327 to 1,562
and total loans increased from just over $55.1 million to $691.9 million. Bank-supplied credit in


https://portal.ct.gov/DOB/Consumer/Consumer-Education/ABCs-of-Banking---Banks-and-Our-Economy

the U.S. economy increased at a remarkable annual average rate of 6.3 percent. Growth in the
financial sector, then outpaced growth in aggregate economic activity. Nominal gross domestic

product increased an average annual rate of about 4.3 percent over the same interval.”
Source: Antebellum Banking in the United States
https://eh.net/encyclopedia/antebellum-banking-in-the-united-states/

The country banks issued their own notes that were usually only accepted in the area around the
issuing bank.

“So much went into the production of cotton, the expansion of land, and the maintenance of
enslaved workforces that by the 1850s, nearly every ounce of credit offered by southern, and
even northern, banks dealt directly with some aspect of the cotton market. Millions of dollars

changed hands.”
Source: 11. The Cotton Revolution
http://www.americanyawp.com/text/11-the-cotton-revolution/

Note: Banks weren’t the largest suppliers of all credit, but nearly every ounce of the credit they
offered....

“Thousands rushed into the Cotton Belt. Joseph Holt Ingraham, a writer and traveler from
Maine, called it a ‘mania.” William Henry Sparks, a lawyer living in Natchez, Mississippi,
remembered it as ‘a new El Dorado’ in which ‘fortunes were made in a day, without enterprise or
work.” The change was astonishing. ‘“Where yesterday the wilderness darkened over the land
with her wild forests,” he recalled, ‘to-day the cotton plantations whitened the earth.” Money
flowed from banks, many newly formed, on promises of ‘other-worldly’ profits and overnight
returns. Banks in New York City, Baltimore, Philadelphia, and even London offered lines of
credit to anyone looking to buy land in the Southwest. Some even sent their own agents to
purchase cheap land at auction for the express purpose of selling it, sometimes the very next day,

at double and triple the original value, a process known as speculation.”
Source: 11. The Cotton Revolution
http://www.americanyawp.com/text/11-the-cotton-revolution/

The North


https://eh.net/encyclopedia/antebellum-banking-in-the-united-states/
http://www.americanyawp.com/text/11-the-cotton-revolution/
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“There were a vast number of very obvious economic links between the slave plantations of the
southern states and enterprises as well as other institutions in the northern states: Just think of all
these New York and Boston merchants who traded in slave-grown goods. Or the textile
industrialists of New England who processed vast quantities of slave-grown cotton. Or the
bankers who financed the expansion of the plantation complex. ... Gerdeman: The book says
‘the relationship of slavery to American capitalism rightfully begins on the plantation.” Can you
explain how the North benefited from the slave-grown cotton in the South? And how did this
‘empire of cotton’ help create modern capitalism? Beckert: There are very many economic links
between the southern plantation complex and the development of American and global
capitalism, involving trade, industry, banking, insurance, shipping, and other industries. The
most prominent link developed around cotton. ... Northern merchants, moreover, organized the
shipment of cotton into global markets. And of course northern manufacturers, along with their
European counterparts, supplied plantations in the South with tools, textiles, and other goods that
were necessary to maintain the plantation regime. Plantation slavery, far from being a retrograde
system on its way to being ousted by industrial capitalism, saw a second flourishing in the 19th
century in the wake of the industrial revolution. And in the United States, cotton was central to

that ‘second slavery.’”

Source: The Clear Connection Between Slavery And American Capitalism
https://www.forbes.com/sites/hbsworkingknowledge/2017/05/03/the-clear-connection-between-slavery-and-american-
capitalism/#5ac1e4387bd3

“Northern capitalists sought investment outlets throughout the South. Machines for the earliest
southern textile mills were supplied on long credit terms by northern machine manufacturers.*?
But cotton constituted the most profitable component of the North-South connection. Between
the plantation and capital-rich northern banks stood the cotton factor, an agent in charge of
merchandising the cotton crop and financing its cultivation. Factors had banking affiliations
throughout the North and, indeed, the capitalist world. Without these connections, the plantation
system was doomed.** This was not lost upon northern and foreign capitalists who fed upon the

stream of slave-created cotton.”
Source: A Short History of American Capitalism by Meyer Weinberg - RISE OF THE CAPITALIST CLASS, 1790-1865
https://newhistory.org/CH05.htm

“For the half century before the Civil War, cotton was the backbone of the American economy. It
was king, and the North ruled the kingdom. From seed to cloth, Northern merchants, shippers,
and financial institutions, many based in New York, controlled nearly every aspect of cotton
production and trade. Only large banks, generally located in Manhattan, or in London, could
extend to plantation owners the credit they needed between planting and selling their crop. If a
farmer wanted to expand his operations during those boom decades, he required the deep pockets
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of Northern banks to lend him the money to buy additional equipment, as well as additional
labor. Slaves were usually bought on credit. The power of New York over key aspects of cotton
production was wide and deep, and involved many of the most solid and prestigious businessmen
of the day. ... Northerners’ influence and control infused nearly every phase of the trade. Most
ships that carried the cotton from plantation to port to market were built in the North, and they
were usually owned by Northerners. Their captains and crews were often New Englanders.
Northern companies sold the insurance to protect a farmer’s crop and all of his property,
including his slaves. And hundreds of Northern textile mills clothed those slaves, using what was

sometimes referred to as ‘negro cloth.””
Source: Complicity : how the North promoted, prolonged, and profited from slavery by Farrow, Anne - pp. 13-14
https://archive.org/details/complicityhownor0000farr

“Cotton blew up in the first half of the 1800s. It went from under a million pounds being
exported from the United States around 1800 to more than two billion pounds by 1860. A lot of
that was due to New York City's involvement. New York City banks funded the plantations that
spread all across the deep South. New York merchants supplied them everything from their
pianos, to their plowshares, to the clothing that they gave their slaves to wear. New York shipped
out a significant portion of the cotton that went up to New England and over to England to be
milled. Those ships, when they came back bringing other goods back with them, brought them
all into New York, where everybody came to buy them. So New York had this very long
relationship with slavery and the South, and everybody from the bankers and the businessmen, to
the dock workers and waiters in the hotel restaurants had something to do with the plantation

industry and depended on it as much as any plantation owner did.”

Source: New York City's Surprising Role Funding Slavery and Profiting Off the Civil War
https://www.vice.com/en_us/article/mvkgay/city-of-seditiion-new-york-citys-surprising-role-in-funding-slavery-and-the-civil-
war

“New York City, not just Southern cities, was essential to the cotton world. By 1860, New York
had become the capital of the South because of its dominant role in the cotton trade. New York
rose to its preeminent position as the commercial and financial center of America because of
cotton. It has been estimated that New York received forty percent of all cotton revenues since
the city supplied insurance, shipping, and financing services and New York merchants sold goods
to Southern planters. The trade with the South, which has been estimated at $200,000,000

annually, was an impressive sum at the time.”
Source: Cotton in a Global Economy: Mississippi (1800-1860)
https://www.mshistorynow.mdah.ms.gov/issue/cotton-in-a-global-economy-mississippi-1800-1860
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“Cotton was jokingly referred to as New York’s largest crop. The bankers, brokers, and shippers
were all in New York City. The largest storage warehouses for cotton were in Red Hook,

Brooklyn.”
Source: The History of King Cotton and the Red Hook Stores
https://redhookwaterfront.com/2015/07/the-history-of-king-cotton-and-the-red-hook-stores/

“By the eve of the Civil War, two-thirds of U.S. imports and one-third of exports went through
New York. This trade spurred the city’s booming industrial sector, as the amount of capital
invested in manufacturing rose by 60 percent over the course of the 1850s. This made New York
not only the most important port in the United States but also the most important manufacturing
center.¥” ... The South was the best customer of New York.” The system was fairly
straightforward. New York merchants would purchase cotton from the South, often to send via
ships to Liverpool. Those ships would return from Liverpool with British goods that the
merchants could then sell to Southern plantation owners, as well as to Northerners and
Westerners. In this way, many New York merchants connected Southern plantations to the
British economy, realizing economic benefits along the way.*

“In addition to its important role in the country’s mercantile industry, New York in the 1850s
was also rapidly becoming the nation’s financial center. The shift from mercantile activity
toward banking was natural, as one of the primary roles of merchants was to advance credit—
New York merchants were already providing credit for future crops and goods that were not yet
sold. Between 1845 and 1860, Northern banks increased in number from 301 to 567, and their
capital increased from $88 million to $193 million—all of this while the South’s banks
stagnated.*

“While some of this capital was domestic, much of New York banks’ capital came from
Britain and Europe. One of the city’s most important bankers, August Belmont, came to New
York in 1837 to represent the European banking House of Rothschild, which was Jewish owned.
S0, too, did George Cabot Ward come to represent London’s Baring Brothers, which was not
owned by Jews. These bankers provided their European firms with access to the American
market and affected the contours of French, German, and British investments in American
markets.*? While Belmont and Ward represented two of the more prominent firms, they were not
alone in connecting New York to international investment. Lazard Freres began in the dry goods
business in New Orleans and then San Francisco but soon transitioned into banking, focusing
largely on exchange services for the foreign currency market. This activity led them to open a
Parisian branch in 1852, and they developed close ties with the French government and the
Banque de Paris, en route to becoming one of the most important banking firms in Paris. They
also began arbitrage services, later opening a London office to access that financial market, and
organized a New York branch of the firm.*®

“... New York’s dependence on the cotton industry thus made it financially challenging for
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New York merchants to oppose slavery. One contemporary rhetorically asked what New York
would be without slavery and answered by suggesting that ‘the ships would rot at her docks;
grass would grow in Wall Street and Broadway, and the glory of New York, like that of Babylon
and Rome, would be numbered with the things of the past.” One merchant noted that slavery was
‘a great evil, a great wrong,” but its abolition would wreak economic disaster on New York.
‘There are millions upon millions of dollars due from Southerners to the merchants and
mechanics alone, the payment of which would be jeopardized by any rupture between the North
and the South.” Slavery, he maintained, was ‘a matter of business necessity.” Moreover, New
York bankers took slaves as collateral, so if slavery were abolished, financiers would have little
recourse if plantation owners defaulted. The vast majority of loans in East Feliciana Parish,
Louisiana, for example, utilized human slaves as collateral, so the end of slavery could spell

financial disaster for New York’s mercantile firms and banking houses.**”

Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen — pp. 53-55
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

New Amsterdam.

New York's History of Slavery
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=tOR9tbHnHnU

The Darkened History of Wall Street
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8QuKKJFgarg

“In the 1640s basic picket and plank fences denoted plots and residences in the colony. Later, on
behalf of the Dutch West India Company, Peter Stuyvesant, using both African slaves and white
colonists, collaborated with the city government in the construction of a more substantial
fortification, a strengthened 12-foot (4 m) wall. In 1685, surveyors laid out Wall Street along the
lines of the original stockade. The wall started at Pearl Street, which was the shoreline at that
time, crossing the Indian path Broadway and ending at the other shoreline (today's Trinity Place),
where it took a turn south and ran along the shore until it ended at the old fort. In these early
days, local merchants and traders would gather at disparate spots to buy and sell shares and
bonds, and over time divided themselves into two classes—auctioneers and dealers. Wall Street
was also the marketplace where owners could hire out their slaves by the day or week. The
rampart was removed in 1699 and a new City Hall built at Wall and Nassau in 1700. ... Slavery
was introduced to Manhattan in 1626, but it was not until December 13, 1711, that the New York
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City Common Council made Wall Street the city's first official slave market for the sale and
rental of enslaved Africans and Indians. The slave market operated from 1711 to 1762 at the
corner of Wall and Pearl Streets. It was a wooden structure with a roof and open sides, although
walls may have been added over the years and could hold approximately 50 men. The city
directly benefited from the sale of slaves by implementing taxes on every person who was
bought and sold there. In the late 18th century there was a buttonwood tree at the foot of Wall
Street under which traders and speculators would gather to trade securities. The benefit was
being in proximity to each other. In 1792, traders formalized their association with the
Buttonwood Agreement which was the origin of the New York Stock Exchange. The idea of the
agreement was to make the market more ‘structured’ and ‘without the manipulative auctions’,

with a commission structure.”
Source: Wall Street
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wall Street

“The Buttonwood Agreement was a written compact made in 1792 between 24 stockbrokers and
merchants on Wall Street in New York City. Rumored to have been created under a buttonwood
tree (hence the name), the agreement marked the origin of an official stock exchange for the

young United States and the beginnings of an American investment community that would come

to be known as ‘Wall Street.’”

Source: Buttonwood Agreement
https://www.investopedia.com/terms/b/buttonwoodagreement.asp

“In banking alone the Hebrews of New York City represent a capital of $100,000,000. As
early as 1792 the financial operations of the city were in part controlled by Hebrews. In that year
twenty-five brokers, in anticipation of the growth of the metropolis and foreseeing the necessity
of some joint action for the conduct of their business, held a meeting and solemnly promised and
pledged themselves ‘not to buy or sell for any person whatsoever any kind of Public Stock at a
less rate than one-quarter of one per cent, commission on the specie value, and that we will give
a preference to each other in our own negotiations.” Among the Hebrews who attached their
signatures to this agreement were Isaac M. Gomez, Bernhard Hess, Benjamin Seixas and
Ephraim Hart. Since that period the Hebrews have been among the most active and leading
members of the Stock Exchange, the outgrowth of the organization so quietly formed in 1792. In
1824 Jacob lIsaacs was elected Secretary of the Exchange, and continued in office until 1830. He
was succeeded by Bernard Hart in 1831 and Benjamin Hart in 1853. In 1851 the latter was
elected Vice-President. Bernard Hart had been a partner of Leonard Lispenard, with whom he
engaged in business in 1812 under the firm name of Lispenard & Hart. In 1806 he married
Rebecca, daughter of Benjamin Seixas, a prominent merchant of Hanover Square as far back as
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1780. ...

“Among the members of the Exchange from 1820 to 1830 were Joseph L. Joseph, S. I. Joseph
and M. Henriques (who constituted the firm of J. L. and S. I. Joseph & Co., agents of the
Rothschilds), M. J. Cohen, Seixas Nathan and Joseph Leon. These were followed some time
after by Joseph Brandon, whose son, Edward Brandon, has been a prominent member of the
Board of Governors for many years and Chairman of the Committee on Securities. The Open
Board of Stock Brokers, which was formed in 1861, and consolidated with the New York Stock
Exchange in 1869, had among its charter members George Henriques, Emanuel B. Hart, Charles
C. Allen, S. M. Schafer and Simon Schafer.

“In the New York Stock Exchange D. C. Hays, son of the famous High Constable, was for
many years Treasurer, and Jacob and Edward Hays, grandsons of the High Constable, have been
members. Among the more prominent Hebrew members of the present Stock Exchange are
Alexander Henriques, Harmon, Frederick and Julian Nathan, A. Wolff, of Kuhn, Loeb & Co.;
Theodore W. Myers, James Seligman, Julien L. Myers, Henry Budge, S. Neustadt, B. Mainzer,
of Hallgarten & Co.; Charles Minzesheimer, Leopold Cahn, S. Cantoni, Noah Content, H. H.
Hart, Alfred De Cordova, E. L. Frank, W. B. Bonn, Richard Limburger, of Ladenburg, Thalmann
& Co.; P. J. Goodheart, Albert Goodheart, B. Neumogen, H. P. Goldschmidt, Simon Wormser,
Isidor Wormser and Leo Speyer. Alexander Henrigues has been for many years Vice-Chairman
of the Exchange, and is one of the most efficient and popular officers who has ever presided over

that body.”

Source: The Hebrews in America. A SERIES OF HISTORICAL AND BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES. BY ISAAC MARKENS.
(published in 1888) — pp. 139-141

https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The_Hebrews_in_America_%28IA _hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf

Great Britain

“The benefits of slave-produced cotton extended to industries beyond the South. In the North and
Great Britain, cotton mills hummed, while the financial and shipping industries also saw gains.
Banks in New York and London provided capital to new and expanding plantations for
purchasing both land and slaves. As a result, slaves became a legal form of property that could
be used as collateral in business transactions or to pay off outstanding debt. Slaves comprised a
sizable portion of a planter’s property holdings, becoming a source of tax revenue for state and

local governments. A sort of sales tax was also levied on slave transactions.”
Source: How Slavery Became the Economic Engine of the South
https://www.history.com/news/slavery-profitable-southern-economy

“As you know, the cotton industry was crucial to the world-altering Industrial Revolution as it
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first unfolded in Great Britain and then spread from there to other parts of the world, including
the northern states of the Union. Until 1861, until the American Civil War, almost all cotton used
in industrial production was grown by enslaved workers in the southern parts of the United
States. Slavery thus played a very important role in supplying an essential raw material for
industrial production. Yet there were further links: British and later U.S. capital financed the
expansion of the slavery complex in the American South. Advancing credit was essential for

southern planters to be able to purchase land and labor.”
Source: The Clear Connection Between Slavery And American Capitalism

https://www.forbes.com/sites/hbsworkingknowledge/2017/05/03/the-clear-connection-between-slavery-and-american-
capitalism/#5ac1e4387hbd3

Here’s something from Vice, though laced with propaganda for an agenda like always:

How Your banks Made Money from Slavery
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Pz0zjHYYnOqg

“Southern cotton was a commodity produced for an international market and for this reason it
stitched together diverse communities and regions. This in turn made Manchester mule spinners
acutely aware of the political economy of the cotton South and involved them in a dialogue
around slavery. Likewise, with most operations being funded by British capital, the actions of the
Bank of England exerted financial pressure in the far reaches of the Mississippi valley, affecting
agents, factors, cotton planters and their slaves as well. They were all connected by a common
thread of cotton and the flows of capital across the Atlantic. Slave traders, purchasers of cotton in
New Orleans, or Natchez, planters and yeoman farmers, closely followed Cotton production in
Brazil, India and sales on the market in Liverpool. Throughout the antebellum period harvests
around the globe had pronounced effects on markets in Liverpool and the selling price of cotton
in New York as well as in port cities across the South. As planters spread further inland,
becoming pivotal presences in Alabama, Mississippi, Louisiana, Arkansas and Tennessee
consumption continued to match production, as Britain increasingly purchased more, and yet
more, cotton. Eventually a domestic trade in cotton opened with mills in Massachusetts, yet the
trade with Great Britain continued to be the most vital, and this trade shaped the development of
free-trade ideology in the South, and the business practices and fortunes of many larger Anglo-

American houses.”

Source: The Common Thread: Slavery, Cotton and Atlantic Finance from the Louisiana Purchase to Reconstruction
https://dash.harvard.edu/handle/1/11745720
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“Morris Ranger was one of the largest cotton operators in the world previous to his death in
1887. He came from Germany in 1855, settled in Kentucky, and in 1866 established himself in
the cotton business at Galveston, Tex. He opened a house in Liverpool, where he for several
years held the key to the cotton trade of the world. In 1881 he engineered a ‘deal’ which resulted
in a profit estimated in the millions. In 1883 he attempted to ‘bear’ the market but his
calculations proved erroneous, and he was forced to suspend with liabilities of $5,000,000. In

1885 he returned to New York where he resumed business on a smaller scale.”

Source: The Hebrews in America. A SERIES OF HISTORICAL AND BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES. BY ISAAC MARKENS.
(published in 1888) — p. 147

https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The_Hebrews_in_America_%28IA _hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf

“While the Liverpool docks managed to sustain business during the 1860s, many cotton brokers
actually profited from the Civil War. At that time, there were two types of brokers in Liverpool.
The first was the selling broker, who represented the importer. His job was to sell raw cotton to
the spinners in the cotton districts around the city of Manchester for the highest price. The
second was the buying broker, who represented the spinner. His job was to find, among all the
cotton coming into Liverpool, the precise grade desired by his spinner for the lowest price. All
the cotton that came into the port passed through selling and buying brokers. Sometimes they
even worked for the same firm. At the start of the Civil War, there were about one hundred and
forty cotton brokerages in Liverpool. This number increased with the opportunities offered by
the war. Most of these brokerages were hereditary businesses established in the late eighteenth
and early nineteenth centuries. Brokers had complete control over who could join their ranks,
and importers seldom changed their selling agent, or spinners their buying agent. There was no
price competition between them, since commission was fixed at 0.5% for each exchange. The
brokers took few financial risks (unless they chose to), since they seldom owned the cotton.
During the war, the quantity of raw cotton coming into Liverpool plummeted, which meant that
prices soared. At its lowest, the annual volume of cotton dropped by seventy percent. Prices, at
their highest, became five times higher than their pre-war norm. Throughout these fluctuations,
Liverpool’s brokers not only continued to receive their one percent combined commission on

this inflated value, they often received it several times over.”
Source: Profiting from War: Brokers and Speculators
https://ldhi.library.cofc.edu/exhibits/show/liverpools-abercromby-square/britain-and-us-civil-war/profiting-from-war

“Whitney is given credit for unleashing the explosion of American cotton production which was,
in turn, propelled by the seemingly insatiable appetite for cotton from the British cotton textile
mills. A quick glance at the numbers shows what happened. American cotton production soared
from 156,000 bales in 1800 to more than 4,000,000 bales in 1860 (a bale is a compressed bundle
of cotton weighing between 400 and 500 pounds). This astonishing increase in supply did not
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cause a long-term decrease in the price of cotton. The cotton boom, however, was the main cause
of the increased demand for enslaved labor — the number of enslaved individuals in America
grew from 700,000 in 1790 to 4,000,000 in 1860. Americans were well aware of the fact that the
economic value placed on an enslaved person generally correlated to the price of cotton. Thus,
the cotton economy controlled the destiny of enslaved Africans. By 1860, Great Britain, the
world’s most powerful country, had become the birthplace of the industrial revolution, and a
significant part of that nation’s industry was cotton textiles. Nearly 4,000,000 of Britain’s total
population of 21,000,000 were dependent on cotton textile manufacturing. Nearly forty percent
of Britain’s exports were cotton textiles. Seventy-five percent of the cotton that supplied
Britain’s cotton mills came from the American South, and the labor that produced that cotton

came from the enslaved.”

Source: Cotton in a Global Economy: Mississippi (1800-1860)
https://www.mshistorynow.mdah.ms.gov/issue/cotton-in-a-global-economy-mississippi-1800-1860
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Time and effort = money. So, these people funded the growth of the world with their time, effort
and lives; in literal blood, sweat and tears.
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The Civil War Era

Central Banks

Before America’s founding, the hidden powers in Europe had been causing wars, revolutions and
chaos in one country after another, forcing governments and monarchies to bow to their power.
The secret societies and groups they used to carry out some of these sinister deeds were the
forerunners to intelligence agencies like Britain’s MI6 and America’s CIA. By the early 1800s,
it was well known in Europe that bankers like the Rothschilds had a scheme they would use were
they would cause a war in order to get a nation to borrow money from them for the war. The end
result of this borrowing would be massive debt which made the borrower, the government or
monarchy, a slave to the lender — the Rothschilds. Another element to this scheme was that the
Rothschilds would fund both sides of the war, and drag it on for as long as they liked, and choose
the winner and loser themselves. And while things like this were taking place, central banks,
like the Bank of Amsterdam and the Bank of England, were being installed in one nation after
another.

“A central bank is a financial institution given privileged control over the production and
distribution of money and credit for a nation or a group of nations. ... The critical feature of a
central bank—distinguishing it from other banks—is its legal monopoly status, which gives it the

privilege to issue banknotes and cash.”
Source: What Is a Central Bank, and Does the U.S. Have One?
https://www.investopedia.com/terms/c/centralbank.asp

“A central bank, reserve bank, or monetary authority is an institution that manages the currency
and monetary policy of a country or monetary union, and oversees their commercial banking
system. In contrast to a commercial bank, a central bank possesses a monopoly on increasing the
monetary base. Most central banks also have supervisory and regulatory powers to ensure the
stability of member institutions, to prevent bank runs, and to discourage reckless or fraudulent
behavior by member banks. ...

“Functions of a central bank usually include:


https://www.investopedia.com/terms/c/centralbank.asp

o Monetary policy: by setting the official interest rate and controlling the money supply;

« Financial stability: acting as a government's banker and as the bankers' bank (“lender of
last resort");

« Reserve management: managing a country's foreign-exchange and gold reserves and
government bonds;

« Banking supervision: regulating and supervising the banking industry;

o Payments system: managing or supervising means of payments and inter-banking
clearing systems;

« Coins and notes issuance;

« Other functions of central banks may include economic research, statistical collection,
supervision of deposit guarantee schemes, advice to government in financial policy.”

Source: Central bank
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Central _bank

“The Bank of Amsterdam established in 1609 is considered to be the precursor to modern central
banks. The central bank of Sweden ("Sveriges Riksbank™ or simply "Riksbanken™) was founded
in Stockholm from the remains of the failed bank Stockholms Banco in 1664 and answered to the
parliament ("Riksdag of the Estates™). One role of the Swedish central bank was lending money
to the government. The establishment of the Bank of England, the model on which most modern
central banks have been based, was devised by Charles Montagu, 1st Earl of Halifax, in 1694,
following a proposal by the banker William Paterson three years earlier, which had not been

acted upon.”
Source: Central bank
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Central _bank

According to the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland:

“A central bank is the term used to describe the authority responsible for policies that affect a
country’s supply of money and credit. More specifically, a central bank uses its tools of
monetary policy—open market operations, discount window lending, changes in reserve
requirements—to affect short-term interest rates and the monetary base (currency held by the
public plus bank reserves) and to achieve important policy goals. ... The story of central banking
goes back at least to the seventeenth century, to the founding of the first institution recognized as
a central bank, the Swedish Riksbank. Established in 1668 as a joint stock bank, it was chartered
to lend the government funds and to act as a clearing house for commerce. A few decades later
(1694), the most famous central bank of the era, the Bank of England, was founded also as a
joint stock company to purchase government debt. Other central banks were set up later in
Europe for similar purposes, though some were established to deal with monetary disarray. For
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example, the Banque de France was established by Napoleon in 1800 to stabilize the currency
after the hyperinflation of paper money during the French Revolution, as well as to aid in
government finance. Early central banks issued private notes which served as currency, and they
often had a monopoly over such note issue. While these early central banks helped fund the
government’s debt, they were also private entities that engaged in banking activities. Because
they held the deposits of other banks, they came to serve as banks for bankers, facilitating
transactions between banks or providing other banking services. They became the repository for
most banks in the banking system because of their large reserves and extensive networks of
correspondent banks. These factors allowed them to become the lender of last resort in the face
of a financial crisis. In other words, they became willing to provide emergency cash to their
correspondents in times of financial distress. The Federal Reserve System belongs to a later
wave of central banks, which emerged at the turn of the twentieth century. These banks were
created primarily to consolidate the various instruments that people were using for currency and
to provide financial stability. Many also were created to manage the gold standard, to which
most countries adhered. The gold standard, which prevailed until 1914, meant that each country
defined its currency in terms of a fixed weight of gold. Central banks held large gold reserves to
ensure that their notes could be converted into gold, as was required by their charters. When their
reserves declined because of a balance of payments deficit or adverse domestic circumstances,
they would raise their discount rates (the interest rates at which they would lend money to the
other banks). Doing so would raise interest rates more generally, which in turn attracted foreign
investment, thereby bringing more gold into the country. Central banks adhered to the gold
standard’s rule of maintaining gold convertibility above all other considerations. Gold
convertibility served as the economy’s nominal anchor. That is, the amount of money banks
could supply was constrained by the value of the gold they held in reserve, and this in turn
determined the prevailing price level. And because the price level was tied to a known
commodity whose long-run value was determined by market forces, expectations about the

future price level were tied to it as well.”
Source: A Brief History of Central Banks
https://www.clevelandfed.org/publications/economic-commentary/2007/ec-20071201-a-brief-history-of-central-banks

And what’s interesting about the Bank of England is that prior to its acceptance someone had
been clipping England’s silver coins, debasing their currency and manipulating their economy.
For more info see: Old and New London: Volume 1 - The Bank of England - by Cassell, Petter &
Galpin — pp. 453-473: here or here.

Many years later the true purpose of most of these central banks was confirmed through
extensive research by Carroll Quigley.

“In addition to these pragmatic goals, the powers of financial capitalism had another far-reaching
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aim, nothing less than to create a world system of financial control in private hands able to
dominate the political system of each country and the economy of the world as a whole. This
system was to be controlled in a feudalist fashion by the central banks of the world acting in
concert, by secret agreements arrived at in frequent private meetings and conferences. The apex
of the system was to be the Bank for International Settlements in Basle, Switzerland, a private
bank owned and controlled by the world's central banks which were themselves private
corporations. Each central bank, in the hands of men like Montagu Norman of the Bank of
England, Benjamin Strong of the New York Federal Reserve Bank, Charles Rist of the Bank of
France, and Hjalmar Schacht of the Reichsbank, sought to dominate its government by its ability
to control Treasury loans, to manipulate foreign exchanges, to influence the level of economic
activity in the country, and to influence cooperative politicians by subsequent economic rewards

in the business world.”

Source: Tragedy & Hope by Carroll Quigley — p. 324
https://archive.org/details/tragedyhopehisto00quig/mode/2up

The BIS confirms:

“The BIS was created as an international organisation, and also as a bank. As a bank, its clients
are exclusively central banks and other international organisations. The BIS provides reserves
management services to its clients. Historically, it has also played a role in providing liquidity in

times of financial crisis.”
Source: A bank for central banks
https://www.bis.org/history/timeline/2-bank_for_cbs.htm

So, that’s what they were after, and that’s what they accomplished.

Some of the major players you read about in the last chapter along with other elitists created the
League of Nations.

“The predecessor of the United Nations was the League of Nations, established in 1919, after
World War |, under the Treaty of Versailles ‘to promote international cooperation and to achieve
peace and security.” As of 20 April 1946, the League of Nations ceased to exist, having handed
over all of its assets to the United Nations, and having granted the new UN Secretariat full

control of its Library and archives.”
Source: Predecessor: The League of Nations
https://www.un.org/en/about-us/history-of-the-un/predecessor

And through the UN’s World Bank and IMF, they used debt to enslave nations. For further
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information on this see the documentary Life and Debt here or here. Then take a look at
Confessions of an Economic Hit Man by John Perkins here and here. Along with the different
forms of lending done by commercial banks, these are the chains they use to shackle nations,
making them slaves through debt.

Their Power:

e Interest
e Loans/Credit

e Contracts

And they can manipulate the circumstances in your life to gain desired effects through these
things. If you’re a country, for example, they can easily manipulate your government or
economy in a way that renders you unable to pay them back on time or in the amount agreed
upon. Then you’ll fall victim to the consequences.

Now, when it comes to the United States and central banks, the first was a bank named The Bank
of North America. And after this, subsequent attempts were made to establish a permanent
central bank in the U.S. By this time in history the powers that be were not only experts at wars
and revolutions, they were also experts at infiltrating governments and installing their own men,
and at bribing existing government officials. They also used lies, deceit, blackmail, and fear.
And when their puppets said or did things on behalf of their hidden masters it looked like it was
only coming from that person, that government or that country. These sick practices continue to
this day, and it’s why so many foreign nations have a presence in Africa and are extracting their
resources. “Poor Africa ... their leaders are so corrupt.”

The banks were advertised as institutions that would save the country in times of need, and
safely regulate the economy and money supply. While this is something they could and did do,
often “saving” the country from situations the bankers deliberately caused themselves, they also
gave the bankers even more power, allowing them to more easily create conditions ranging from
prosperity to depression. And when one of these bank’s charters was not renewed, “somehow”
all hell would break loose.

“The Bank of North America was the first chartered bank in the United States, and served as the
country's first de facto central bank. Chartered by the Congress of the Confederation on May 26,
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1781, and opened in Philadelphia on January 7, 1782, it was based upon a plan presented by US
Superintendent of Finance Robert Morris on May 17, 1781, based on recommendations by
Revolutionary era figure Alexander Hamilton. Although Hamilton later noted its ‘essential’
contribution to the war effort, the Pennsylvania government objected to its privileges and
reincorporated it under state law, making it unsuitable as a national bank under the federal
Constitution. Instead Congress chartered a new bank, the First Bank of the United States, in

1791, while the Bank of North America continued as a private concern.”
Source: Bank of North America
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Bank _of North America

“As far back as 1705, three Jews (Joseph Bueno, Abraham Lucena, and Samuel Levy) had been
among sixty-six petitioners setting a standard of fair value for coins in the colony. Six more

(Samuel Judah, Hayman Levy, Jacob Moses, Jacob Myers, Jonas Phillips, and Isaac Seixas) had
urged tightening of the non-importation agreement in 1770. A decade later, several helped fund

New York’s first Lutheran church and the Bank of North America.”
Source: Jews and the American Slave Trade By Saul Friedman - p. 208
https://archive.org/details/jewsamericanslav0000frie

After the Bank of North America came:

e The First Bank of the United States (BUS) — 1791-1811

e The Second Bank of the United States — 1816-1836

Excerpts from The creature from Jekyll Island: a second look at the Federal Reserve by Griffin,
G. Edward

The blunt reality is that the Rothschild banking dynasty in Europe was the dominant force, both
financially and politically, in the formation of the Bank of the United States. Biographer, Derek
Wilson, explains:

Over the years since N.M. [Rothschild], the Manchester textile manufacturer, had
brought cotton from the Southern states, Rothschilds had developed heavy American
commitments. Nathan ... had made loans to various states of the Union, had been, for a
time, the official European banker for the US government and was a pledged supporter of
the Bank of the United States.
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Gustavus Myers, in his History of the Great American Fortunes, is more pointed. He says:

Under the surface, the Rothschilds long had a powerful influence in dictating
American financial laws. The law records show that they were the power in the old Bank
of the United States.

The Rothschilds, therefore, were not merely investors nor just an important power. They were
the power behind the Bank of the United States!

Source: The creature from Jekyll Island : a second look at the Federal Reserve by Griffin, G. Edward - p. 331
https://archive.org/details/isbn_9780912986166/

“The First Bank had been established in 1791 under the administration of President George
Washington. Congress opted not to renew its twenty-year charter in 1811, and as a result, the
First Bank closed its doors. After economic hardships, monetary pressures, and problems
financing the federal government during the War of 1812, Congress and the president granted a
new twenty-year charter to the Second Bank of the United States in 1816. The Second Bank was

in many ways a revived and reorganized version of the First Bank.”
Source: Nicholas Biddle
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nicholas_Biddle

“Andrew Jackson (March 15, 1767 — June 8, 1845) was an American lawyer, planter, general,
and statesman who served as the seventh president of the United States from 1829 to 1837.
Before being elected to the presidency, he gained fame as a general in the U.S. Army and served
in both houses of the U.S. Congress. ... A few weeks after his inauguration, Jackson started
looking into how he could replace the Second Bank of the United States. The Bank had been
chartered by President Madison in 1816 to restore the United States economy after the War of
1812. Monroe had appointed Nicholas Biddle as the Bank's executive. The Bank was a
repository for the country's public monies which also serviced the national debt; it was formed as
a for-profit entity that looked after the concerns of its shareholders. ... In his First Annual
Address in December 1829, Jackson openly challenged the Bank by questioning its
constitutionality and the soundness of its money. Jackson's supporters further alleged that it gave
preferential loans to speculators and merchants over artisans and farmers, that it used its money
to bribe congressmen and the press, and that it had ties with foreign creditors. Biddle responded
to Jackson's challenge in early 1830 by using the Bank's vast financial holding to ensure the
Bank's reputation, and his supporters argued that the Bank was the key to prosperity and stable
commerce. By the time of the 1832 election, Biddle had spent over $250,000, (equivalent to
$6,785,800 in 2021), in printing pamphlets, lobbying for pro-Bank legislation, hiring agents and
giving loans to editors and congressmen.”
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Source: Andrew Jackson
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Andrew_Jackson

“Nicholas Biddle (January 8, 1786 — February 27, 1844) was an American financier who served
as the third and last president of the Second Bank of the United States (chartered 1816-1836). ...
After Biddle moved to the Pennsylvania State Senate, he lobbied for the rechartering of the First
Bank of the United States. It was on this subject that he made his first major speech, which
attracted general attention at the time, and was warmly commended by Chief Justice John

Marshall and other leaders of public opinion.”
Source: Nicholas Biddle
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nicholas Biddle

Note: Nicholas Biddle was only acting as a manager/supervisor.

Excerpts from Andrew Jackson and the course of American democracy, 1833-1845 by Remini,
Robert Vincent

Nicholas Biddle could hardly be expected to stand by without murmuring while Jackson
slaughtered his Bank. He had already begun to take defensive actions during the summer on
hearing rumors that the deposits might be removed. He slowly reduced the Bank’s lending
operation. Then, when the signal was finally given to begin the shift to deposit banking, Biddle
counterattacked. He called a special meeting of his board of directors on October 7 and won their
approval for a general curtailment of loans throughout the entire banking system. He swelled the
Bank’s liquid assets by refusing to increase discounts and restricting discounted bills of
exchange to eighty days. Western branches of the BUS were ordered to purchase bills of
exchange payable solely in eastern cities. This would apply an economic squeeze that could
shatter western growth and expansion. It marked the beginning of a bone-crushing struggle
between a powerful financier and a determined and equally powerful politician. Biddle
understood what he was about. He knew what he needed to achieve to save his Bank. If he
brought enough pressure and agony to the money market, only then could he force the President
to restore the deposits. He almost gloated. “This worthy President thinks that because he has
scalped Indians and imprisoned Judges, he is to have his way with the Bank. He is mistaken.

The Bank was interlaced with the economy. To damage it of necessity would devastate the
financial and business community. ... The business community erupted with howls of complaints
and condemned the order as endangering the entire economic fabric of the community. ... If the
outcry from the business community was severe—and it grew in severity over the next several
months when the full effects of Biddle’s curtailment policy took hold—the political outcry was

517
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even worse. ... His bold expansion of executive power foreshadowed the onslaught of despotism,
cried the opposition press, and the end of republican government.?? A political battle soon raged
around the country over the constitutional powers of the executive, and even Democrats were
devastated by the reaction it provoked.? ...

One important reason for popular acceptance of Jackson’s decision to remove the deposits was
the fact that in his hands (whether he did it consciously or not) the Bank issue became infused
with moral overtones, namely, the struggle of honest working people against evil aristocrats who
were scheming to rob and exploit them. It must be remembered that whenever Jackson spoke to
the people about the Bank they always heard these overtones—and responded just as he expected
them to do.

Over the next several months Nicholas Biddle intensified the political and economic havoc
that enveloped the country. He steadily increased the pressure of his squeeze. His curtailment of
loans came with such suddenness and severity that it pitched the country into an economic panic
reminiscent of the breakdown of 1819. He wanted to bring about a depression—and the deeper
the better. “The ties of party allegiance can only be broken,” he declared, “by the actual
conviction of existing distress in the community.” And such distress, of course, would eventually
put everything to rights. “Nothing but the evidence of suffering abroad will produce any effect in
Congress.... Our only safety is in pursuing a steady course of firm restriction—and I have no
doubt that such a course will ultimately lead to restoration of the currency and the recharter of
the Bank.”*!

This murderous squeeze caught the country at a particularly vulnerable moment. Business was
enjoying rapid expansion; it craved credit; and it sorely needed an abundant supply of cash. In
addition, the tariff duties came due at this time. Business required a steady increase in the credit
and currency supply but, instead, faced near-total constriction of both. Thus, a general prosperity
suddenly sustained a crippling setback. ... To make matters worse, the Bank demanded payments
of all imbalances by state banks in specie, and to meet this demand the state banks were required
to collect from their borrowers and curtail their own loans. It was a spiraling recession that
threatened to carry the nation into a major economic collapse.

By the opening of the new Congress in December, 1833, a general cry of distress was
beginning to be heard around the country. Newspapers reported the alarm and angry letters from
manufacturers inundated congressmen. The merchants of New York, declared James A.
Hamilton, “are really in very great distress nay even to the verge of General Bankruptcy.” Biddle
was delighted to hear such doleful news, especially from his New York correspondents, who told
him that “things are getting worse and worse here.” Every major city sustained a number of

business losses; wages and prices sagged; workingmen were discharged.
Source: Andrew Jackson and the course of American democracy, 1833-1845 by Remini, Robert Vincent - pp. 108-111
https://archive.org/details/andrewjacksoncou0000remi/mode/2up

*Biddle to William Appleton, January 27, 1834, Biddle Papers, Library of Congress (1, 2)

And this led to the Panic of 1837. FYI: This is real history that has been kept from the American
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people. And just know that like with all conspiracies, the information you get from mainstream
sources on this subject will be shaped to intentionally deceive you. But thanks to Biddle’s big
mouth, and actions that followed, we have words and actions from the head of a central bank that
match what the people were saying about the Bank and bankers back then, and would later say
about the “Federal” Reserve.

The charter of the bank wasn’t renewed and the bank’s reign came to an end in 1836, but Biddle
was still making big moves.

“The Pennsylvania state legislature breathed new life into Biddle’s career in February 1836 when
it granted a state charter to replace the expiring federal charter. The newly-minted United States
Bank of Pennsylvania (BUSP) shared much in common with its predecessor, including a $35
million capital stock and much of the same personnel, but tended to take on riskier purchases as
an investment bank would. Soon, Biddle turned southward for business opportunities. Aided by a
new provision in the BUSP charter he helped secure, Biddle purchased a controlling interest in
the Merchants Bank of New Orleans. Census records show that many of the agents he placed in
charge of this southern bank were slave owners, including Thomas Urquhart, John Minturn, and
James Erwin. ... It was, thus, after Jackson’s presidency when Biddle became a major player and
investor in a region whose economy was characterized by complex networks of credit founded
on the mutually reinforcing commaodification of land, cotton, and slaves. Looking closely at the
Bank’s financial transactions shows how Biddle functioned within—and extracted profits from
— the South’s slave economy, both because slave labor gave value to the cotton in which Biddle
speculated and because slave mortgages were an important component of the southern banking
system that Biddle propped up. He bailed out several state banks in the South through an
injection of Bank funds. He purchased large quantities of shares in plantation banks that were
capitalized by slave mortgages, European investors, and lands previously occupied by Native
Americans. The Union Bank of Mississippi, the Planters’ Bank of Natchez, and the Union Bank
of Florida were examples. ... In February 1841, the BUSP permanently shut its doors. Amid the
heightened economic uncertainty, debtors rushed to pay creditors, who had obligations of their
own. Slaves, as highly liquid assets, were bought and sold quickly to obtain cash. The BUSP,
which had lent to several of the South’s plantation banks, became one of the largest owners of

plantations, slaves, and slave-grown products in Mississippi as it sought to wind up its affairs.”
Source: Nicholas Biddle by Stephen Campbell
https://economic-historian.com/2021/02/nicholas-biddle/

Andrew Jackson was actually able to win and keep the Bank at bay, but this battle against the
Bank is what Abraham Lincoln inherited. “I have two great enemies, the Southern Army in front
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of me and the bankers in the rear. Of the two, the one at my rear is my greatest foe.” — Abraham
Lincoln

For a much more detailed account of the history of these banks in the U.S. see: The House of
Rothschild — Money Prophets here or here, and then watch The Money Masters here or here.

The Truth About the War

“With origins in the question of states' rights, the issue of secession was argued in many forums
and advocated from time to time in both the North and South in the decades after adopting the
Constitution and before the American Civil War. Historian Maury Klein described the
contemporary debate: ‘Was the Republic a unified nation in which the individual states had
merged their sovereign rights and identities forever, or was it a federation of sovereign states
joined together for specific purposes from which they could withdraw at any time?’ He observed
that ‘the case can be made that no result of the [American Civil] war was more important than
the destruction, once and for all...of the idea of secession’. ... It is not often remembered today, as
it was the South that actually attempted to secede. However, there was a movement to have the
North secede, thereby escaping the slave power that dominated the Federal government.
Tensions began to rise between North and South by the late 1830s over slavery and related
issues. Many Northerners, especially New Englanders, saw themselves as political victims of
conspiracies between slave owners and Western expansionists. They viewed the movements to
annex Texas and to make war on Mexico as fomented by slaveholders bent on dominating
Western expansion and thereby the national destiny. New England abolitionist Benjamin Lundy
argued that the annexation of Texas was ‘a long-premeditated crusade—set on foot by
slaveholders, land speculators, etc., with the view of reestablishing, extending, and perpetuating

the system of slavery and the slave trade’”
Source: Secession in the United States
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Secession_in_the United States

“From the 1840s to 1860, Southerners frequently threatened to withdraw from the Union as
antislavery sentiment in the North grew stronger. The Compromise of 1850 eased some of the
sectional strife, but the problem of permitting or prohibiting slavery in the western territories


https://odysee.com/@InfoJunkies:6/RothschildDynastyMoney'sProphets:0
https://www.brighteon.com/3fa92d2e-0e51-4ed4-99b4-367ff8175f21
https://www.brighteon.com/new-search?query=The%20Money%20Masters&page=1&uploaded=all&duration=all&sort=best_result&type=all&quality=all&channelPage=1
https://odysee.com/$/search?q=The%20Money%20Masters
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Secession_in_the_United_States

continued to inflame opinion on both sides throughout the 1850s. The Republican Party formed
during this decade around the idea that the territories should remain free; i.e., slaveholding
should not be permitted in them. Southerners vowed that the election of a Republican president
in 1860 would make secession a certainty. When the Democratic Party disintegrated in 1860

over the slavery-extension question, Lincoln was elected as the first Republican president.”
Source: secession
https://www.britannica.com/topic/secession

Excerpt from Complicity : how the North promoted, prolonged, and profited from slavery by
Farrow, Anne

THE UNION COMMITTEE OF FIFTEEN HAD CALLED A MEETING AT THE offices of
Richard Lathers, a prominent cotton merchant. ... This was hardly the first time that the worried
business community had met to discuss strategies to smooth relations between North and South.
But the Pine Street meeting on December 15, 1860, may have represented the group at its most
panicky. South Carolina’s probable secession vote was days away, and there was talk of
Alabama following South Carolina. After that, who knew? The South had to be persuaded to stay
in the Union until some kind of compromise in the slavery controversy could be found.

The very spine of nineteenth-century money and power attended the meeting. These
“merchant princes” included:

e A.T. Stewart, a cotton merchant who opened the nation’s first department store, called
“the marble palace,” on Broadway. Stewart was thought to be the wealthiest man in New
York.

e Moses Taylor, sugar importer, banker, and coal and railroad magnate, whose extensive
enterprises made him, for nearly half a century, one of the most influential businessmen
in New York City.

e Abiel Abbot Low, whose A. A. Low & Brothers was the most important firm in the new
and booming China trade.

e William B. Astor, son of fur and real estate mogul John Jacob Astor, the nation’s first
millionaire.

e Wall Street banker August Belmont, American agent for the Rothschilds of Germany,
who married the daughter of Commodore Perry and whose passion for horse breeding led
to the creation of the Belmont Stakes.

Source: Complicity : how the North promoted, prolonged, and profited from slavery by Farrow, Anne - pp. 10-11
https://archive.org/details/complicityhownor0000farr
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“Shortly after the election of Abraham Lincoln in 1860, but before his inauguration in March
1861, the United States changed dramatically. The political and economic tensions between the
northern industrialized states and the southern agrarian states reached a fever pitch as states
previously leaning towards secession held formal votes and left the Union in order to form what
would become the Confederate States of America On December 20, 1860, the state of South
Carolina became the first state to secede from the Union.... Six months later the states of
Mississippi (January 9, 1861), Florida (January 10, 1861), Alabama (January 11, 1861), Georgia
(January 19, 1861), Louisiana (January 26, 1861), Texas (February 1, 1861), Virginia (April 17,
1861), Arkansas (May 6, 1861), North Carolina (May 20, 1861), and Tennessee (June 8, 1861)

formally seceded from the United States.”
Source: Secession, United States
https://www.loc.gov/rr/geogmap/placesinhistory/archive/2011/20110314 _secession.html

Status of the states, 1861 =
. Slave states that
seceded before April 15,
1861

. Slave states that
seceded after April 15, 1861
[ ] Border Southern states
that permitted slavery but did
not secede (both KY and MO
had dual competing
Confederate and Unionist
governments)

. Union states that banned
slavery

D Territories

“The American Civil War (April 12, 1861 — May 26, 1865; also known by other names) was a
civil war in the United States. It was fought between the Union (*'the North™) and the


https://www.loc.gov/rr/geogmap/placesinhistory/archive/2011/20110314_secession.html

Confederacy ("the South™), the latter formed by states that had seceded. ... On April 14, just five
days after Lee's surrender, Lincoln was assassinated. As a practical matter, the war ended with
the May 26 surrender of the Department of the Trans-Mississippi but the conclusion of the
American Civil War lacks a clear and precise historical end date. Confederate ground forces
continued surrendering past the May 26 surrender date until June 23. By the end of the war,
much of the South's infrastructure was destroyed, especially its railroads. The Confederacy
collapsed, slavery was abolished, and four million enslaved black people were freed. The war-
torn nation then entered the Reconstruction era in an attempt to rebuild the country, bring the

former Confederate states back into the United States, and grant civil rights to freed slaves.”
Source: American Civil War
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/American_Civil_War

“The global chess match between Lincoln on the one side and England and France on the other
was closely watched by the other leaders of Europe. One of the most candid observers at that
time was the Chancellor of Germany, Otto von Bismarck. Since Bismarck was, himself, deeply
obligated to the power of international finance, his observations are doubly revealing. He said:

The division of the United States into federations of equal force was decided long before
the Civil War by the high financial powers of Europe. These bankers were afraid that the
United States, if they remained in one block and as one nation, would attain economic
and financial independence, which would upset their financial domination over Europe
and the world. Of course, in the "inner circle” of Finance, the voice of the Rothschilds
prevailed. They saw an opportunity for prodigious booty if they could substitute two
feeble democracies, burdened with debt to the financiers... in place of a vigorous
Republic sufficient unto herself. Therefore, they sent their emissaries into the field to
exploit the question of slavery and to drive a wedge between the two parts of the Union....
The rupture between the North and the South became inevitable; the masters of European
finance employed all their forces to bring it about and to turn it to their advantage.”

Source: The creature from Jekyll Island : a second look at the Federal Reserve by Griffin, G. Edward — p. 374
https://archive.org/details/isbn_9780912986166/page/374/mode/2up

“Part of the purpose of this book, then, is to supplant Rothschild mythology with historical
reality, in so far as that can be ‘reconstructed’ from surviving documentary evidence. ... The
most important letters in the London archive®** are the so-called “private letters® (the X1/109
series) between the partners in the bank, which cover the years from 1812 to 1898. ... There is a
substantial and unexplained gap in the XI1/109 series for the period 1854 to 1860, and after 1879
it trails off (though the letters from Paris in the series X1/101 continue up until 1914). More


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/American_Civil_War
https://archive.org/details/isbn_9780912986166/page/374/mode/2up

seriously, nearly all the copies of the outgoing letters from the London partners (in so far as these
were made at all) were destroyed at the orders of successive senior partners. ... We therefore
have precious few letters by Nathan compared with the thousands from his brothers which have
survived.... It should also be said that relatively few non-business letters by the partners were
preserved; indeed, the first Lord Rothschild insisted that all his private correspondence be burnt
after his death (though I have been able to find a number of letters in the archives of politicians

to whom he wrote).”
Source: The house of Rothschild by Ferguson, Niall -Vol 1 - pp. 27-28
https://archive.org/details/houseofrothschil00ferg/mode/2up

Excerpts from The creature from Jekyll Island : a second look at the Federal Reserve by Griffin,
G. Edward

To get people to fight, it was decided to convert the war into an anti-slavery crusade. The
Emancipation Proclamation was primarily a move on the part of Lincoln to fan the dying embers
of support for the "Rich-man's war and the poor-man's fight,"” as it was commonly called in the
North. Furthermore, it was not an amendment to the Constitution nor even an act of Congress. It
was issued, totally without constitutional authority, as the solitary order of Lincoln himself,
acting as Commander-in-Chief of the armed forces.

Preservation of the Union was not enough to fire men's enthusiasm for war. Only the higher
issue of freedom could do that. To make the cause of freedom synonymous with the cause of
the North, there was no alternative but to officially declare against slavery. After having
emphasized over and over again that slavery was not the reason for war, Lincoln later explained
why he changed his course and issued the Proclamation:

Things had gone from bad to worse until | felt we had reached the end of our rope on the
plan we were pursuing; that we had about played our last card, and must change our
tactics or lose the game. | now determined upon the adoption of the emancipation policy.!

The rhetoric of the Proclamation was superb, but the concept left a great deal to be desired.
Bruce Catton, writing in the American Heritage Pictorial History of the Civil War explains:

Technically, the proclamation was almost absurd. It proclaimed freedom for all slaves in
precisely those areas where the United States could not make its authority effective, and
allowed slavery to continue in slave states which remained under Federal control.... But
in the end it changed the whole character of the war and, more than any other single
thing, doomed the Confederacy to defeat.

The Proclamation had a profound impact on the European powers as well. As long as the war
had been viewed as an attempt on the part of a government to put down rebellion, there was


https://archive.org/details/houseofrothschil00ferg/mode/2up

nothing sacred about it, and there was no stigma attached to helping either side. But now that
freedom was the apparent issue, no government in Europe—Ileast of all England and France—
dared to anger its own subjects by taking sides against a country that was trying to destroy
slavery. After 1862 the chance that Europe would militarily intervene on behalf of the
Confederacy rapidly faded to zero. On the propaganda front, the South had been maneuvered

into a position which could not be defended in the modern world.

Source: The creature from Jekyll Island : a second look at the Federal Reserve by Griffin, G. Edward - pp. 379-380
https://archive.org/details/isbn_9780912986166
https://ia902609.us.archive.org/14/items/pdfy--PorilNL6fKm2SnY/The%20Creature%20From%20Jekyl1%20Island.pdf

FYT: Just because someone opposed slavery or the war doesn’t mean they weren’t racist against
blacks. And you should also question, and even search for the answer to, why they opposed
these things. For instance, you could have people in the North opposing slavery only as
propaganda to hype-up the North to go to war against the South for hidden intentions.

“And there was Rabbi Bernhard Felsenthal of Chicago, a strong Zionist and abolitionist who
actively campaigned for the Republican candidate John C. Fremont in 1856, declaring that Jews
were at the heart and soul of the anti-slavery movement. If anyone,’ said Felsenthal, ‘it is the
Jew, above all others who should have the most burning and irreconcilable hatred for the

“peculiar institution” of the South.””

Source: Jews and the American Slave Trade By Saul Friedman — p. 213
https://archive.org/details/jewsamericanslav0000frie

From the Jewish-apologist book Jews and the American Slave Trade:

“Shunned by gentiles, Jews organized their own businesses and their own banks. They made
money and returned it to the system which had enable them to prosper. During the panics of
1837 and 1857 funds from the Rothschilds bolstered faltering debtor banks in the United States.
Far from secretly undermining the Union cause, as is alleged in Secret Relationship, Northern
Jewish bankers publicly embraced what they perceived as the cause of freedom. As Nathan
Ausubel writes: ‘The Union Army and the United States Government leaned heavily on the
Jewish bankers for financial assistance during the war. Especially distinguished in its devotion
and helpfulness to the Northern cause was the house of Seligman which was run by seven
liberal-minded brothers.”” When withdrawals by Southern banks in the months before the
outbreak of hostilities had depleted the U.S. Treasury, both the Seligmans and Belmont
volunteered gifts to stabilize the government. The house of Seligman supplied the first uniforms


https://archive.org/details/isbn_9780912986166
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worn by Union troops. And when Lincoln’s government floated a bond issue (bearing 7.3

percent interest) in 1862, the first major purchase of Union bonds, so necessary to sustain the war
effort, came from the Frankfurt branch of the House of Seligman, which brought $200 million.”
After the war, the firm continued to serve as fiscal agent for the government and the Navy

Department.”
Source: Jews and the American Slave Trade By Saul Friedman - p. 210
https://archive.org/details/jewsamericanslav0000frie

Excerpts from The creature from Jekyll Island : a second look at the Federal Reserve by Griffin,
G. Edward

How to get people to pay for the war was handled in a similar fashion. If the Constitution
could be pushed aside on the issue of personal rights and of war itself, it certainly would not
stand in the way of mere funding.

It has often been said that truth is the first casualty in war. To which we should add: money is
the second. During the fiscal year ending in 1861, expenses of the federal government had been
$67 million. After the first year of armed conflict they were $475 million and, by 1865, had risen
to one billion, three-hundred million dollars. On the income side of the ledger, taxes covered
only about eleven per cent of that figure. By the end of the war, the deficit had risen to $2.61
billion. That money had to come from somewhere.

The nation's first experiment with the income tax was tried at this time; another violation of
the Constitution. By today's standards it was a small bite, but it was still an extremely unpopular
measure, and Congress knew that any additional taxes would further fan the flames of rebellion.

Previously, the traditional source of funding in time of war had been the banks which simply
created money under the pretense of loaning it. But that method had been severely hampered by
the demise of the Bank of the United States. The state banks were anxious to step into that role;
but, by this time, most of them had already defaulted in their promise to pay in specie and were
in no position to manufacture further money, at least not money which the public would be
willing to accept.

American banks may have been unable to supply adequate loans, but the Rothschild
consortium in Britain was both able and willing. It was during this time that the Rothschilds were
consolidating their new industrial holdings in the United States through their agent, August
Belmont. ...

Belmont had placed large amounts of Rothschild money into the bonds of state-sponsored
banks in the South. Those bonds, of course, had fallen in value to practically zero. As the war
shifted in favor of the North, however, he began to buy up as many additional bonds as he could,
paying but a few pennies on each dollar of face value. It was his plan to have the Union force the
Southern states at the end of the war to honor all of their pre-war debt obligations — in full. That,
of course, would have been a source of gigantic speculative profits to the Rothschilds.


https://archive.org/details/jewsamericanslav0000frie

Meanwhile, on the northern side of the Mason-Dixon Line, Belmont became the chief agent for
the sale of Union bonds in England and France. It was rumored that, when Belmont called on
President Lincoln and personally offered Rothschild money at 27 V2 per cent interest, he was
rudely thrown out of the office. The story is doubtful, but it represents a larger truth. Profiting
from war and placing money on both sides of the conflict were exactly the kind of maneuvers for
which the Rothschilds had become famous throughout Europe and were now practicing in

America.”

Source: The creature from Jekyll Island : a second look at the Federal Reserve by Griffin, G. Edward - pp. 382-383
https://archive.org/details/isbn_9780912986166
https://ia902609.us.archive.org/14/items/pdfy--PorilNL6fKm2SnY/The%20Creature%20From%20Jekyl1%20Island.pdf

Excerpts from The creature from Jekyll Island : a second look at the Federal Reserve by Griffin,
G. Edward

By the time of the War Between the States, however, all pretense at constitutionality had been
dropped. In 1862, Congress authorized the Treasury to print $150 million worth of bills of credit
and put them into circulation as money to pay for its expenses. They were declared as legal
tender for all private debts but could not be used for government duties or taxes. The notes were
printed with green ink and, thus, became immortalized as "greenbacks.” VVoters were assured that
this was a one-time emergency measure, a promise that was soon broken. By the end of the war,
a total of $432 million in greenbacks had been issued.

The pragmatic mood in Washington was that a constitution is nice to have in times of peace,
but an unaffordable luxury in war. Salmon P. Chase, for example, as Secretary of the Treasury,
strongly endorsed the greenbacks which were issued under his direction. They were, in his
words, an "indispensable necessity.” Eight years later, as Chief Justice of the Supreme Court, he
declared that they were unconstitutional. Had he changed his mind? Not at all. When he
endorsed them, the nation was at war. When he declared them unconstitutional, it was at peace. It
was merely another example of the universal trait of all governments in time of war. That trait
was presented in a previous section as the premise of the Rothschild Formula: "The sanctity of
its laws, the prosperity of its citizens, and the solvency of its treasury will be quickly sacrificed
by any government in its primal act of self-survival."

The pressure for issuance of greenbacks originated in Congress, but Lincoln was an
enthusiastic supporter. ... It is apparent that Lincoln had undergone a change of heart regarding
banks. Early in his political career, he had been a friend of the banking industry and an advocate
of easy credit. As a member of the Whig political party in the 1830s—before becoming a
Republican in his campaign for the Presidency—he had been a supporter of Biddle's Second
Bank of the United States.* During his famous debates with Senator Stephen Douglas, one of the
points of contention between the two was that Lincoln defended the Bank and advocated its
reestablishment. Furthermore, after becoming President, he took the initiative in requesting


https://archive.org/details/isbn_9780912986166
https://ia902609.us.archive.org/14/items/pdfy--Pori1NL6fKm2SnY/The%20Creature%20From%20Jekyll%20Island.pdf

Congress to reestablish central banking.? ...

One thing, however, is clear. Regardless of Lincoln's personal views on money, the
greenbacks were not pleasing to the bankers who were thereby denied their customary override
on government debt. They were anxious to have this federal fiat money replaced by bank fiat
money. For that to be possible, it would be necessary to create a whole new monetary system
with government bonds used as backing for the issuance of bank notes; in other words, a return
to central banking. And that was precisely what Secretary Chase was preparing to establish.

In 1862, the basic position of the bankers was outlined in a memo, called The Hazard
Circular, prepared by an American agent of British financiers and circulated among the country's
wealthy businessmen. It said:

The great debt that capitalists will see to it is made out of the war must be used as a
means to control the volume of money. To accomplish this the bonds must be used as a
banking basis. We are now waiting for the Secretary of the Treasury to make this
recommendation to Congress. It will not do to allow the greenback, as it is called, to
circulate as money any length of time, as we cannot control that. But we can control the
bonds and through them the bank issues.*

On February 25, 1863, Congress passed the National Banking Act (with major amendments
the following year) which established a new system of nationally-chartered banks. The structure
was similar to the Bank of the United States with the exception that, instead of one central bank
with power to influence the activities of the others, there were now to be many national banks
with control over all of them coming from Washington. Most banking legislation is sold to the
public under the attractive label of reform. The National Banking Act was one of the rare
exceptions. It was promoted fairly honestly as a wartime emergency scheme to raise money for
military expenses by creating a market for government bonds and then transforming those bonds
into circulating money. Here is how it worked:

When a national bank purchased government bonds, it did not hold on to them. It
turned them back to the Treasury which exchanged them for an equal amount of “United
States Bank Notes” with the bank's name engraved on them. The government declared
these to be legal tender for taxes and duties, and that status caused them to be generally
accepted by the public as money. The bank's net cost for these bonds was zero, because
they got their money back immediately. Technically, the bank still owned the bonds and
collected interest on them, but they also had the use of an equal amount of newly created
bank-note money which also could be loaned out at interest. When all the smoke and
mirrors were moved away, it was merely a variation on the ancient scheme. The
monetary and political scientists had simply converted government debt into money, and
the bankers were collecting a substantial fee at both ends for their service.

The one shortcoming of the system, at least from the point of view of the manipulators, was
that, even though the bank notes were widely circulated, they were not classified as “lawful”



money. In other words, they were not legal tender for all debts, just for taxes and duties.
Precious-metal coins and greenbacks were still the country's official money. It was not until the
arrival of the Federal Reserve System fifty years later that government debt in the form of bank
notes would be mandated as the nation's official money for all transactions — under penalty of
law. ...

As usual, the average citizen did not understand that the newly created money represented a
hidden tax which he would soon have to pay in the form of higher prices. VVoters in the Northern
states certainly would not have tolerated an open and honest tax increase of that magnitude. Even
in the South where the cause was perceived as one of self defense, it is possible that they would
not have done so had they known in advance the true dimension of the assessment. But
especially in the North, because they did not understand the secret science of money, Americans
not only paid the hidden tax but applauded Congress for creating it. On June 25, 1863, exactly
four months after the National Bank Act was signed into law, a confidential communique was
sent from the Rothschild investment house in London to an associate banking firm in New York.
It contained an amazingly frank and boastful summary:

The few who understand the system [bank loans earning interest and also serving as
money] will either be so interested in its profits or so dependent upon its favors that there
will be no opposition from that class while, on the other hand, the great body of people,
mentally incapable of comprehending,... will bear its burdens without complaint.

Source: The creature from Jekyll Island : a second look at the Federal Reserve by Griffin, G. Edward — pp. 384-389
https://archive.org/details/isbn_9780912986166
https://ia902609.us.archive.org/14/items/pdfy--PorilNL6fKm2SnY/The%20Creature%20From%20Jekyl1%20Island.pdf

There’s no way to tell if Abraham Lincoln was in on it or not, but what happened during his
presidency was not an accident.

National Bank Act
http://archive.today/EcO9mB

Brief History of IRS
http://archive.today/HPfOF

The banking system was set up, along with a currency and income tax. And in 1913 the
permanent central banking system was established.

According to the Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis:
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“Since the Civil War, Southern and Western farmers had clamored for currency reform, blaming
the National Banking System and at times ‘an international banking conspiracy’ for both
seasonal and long-range deflation in farm prices. Periodic panics, especially the shocking
‘bankers' panic’ of 1907, convinced many other Americans--bankers, politicians and the public

generally--that some kind of reform was essential.”
Source: Chapter One - The Nineteenth Century Background
https://www.stlouisfed.org/a-foregone-conclusion/chapter-one

“The seven men who attended the secret meeting on Jekyl Island, where the Federal Reserve
System was conceived, represented an estimated one-fourth of the total wealth of the entire
world. They were:

1. Nelson W. Aldrich, Republican ‘whip’ in the Senate, Chairman of the National Monetary
Commission, father-in-law to John D. Rockefeller, Jr.;

2. Henry P. Davison, Sr. Partner of J.P. Morgan Company

3. Charles D. Norton, Pres. of 1st National Bank of New Yark

4. A. Piatt Andrew, Assistant Secretary of the Treasury;

5. Frank A. Vanderlip, President of the National City Bank of New York, representing William
Rockefeller.

6. Benjamin Strong, head of J.P. Morgan's Bankers Trust Company, later to become head of the
System;

7. Paul M. Warburg, a partner in Kuhn, Loeb & Company, representing the Rothschilds and

Warburgs in Europe”

Source: The creature from Jekyll Island : a second look at the Federal Reserve by Griffin, G. Edward - p. 37
https://archive.org/details/isbn_9780912986166
https://ia902609.us.archive.org/14/items/pdfy--PorilNL6fKm2SnY/The%20Creature%20From%20Jekyl1%20l1sland. pdf

Additional Information

The History Of The House Of Rothschild By Andrew Hitchcock
http://archive.today/VQF2T

The Secrets of the Federal Reserve by Eustace Mullins
https://archive.org/details/TheSecretsOfTheFederalReserve 294

Secrets of the Federal Reserve : the London Connection by Mullins, Eustace
https://archive.org/details/secretsoffederal00mull/mode/2up
https://archive.org/details/eustache-mullins-the-secrets-of-the-federal-reserve-the-london-connection/mode/2up
The creature from Jekyll Island : a second look at the Federal Reserve by Griffin, G. Edward
https://archive.org/details/isbn_9780912986166

Secrets of the temple : how the Federal Reserve runs the country by Greider, William
https://archive.org/details/secretsoftemple000grei/mode/2up
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But the civil war in the Black community between Crips and Bloods being spread by people in
the shadows and Hollywood is just a conspiracy theory.

War-time Cotton

“Due to the escalation and the volatility of prices, much of the wartime cotton was bought and
sold by speculators who gambled when the prices would rise or fall. Speculators then sold to
other speculators. The same consignment of cotton could be bought and sold up to ten times

before it reached the hands of a spinner.”
Source: Profiting from War: Brokers and Speculators
https://Idhi.library.cofc.edu/exhibits/show/liverpools-abercromby-square/britain-and-us-civil-war/profiting-from-war

“Slavery, America’s ‘original sin,” was at long last under assault. Abraham Lincoln was elected
to the presidency in late 1860, and following a chorus of debates over slavery and states’ rights,
one Southern state after another seceded from the Union and joined together to form the
Confederate States of America. But Lincoln had no intention of allowing a split in the Union,
and when Confederates attacked Fort Sumter in the harbor of Charleston, South Carolina, in
April 1861, what followed was a bloody civil war that left at least three-quarters of a million
people dead.! For merchants in the Gulf South, the war years were defined by two distinct
economic periods. The first period began when the Union imposed a blockade on the
Confederacy in the early stages of the war. This was an existential threat to merchants, directly
threatening their livelihoods. Heretofore reliant on the very trade networks that the blockade
targeted, merchants were now forced to find creative ways to survive. Some made a profit in
clandestine smuggling and blockade-running, as global demand for cotton created abundant
opportunities for this activity. Other merchants conducted business throughout the Confederacy,
buying and selling whatever they could, wherever they could. Some survived by stockpiling
cotton, others invested wisely and avoided Confederate currency, and some provisioned troops.
In addition to these elements, a healthy dose of good fortune was often a prerequisite for survival

as well.”

Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - p. 71
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up
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“The order, known as General Orders No. 11, expelled Jews from the territory under Gen.
Ulysses S. Grant’s command — which stretched from Northern Mississippi to Cairo, Illinois and
from the Mississippi River to the Tennessee River. It was issued on Dec. 17, 1862, and came
directly from Grant’s headquarters in Holly Springs, Miss. It read:

The Jews, as a class violating every regulation of trade established by the Treasury
Department and also department orders, are hereby expelled from the department within
twenty-four hours from the receipt of this order. Post commanders will see that all of this
class of people be furnished passes and required to leave, and any one returning after
such notification will be arrested and held in confinement until an opportunity occurs of
sending them out as prisoners, unless furnished with permit from headquarters. No passes
will be given these people to visit headquarters for the purpose of making personal
application for trade permits.

By order of Maj. Gen. U.S. Grant

JNO. A. RAWLINS, Assistant Adjutant-General

“For months, Grant had been worried about cotton speculators and smugglers in the area under
his command. His department seethed with blockade runners who traded ‘upon the miseries of
the country.” Canny traders could turn $100 into $2,000 by smuggling Southern cotton to
Northern ports and quinine, bacon and finished goods in the other direction. If he could just put a
stop to the smuggling, Grant thought, he could put real economic pressure on the South and the
terrible war would end sooner. Such trade was, of course, illegal, and some of the smugglers that
Grant’s men caught were Jews. America’s Jewish population had ballooned from about 15,000
in 1840 to some 150,000 in 1860, mostly immigrants from Central Europe. Large numbers of
those immigrants became peddlers and merchants, marked by their European accents and foreign
ways. Some of them, during the war, peddled contraband. Lots of non-Jews, including many
soldiers, likewise pursued fast money by trading in illicit goods. ... Notwithstanding his private
opinions and actions, Grant understood that he still had publicly to uphold official government
policy, which permitted those loyal to the Union to trade in cotton. All that changed on Dec. 17.
Grant, according to multiple sources, received a visit that day from his 68-year-old father, Jesse
R. Grant, accompanied by members [0f] the prominent Mack family of Cincinnati, significant
Jewish clothing manufacturers. Harman, Henry and Simon Mack, as part of an ingenious
scheme, had formed a secret partnership with the elder Grant. In return for 25 percent of their
profits, he agreed to accompany them to his son’s Mississippi headquarters, act as their agent to
‘procure a permit for them to purchase cotton’ and help them secure the means to transport that
cotton to New York. According to the journalist Sylvanus Cadwallader, a witness, General Grant
waxed indignant at his father’s crass attempt to profit from his son’s military status, and raged at
the Jewish traders who ‘entrapped his old father into such an unworthy undertaking.” He refused
to provide the permit, sent the Macks homeward ‘on the first train for the north’ and, in high



dudgeon, immediately issued the order expelling ‘Jews as a class’ from his territory.”
Source: General Grant’s Infamous Order By Jonathan D. Sarna
https://archive.nytimes.com/opinionator.blogs.nytimes.com/2012/12/19/general-grants-infamous-order/

General Grant sent the following letter to the Assistant Secretary of War:

HDQES. THIRTEENTH A. C., DEPT. OF THE TENN,,
Oxford, Miss., December 17, 1862.

HON. C. P. Wolcott, Assistant Secretary of War, Washington, D. C.:

I have long since believed that in spite of all vigilance that can be infused into post
commanders, the specie regulations of the Treasury Department have been violated, and that
mostly by Jews and other unprincipled traders. So well satisfied have | been of this that I
instructed the commanding officer at Columbus to refuse all permits to Jews to come South, and
| have frequently had them expelled from the department, but they come in with their carpet-
sacks in spite of all that can be done to prevent it. The Jews seem to be a privileged class that can
travel everywhere. They will land at any wood-yard on the river and make their way through the
country. If not permitted to buy cotton themselves they will act as agents for someone else, who
will be at a military post with a Treasury permit to receive cotton and pay for it in Treasury notes
which the Jew will buy up at an agreed rate, paying gold.

There is but one way that | know of to reach this case; that is, for the Government to buy all
the cotton at a fixed rate and send it to Cairo, Saint Louis, or some other point to be sold. Then
all traders (they are a curse to the army) might be expelled.

U. S. GRANT,

Major-General
Source: GENERAL ULYSSES S. GEANT AND THE JEWS
https://www.jstor.org/stable/43057794?seq=1#metadata_info_tab_contents

“Like most of the behind-the-scenes operators in this book, Col. Edward Mandell House had the
obligatory ‘London connection’. Originally a Dutch family, ‘Huis’, his ancestors had lived in
England for three hundred years, after which his father settled in Texas, where he made a fortune
in blockade- running during the Civil War, shipping cotton and other contraband to his British
connections, including the Rothschilds, and bringing back supplies for the beleaguered Texans.
The senior House, not trusting the volatile Texas situation, prudently deposited all his profits
from his blockade-running in gold with Baring banking house in London*. At the close of the
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Civil War, he was one of the wealthiest men in Texas.”
Source: The Secrets of the Federal Reserve by Eustace Mullins - p. 37
https://archive.org/details/TheSecretsOfTheFederalReserve 294

A Jewish Confederacy

As Vladimir Lenin (who was Jewish) would later say, “The best way to control the opposition is
to lead it ourselves.”

“Yet many of us in the South, including those descended from old Jewish families of the
Confederacy, still struggle to expose the truth about why Southern soldiers fought, the courage
they showed against overwhelming odds, and the sacrifices they made. The history of the
Confederacy is full of long-forgotten tales of Jewish heroes, warriors, and leaders. This is a story
little known today, absent from history books and an embarrassment to liberal Jewish historians
ashamed of the prominent role played by Jews in supporting, defending and fighting for the
Confederacy. ... The best known of the Moses family Confederates was Major Raphael Moses, a
fifth-generation South Carolinian who in 1849 moved to Columbus, Georgia, where he was a
lawyer and planter. Moses, whose three sons also fought for the South, ended up attending the
last meeting and carrying out the last order of the Confederate government — delivering the last
of the Confederate treasury, $40,000 in gold and silver bullion, to help feed and supply defeated
Confederate soldiers in the Augusta hospital or straggling home after the war. ... A Jewish
Tourist’s Guide to the U.S. notes that ‘So many Charleston Jews enlisted in the service of the
Confederacy that from 1862 to 1866, Beth Elo[k]im found it impossible to obtain a quorum of
trustees and could hold no regular meetings.’ ... Throughout the South, Jews assumed prominent
roles in the Confederate government and armed forces; as Robert Rosen puts it in his
authoritative book The Jewish Confederates, they ‘were used to being treated as equals’ (an
acceptance they had enjoyed for a century and a half). The Confederacy’s secretary of war and
later state was Judah P. Benjamin — the so-called brains of the Confederacy — and the top
Confederate commander, General Robert E. Lee, was known for showing great respect to his
Jewish soldiers. Charleston in the early 1800s had more Jews than any other city in North
America, and many were respected citizens, office holders, and successful entrepreneurs. The
city was commonly referred to as ‘our Jerusalem,” and Myer Moses, my maternal family
patriarch, in 1806 called his hometown ‘this land of milk and honey.” ... In contrast to the South,
the North was a hotbed of anti-Jewish bigotry. Much of the political and military leadership of
the Union government was composed of men — including such leading figures as generals
Ulysses S. Grant, William Tecumseh Sherman and Benjamin (“Beast”) Butler — who disliked
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Jews, openly expressed their feelings, and persecuted Jews when they had the occasion to do so.”
Source: Southern Jews and the Confederacy
https://www.jewishpress.com/indepth/front-page/southern-jews-and-the-confederacy/2010/07/28/

And don’t forget, much of the money in the North, and therefore the country, was in Jewish
hands.

“When South Carolina seceded from the Union after the election of Abraham Lincoln in 1860,
Charleston Jews supported the new Confederate States of America. Over 180 Charleston Jews
fought for the Confederacy. Successful broker Benjamin Mordecai gave $10,000 to South
Carolina to help support the Southern war effort. He also established a charity to help take care
of soldiers’ families. Mordecai’s strong support for the Confederate cause eventually cost him;
he invested so heavily in Confederate bonds that he was financially ruined by the end of the

war.”
Source: Encyclopedia of Southern Jewish Communities - Charleston, South Carolina
https://www.isjl.org/south-carolina-charleston-encyclopedia.html

“The loyalties of American Jews during the Civil War were divided along geographic lines, with
the contribution of Southern Jews to the Confederate war effort deemed crucial enough for
General Robert E. Lee to turn down requests for High Holiday furloughs. As Lee put it in a letter
to a Virgina rabbi, ‘Neither you nor any other member of the Jewish congregation would wish to
jeopardize a cause you have so much at heart by the withdrawal, even for a season, of a portion
of its defenders.” The dominant Jewish personality of the Confederate South was Judah P.
Benjamin, described by one writer as the ‘most important American-Jewish diplomat before
Henry Kissinger, the most eminent lawyer before Brandeis, the leading figure in martial affairs
before Hyman Rickover, the greatest American-Jewish orator, and the most influential Jew ever

to take a seat in the United States Senate.””

Source: A Tribe Apart: Jews of the American South - The Jewish Press
https://freerepublic.com/focus/fr/1401699/posts

“Montgomery, Ala., was founded by a Jew, Abraham Mordecai. New Orleans, Charleston,
Vicksburg and Savannah had large Jewish populations. David Emanuel was elected governor of
Georgia in 1801. The highest social and governmental circles of the Confederacy included
aristocratic Jewish clans, such as the Cohens and the de Leons of South Carolina; and a
Louisiana lawyer, Judah Philip Benjamin, was successively attorney general, secretary of war,
and secretary of state of the Confederate States of America. He was often called ‘the brains of
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the Confederacy.’ Florida had a significant Jewish presence, too: David Levy Yulee, our first
U.S. senator, was Jewish. ... In 1818, Moses Levy and his wife Hannah Abendanone acquired
60,000 acres in East Florida. Their bright, ambitious son David went on to become a member of
Florida's 1838 constitutional convention, arguing against the division of the peninsula into two
states. In 1845, when Florida finally joined the Union, he went to Washington, the first Jewish
senator in American history. By the beginning of the Civil War, he had carved out a 5,000 acre
plantation, Margarita, on the Homosassa River, and built the first cross-state railroad from Cedar
Key to Fernandina. Yulee, like most of the other rich, accomplished Jews in the overwhelmingly
Christian South, was both an insider and an outsider. He was a slaveholder, married to a
Christian (the daughter of Gov. Wycliffe of Kentucky) but did not hide his dual Jewish and Arab
heritage: He chose to add the ‘Yulee,” an anglicized version of his Moorish grandfather's name.
He supported the Confederate government but resisted allowing it to use his railroad for the war
effort. Like many of his Christian colleagues, he lost his plantation when Union troops burned it.
In 1865, he was accused of helping Jefferson Davis escape and was imprisoned at Fort Pulaski,

Ga. One of those Yulee supposedly helped was Judah Benjamin.”
Source: Jews' Southern roots run deep
https://www.tampabay.com/archive/1999/12/06/jews-southern-roots-run-deep/

“David Levy Yulee (born David Levy; June 12, 1810 — October 10, 1886) was an American
politician and attorney. Born on the island of St. Thomas, then under British control, he was of
Sephardic Jewish ancestry: His father was a Sephardi from Morocco, and his mother, also of
Sephardi descent, was born in Sint Eustatius and raised in St. Thomas. The family moved to
Florida when he was a child, and he grew up there on their extensive lands. He later served as
Florida's territorial delegate to Congress. Yulee was the first person of Jewish ancestry to be
elected and serve as a United States senator, serving 1845-1851 and again 1855-1861. He
founded the Florida Railroad Company and served as president of several other companies,
earning the nickname of ‘Father of Florida Railroads.” In 2000 he was recognized as a ‘Great
Floridian’ by the state. ... Yulee was in favor of slavery and the secession of Florida. After the
Civil War, he was imprisoned at Fort Pulaski for nine months for having aided the escape of
Confederate President Jefferson Davis. After being pardoned by President Andrew Johnson, he
returned to his Florida railroad interests and other business ventures. ... Moses Levy was a first
cousin and business partner of Phillip Benjamin, the father of Judah P. Benjamin, the future
Secretary of State of the Confederate States of America. ... In 1851 Yulee founded a 5,000-acre
(20 km2) sugar cane plantation, built and maintained by enslaved African Americans, along the
Homosassa River. ... In 1855 Yulee was again elected by the Florida legislature to the Senate. He
served until resigning in 1861 in order to support the Confederacy at the start of the American
Civil War. Yulee's inflammatory pro-slavery rhetoric in the Senate earned him the nickname
‘Florida Fire-Eater’. Although he frequently denied that he favored secession, Yulee and his
colleague, Senator Stephen Mallory, jointly requested from the War Department a statement of
munitions and equipment in Florida forts on January 2, 1860. He wrote to a friend in the state,
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‘the immediately important thing to be done is the occupation of the forts and arsenals in
Florida.” During the Civil War, Yulee did not seek any elective or appointive office. There is
some dispute as to his wartime legislative service as some sources state that he served in the
Confederate Congress and others do not. After the war, Yulee was imprisoned in Fort Pulaski for

nine months for treason, specifically for aiding in the 1865 escape of Jefferson Davis.””
Source: David Levy Yulee
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/David_Levy Yulee

“Benjamin was born a British subject on St. Croix in 1811 to a family of Sephardic Jews. In
1822, the Benjamin family immigrated to America, seeking their fortune in what was then the
nation’s most Jewish city: Charleston, S.C. ... On the Senate floor, Benjamin flourished as an
orator of the Southern cause, a master of the secessionist rhetoric that cast slaveholders as
victims. After Abraham Lincoln’s election in 1860, with the war looming, Benjamin intoned in a
speech to his Northern Senate colleagues, ‘You may carry desolation into our peaceful land, and
with torch and fire you may set our cities in flames ... but you never can subjugate us; you never
can convert the free sons of the soil into vassals, paying tribute to your power; and you never,
never can degrade them to the level of an inferior and servile race. Never! Never!” When an
abolitionist senator, citing the Book of Exodus, called Benjamin out for the signal hypocrisy of a
Jew shilling for slavery—he tarred him as ‘an Israelite with Egyptian principles’—Benjamin

cried anti-Semitism and refused to answer the charge on the merits.”

Source: The Forgotten Confederate Jew
https://www.tabletmag.com/sections/arts-letters/articles/the-forgotten-confederate-jew

THE COMPLETE HISTORY of the US $2 bill
http://archive.today/gLxnA

Confederate $2 bill
https://teva.contentdm.oclc.org/digital/collection/p15138coll6/id/4364/

Original 1862 Confederate Civil War $500 Savings Bond With Judah Benjamin Image
https://web.archive.org/web/20221219204247/https://shilohrelics.com/cqi-
bin/display Item.asp?129891

“After secession, Benjamin became attorney general of the Confederacy and Davis’s lieutenant
and chief ‘implementer,” writing thousands of memoranda and orders and many speeches for the
president. At times he seemed almost to be Davis and even was able to convene the cabinet and
ask for a vote to give him constitutional authority to act in the president’s name, seeking
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presidential approval later.”
Source: Benjamin, Judah P. 1811-1884
https://www.encyclopedia.com/social-sciences/applied-and-social-sciences-magazines/benjamin-judah-p

“When Confederate President Jefferson Davis -- with trusted advisor (handler) Judah Benjamin
always at his side -- orders an attack on Federal Fort Sumter in South Carolina on April 12, 1861,
the war is on. When Union troops mobilize, most good southerners, some previously reluctant,
now patriotically rally to ‘the cause.” When we think of the Confederacy, the big names that
automatically come to mind are the three legends carved into the side of Georgia's Stone
Mountain: President Jefferson Davis, General Robert E. Lee and General Stonewall Jackson.
Significant figures for sure, but in the grander power-scheme of things, these men, including
President Davis himself, were outranked by Judah P. Benjamin. The fact that Benjamin's name
is so relatively unknown is, ironically, testament to the awesome ‘behind-the-scenes’ power that
he wielded. Unfortunately for the South (and the North), Benjamin's influence served neither of
the Americas. His loyalties were elsewhere - in Rothschild's London. Louisiana Senator John
Slidell is not Jewish (at least not outwardly), but his family ties to elite European Jewry run
deep. Slidell’s daughter is engaged to Baron Frederic Erlanger, a French Jewish financier
based in Paris. Erlanger helps to fund the Confederacy, gouging the South with usurious interest
rates and fees too! (here) Erlanger's financing of the South, as confirmed even by contemporary
New York Times articles, is directly linked to the House of Rothschild. (here) Papa-in-Law
Slidell would later serve the Confederate States government as foreign diplomat to Great Britain
and French Emperor Napoleon I11. Now the niece of the influential Senator is married to
northern financier August Belmont (Schonberg)- Rothschild’s Jewish boy and Democrat Party
boss supporting the Northern cause, at least at first. After the war, ‘Confederate’ Slidell will
make his ‘Unionist’ nephew-in-law Belmont his political protégé. Also hooked up with Senator
Slidell in this tangled North-South-Rothschild knot of financial-political intrigue is fellow
Louisiana Senator Benjamin. The Jewish big-shot will go on to become the Confederacy’s
Attorney General, then Secretary of War, and then Secretary of State. Through the shadowy fog
of 150 years of elapsed history, we can now discern a pattern of divide & conquer, balance of

power conspiratorial actions being played upon both sides - and with tragic consequences.”
Source: Based on Excerpts from Planet Rothschild / Volume 1
https://www.realhistorychan.com/judah-benjamin.html

“Two leading B’nai B’rith-allied figures would serve as exemplars of the strategy for
permanently dividing the Union. One was Judah P. Benjamin, and the other August Belmont.
Benjamin, who lived from 1811 to 1884, was born in the British West Indies to Sephardic Jewish
parents who moved to Charleston, South Carolina in 1827. He was inducted into the Charleston
Hebrew Orphan Aid Society, one of the precursors of the B’nai B’rith. After attending Yale
College in New Haven, Connecticut, he was forced to drop out under a cloud of scandal.
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Benjamin surfaced in New Orleans where he quickly won the patronage of John Slidell. Slidell, a
United States Senator who would later play a pivotal role in the Confederacy and sponsored the
career of August Belmont who married Slidell’s daughter. With Slidell’s assistance, Benjamin
became a prominent attorney, even serving for a period of time as the United States Attorney for
New Orleans. ... In 1852, Benjamin was elected United States Senator, a post he retained until
the outbreak of the Civil War in 1861 when he resigned to serve the Confederacy. Benjamin was
the first Confederate Attorney General. He later served as Secretary of War and Secretary of
State, ultimately running the Confederate Secret Service on behalf of Confederate President
Jefferson Davis. And as the Mossad does today, he used innocent Jews in the North who were
opposed to the dissolution of the Union to furnish information to the intelligence arm of the
Confederacy. Judah Benjamin escaped to England following the defeat of the Confederate
secessionist plot. It was Benjamin’s Confederate Secret Service which organized and supervised
such figures in the assassination of Abraham Lincoln as John Wilkes Booth and his accomplice
John Serrat. Benjamin was charged with sedition for the Lincoln assassination, although he was

never brought to trial due to his protected status in England.”

Source: The Ugly Truth About The ADL - pp. 13-14
https://highlanderjuan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/EIR-The-Ugly-Truth-About-The-ADL-1993.pdf

According to Jewish Virtual Library:

“During the Civil War, many Southerners blamed Benjamin for their nation’s misfortunes. The
Confederacy lacked the men and materials to match the Union armies and, when President Davis
decided in 1862 to let Roanoke Island fall into Union hands without mounting a defense rather
than letting the Union know the true weakness of Southern forces, Benjamin, as Davis’s loyal
Secretary of War, took the blame and resigned. Anti-Semitism was a fact of life in the North and
South during the Civil War years, and Benjamin was falsely defamed as having weakened the
Confederacy by transferring its funds to personal bank accounts in Europe. ... When John Wilkes
Booth assassinated Lincoln in 1865, Davis and Benjamin were suspected of having plotted the
event and, as the martyred Lincoln was compared to Christ in the Northern press, Benjamin was
pilloried as Judas. When the South was defeated, Benjamin - fearing that he could never receive
a fair trial if charged with Lincoln’s murder - fled to England, where he lived out his life as a
barrister, publishing a classic legal text on the sale of personal property. Evans speculates that,
had Benjamin been captured by Union troops, the United States might have had its own Dreyfus

Trial.”

Source: Judah Benjamin
https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/judah-benjamin

“Mayer Lehman was also socially well connected—he was friends with the governor of Alabama
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and an acquaintance of Jefferson Davis, the future president of the Confederacy.®*”

Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen -
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

“Lehman was indeed founded by three brothers, immigrant Jews from Germany who started out
as dry-goods peddlers in the pre-Civil War south, and whose subsequent success as cotton

brokers enabled them to become one of the Confederacy's main financial backers.”
Source: Analyze This: Devaluing the Lehman name, on Wall Street and elsewhere
https://www.jpost.com/business/business-features/analyze-this-devaluing-the-lehman-name-on-wall-street-and-elsewhere

“The Lehmans had had prior experience in ‘taking the profits out of war’, a double entendre and
one of Baruch's favorite phrases. In Men Who Rule America, Arthur D. Howden Smith writes of
the Lehmans during the Civil War, ‘They were often agents, fixers for both sides, intermediaries
for confidential communications and handlers of the many illicit transactions in cotton and drugs
for the Confederacy, purveyors of information for the North. The Lehmans, with Mayer in
Montgomery, the first capital of the Confederacy, Henry in New Orleans, and Emanuel in New
York were ideally situated to take advantage of every opportunity for profit which appeared.

They seem to have missed few chances.””

Source: The Secrets of the Federal Reserve by Eustace Mullins - p. 117
https://archive.orag/details/TheSecretsOfTheFederalReserve 294

“The Democratic National Committee (DNC) is the governing body of the United States

Democratic Party. ... The DNC was established at the 1848 Democratic National Convention.”
Source: Democratic National Committee
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Democratic_National Committee

“August Belmont Sr. (born August Schonberg; December 8, 1813 — November 24, 1890) was a
German-American financier, diplomat, politician and party chairman of the Democratic National
Committee, and also a horse-breeder and racehorse owner. ... In 1837, at the age of 24, Belmont
set sail for the Spanish colony of Cuba and its capital city of Havana, charged with the
Rothschilds' Cuban interests. On his way to Havana, Belmont stopped in New York City on a
layover. He arrived in the previously prospering United States during the first waves of the
financial/economic recession of the Panic of 1837, shortly after the end of the iconic two-term
administration of President Andrew Jackson, the nation's first Democratic administration. ... In
the financial/economic recession and Panic of 1837, hundreds of American businesses, including
the Rothschild family's American agent in New York City, collapsed. As a result, Belmont
postponed his departure for Havana indefinitely and began a new firm, August Belmont &
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Company, believing that he could supplant the recently bankrupt firm, the American Agency.
August Belmont & Company was an instant success, and Belmont restored health to the
Rothschilds' U.S. interests over the next five years. ... Senator Douglas subsequently nominated
Belmont as chairman of the Democratic National Committee. Belmont is attributed with single-
handedly transforming the position of party chairman from a previously honorary office to one of
great political and electoral importance, creating the modern American political party's national
organization. He energetically supported the Union cause during the Civil War as a ‘War
Democrat’ (similar to former Tennessee Senator Andrew Johnson, later installed as war governor
of the Union Army-occupied seceded state), conspicuously helping U.S. Representative from
Missouri Francis P. Blair raise and equip the Union Army's first predominantly German-
American regiment. ... Remaining chairman of the Democratic National Committee after the
War, Belmont presided over what he called ‘the most disastrous epoch in the annals of the
Democratic Party’. As early as 1862, Belmont and Samuel Tilden bought stock in the New York
World in order to mold it into a major Democratic press organ with the help of Manton M.
Marble, its editor-in-chief. According to the Chicago Tribune in 1864, Belmont was buying up
Southern bonds on behalf of the Rothschilds as their agent in New York because he backed the

Southern cause.”
Source: August Belmont
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/August_Belmont

“Towards the end of the war in September 1864, the Chicago Tribune editorial page accused
Jewish Financiers the Rothchilds' American agent August Belmont ‘and the whole tribe of Jews,’
of sympathizing with the South. Belmont was a Jew but married a Christian woman and was
raising his children as Christians, however, during the war, he was chairman of the Democratic
Party, which helped with the charge of Sympathy to the Confederacy. The attacks on Belmont
became a favorite sport from the press and politicians. In 1864, The New York Times accused
Belmont of aiding the Confederacy, writing, ‘The great Democratic Party has fallen so low that it

has to seek a leader in the agent of foreign Jew bankers.””

Source: Questioning Jewish Loyalty to the Union: Grant's General Order Number 11 and anti-Semitism during the Civil War

https://www.academia.edu/51071631/Questioning_Jewish_Loyalty to_the Union_Grants General_Order_Number_11 and_anti
Semitism_during_the Civil_War

“John Wilkes Booth (May 10, 1838 — April 26, 1865) a famous American stage actor was a
member of the prominent 19th century Booth theatrical family from Maryland. According to the
autobiography of his sister Asia Booth, their father, Junius Brutus Booth, was ‘born in 1796 to a
highly educated clan of Jewish lawyers and silversmiths.’ The Booth family were originally
Sephardic Jewish wine merchants from Portugal who ran a business exporting wine through the
ports of northern England as far back as 1569. John Wilkes Booth's paternal great-great-great-
grandfather was Ricardo Botha, who born in 1675 and settled in England, he changed his name
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from Botha to Booth. His grandson, John Booth, Jr., (1723-1787), was a silversmith established
in London, England. He married Elizabeth Wilkes (1720-1801); John's sons John and Philip
founded a London distillery in 1740 and began selling Booth's dry gin, eventually becoming the
largest gin distillery in the UK; while his son Richard (John Wilkes Booth's grandfather) was an
attorney. Richard's son, Junius Brutus Booth (1796-1852), was a well-known Shakespearean
actor in England and America. In his 1865 biography of John Wilkes Booth, George Alfred
Townsend writes of Junius Brutus Booth: ‘The elder Booth in every land was a sojourner, as all
his fathers were of Hebrew descent, and by a line of actors, he united in himself that strong
Jewish physiognomy which, in its nobler phases, makes all that is dark and beautiful, and the
combined vagrancy of all men of genius and all men of the stage. Fitful, powerful,- passionate,
his life was a succession of vices and triumphs.’ Following Lincoln's assassination, Booth fled on
horseback to southern Maryland, eventually making his way to a farm in rural northern Virginia
12 days later, where he was tracked down. Booth's companion gave himself up, but Booth
refused and was shot by a Union soldier after the barn in which he was hiding was set ablaze.
Eight other conspirators or suspects were tried and convicted, and four were hanged shortly

thereafter.”
Source: Jews and the Slave Trade
https://web.archive.org/web/20160722181220/http:/wethoughttheywerewhite.weebly.com/jews--the-slave-trade.html

“In the May 14 issue of the Argentine newspaper Clarin, Rabbi Morton Rosenthal, director of
international affairs of the Anti-Defamation League of B'nai B'rith, alleged that Lyndon
LaRouche has ‘imputed diverse crimes to the United States' Jewish community, among them the
murder of President Abraham Lincoln last century.” Responding to the allegation, on May 17 a
spokesman for LaRouche said that in fact it is Rosenthal's own B'nai B'rith, and not ‘the Jewish
community,” which was implicated in the murder of President Abraham Lincoln. ... The United
States National Park Service maintains the Lincoln murder site at Ford's Theater in Washington
as a national monument. Park Service historians tell tourists that John Wilkes Booth was not a
‘regular’ agent of the Confederate Secret Service. Some months before he shot Lincoln, Booth in
fact deposited funds in the Montreal bank used by the ‘regular’ operatives of Confederate Secret
Service head Judah Benjamin. John Surrat, who confessed to being a ‘regular’ Benjamin agent
and to plotting with Booth to abduct Lincoln, admitted to using that Montreal bank for
Benjamin's funds. Yet the Park Service says that Booth did not ‘ordinarily’ go to Canada for
Benjamin, and that he could not be a ‘regular’ operative, because Booth's name does not appear
on the payrolls of the Confederate government!

“The Ford's Theater permanent display, however, contains a piece of evidence which flies in
the face of the ‘lone assassin’ theory: a decoding sheet, found by police in John Wilkes Booth's
trunk, and alongside it, a matching coding device which was found in the office of Judah
Benjamin. At the time when John Wilkes Booth shot President Lincoln, Booth's old acquaintance
Benjamin Peixotto was international president of the B'nai B'rith. Only hours before going to
Ford's Theater to shoot the President, Booth met with his old friend Simon Wolf for a
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confidential discussion over some drinks. ...

“In eastern Ohio, B'nai B'rith was run by Benjamin F. Peixotto and his intimate friend Simon
Wolf. Peixotto edited the Cleveland Plain Dealer, a uniquely pro-slavery newspaper in an
abolitionist area. (Public outrage eventually shut the newspaper down during the Civil War
because it so virulently supported Ohio's Copperhead boss Clement Vallandigham.) Masonic
attorney and Democratic Party operative Wolf worked at the 1860 Democratic national
convention as an agent of party sponsor August Belmont, the official U.S. representative of the
British Rothschild family of bankers. In Cleveland in the 1850s, Peixotto and Wolf ran a Young
Men's Hebrew and Literary Society, which sponsored theatrical performances. The young actor
John Wilkes Booth per formed in their amateur plays, and became their friend and Wolf's
confidant. Wolf reportedly ‘bore an uncanny resemblance’ to Booth, who was two years Wolf's
junior. Peixotto later became B'nai B'rith international president from 1863 to 1867, operating
from Belmont's New York. Wolf moved to Washington in 1862, and ran the Order's relations
with the U.S. government for the next 60 years.

“Soon after Wolf's arrival in wartime Washington to head the B'nai B'rith capital operations,
he was arrested by the U.S. government and jailed as an operative of an enemy organization: the
B'nai B'rith. Wolfs authorized biography explains that Chief of Detectives Lafayette Baker
‘accused Wolf of being an agent for a disloyal organization that aided rebels and assisted
blockade runners. What Baker had in mind was the International Order of B'nai B'rith ....Wolf
was arrested for having secured the release of imprisoned Southern Jewish refugees. He was held
at the Carroll Street Prison.’

“Wolf was soon ‘declared innocent of any involvement with blockade runners,” and was
released. The official B'nai B'rith history puts it this way: "The chief of the War Department's
Detective Bureau was Col. Lafayette Baker, notorious for his cruelty and ruthlessness. He had a
young lawyer, Simon Wolf, arrested solely because he was a member of B'nai B'rith.. . .Wolf
was defending several Southern Jews arrested in Washington and charged ‘With being

Confederate spies.””
Source: Simon Wolfs role in the assassination of Abraham Lincoln by Anton Chaitkin
https://larouchepub.com/eiw/public/1993/eirv20n21-19930528/eirv20n21-19930528 056-simon_wolfs_role_in_the_assassin.pdf

And there were plenty of Jewish and non-Jewish spies and traders on both sides. Here’s a Jewish
one:

“Born into an assimilated Jewish family in Charleston, SC, in 1819 or 1820 [sources differ],
Eugenia Levy Phillips was raised by prominent and successful parents who mingled easily with
Charleston's elite. Upon her marriage in the mid-1830s, she moved to Mobile, Alabama, where
her husband, Philip Phillips, had a successful law practice. Philip Phillips served two terms in the
Alabama State Legislature, then moved his wife and seven (soon to be nine) children to
Washington, D.C., when he was elected to Congress in 1853. He declined to run for a second


https://larouchepub.com/eiw/public/1993/eirv20n21-19930528/eirv20n21-19930528_056-simon_wolfs_role_in_the_assassin.pdf

term, and instead went into private legal practice in 1855. Although a native Southerner, he
remained opposed to Southern secession. Eugenia Phillips, however, did not take her husband's
opinions as her own. Like many Southern Jews, she was a strong supporter of the Confederate
cause. While her younger sister Phoebe Levy Pember worked as a nurse in a Richmond military
hospital (see This Week in History for August 18, 1823; and November 29, 1862), Phillips
collaborated more directly with the Confederate military. Beginning in 1861, she aided
Confederate spy networks and secretly passed material aid to Confederate troops. On August 24,
1861, Union troops raided the Phillips home; although they were unable to find direct evidence
of treason, they placed Phillips under house arrest. At the intervention of Edwin Stanton, who

later became Secretary of War, she was soon released and the family moved to New Orleans.”
Source: Union troops arrest Confederate spy Eugenia Levy Phillips — Jewish Women’s Archive
https://jwa.org/thisweek/aug/24/1861/eugenia-levy-phillips

Reconstruction and the Compromise of 1877

Reconstruction

“The Reconstruction era was a period in American history following the American Civil War
(1861-1865) and lasting until approximately the Compromise of 1877. During Reconstruction,
attempts were made to rebuild the country after the bloody Civil War, bring the former
Confederate states back into the United States, and to redress the political, social, and economic
legacies of slavery. During the era, Congress abolished slavery, ended the remnants of
Confederate secession in the South, and passed the 13th, 14th, and 15th Amendments to the
Constitution (the Reconstruction Amendments) ostensibly guaranteeing the newly freed slaves
(freedmen) the same civil rights as those of whites. Following a year of violent attacks against
Blacks in the South, in 1866 Congress federalized the protection of civil rights, and placed
formerly secessionist states under the control of the U.S. military, requiring ex-Confederate
states to adopt guarantees for the civil rights of freedmen before they could be readmitted to the
Union. In nearly all ex-Confederate states, Republican coalitions set out to transform Southern
society. The Freedmen's Bureau and the U.S. Army both aimed to implement a post-slavery free
labor economy, protect the legal rights of freedmen, negotiate labor contracts, and helped
establish networks of schools and churches. Thousands of Northerners ("Carpetbaggers™) came
to the South to serve in the social and economic programs of Reconstruction. Fighting against
suffrage and full rights for freedmen, and in favor of giving the returning Southern states
relatively free rein over former slaves, were the white ‘Redeemers’; Southern Bourbon
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Democrats; Vice President Andrew Johnson, a Southerner who assumed the presidency after the
assassination of President Abraham Lincoln; and especially the Ku Klux Klan, which
intimidated, terrorized, and murdered freedmen and Republicans, including Arkansas

Congressman James M. Hinds, throughout the former Confederacy.”
Source: Reconstruction era
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Reconstruction_era

You don’t need to watch the following video to understand the information in this section, but if
you want additional context | suggest you watch it. And even if you don’t want additional
context you should watch it at some other time.

The Reconstruction Era (Documentary)
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=btV10ovf560g

https://www.pbs.org/wgbh/americanexperience/films/reconstruction/#transcript

Alternative sources

Reconstruction Part 1 of 2
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uspD-dODxGc
Reconstruction The Second Civil War Part 1 2
*audio is out of sync
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6Ge90P Xpgg0

Watch the following videos:

Inside Look | Reconstruction: America After the Civil War | PBS
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8buF2t0VMFs

MOOC | ""Black Reconstruction™ | The Civil War and Reconstruction, 1865-1890 | 3.5.1
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=SHbBiKHWozE

“With the help of a leading Rothschild political asset in England, Baron Pollack, Benjamin
continued his legal career in London. He never abandoned his commitment to subvert and
destroy the American republic, however. As a wealthy lawyer for the British merchant oligarchs,
Judah Benjamin collaborated with other exiled Confederate and Masonic strategists in England,
such as James D. Bulloch and Robert Toombs. Benjamin's continuing preoccupation with
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defeating Reconstruction is indicated in letters he wrote back to the U.S. with complaints such as
these: ‘I have always looked with the utmost dread and distrust on the experiment of
emancipation so suddenly enforced on the South by the event of the war. God knows how it will
all end!’; ‘the South is kept crushed under negro rule’; ‘I can never consent to go to New Orleans
and break my heart witnessing the rule of negroes and carpetbaggers’; and ‘nothing is so

abhorrent to me as Radicalism which seeks to elevate the populace into the governing class.’”

Source: The Ugly Truth About The ADL - p. 14
https://highlanderjuan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/EIR-The-Ugly-Truth-About-The-ADL-1993.pdf

Lynchings and Racial Violence during Reconstruction
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=GU_9x3upz90

The Compromise of 1877

The Compromise of 1877 — Cong. Rec., 44th Cong., 2d Sess. 2047 (Mar. 1, 1877)

What The Compromise of 1877 Meant (SOT)
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0LnMqg9g9cmw

“Did you know that one of the leading figures in the Compromise of 1877, which after a
deadlock in the Electoral College delivered the presidency to Republican Rutherford B. Hayes in
exchange for a promise to end Reconstruction, was a Jewish congressman from Louisiana named
William M. Levy? I didn’t either; I had to look it up, and only after some digging found the
relevant passage in historian C. Vann Woodward’s account of that chaotic, catastrophic vote in
the House of Representatives, which ushered in nearly a century of disenfranchisement and

oppression of Southern blacks.”
Source: The Women'’s March’s Farrakhan problem, and my own
https://news.yahoo.com/womens-marchs-farrakhan-problem-172033327.html

This person is referring to Reunion and Reaction: The Compromise of 1877 and the End of
Reconstruction by C. Vann Woodward — p. 201
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1% of the population, and yet seems to always play a key role when it comes to extreme harm
being done to Blacks.

“The Compromise was announced on March 1, 1877, on the floor of the House by Democratic
representative William Levy of Louisiana.... With the help of southern Democrats, the filibuster
was broken (to the extreme annoyance of Tilden's northern Democratic supporters) and on
March 2 Hayes was declared the winner. In April, federal troops were removed from active
intervention in the governments of Louisiana and South Carolina. The last Reconstruction
governments collapsed. Historians debate over the extent to which the Compromise of 1877 was
the product of a specific backroom political deal and extent to which it was the culmination of a
gradual shift in public opinion and the priorities of the Republican Party. But no one disputes
that a vast and dramatic change occurred between 1874 and 1877, or that the effect was to nullify
the rights won by black Americans through the Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendments. ... The
Compromise of 1877 was no mere ceasefire in the partisan wars. It was the culmination of a
political shift that had already gained steam from the ouster of Republican governments in state
after state in the former Confederacy. No longer could the Republican post-War political strategy
of achieving national majorities by carpetbag control of southern states be maintained, and
political support in the North for civil rights-which was never robust-had run its course. Civil
rights became a political liability. Thus, the Compromise of 1877 marked a fundamental
reorientation of the Republican Party away from the goals of Reconstruction and toward the goal
of economic expansion a goal more effectively pursued in alliance instead of conflict with
business-oriented whites in the South. ... Thereafter, neither of the great political parties of the
Nation retained a commitment to fulfillment of the ideals of the Fourteenth Amendment.
Reconciliation between North and South (and with it, more lucrative political activities such as
railway construction projects) was achieved at the sacrifice of the rights of black Americans. ...
The Compromise can thus be restated in the following terms. The two great constitutional issues
of the era were the balance of power between the states and the federal government and the
rights of the recently emancipated black citizens. The Compromise of 1877 was a capitulation on
the first issue; the independence and autonomy of the southern states was restored. But it was not
a total capitulation on the second: the rights of black citizens would continue to receive a
promise of protection, albeit from state governments rather than the federal government. ... Once
power shifted back to the southern states and away from Congress, the promises of continued
respect for the rights of black Americans quickly proved illusory. This probably came as no
surprise to anyone. ... Blacks continued to vote and to hold office in significant but ever
diminishing numbers for the remainder of the century; but by the first decade of the 1900s black
disenfranchisement was complete and the Fifteenth Amendment was a dead letter in the states of
the old Confederacy. ... Far more than the Fourteenth Amendment, the Compromise of 1877

created a far-reaching and long-persisting constitutional regime: the regime of Jim Crow.”
Source: The Forgotten Constitutional Moment. By Michael W. McConnell



https://scholarship.law.umn.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1759&context=concomm

“The withdrawal of all Federal troops in 1877 signaled a turn for the worse in making progress
for independent farming. The availability and quality of public and private schools declined. In
many rural areas, there was no access to high school education for black children (Litwack, 56-
113) ... The increased land ownership and prosperity of the first two decades of the 20th century,
however, were not shared by a large majority of black farm operators. Enactment of Jim Crow
laws in the late 1890s empowered landlords and planters to try to extract more output from
tenants and sharecroppers with less compensation, rather than using incentives for self-motivated
work (Ochiltree, 367; Litwack, 127-29; Alston, 267). Oppressive farm operating contracts were
easier to impose because the voting rights of blacks were limited. Without the franchise, black
tenants and sharecroppers had no legal or political recourse. These laws also facilitated tacit
coordination by white landlords in applying stricter terms in agricultural contracts. ... While not
all individuals succeed in farming in any setting, the repressiveness of Jim Crow society stifled

market incentives that enable economic mobility.”

Source: Black Farmers in America, 1865-2000 The Pursuit of Independent Farming and the Role of Cooperatives
https://www.rd.usda.gov/files/RR194.pdf
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The KKK Unveiled

Is the official story of the creation of the KKK actually true? Probably not. And there are
several theories on the subject floating around, but none of the promoters of these theories seem
to have “smoking gun” proof or sources for their claims. The most popular theories state they
were created from: 1. Albert Pike. 2. Members of the Scottish Rite of Freemasonry. 3. The
Knights of the Golden Circle.

| didn’t go to a library and pour through hundreds of books, but from what I can see there’s no
real evidence linking anyone or any group to the initial creation of the KKK other than the
people mentioned in the official story (if you were to take that evidence as legitimate). That
said, it doesn’t mean that there wasn’t Jewish involvement in the creation of the Klan or its
operations thereafter.

Let’s start by taking a look at three groups — the Scottish Rite of Freemasonry (the one common
element of all popular KKK theories), the B'nai B'rith, and the Knights of the Golden Circle.

The Scottish Rite

“In the year 1862 a Berlin Freemason, who noticed the Jewish predominance in the lodges, wrote
in a Munich paper: ‘There exists in Germany a secret sect with Freemasonic forms, which is
subject to ‘unknown leaders’. The members of this association are in their great majority
‘Israelites’... In London, where, as one knows, the revolutionary herd are found around the
Grandmaster Palmerston, there exist two Jewish Lodges that have never seen Christians cross
their threshold; it is there that are combined all the threads of the revolutionary elements which
nestle in the Christian lodges. In Rome there is a further lodge, ‘which consists completely of
Jews’, and where all threads as well as plots instigated in the ‘Christian lodges’ unite: ‘the
supreme court of justice of the revolution.” From there outwards the other lodges are directed as
by secret leaders, so that the greater part of the Christian revolutionaries are only marionettes
who are set in motion by Jews by means of the secret leaders. ... Gougenot des Mousseaux
reports the following occurrence, which confirms the ensuing statements: ‘With the breaking out
again of the revolution of 1848, | had connections with a Jew, who out of vanity betrayed the
secrets of the secret societies of which he was a member. The latter instructed me eight or ten



days in advance of all revolutions that would break out in any point of Europe. | have to thank
him for the unshakeable conviction that all these great movements of ‘repressed peoples, etc.’
were instigated by half a dozen persons who imparted their instructions to the secret societies of
the whole of Europe. The ground under our feet is through and through undermined, and the
Jewish people provided an entire contingent of these subterranean agitators.’ In the year 1870 de
Camille wrote in ‘Le Monde’ that he met a Freemason upon a round trip through Italy, one of his
old acquaintances. To his question how things went with the order, he answered: ‘I have finally
left the lodge of my Order for | have gained the deep conviction that we were only the tools of

the Jews, who drive us to the total destruction of Christianity.” (La F.M. Secte Juive, 43-46).””
Source: The Jews in Europe: The Mask of Freemasonry, Part 1
https://christogenea.org/podcasts/jews-europe-mask-freemasonry-part-1

Smart man. The secret societies are definitely used to manipulate, exploit and blame non-Jews.

“Jewish names appear among the founders of Freemasonry in colonial America, and in fact it is
probable that Jews were the first to introduce the movement into the country. Tradition connects
Mordecai Campanall, of Newport, Rhode Island, with the supposed establishment of a lodge
there in 1658. In Georgia four Jews appear to have been among the founders of the first lodge,
organized in Savannah in 1734. Moses Michael Hays, identified with the introduction of the
Scottish Rite into the United States, was appointed deputy inspector general of Masonry for
North America in about 1768. In 1769 Hays organized the King David's Lodge in New York,
moving it to Newport in 1780. He was Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Massachusetts from
1788 to 1792. Moses *Seixas was prominent among those who established the Grand Lodge of
Rhode Island, and was Grand Master from 1802 to 1809. A contemporary of Hays, Solomon
*Bush, was deputy inspector general of Masonry for Pennsylvania, and in 1781 Jews were
influential in the Sublime Lodge of Perfection in Philadelphia which played an important part in
the early history of Freemasonry in America. Other early leaders of the movement included:
Isaac da *Costa (d. 1783), whose name is found among the members of King Solomon's Lodge,
Charleston, in 1753; Abraham Forst, of Philadelphia, deputy inspector general for Virginia in
1781; and Joseph Myers, who held the same office, first for Maryland, and later for South
Carolina. In 1793 the cornerstone ceremony for the new synagogue in Charleston, South
Carolina, was conducted according to the rites of Freemasonry. The later history of Freemasonry
in the United States shows a number of prominent Jewish names, but nothing corresponding to
their influence in the earlier period. In 1843 the Grand Lodge in New York addressed a letter to
the Mutterloge in Berlin complaining against the refusal of German lodges to accept registered

Masons of the American Lodge because they were Jewish.”
Source: Freemasons
https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/freemasons
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Moses Michael Hayes (Jewish) was given an appointment within Freemasonry which allowed
him to confer the degrees of the Order of the Royal Secret upon selected Master Masons. The
twenty-five degrees of the Order of the Royal Secret (often called the Rite of Perfection) was a
precursor to the Scottish Rite of Freemasonry (sometimes called the Jewish Rite). A year later,
in 1769, Hays was made the first Master of the newly formed King David’s Lodge (a Jewish
lodge). Hays appointed Isaac Da Costa (Jewish) Deputy Inspector General for South Carolina,
who in 1783 introduced the Rite into that State by the establishment of a Grand Lodge of
Perfection in Charleston. And it was the Jewish members of the Sublime Lodge of Perfection in
Philadelphia who helped popularize the Scottish Rite of Freemasonry throughout the States.
Hays became creator and head of The Massachusetts Grand Lodge of Ancient Masons, a lodge
that no other lodge in the universe (their words) had authority over. And this was confirmed by

the Grand Lodge of Scotland. (Sources: 1. The Scottish Rite Masonic Museum and Library on Moses Michael Hays 2.
The New England Freemason, Volume 2 edited by Sereno Dwight Nickerson, Charles H. Titus — pp. 71-79)

“On August 5, 1813, the Jurisdiction’s first Supreme Council was formed by Emanuel De La
Motta (1760-1821), in his capacity as the Southern Jurisdiction's Grand Treasurer General. The
Council consisted of six members - Daniel D. Tompkins (1774-1825), Sampson Simson (1780—
1857), John James Joseph Gourgas (1777-1865), Richard Riker (1773-1842), John Gabriel
Tardy (1761-1831), and Moses Levi Maduro Peixotto (1767—-1828). Of these seven men, three
were Jewish - De La Motta, Simson, and Peixotto - and, just as Riker and Tompkins were
politically associated outside of Freemasonry, these three men were culturally and religiously
connected through their faith. For example, Simson and Peixotto were both members of New
York's Congregation Shearith Israel. ... In addition to De La Motta, Simson, and Peixotto, other
prominent Jews involved with the establishment and founding of the Scottish Rite include Moses
Michael Hays (1739-1805), as well as three of the Southern Jurisdiction's founding members -
Abraham Alexander (1743-1816), Israel Delieben (1740-1807), and Moses Clava Levy (1749-
1839). ... Emanuel De La Motta and Moses Levy Maduro Peixotto were both born into Sephardic
families in the Caribbean (San Croix and Curacao, respectively) before moving to the United
States. Although this book does not mention either man specifically, there is useful information
about Dutch trade and Sephardic Jews in the Caribbean, which is essential to understanding the
movement of pre-Scottish Rite degrees from their arrival with merchants in the West Indies in
the mid-eighteenth century to their movement out of the West Indies to New Orleans,
Charleston, and Albany later in that century. ... Four of the first Supreme Council members of
the world's first Supreme Council, founded in Charleston, South Carolina in 1801, were drawn
from its Jewish community. ... Hays is remembered for many important roles that he played -
both within Freemasonry and without. Within Scottish Rite Freemasonry is best remembered as
having been deputized by Henry Andrew Francken (ca. 1720-1795) to spread the Order of the

Royal Secret, which eventually led to the founding of the Scottish Rite.”
Source: Scottish Rite Masonic Museum & Library - Freemasonry and Judaism
http://archive.today/n2Ke4
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And they list books where this information, and more, can be found.

“Nathaniel Levin, the present incumbent, has occupied the office since 1866. Emanuel De La
Motta, Moses C. Levy, Israel De Lieben and Abraham Alexander took an active part in
organizing and establishing the Supreme Council of the Ancient and Accepted Scottish Rite of

Free Masons in South Carolina in 1801.”

Source: The Hebrews in America. A SERIES OF HISTORICAL AND BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES. BY ISAAC MARKENS.
(published in 1888) - pp. 57-58

https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The_Hebrews_in_America_%28IA _hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf

“The Supreme Council of the 33d Degree of the Ancient and Accepted Scottish Rite of
Freemasonry, said to be the first Supreme Council known, and superseding all previous
analogous organizations, being, it is also said, a transformation of the former Rite of Perfection
or Ancient Accepted Rite, was organized at Charleston, on May 30, 1801, by John Mitchell,
Frederick Dalcho, Emanuel DeLaMotta, Abraham Alexander, Major T. B. Bowen, and Israel
Delieben. A list exists of the officers composing this Council in 1802, and also of the officers
and members of the different sections or divisions of the degrees of the Scottish Rite in that year.
[277] Many Jewish names appear in this list, as also many non-Jewish, prominent in South

Carolina affairs.”

Source: North Carolina, South Carolina, Georgia, The Supreme Council and Congregation Beth Elohim of Charleston
https://web.archive.org/web/20130602181541/https://modernhistoryproject.org/mhp?Article=JewishMasons&C=9.0

The B'nai B'rith

“The Order of B'nai-Berith, the foremost, and in fact the parent of the Jewish fraternal
organizations in America, was founded in 1843, and Henry Jones is considered its chief founder.
Its chief aim was and is the union of Israelites for the purpose of furthering education and
elevating the morals and aspirations of the race. ... From the parent lodge have sprung nearly 400
lodges, of which twenty are situated in Germany, to which the order was extended in the year
1880. It is governed by an Executive Committee composed of one member from each of its eight
District Grand Lodges, and at its head are placed a President and Secretary, who wield the

supreme executive power during the recesses between the regular sessions.”
Source: The Hebrews in America (published in 1888) - pp. 331-332
https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The_Hebrews_in_America %281A hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf



https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The_Hebrews_in_America_%28IA_hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf
https://web.archive.org/web/20130602181541/https:/modernhistoryproject.org/mhp?Article=JewishMasons&C=9.0
https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The_Hebrews_in_America_%28IA_hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf

It was said to be set up as some Jewish humanitarian organization, but was at the same time a
secret society that was modeled after Freemasonry.

“It was founded at New York in 1843 by a number of German Jews, headed by Henry Jones, for
the purpose of instilling the principles of morality among the followers of the Mosaic faith—
uniting them on a platform upon which all could stand regardless of dogma and ceremonial
custom—and of inculcating charity, benevolence, and brotherly love as the highest virtues.
Political and religious discussions were to be barred forever in order that harmony and peace
might be preserved in the deliberations of the Order. A constitution was adopted for the
administration of the affairs of the Order; and in 1851, a sufficient number of lodges having been
organized, the first grand lodge was established in the city of New York, and in the same year
District Grand Lodge No. 2 was founded in the city of Cincinnati. The Order spread rapidly.
Lodges were formed in nearly all of the Eastern and Western states; so that in 1856 District
Grand Lodge No. 3 was instituted, with its seat in Philadelphia, Pa. The supreme authority was
placed in a central body, which met annually and was composed of one representative from each
lodge. At the meeting of the supreme body in 1857 a membership of 2,889, with an accumulated
capital of $78,000, was reported. ... A new era of development began in 1868, when, at a
convention held in the city of New York, composed of representatives from each lodge, the
present constitution was adopted. Meanwhile, three new grand lodges had been instituted: No. 4
in San Francisco, Cal.; No. 5 in Baltimore, Md.; and No. 6 in Chicago, Ill. The Order at that time

numbered more than 20,000 members.”
Source: B'NAI B'RITH, or SONS OF THE COVENANT: By Cyrus Adler, M. Ellinger
https://www.jewishencyclopedia.com/articles/3437-b-nai-b-rith

The Grand Lodges spread from New York City to Cincinnati, Ohio.

“In 1801, the Tory faction of U.S. Freemasonry—the grouping of Freemasons who had sided
with England during the American Revolution—opened up shop as the ‘Grand Council of the
Princes of Jerusalem of the Mother Supreme Council of the Knights Commander of the House of
the Temple of Solomon of the Thirty-third Degree of the Ancient and Accepted Order of the
Scottish Rite of Freemasonry in the United States.” This US-based British Freemasonic lodge
was chartered in Charleston, S.C. The members of this British-led secret society would direct the
Confederate secessionist insurrection a half-century later. Other Scottish Rite members would-be
among the founders of the B'nai B'rith. They, too, would be leading Confederates.

“Apart from the esoteric mission of spreading an explicitly anti-Christian form of Roman
pagan worship and occultism among the early generations of American citizens, the Charleston
lodge also sought to build up a network of pro-British merchants, spies and politicians in both
the North and the South, who would one day play a pivotal role in the reconquest. Many of these
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early Masons became wealthy through their business dealings with the British East India
Company and the Dutch West India Company, in both the cotton and the slave trade. Among the
founding members of the Charleston Scottish Rite Lodge were many prominent Jews, including
Isaac DaCosta, Moses Cohen, Israel De Lieben, Dr. Isaac Held, Moses Levi, and Moses
Peixotto. Many of these men were Sephardic Jews from North Africa or from Spain who had
originally settled in the Caribbean and engaged in the early slave trade. These Jewish Masons set
up other organizations which also maintained active liaison to Great Britain's powerful Jewish
community. The Hebrew Orphan Aid Society was one such nominally benign group that would
produce one of the most rabid secessionist leaders, Judah P. Benjamin. Although today, any
reports of the Freemasonic roots and structure of B'nai B'rith are usually greeted with a torrent of
allegations of ‘anti-Semitism,” back in the formative years, B'nai B'rith's own magazine The
Menorah offered the following information about the founders of the group: ‘Their reunions
were frequent and several of them being members of existing benevolent societies, especially the
order of Free Masons and Odd Fellows, they finally concluded that a somewhat similar
organization, but based upon the “Jewish idea” would best obtain their object. ...

“Indeed, to this day, all local chapters of the B'nai B'rith are referred to as Lodges, a practice
borrowed whole cloth from the Scottish Rite. ...

“The majority of Jews in America during the first generations following independence were
opposed to the idea of a Jewish Freemasonic secret society. Thus, Israel Joseph Benjamin, a
noted European Jew, in his memoirs Three Years in America, 1859-62 wrote of the B'nai B'rith
that ‘this is a secret society, like the Freemasons, with passwords and the like and was quite a
new phenomenon for me... still I think the existence of such a society not at all necessary.’ ...

“During the Civil War itself, while the majority of American Jews sided with the North and
fought valiantly to preserve the Union, the B'nai B'rith was predominantly pro-Confederate.
Even in New York City, the Lodges preached secession. The Baltimore Hebrew Congregation,
founded by Dutch Jews who made their money in the slave trade, heard sermons by Rabbi
Morris Raphall like the following:

‘Who can blame our brethren of the South for their being inclined to secede from a
society under whose government their ends cannot be attained and whose union is kept
together by heavy iron ties of violence and arbitrary force? Who can blame our brethren
of the South for seceding from a society whose government cannot and will not protect
property rights and privileges of a great portion of the Union?””

Source: The Ugly Truth About The ADL - pp. 10-12
https://highlanderjuan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/EIR-The-Ugly-Truth-About-The-ADL-1993.pdf

“Benjamin Franklin Peixotto was born in the city of New York, November 13, 1834. He is a son
of the late Dr. Daniel L. M. Peixotto, an eminent physician. His parents removed to Ohio in
1836, but returned to New York in 1841, where Benjamin received his earliest education. ... His
voice often resounded in societies and in the Hebrew lodges. As a member of the Independent


https://highlanderjuan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/EIR-The-Ugly-Truth-About-The-ADL-1993.pdf

Order of B'nai-Berith (Sons of the Covenant), he did much to elevate the standing of American
Hebrews, and in the year 1863 he was chosen Grand Saar or Grand Master of the Order in the
United States. Under his energetic administration the Order was raised in membership from

4,000 to 12,000, about one-half of its present number.”

Source: The Hebrews in America (published in 1888) - pp. 235-236
https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The Hebrews in_ America_ %28IA hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf

The Knights of the Golden Circle

In 1851 the B'nai B'rith spread, creating Grand Lodge No. 1 in New York City, and then Grand
Lodge No. 2 in Cincinnati, Ohio in that same year. This is an interesting fact because we find
these same steps taken by someone suspected of being the true founder of the Knights of the
Golden Circle, another secret society modeled after Freemasonry.

“While Scottish Rite Council member and secessionist John A. Quitman was trying to conquer
Cuba, the Swiss master of the Scottish Rite in the Northern Jurisdiction, J. J. J. Gourgas du Pan
de Rengers, set in motion the machinery to blow the United States. Gourgas delegated Killian
Henry Van Rensselar—a ‘patroon’ of the old unreconstructed Dutch feudal lords in New York—
to take personal charge of initiating a military organization with insurrectionary potential in the
heart of the country. According to Van Rensselaer’s Scottish Rite biography, he had been
‘irregularly knighted in Rochester, New York in 1830 by three officers of the British army in
Canada.”?*® Piercing together the truth about what Gourgas and Van Rensselaer did to the United
States has cost investigators many hours of painstaking work shoveling through mounds of lying
cover stories—and a good bit of discussion with relevant families and Masonic organizations. In
1851, K. H. Van Rensselaer was named Deputy to the Northern Supreme Council for the states
of Pennsylvania and Ohio. Over the next two years, he made his way westward, carefully
probing for local openings, testing the political waters. In 1853, he set up the first consistory, or
regional headquarters, west of New York—in Cincinnati, Ohio.?*’ He then made his home in
Cincinnati, becoming there a ‘revered’ Scottish Rite personage whose grave is still the site of
yearly ceremonies. Another secret organizations very coincidentally began in Cincinnati, Ohio,
in 1854.2% It was called the Knights of the Golden Circle, and it utilized very un-Ohioesque
mummeries such as the Maltese Cross by way of symbolism. We would still know very little
about this Scottish Rite front organization if its official founder, George W. L. Bickley, had not

talked after being put in the Ohio State Prison by military authorities during the Civil War.”
Source: Treason In America: From Aaron Burr To Averell Harriman by Anton Chaitkin — pp. 221-224
https://archive.org/details/treasoninamerica0Ochai



https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/6a/The_Hebrews_in_America_%28IA_hebrewsinamerica00mark%29.pdf
https://archive.org/details/treasoninamerica00chai

Also take a look at the image on page 222 here or here.

Excerpts from Knights of the Golden Circle — Secret Empire, Southern Secession, Civil War by
David C. Keehn

Among the new recruits was a strikingly handsome twenty-year-old cast member from
Maryland—John Wilkes Booth—whose now-deceased father was a theatrical icon. ... Wilkes
had been welcomed into the upper echelons of Richmond society and basked in the gracious
southern hospitality. By the summer of 1859, he was running around with similar high-spirited
young men from the very best Richmond families, who were also enamored of chivalric
mystique and military display. Many of them belonged to local militia units such as the
prestigious Richmond Blues, whose members included Obadiah Jennings Wise, the
rambunctious son of Virginia’s then sitting governor.?

Over the next few years, Wilkes Booth would rise to become a prominent leader in the
Knights. He would draw on his KGC connections to obtain special access and favors that, among
other things, enabled him to witness the hanging of the abolitionist zealot John Brown at Harpers
Ferry. During the Civil War, he would rely on his knightly brothers for help in carrying out
clandestine smuggling operations on behalf of the South. At the end of the war, he would seek
their assistance in carrying out his audacious plan to remove the American president.

The Knights were a militant oath-bound secret society dedicated to promoting southern rights
(including slavery) and extending American hegemony over the Golden Circle region.
Membership was open to all southern men of good character as well as northern men who stood
by the constitutional claims of the South. KGC recruiters told membership candidates, like
Booth, that the society was dedicated to expansion southward and protecting constitutional
liberties from the ravages of abolitionists and “Black Republicans.” But the higher degrees of the
society were pledged to a further secret proslavery and empire-building agenda that was not fully
shared with the lower degrees.® ...

During the early years of the Civil War, disaffected members of the KGC anonymously
published widely circulated exposés that made a variety of sensational yet plausible claims. They
charged that southern-rights members of the cabinet of Abraham Lincoln’s predecessor, James
Buchanan, were KGC members, including Vice President John Breckinridge and Secretary of
War John Floyd. They said that the Knights were behind the 1860 splintering of the Democratic
Party and that the secret society had helped precipitate a number of the southern and Border
States into secession. They alleged that the Knights spearheaded a clandestine conspiracy to
capture the federal forts and arsenals in the South, seize the nation’s capital, and prevent the
inauguration of a “Black Republican” president.' Later, the Knights were alleged to have
orchestrated Lincoln’s assassination and to have buried caches of gold so that the South could
rise again.*® ...


https://archive.org/details/anton-chaitkin-treason-in-america-from-aaron-burr-to-averell-harriman-1985-1998-670pp/page/n124/mode/1up
https://archive.org/details/treasoninamerica00chai/page/222/mode/2up

Verifying claims regarding the Knights is sometimes difficult. They were, after all, a secret
society, particularly at the upper level at which policy was established and where
communications were generally oral. The KGC’s front man, George Bickley, was known to
exaggerate and fabricate, especially in his post-1862 accounts from prison. ... Fortunately,
sufficient primary-source material does still exist to piece together a credible account. ...

The sagas of the KGC'’s state regimental commanders also provide a good indicator as to what
really happened. This book focuses on four of them who ultimately became Confederate generals
or colonels: Texas’s Elkanah Bracken Greer, Georgia’s Paul Jones Semmes, Maryland’s Robert
Charles Tyler, and Virginius Despeaux Groner from the Old Dominion. These were military men
of substance and drive—the backbone and sinew of the KGC. From these sources, it should be
evident that the Knights were a much more powerful force and played more of a role in

precipitating the Civil War than historians have heretofore recognized.

Source: Knights of the Golden Circle — Secret Empire, Southern Secession, Civil War by David C. Keehn - pp. 1-5
https://ia801403.us.archive.org/22/items/knights-of-the-golden-circle-book-
2013/Knights%200f%20the%20Golden%20Circle%20%28B00k%202013%29.pdf

Excerpts from Knights of the Golden Circle by Jay Longley and Colin Eby

One little-known historical fact that is presented in the records from the 1860 K.G.C. convention
is that the Knights had their own well-organized army in 1860, before the Civil War had even
begun, so they were prepared in the event of war with the North. In May of 1860 the Knights of
the Golden Circle reported a total membership of 48,000 men from the North, who supported
"the constitutional rights of the South," as well as men from the South, with an army of "less than
14,000 men™ and new recruits joining at a rapid rate.

Shortly before the Civil War began, the state of Texas was the greatest source of this
organization's strength. Texas was home for at least thirty-two K.G.C. castles in twenty-seven
counties, including the towns of San Antonio, Marshall, Canton, and Castroville. Evidence
suggests that San Antonio may have served as the organization’s national headquarters for a
time.

The South began to secede from the Union in January 1861, and in February of that year, seven
seceding states ratified the Confederate Constitution and named Jefferson Davis as provisional
president. The Knights of the Golden Circle became the first and most powerful ally of the
newly-created Confederate States of America.

Before the Civil War officially started on April 12, 1861, when shots were fired on Fort Sumter,
South Carolina, and before Texas had held its election on the secession referendum on February
23, 1861, Texas volunteer forces, which included 150 K.G.C. soldiers under the command of
Col. Ben McCulloch, forced the surrender of the federal arsenal at San Antonio that was under
the command of Bvt. Maj. Gen. David E. Twiggs on February 15, 1861. Knights of the Golden


https://ia801403.us.archive.org/22/items/knights-of-the-golden-circle-book-2013/Knights%20of%20the%20Golden%20Circle%20%28Book%202013%29.pdf
https://ia801403.us.archive.org/22/items/knights-of-the-golden-circle-book-2013/Knights%20of%20the%20Golden%20Circle%20%28Book%202013%29.pdf

Circle who were involved in this mission included Capt. Trevanion Teel, Sgt. R. H. Williams,
John Robert Baylor, and Sgt. Morgan Wolfe Merrick. Following this quick victory, volunteers
who were mostly from K.G.C. companies, forced the surrender of all federal posts between San
Antonio and El Paso. ...

Perhaps the best documentation as to the power and influence of the Knights of the Golden
Circle during the Civil War is The Private Journal and Diary of John H. Surratt, The
Conspirator which was written by John Harrison Surratt and later edited by Dion Haco and
published by Frederic A. Brady of New York in 1866. In this journal, Surratt goes into great
detail when describing how he was introduced to the K.G.C. in the summer of 1860 by another
Knight, John Wilkes Booth, and inducted into this mysterious organization on July 2, 1860, at a
castle in Baltimore, Maryland. Surratt describes the elaborate and secret induction ceremony and
its rituals and tells that cabinet members, congressmen, judges, actors, and other politicians were
in attendance. Maybe the most significant revelation of Surratt's diary is that the Knights of the
Golden Circle began plotting to kidnap Abraham Lincoln in 1860, before Lincoln was even
inaugurated in 1861, and continued throughout the Civil War, resulting in President Lincoln's
assassination by fellow Knight Booth on April 14, 1865.

After trying unsuccessfully to peacefully resolve the conflicts between North and South, the
Knights of the Golden Circle threw its full support behind the newly-created Confederate States
of America and added its trained military men to the Confederate States Army. Several
Confederate military groups during the Civil War were composed either totally or in large part of
members of the Knights of the Golden Circle. One notable example of K.G.C. military
participation in the Civil War included the Confederate's Western Expansion Movement of 1861
and 1862 led by Lt. Col. John Robert Baylor and Gen. Henry Hopkins Sibley.

In 1861 Albert Pike travelled to Indian Territory and negotiated an alliance with Cherokee Chief
Stand Watie. Prior to the beginning of hostilities, Pike helped Watie to become a Thirty-second
Degree Scottish Rite Mason. Watie was also in the K.G.C., and he was later commissioned a
colonel in command of the First Regiment of Cherokee Mounted Rifles. In May 1864 Chief
Watie was promoted to the rank of brigadier general in the Confederate States Army making him
the only Native American of this rank in the Confederate Army. Watie's command was to serve
under CSA officers Albert Pike, Benjamin McCulloch, Thomas Hindman, and Sterling Price.
They fought in engagements in Indian Territory, Kansas, Arkansas, Texas, and Missouri. ...

Throughout the Civil War, one of the Knights of the Golden Circle's most important roles came
in its infiltration of Union forces. Nowhere in the country was this influence more apparent than
in the state of Missouri where K.G.C. members filled the ranks of the Enrolled Missouri Militia
which was commonly known as the Paw Paw Militia. A newspaper article from the Daily Times
of Leavenworth, Kansas, July 29, 1864, serves as a good example in their interview with a
member of the Paw Paw named Andrew E. Smith. Smith said:



| am 22 years old and live in Platte county, about two miles west of Platte City | was a
member of Captain Johnston's company of Pawpaw militia, under Major Clark, and
served about six months.... I am a member of the Knights of the Golden Circle. | joined
them at Platte City, and was sworn in by David Jenkins of that place. All of the Pawpaw
militia, so far as | know, belong to them....

Confederate Gen. Robert E. Lee surrendered his Army of Northern Virginia at Appomattox on
April 9, 1865. Most historians accept this date of surrender as the official end of the Civil War.
The Knights of the Golden Circle as an organization, however, continued to work to achieve
their goals, which included a prosperous South, for many decades after the Civil War. What had
been a secret society adapted to changing conditions and, after the war, became even more

secretive than ever before.
Source: Knights of the Golden Circle by Jay Longley and Colin Eby
https://knightsofthegoldencircle.webs.com/

And wasn’t all of that done under Judah Benjamin? I sure would like to see some sources for the
following information: “Benjamin gained notoriety for covering up the growing terrorist
activities of the Scottish Rite-sponsored Knights of the Golden Circle while serving as the local
federal prosecutor. ... It was Benjamin's Confederate secret service which organized and
supervised such figures in the assassination of Abraham Lincoln as John Wilkes Booth and his
accomplice, John Surratt. Benjamin was charged with sedition for the Lincoln assassination,

although he was never brought to trial due to his protected status in England.” (Source: The Ugly Truth
About The ADL - pp. 13-14)

They were as KKK as you could get, and I’ve read that much of the KKK’s initial membership
was comprised of members of the KGC. TI’ve also come across information stating that many of
the first members were Scottish Rite Freemasons. But in both cases the sources to these claims
are absent.

The KKK

The Early Ku Klux Klan and White Supremacy
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=70-uNsOMeV4



https://knightsofthegoldencircle.webs.com/
https://highlanderjuan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/EIR-The-Ugly-Truth-About-The-ADL-1993.pdf
https://highlanderjuan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/EIR-The-Ugly-Truth-About-The-ADL-1993.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7o-uNsOMeV4

“The first Klan was founded in Pulaski, Tennessee, on December 24, 1865,[? by six former
officers of the Confederate army:!"* Frank McCord, Richard Reed, John Lester, John Kennedy,
J. Calvin Jones, and James Crowe.["? It started as a fraternal social club inspired at least in part
by the then largely defunct Sons of Malta. It borrowed parts of the initiation ceremony from that
group, with the same purpose: ‘ludicrous initiations, the baffling of public curiosity, and the
amusement for members were the only objects of the Klan’, according to Albert Stevens in
1907.171 .. According to The Cyclopadia of Fraternities (1907), ‘Beginning in April, 1867, there
was a gradual transformation. ... The members had conjured up a veritable Frankenstein. They
had played with an engine of power and mystery, though organized on entirely innocent lines,
and found themselves overcome by a belief that something must lie behind it all—that there was,
after all, a serious purpose, a work for the Klan to do.’"® Although there was little organizational
structure above the local level, similar groups rose across the South and adopted the same name
and methods.[clarification needed]"® Klan groups spread throughout the South as an insurgent
movement promoting resistance and white supremacy during the Reconstruction Era. For
example, Confederate veteran John W. Morton founded a chapter in Nashville, Tennessee.[’” As
a secret vigilante group, the Klan targeted freedmen and their allies; it sought to restore white
supremacy by threats and violence, including murder. ‘They targeted white Northern leaders,
Southern sympathizers and politically active Blacks.’!"® In 1870 and 1871, the federal
government passed the Enforcement Acts, which were intended to prosecute and suppress Klan
crimes.[”®! ... After the Klan was suppressed, similar insurgent paramilitary groups arose that
were explicitly directed at suppressing Republican voting and turning Republicans out of office:
the White League, which started in Louisiana in 1874; and the Red Shirts, which started in
Mississippi and developed chapters in the Carolinas. For instance, the Red Shirts are credited
with helping elect Wade Hampton as governor in South Carolina. They were described as acting
as the military arm of the Democratic Party and are attributed with helping white Democrats

regain control of state legislatures throughout the South.®”
Source: Ku Klux Klan
http://archive.today/8nZFH

That’s from a Wikipedia article, but there’s a reason I used an archived link. It’s so that you can
see what Wikipedia, with its Jewish editors, quoted themselves before they erase it. “According
to The Cyclopadia of Fraternities (1907), ‘Beginning in April, 1867, there was a gradual
transformation. ... The members had conjured up a veritable Frankenstein. They had played with
an engine of power and mystery, though organized on entirely innocent lines, and found
themselves overcome by a belief that something must lie behind it all—that there was, after all, a
serious purpose, a work for the Klan to do.””

Also stated in that book:

“It was then that the reorganized Ku Klux Klan made its appearance, the one which the North
has identified with ‘midnight murder’ and ‘political infamy.’ It is admitted that at this period the


http://archive.today/8nZFH

Klan threw some of its conservatism to the winds, and recruited its membership ofttimes with
rash, imprudent, and bad men. The Klan could not have disbanded then had it tried. In order to
gird up its loins more effectually it held a convention at Nashville early in 1867, at which the
territory covered by it was termed ‘the Invisible Empire’— pointing to Knight of the Golden
Circle influences—the Empire being divided into realms, dominions and provinces,
corresponding to States, Congressional districts and counties. ... The question naturally arises
whether the reorganization of the Ku Klux Klan in 1867-68, with its ‘invisible empire,” did not

find inspiration from former Knights of the Golden Circle.”
Source: The Cyclopadia of Fraternities by Stevens, Albert Clark - pp. 418, 420
https://archive.org/details/cyclopdiaoffrate0000stev/mode/2up

So, between 1867-68 the KKK turned into something different.

In a book considered to be an authoritative source on the KKK published in 1924 we find some
interesting information on our good friend Judah Benjamin.

“In 1867 Bishop Richard H. Wilmer, who was a close friend of General Morgan, the Second
Dragon of the Realm of Alabama, went to England and there he saw Judah P. Benjamin who had
been a member of the Confederate States Cabinet. Among other things he told him of the Ku
Klux Klan and the power it was exerting, and the necessity for keeping up the ghostly idea that
the negroes might be controlled, and told him of the scarcity of suitable dry-goods and horses for
the use of the Ku Klux Klan. Mr. Benjamin’s interest in the Ku Klux Klan was so aroused that he
borrowed money and gave it to Bishop Wilmer to buy horses, saddles, fire-arms, and other
necessities for the Ku Klux Klan. ... Mr. Benjamin became very wealthy in England and Mrs.
Jefferson Davis told me that he often sent her money to relieve the needy among his friends in
the United States, as well as the assistance rendered the Ku Klux Klan, as the South had been

plundered so as to render this help necessary....”

Source: Authentic History — Ku Klux Klan 1865-1877— pp. 45-47
https://archive.org/details/authentichistor0Odavi

The Klan wasn’t even the Klan that we know of until after Judah Benjamin was told those
things; then, at the least, funded them and gave them everything they needed. So, even if he
didn’t make the KKK, he made the KKK. As previously stated: “Benjamin's continuing
preoccupation with defeating Reconstruction is indicated in letters he wrote back to the U.S. with
complaints such as these: ‘I have always looked with the utmost dread and distrust on the
experiment of emancipation so suddenly enforced on the South by the event of the war. God
knows how it will all end!’; ‘the South is kept crushed under negro rule’; ‘I can never consent to
go to New Orleans and break my heart witnessing the rule of negroes and carpetbaggers’; and
‘nothing is so abhorrent to me as Radicalism which seeks to elevate the populace into the


https://archive.org/details/cyclopdiaoffrate0000stev/mode/2up
https://archive.org/details/authentichistor00davi

governing class.””

If the KKK is the product of Confederate soldiers, and the Confederacy was Jewish controlled
and driven, then just from those facts alone a large part of the reason/blame for the existence of
the KKK has to be placed on Jews just as it’s been placed on non-Jewish Whites by saying
“Whites,” “Confederate soldiers,” and “the South” knowing others believe this to mean non-
Jewish Whites, and intending it to mean non-Jewish Whites. And with the massive help and
influence of Judah Benjamin, how much more should Jews be included in the blame (if you want
to blame entire groups for the deeds of some)? And this is just the beginning.

From Hollywood (Jewish created and controlled film studios) in 1915:

“The Birth of a Nation, originally called The Clansman, is a 1915 American silent epic drama
film directed by D. W. Griffith and starring Lillian Gish. The screenplay is adapted from Thomas
Dixon Jr.'s 1905 novel and play The Clansman. Griffith co-wrote the screenplay with Frank E.
Woods and produced the film with Harry Aitken. The Birth of a Nation is a landmark of film
history, lauded for its technical virtuosity. It was the first non-serial American 12-reel film ever
made. Its plot, part fiction and part history, chronicles the assassination of Abraham Lincoln by
John Wilkes Booth and the relationship of two families in the Civil War and Reconstruction eras
over the course of several years—the pro-Union (Northern) Stonemans and the pro-Confederacy
(Southern) Camerons. It was originally shown in two parts separated by an intermission, and it
was the first American-made film to have a musical score for an orchestra. It pioneered closeups
and fadeouts, and it includes a carefully staged battle sequence with hundreds of extras (another
first) made to look like thousands. It came with a 13-page ‘Souvenir Program’. It was the first
motion picture to be screened inside the White House, viewed there by President Woodrow
Wilson, his family, and members of his cabinet. The film was controversial even before its
release, and it has remained so ever since; it has been called ‘the most controversial film ever
made in the United States’ and ‘the most reprehensibly racist film in Hollywood history’.
Lincoln is nevertheless portrayed positively, albeit a friend of the South, atypical of a narrative
that promotes the Lost Cause ideology. The film has been denounced for its racist depiction of
African Americans. The film portrays its black characters (many of whom are played by white
actors in blackface) as unintelligent and sexually aggressive toward white women. The Ku Klux
Klan (KKK) is portrayed as a heroic force, necessary to preserve American values, protect white
women, and maintain white supremacy. Popular among white audiences nationwide, the film's
success was both a consequence of and a contributor to racial segregation throughout the U.S. In
response to the film's depictions of black people and Civil War history, African Americans
across the U.S. organized and protested. In Boston and other localities, black leaders and the
NAACP spearheaded an unsuccessful campaign to have it banned on the basis that it inflamed



racial tensions and could incite violence. Griffith's indignation at efforts to censor or ban the film
motivated him to produce Intolerance the following year. In spite of its divisiveness, The Birth of
a Nation was a huge commercial success across the nation—grossing more than any previous
motion picture—and it profoundly influenced both the film industry and American culture. The
film has been acknowledged as an inspiration for the rebirth of the Ku Klux Klan, which took

place only a few months after its release.”
Source: The Birth of a Nation
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/The_Birth_of a Nation

Notice how there were others besides the director D. W. Griffith who worked to make this film
something revolutionary.

Birth Of A Nation: Jewish Racism And Cinematic Bigotry
http://archive.today/dwgaG

There sure was a lot going on with Jews in Atlanta.

“William Joseph Simmons is considered to be the founder of the 1915 modern Ku Klux Klan.
While recovering from a car accident, the local preacher in Georgia followed the Birth of a
Nation’s nationwide success. There were KKK-inspired aprons, costumes and regalia that
glorified the defunct organization. Simmons seized on the film’s popularity to bolster the Klan’s
appeal again. It wasn’t just the fraught racial tensions that made the timing of a rebirth feasible.
The way the film was made, with innovating editing techniques and close-up action shots, was
captivating. ‘People were taken to another planet,” says Dick Lehr, author of The Birth of a
Nation: How a Legendary Filmmaker and Crusading Editor Reignited America’s Civil War.
“The galloping Klan riding to the rescue. The pure spectacle of it all,” says Lehr, romanticized
the KKK. The film bolstered the idea that the Klan was there to save the South from savage
Black men raping white women, a racist myth that would be propagated for years, Lehr adds. As
described in a journal article by historian Maxim Simcovitch, Simmons put a plan in motion
once he learned the film would be released on December 6, 1915 in Atlanta. Just 10 days before
the film premiered, Simmons gathered a group and climbed Stone Mountain, outside Atlanta, to
burn a large cross. He reportedly said, ‘There was good reason, as I have said, for making
Thanksgiving Day (November 25, 1915) the occasion for burning the fiery cross. Something was
going to happen in town (Atlanta) the next week (the premiere of The Birth of a Nation) that
would give the new order a tremendous popular boost.” As planned, word spread about the
burning cross. Simmons also took out a newspaper ad about the KKK’s revival that ran right
alongside an announcement about The Birth of a Nation premiere. On opening night, Simmons


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/The_Birth_of_a_Nation
http://archive.today/dwgaG
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/journal-of-american-studies/article/true-story-of-the-ku-klux-klan-defining-the-klan-through-film/F62D03EE5913FA2532C325C77177AFF8

and fellow Klansmen dressed in white sheets and Confederate uniforms paraded down Peachtree
Street with hooded horses, firing rifle salutes in front of the theater. The effect was powerful and
screenings in more cities echoed the display, including movie ushers donning white sheets.
Klansmen also handed out KKK literature before and after screenings. ... As the film continued
to be screened and re-screened well into the 1920s, Lehr says more Klan chapters formed and
membership reportedly reached into the millions. New Klansmen were shown The Birth of a

Nation and the film continued to be a recruiting tool for decades to come.”
Source: How 'The Birth of a Nation' Revived the Ku Klux Klan
https://www.history.com/news/kkk-birth-of-a-nation-film

“By a curious irony, the revived Klan professes the crude faith of fanatical hatred towards the
Jews, whereas the original Klan, so far from being anti-Semitic, had many of its staunch
supporters among the Jews.”

By a curious irony, the revived Klan
pmf’ema the crude faith of fanatical
hatred towards the Jews, whereas the
original Klan, so far from being anti-
Semitic, had many of its staunch sup-
porters among the Jews, In a recent-
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Source: The Detroit Jewish Chronicle - October 9, 1925 — Judah P. Benjamin and the Ku Klux Klan By Dr. Herman Frank
https://digital.bentley.umich.edu/djnews/djc.1925.10.09.001/6
https://archive.vn/wxcky

“The Second Klan adopted the distinctive wardrobe that actors had used in D. W. Griffith’s epic
Birth of a Nation (1915),°? and some Jewish merchants discerned an opportunity mentioned in
Harper Lee’s iconic novel. It evokes Maycomb, Alabama after the First World War; and Atticus
Finch recalls the Klan as an outfit that ‘couldn’t find anybody to scare. They paraded by Mr.
Sam Levy’s house one night, but Sam just stood on his porch and told ‘em things had come to a
pretty pass, he’d sold ‘em the very sheets on their backs. Sam made ‘em so ashamed of
themselves they went away.” The attorney’s daughter Scout admires the Levy family as ‘Fine
Folks’; they had, after all, lived in the town for five generations.>® That they were not
deracinated may have given Sam Levy the confidence to stand up to and to ridicule the Klan.


https://www.history.com/news/kkk-birth-of-a-nation-film
https://digital.bentley.umich.edu/djnews/djc.1925.10.09.001/6
https://archive.vn/wxcky

“Richard Kluger’s Members of the Tribe (1977), a fictionalized account of the lynching of Leo
Frank, alludes to the same commercial instinct that To Kill a Mockingbird does. Kluger’s Noah
Berkowitz changes his surname to Berg in coming to Georgia, where he marries Naomi

Klein. Her ‘family sold sheets throughout the state to the Ku Klux Klan.” Steve Stern extends
such interactions into a more elaborate joke in his most recent novel, set in the noticeably Jewish
neighborhood of Memphis known as the Pinch. There several Jewish merchants and a tailor find
themselves facing a street march of Klansmen, ‘decked out in their Halloween finest, white robes
and pointed hoods.” The Jews of the Pinch do not cower or flee. Instead they compete not only
in figuring out who their customers are, but also which of them bought the fabrics classier than
mere ‘shmattes.” Such evidence is of course fictional, and even when presented as oral history
may well be dismissed as apocryphal. But in 1921, when a klavern marched for the first time in
Houston, a Jewish merchant is reported to have sold the members their robes and

sheets.>* Mississippi’s Forrest County is named for a founder of the First Klan, General Nathan
Bedford Forrest. Hattiesburg is located there, and in that town the father of Dotty London
Stetelman watched Klan parades. He ‘could recognize the men by the shoes he had sold

them. He could see their shoes under the sheets.”>> An elderly Jew in Alabama once assured Eli
Evans of what excellent customers Klansmen were: ‘I used to sell ‘em the sheets, and Sam the

tailor made them into robes. Let me tell you we had a good business going.”>®”

Source: Merchants: The Marrow of the Southern Jewish Experience - Jewish Historical Society of South Carolina
https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/

That brings to mind the 19" century garment industry and Southern clothiers.

“In 1943, the United Daughters of the Confederacy, an organization whose idea of a fundraiser
in the early 20th century was selling primers on the glories of the Ku Klux Klan to
schoolchildren, erected a pink granite monument to Benjamin [Judah P.] on the Sarasota, Fla.,

plantation where he set sail to escape his U.S. Army pursuers.”

Source: The Forgotten Confederate Jew
https://www.tabletmag.com/sections/arts-letters/articles/the-forgotten-confederate-jew

Regarding the removal of an Albert Pike statue, who some believe was the founder of the KKK...

“Meanwhile, the Council of the District of Columbia, considering whether to pass a resolution
similar to those passed in the other U.S. cities, has been warned by the Scottish Rite of
Freemasonry and the Anti-Defamation League of B'nai B'rith not to move to take down the KKK

monument.”
Source: District of Columbia Appropriations for 1994: Testimony of members of Congress, citizens and organizations of the
District of Columbia


https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/
https://www.tabletmag.com/sections/arts-letters/articles/the-forgotten-confederate-jew

https://books.google.com/books?id= q0TvIghEAIC

FY1: The B'nai B'rith created the Anti-Defamation League (ADL).

“Anti-Semitism” is needed by Jews, and has, for centuries, been purposely created by people
from the Jewish community time and time again. This is a documented fact that has even been
admitted to by several Jews. But somehow none of these hate groups that claim to hate blacks
and Jews alike, attack Jews like they attack blacks. Not even close.

“Not that violence against Jews was ever a pressing problem in the South; even taking into
account the infamous lynching of Leo Frank in Georgia in 1915 and a flurry of synagogue
bombings at the height of the Civil Rights movement, attacks on Southern Jews and Jewish
property were notable for their infrequency. Even the Ku Klux Klan, with rare exceptions, chose
to harass Jews verbally rather than physically. The phenomenon of hardened white racists
harboring a relatively benign attitude when it came to Jews was typified by Eugene ‘Bull’
Connor, the Birmingham, Alabama commissioner of public safety whose dogs and fire hoses
became internationally recognized symbols of Southern racism in the 1960°s. At a law
enforcement conference organized after the first wave of the aforementioned synagogue

bombings, a perplexed Connor drawled, ‘Nigras, maybe, but Jews — why?’”
Source: A Tribe Apart: Jews of the American South - The Jewish Press

http://archive.today/IjCzb

https://freerepublic.com/focus/fr/1401699/posts

And you should look into that Leo Frank case. He wasn’t lynched because he was Jewish.

James Guttman

“Mordechai Levy, the leader of the JDL splinter group that managed to show up on the doorsteps
of Alex Odeh and Tscherim Soobzokov on the eves of their assassinations, maintained direct and
frequent contact with the ADL's Fact Finding Division head, Irwin Suall. Just two weeks before
the AADC's Washington, D.C. office was blown upon Nov. 29, 1985, Levy had appeared as the
featured speaker at a press conference hosted by the Federation of Jewish Organizations of
Greater Washington, an umbrella group led by both the ADL and B'nai B'rith, to present a list of
‘enemies of the Jewish people.” AADC was among the groups listed. On more than one
occasion, Levy's provocateur antics nearly exposed the ADL's hand in fomenting domestic
violence. On Feb. 16, 1979, Levy, using the pseudonym ‘James Guttman,’ filed an application
with the U.S. Park Service in Philadelphia, Pa. to obtain permission to hold a rally. The rally


https://books.google.com/books?id=_q0TvlgbEAIC
http://archive.today/ljCzb
https://freerepublic.com/focus/fr/1401699/posts

permit sought by Levy/Guttman was not filed in the name of the JDL. Levy was posing as a
leader of the American Nazi Party, seeking a permit for a Ku Klux Klan and Nazi Party rally at
Independence Hall, the site of the signing of the Declaration of Independence. According to the
rally permit, Levy was planning a ‘white power rally, to show white masses unity of white

race, and to show the world niggers and Jews are cowards.” Among the paraphernalia Levy listed
on the application were: ‘swastikas, banners, Nazi uniforms, KKK paraphernalia ... will burn
cross, swastika picket signs saying “Hitler was right—gas commie Jews.”” Working out of the
Philadelphia offices of the Jewish Defense League, Levy organized local chapters of the KKK
and neo-Nazi groups to attend the Independence Hall rally. In the case of the Trenton, N.J. KKK,
Levy had an inside track. James Rosenberg, also known as ‘Jimmy Mitchell’ and ‘Jimmy
Anderson’—a full-time paid employee of the ADL Fact Finding Division—had successfully
infiltrated the local chapter of the Klan. Rosenberg had recently attempted unsuccessfully

to get some of the local KKKers to blow up the Trenton headquarters of the National Association
for the Advancement of Colored People (NAACP). At the same time he was posing as ‘James
Guttman,’ neo-Nazi, Levy was also mobilizing the Jewish community and every ragtag left-wing
radical group in the greater Philadelphia area to attend a mass demonstration ‘to confront’ the
KKK and Nazis at Independence Hall. All the ingredients were there for a serious riot—courtesy
of the ADL. Fortunately, word of Levy's scam on the Park Service leaked out to the Philadelphia
press. After one Philadelphia newspaper ran a banner headline ‘Nazi Rally-Rouser Really
Jewish,’ the Park Service yanked the permit Levy's ADL handlers ordered him to lay low for a

while.”
Source: The Ugly Truth About the Anti-Defamation League — pp. 70-72
https://highlanderjuan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/EIR-The-Ugly-Truth-About-The-ADL-1993.pdf

Daniel Burros

“Daniel Burros (March 5, 1937 — October 31, 1965) was a Jewish American who was a former
member of the American Nazi Party. Later, after a falling-out with founder George Lincoln
Rockwell, Burros became a Kleagle, or recruiter, for the New York State branch of the United
Klans of America, the most violent Klan group of the time. ... Daniel Burros was born to Jewish
parents George and Esther Sunshine Burros in the Bronx. ... Burros eventually joined the
American Nazi Party. He was an editor of the party's newsletter, Stormtrooper. Burros's Jewish
heritage had been suspected by a number of fellow American Nazi Party members. Many of
Rockwell's stormtroopers distrusted Burros not only for being Jewish, but also a self-hating Jew,
and for his bizarre behavior. Burros would sometimes bring a knish to the American Nazi Party
headquarters and make such statements as ‘Let's eat this good Jew food!” Burros also frequently
spent time with Jewish women. In one incident, described in William H. Schmaltz' 1999 book,
Hate: George Lincoln Rockwell and the American Nazi Party, Burros once publicly described a
lurid fantasy in which the keys of a piano were modified to deliver electric shocks via wires


https://highlanderjuan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/EIR-The-Ugly-Truth-About-The-ADL-1993.pdf

attached to the Jewish victim of their choice. He believed that the combination of music from the
piano and the electric shocks would cause them to convulse in rhythm to the piano and provide
entertainment. Another example is the fact that he owned a bar of soap wrapped in paper with the
words ‘made from the finest Jewish fat’ imprinted on it. According to the writer Martin Lee, ‘a
former Nazi associate claimed that Burros enjoyed torturing dogs, including his own pet, Gas

Chambers’.”

Source: Dan Burros
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Dan_Burros

“In Nazi get-up, he and his self-styled storm troopers picketed New York-area movie theaters
where the film ‘Exodus’ was showing. They marched in front of the Brooks Atkinson Theatre on
West 47th Street to protest a play about the Holocaust. Burros and his fellow extremists were
watched closely by the NYPD’s antisubversive squad, which was on alert for terrorism and hate
crimes in that 1960s era of the civil-rights movement. ‘We have to watch they don’t go out and
kill people,” a squad member said at the time. Before he joined the NRP, Burros was a leader of
his mentor George Lincoln Rockwell’s American Nazi Party, headquartered in Arlington, Va.
Burros proudly held the title ‘extermination planner.” He often picketed outside John F.
Kennedy’s White House in full Nazi regalia, carrying signs demanding ‘Free Speech for Nazis,’
denouncing ‘Jews and N----rs,” and distributing pamphlets that declared, ‘Gas Communist
Traitors.” ... Still, for years, Burros had one dream and one dream only for his future: He wanted
to be America’s fuhrer. ... To support himself when he wasn’t goose-stepping and denouncing
Jews and blacks, Burros worked a menial job at the US Chamber of Commerce in Washington,
DC. He was fired for ‘disciplinary infractions.” Furious, he picketed the government building
with fellow Nazi party members. ... Fifty-two years ago this Halloween, a 28-year-old Queens
native by the name of Danny Burros killed himself, firing .32-caliber bullets into his chest and
head.

Source: He was a rising Nazi leader — until a shocking secret did him in
https://nypost.com/2017/10/28/he-was-a-rising-nazi-leader-until-a-shocking-secret-did-him-in/
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Additional Information

Note: There are plenty of reasons to doubt the official story.

He was a rising Nazi leader — until a shocking secret did him in
https://nypost.com/2017/10/28/he-was-a-rising-nazi-leader-until-a-shocking-secret-did-him-in/

Old Smoke: The Death of Daniel Burros: A Jewish Klansman who did more than just hate himself
https://www.nypress.com/news/old-smoke-the-death-of-daniel-burros-a-jewish-klansman-who-did-more-than-just-hate-himself-
LVNP1020030225302259991

State Klan Leader Hides Secret of Jewish Origin; Klan Leader Here, Hiding the Secret of His Jewish Origin, Preaches Anti-
Semitism

https://www.nytimes.com/1965/10/31/archives/state-klan-leader-hides-secret-of-jewish-origin-klan-leader-here.html

Take a look at pages 30-40 of this publication for a list of some of the Klan attacks against
Blacks ... all made possible by who?
https://ia800700.us.archive.org/19/items/ReportOnTheKuKluxKlan/Report.pdf

Maybe we should make a list of all of the racist actions from the Klan, groups that came after
them, and racist attacks from Whites and Jews, and make up a name for it like Jews have
“pogrom.” And actually, wouldn’t all of it fall under Jewish-sponsored terror?

Last words from the Jewish organization the SPLC:

“As the group gained members from all strata of Southern white society, they used violent
intimidation to prevent Black Americans — and any white people who supported Reconstruction
— from voting and holding political office. In an effort to maintain white hegemonic control of
government, the Klan, joined by other white Southerners, engaged in a violent campaign of
deadly voter intimidation during the 1868 presidential election. From Arkansas to Georgia,
thousands of Black people were killed. Similar campaigns of lynchings, tar-and-featherings,
rapes and other violent attacks on those challenging white supremacy became a hallmark of the

Klan.”

Source: Ku Klux Klan
https://www.splcenter.org/fighting-hate/extremist-files/ideology/ku-klux-klan
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https://ia800700.us.archive.org/19/items/ReportOnTheKuKluxKlan/Report.pdf
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pogrom
https://www.splcenter.org/fighting-hate/extremist-files/ideology/ku-klux-klan

Additional Information
FAKE JEWISH AL QAEDA ACTORS EXPOSED ADAM GADAHN AND YOUSEF AL KHATTAB
https://153news.net/watch_video.php?v=ROS85HSXA8YH



https://153news.net/watch_video.php?v=ROS85HSXA8YH

Sharecropping and Crop Lien

Sharecropping

“Prior to the Civil War, sharecropping is known to have existed in Mississippi and is believed to
have been in place in Tennessee. However, it was not until the economic upheaval caused by the
American Civil War and the end of slavery during and after Reconstruction that it became
widespread in the South. It is theorized that sharecropping in the United States originated in the
Natchez District, roughly centered in Adams County, Mississippi with its county seat, Natchez.
After the war, plantations and other lands throughout the South were seized by the federal
government. In January 1865, General William T. Sherman issued Special Field Orders No. 15,
which announced that he would temporarily grant newly freed families 40 acres of this seized
land on the islands and coastal regions of Georgia. Many believed that this policy would be
extended to all former slaves and their families as repayment for their treatment at the end of the
war. In the summer of 1865, President Andrew Johnson, as one of the first acts of
Reconstruction, instead ordered all land under federal control be returned to the owners from
whom it had been seized. Southern landowners thus found themselves with a great deal of land,
but no liquid assets to pay for labor. Many former slaves, now called freedmen, having no land
or other assets of their own, needed to work to support their families. A sharecropping system
centered on cotton, a major cash crop, developed as a result. Large plantations were subdivided
into plots that could be worked by sharecroppers. Initially, sharecroppers in the American South
were almost all black former slaves, but eventually cash-strapped indigent white farmers were
integrated into the system. During Reconstruction, the federal Freedmen's Bureau ordered the
arrangements for freedmen and wrote and enforced their contracts. American sharecroppers
worked a section of the plantation independently, usually growing cotton, tobacco, rice, sugar,
and other cash crops, and receiving half of the parcel's output. Sharecroppers also often received
their farming tools and all other goods from the landowner they were contracted with.
Landowners dictated decisions relating to the crop mix, and sharecroppers were often in
agreements to sell their portion of the crop back to the landowner, thus being subjected to
manipulated prices. In addition to this, landowners, threatening to not renew the lease at the end
of the growing season, were able to apply pressure to their tenants. Sharecropping often proved
economically problematic, as the landowners held significant economic control. In the
Reconstruction Era, sharecropping was one of few options for penniless freedmen to support
themselves and their families. Other solutions included the crop-lien system (where the farmer
was extended credit for seed and other supplies by the merchant), a rent labor system (where the
former slave rents his land but keeps his entire crop), and the wage system (worker earns a fixed



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Freedmen%27s_Bureau

wage, but keeps none of their crop). Sharecropping was by far the most economically efficient,
as it provided incentives for workers to produce a bigger harvest. It was a stage beyond simple
hired labor because the sharecropper had an annual contract. Sharecropping as historically
practiced in the American South is considered more economically productive than the gang
system of slave plantations, though less efficient than modern agricultural techniques.
Sharecropping continued to be a significant institution in many states for decades following the
Civil War.”

Source: Sharecropping
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sharecropping

“Another option for newly freed slaves was sharecropping, where they paid the landowner to use
the land with part of the harvest. These 1871 treaties in Florida and South Carolina were
concluded between plantation owners such as the Winthrop family and Thomas Green Clemson
(founders of Clemson University) and several black tenants. They show the variety of ways in
which landowners made deals with black workers. One of the contracts specifies the amount of
land to be rented and the method of payment, while the other is vague. Both contracts use
complex legal language, and the black workers who signed them re-signed them with an X,
suggesting they couldn’t read. In addition, their names are written in the same script as the
contract. ... The landowner provided land, housing, tools and seeds, and possibly a mule, and a
local merchant provided food and supplies on credit. ... Sharecropping, along with rented
agriculture, was a dominant form in southern cotton from the 1870s to the 1950s, among blacks

and whites.”
Source: Who Did Obtain Agreements from the Sharecroppers
http://isefgeneralpico.edu.ar/wp/who-did-obtain-agreements-from-the-sharecroppers/

People will sometimes talk about sharecropping and how some plantations had a store (the
plantation store) that was owned by the landlord/landowner where the sharecroppers would shop,
but no focus is placed on another party in the sharecropping mix, the merchant. It was during
this time, after the Civil War, that the merchants truly became the dominant force in the South,
supplanting the cotton factors.

“Plantation stores in the rural south in the early twentieth century were owned by the same
landowners who would often require sharecroppers and farmers working on the property to shop
at the store. Often, white and black farmers and sharecroppers would purchase items on credit
and repay their debt with crops they harvested.”

Source: A photograph of an African American at a plantation store in the Mississippi Delta in 1939.
https://dp.la/primary-source-sets/fannie-lou-hamer-and-the-civil-rights-movement-in-rural-mississippi/sources/855
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Crop Lien

“The crop-lien system was a credit system that became widely used by cotton farmers in the
United States in the South from the 1860s to the 1940s. ... The crop-lien system was a way for
farmers, mostly black, to get credit before the planting season by borrowing against the value of
anticipated harvests. Local merchants provided food and supplies all year long on credit; when
the cotton crop was harvested farmers turned it over to the merchant to pay back their loan. In
most cases, the crop did not cover the debt, and the farmer started the next year in the red as an
indentured servant. Working through a vicious cycle of trying to pay off debt and accumulating
more and more debt left many farmers working the rest of their lives under their landowner,
usually a white farmer. Additionally, sharecroppers had no mules or tools, but tenant farmers had
them and commanded a larger share of the crop. The owner took the rest. At harvest time, the
merchant collected his debts from the sale of the crop. The merchants had to borrow the money
to buy supplies and, in turn, charged the farmer interest as well as a higher price for merchandise
bought on such credit. The merchant insisted that more cotton (or some other cash crop) be

grown (nothing else paid well) and thus came to dictate the crops that a farmer grew.”
Source: Crop-lien system
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Crop-lien_system

So, the merchants were actually keeping Blacks enslaved, producing more and more cotton for
someone else?

“Sharecroppers paid their rent after the harvest with a share of the crop. Typically a share of the
crop was between one-third and one-half of the harvest. Since the sharecroppers did not have an
income until after the harvest, the landowners provided the supplies and tools they needed to
plant the crop along with the provisions they needed during the year to sustain themselves and
their families. The cost of products provided was later added to the amount of the rent due.
Sharecroppers received credit through the ‘crop lien’ system, which was implemented by law:
‘the laws stipulated that anyone who provided supplies or money to purchase supplies, necessary
to produce a crop received a lien on that crop when gathered’. The lien meant that sharecroppers
received credit from a merchant with the harvest of the coming year as underlying asset.
Meanwhile, they could not deal with other merchants. In Louisiana these crop lien laws were
passed in 1867, two years after the Civil War and the emancipation of the slaves. The crop lien
laws ensured that sharecroppers could only make purchases on credit in an assigned store. The


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Crop-lien_system

high interest rates in the store resulted in debts that were hard to pay off. Because of this
lingering debt in the following year, the labourers’ debt was even higher. This continuing

debt — or debt cycle — immobilised them: labourers could not leave the plantation without paying
their debt in full, due to the implementation of the Contract Enforcement Law. All freedmen
were forced to sign a labour contract, or they were considered vagrants and arrested or punished.
These laws were voided by the 14th Amendment, but in 1870 new Vagrancy Acts were adopted.
Furthermore, the Enticement Laws made breaking a labour contract a criminal offence, and the
False-Pretenses Act made it a crime to break a contract if one had entered the agreement with the
intention of violating it. Leaving a plantation without paying off the debt was considered
breaking a contract. Consequently, the labourers lacked the freedom to find better economic
opportunities, and to choose the employer. Furthermore, sharecroppers were not self-sufficient,
due to the fact of a one-crop economy. According to Wright and Kunreuther sharecroppers

who were unwilling to focus on cotton were forced to do so ‘by monopolist merchants who
insisted on heavy commitment to cotton as precondition to credit’. Thirdly, when labourers were
paid in tokens they were not free to spend their earnings wherever they wanted. In some
instances, payment in private money caused labour protest. ... Tokens were usually not
redeemable for cash, but if they were, it was only at specific times. For example, the checks paid
to the rice labourers in South Carolina ‘could not be turned into cash money for as long as four
years from date of issue’. At times labourers would try to sell the tokens to get cash, but the
plantation owners tried to prevent this practice by placing terms such as ‘not transferable’ on the
tokens, or by including the text: ‘good only when presented by authorised party’. Some coins
could only be used for one certain product, for example bread, meat, or flour. Another type of
scrip money was due bills, which looked like paper bank checks, but were only redeemable for
merchandise or rations in the store. According to Powell, Louis Ferleger, and Jonathan Wiener,
payment in tokens was a control mechanism: owners wanted to ensure that the former slaves
made all their purchases in the plantation store in order to exploit and immobilise them. This
argument holds that the former slaves were not free to spend their earnings wherever they

wanted and were thus re-enslaved.”

Source: Strapped for Cash - Non-cash Payments on Louisiana Cotton Plantations, 1865-1908
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/318808301_Strapped_for_Cash_Non-
cash_Payments_on_Louisiana_Cotton_Plantations_1865-1908

Further research should be done to find out who spread the idea of sharecropping to these
landowners, and who taught them these different banking schemes.

Notice how laws were passed to implement this new system in the South, this new form of
slavery, which was dominated by merchants. Interesting. And in 1863 the National Banking Act
had been passed which was a new system set up by hidden financial powers through the
government, right?

- “The high interest rates in the store resulted in debts that were hard to pay off.”
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- “According to Wright and Kunreuther sharecroppers who were unwilling to focus on cotton
were forced to do so ‘by monopolist merchants who insisted on heavy commitment to cotton as
precondition to credit.””

MOOC | The Crop Lien and Its Consequences | The Civil War and Reconstruction, 1865-
1890 3.6.5
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=g_IPZerPt9M

- 3:39 — “The people with money are merchants. Local merchants. They’re the ones who you
borrow money from. What do they want? They don’t want your land. They want the crop.
They want that cotton crop.”

- 4:32 — “It’s these country stores where the credit system is centered. ... The South is full of
these little stores scattered around the countryside run by merchants who are loaning money to
planters and sharecroppers. They’re getting their money from the North.”

- 5:15 — “What is the result of this? ... It means you’ve got to grow cotton. ... This means that
unlike other places that abolished slavery, cotton production in the South, by the 1870’s, is back
to its pre-war level. ...in the U.S. cotton revives. Partly because there’s a high price in the
market, and mostly though because of this crop lien, the credit system, is pushing people to grow
cotton whether they want to or not.” Back in business! And that means the money-making
South and its slave system wasn’t actually destroyed by the war, it was just given a makeover.

The Crop Lien System
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=WiYBY5zvI5w

“For example, William Toler, a black farmer, purchased 160 acres of land, and in the process of
improving that land, amassed an $800 debt to Weiss & Goldstein. His debt with the firm
continued to increase, and in 1883 he signed a deed of trust on his property for $1,654.06. By
1890, his debt to Weiss & Goldstein had increased to nearly $2,000, and the terms of his loan
agreement tightened. Toler was required to sell his entire cotton crop through Weiss &
Goldstein, and the firm held liens on Toler’s land, mules, and crops. Moreover, he was given a
quota of 75 bales of cotton to produce, or he would be charged $1.25 for each bale under 75.


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=g_IPZerPt9M
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=WiYBY5zvI5w

Over the next three years, Toler’s obligations to Weiss & Goldstein floated between $1,500 and
$2,000, and in 1893, he was charged an additional 2.5 percent interest on purchases he made
through them. But Toler continued to struggle with repayment, and in 1894, Weiss & Goldstein
foreclosed, and Toler’s land and six mules were auctioned for $2,000. Toler, however, convinced
the bank to sell the land back to him, and much like Louis Spearman did for a time, he continued

to find new merchants to loan him money so that he could keep his land.*!”
Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - p. 178
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

In 1860 there were 26,922,537 Whites and 3,953,760 enslaved WIlacks (Source: HISTORICAL CENSUS
STATISTICS ON POPULATION TOTALS BY RACE, 1790 TO 1990) The White population increased to about 55
million in 1890. Within that population were farmers who formerly owned slaves, and farmers
who never owned slaves, but many of these people became debt slaves also.

“The misery brought on by cotton crop liens was not limited to blacks. During the antebellum
period, many southern whites had been small subsistence farmers who did not grow cotton. They
shifted to cotton after the war, but many lost their farms because of dependence on crop liens
(Woofter, xxi; Woodman 1982, 229). Increasingly, landless whites became a large part of the

tenant and sharecropper workforce (Appendix Table 2).”
Source: Black Farmers in America, 1865-2000 The Pursuit of Independent Farming and the Role of Cooperatives
https://www.rd.usda.gov/files/RR194.pdf

Slavery 2.0 — Why only have Black slaves when you can have White slaves too?

“As the sharecropping system emerged in the former Black Belt plantation areas, increasing
numbers of small white freeholders living along the peripheries of the plantation districts found
themselves drawn into what Steven Hahn has called ‘the vortex of the cotton economy.’*® These
white farmers were generally former yeomen who agricultural pursuits had been geared to
meeting subsistence needs, and their previous experience with markets had been limited to forms
of specialized production or artisanal skills that enabled them to participate in community based
networks of barter and exchange. But after the Civil War, many small farmers began growing
cotton as a primary cash crop, a decision that proved fatal to their economic independence in a
period of steadily declining world prices. By the late 1880s, encumbered by debt and reduced to
tenant farming or sharecropping, thousands of white households in Louisiana and elsewhere in
the South found themselves trapped in a state of economic dependency.*®

“Rural and small-town merchants collectively constituted the common denominator linking
sharecropping and tenantry. The newly decentralized nature of staple production called for forms


https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up
https://www.census.gov/content/dam/Census/library/working-papers/2002/demo/POP-twps0056.pdf
https://www.census.gov/content/dam/Census/library/working-papers/2002/demo/POP-twps0056.pdf
https://www.rd.usda.gov/files/RR194.pdf

of credit distribution appropriate to the seasonal rhythms of a cash-crop agricultural economy,
and credit came to be provided in the form of supplies advanced by local storekeepers in
transactions secured under the legal rubric of the emergent crop-lien system. Small farmers were
squeezed from two sides under this credit system: On one hand, prices for goods purchased
under terms of credit began to reflect exorbitant rates of interest. According to historian Joe Gray
Taylor, ‘charges in the neighborhood of 40 to 50 percent seem to have been the norm in
Louisiana.”®® On the other hand, frequent crop failures and declining cotton prices made it
virtually impossible for small farmers to produce sufficient cotton to settle his accounts at year’s
end. As one political economist summarized the situation in 1894, ‘once in debt, [a farmer] was
forced to raise cotton to the neglect of corn and meat raising, no matter how ruinous [the
practice]. The debts of the farmer bound him to cotton. He was powerless.’?! By the end of the
nineteenth century, when credit-furnishing merchants had become a common fixture in the
Southern economic landscape, mercantile business practices came to shoulder much of the blame
assessed by contemporaries—as well as later historians—for the explosion of Populist agrarian
discontent in the 1890s.

“Despite an historiographical consensus regarding the central role played by rural merchants
in the postbellum Southern economy, historians have paid surprisingly little attention to their

individual activities or to the development of a mercantile class.”
Source: Merchants in the Transition to a New South: Central Louisiana, 1840-1880
https://www.]stor.org/stable/4233733

| bet they are ignoring it! And you’re about to find out why, starting after this next paragraph.

“Sharecropping continued to be a significant institution in many states for decades following the
Civil War. By the early 1930s, there were 5.5 million white tenant farmers, sharecroppers, and
mixed cropping/laborers in the United States; and 3 million Blacks. In Tennessee, sharecroppers
operated approximately one-third of all farm units in the state in the 1930s, with white people
making up two thirds or more of the sharecroppers. In Mississippi, by 1900, 36% of all white
farmers were tenants or sharecroppers, while 85% of black farmers were. In Georgia, fewer than
16,000 farms were operated by black owners in 1910, while, at the same time, African-
Americans managed 106,738 farms as tenants. Around this time, sharecroppers began to form
unions protesting against poor treatment, beginning in Tallapoosa County, Alabama in 1931, and
Arkansas in 1934. Membership in the Southern Tenant Farmers Union included both blacks and

poor whites, who used meetings, protests, and labor strikes to push for better treatment.”
Source: Sharecropping
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sharecropping

Note: Blacks were still under an extremely racist and violent government-sanctioned caste
system. The White sharecroppers were not. In fact, nearly all White sharecroppers still played
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an important role in enforcing the caste system. So, even if Blacks were not sharecroppers, they
were still very far from being free.

The Merchants

“Far from such metropolises, anthropologists and sociologists who studied small Southern towns
couldn’t help stumbling across Jews stocking inventory and seeking customers. Take the most
thoroughly rural state of the former Confederacy. In the Natchez of Deep South (1941), ‘the
wholesale merchants . . . who once rivaled the banks as credit agencies for planters were, with
one exception, Jews.” Had Allison Davis, Burleigh B. Gardner and Mary R. Gardner examined
Hattiesburg, they would have discovered that its downtown was no different. ... Historians are
never happier than when they can puncture myths and invalidate common belief. Revisionism is
generally rewarded in the profession. But the impact of merchants in the Southern Jewish past is
too pronounced to be contested, and too important to be ignored or forgotten. If the JHSSC
Jewish Merchant Project is correct in defining a merchant as ‘any individual selling goods,’ then
that category has embraced a huge swath of Southern Jewry. ... Unlike other Southerners, Jews
very rarely tilled the soil. They didn’t plant taters and didn’t plant cotton, which ensured that
they would not be easily forgotten. Their surnames were, after all, painted and inscribed on the
stores that dotted the region. Nor did Southern Jews, unlike co-religionists in cities elsewhere,

start their lives embedded in an industrial working class.”

Source: Merchants: The Marrow of the Southern Jewish Experience - Jewish Historical Society of South Carolina
https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/

““In the Cotton states, after the [American Civil] war...the Jew came down in force [and] set up
shop on the plantation,” observed Mark Twain in his 1897 essay ‘Concerning the Jews.” While
Twain spoke of an increased presence of Jews, several of his contemporaries focused on the
economic impact of their presence. Writing in Scribner’s Monthly in the early 1870s, Edward
King maintained that ‘the shrewd Hebrew’ had ‘entered into the commerce of the South’ and had
‘large establishments in all the planting districts.” Moreover, Scottish journalist Robert Somers
argued that ‘much of the storekeeping business is conducted by sharp, active young men of

Jewish aspect.””
Source: Jewish Economic History in the Gulf South
https://liberalarts.tulane.edu/news-events/news-from-the-field/cohen-apr-2013

“Robert Somers wrote of the South in 1871 that ‘much of the storekeeping business is conducted
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by sharp, active young men of the Jewish aspect ... sent down by firms in New York and other

large towns to sell goods at a profit of 100 to 200 per cent.””
Source: Builders of a New South: Merchants, Capital, and the Remaking of Natchez, 1865-1914 — p. 62
https://books.google.com/books?id=I-waBwAAQBAJ

“Writing from as far away as Tsarist Russia, Fyodor Dostoevsky also caught the drift. Writing in
1877, he mentioned how Jews ‘have already leaped en masse upon the millions of liberated
Negroes’ in the American South, ‘and have already taken a grip upon them in their, the Jews’
own way, by means of their eternal “gold pursuit” and by taking advantage of the inexperience
and vices of the exploited tribe.” The Russian novelist added that although ‘the Negroes have
now been liberated from the slave owners ... they will not last because the Jews ... will jump at
this new little victim.” If the freedmen were indeed victims of swindlers and profiteers, that
would explain the conjecture of historian Harold Cruse that ‘it was from the Jewish storekeeper
and trader that the Southern Negro got his latent antisemitism,” rather than from, say, Christian
mythology. A standard scholarly history of the South during the era of Civil War and
Reconstruction also notes how ‘the end of the war saw an invasion of Jews to reap a harvest in
trade.” E. Merton Coulter wrote that ‘the antebellum Jewish peddlers ... now settled down and
opened stores. Sticking to their business and treating the freedman as an important businessman,
not eschewing to call him “Mister,” they secured ... a great amount of the Negro’s trade.”*® Were
these transactions exploitative? It’s a loaded term, and can neither be dismissed entirely nor
casually accepted as true. Trade is supposed to benefit both buyer and seller, a win-win
proposition. But some Jewish merchants undoubtedly took advantage of caste privileges to cheat
their black customers, who were in no position to complain or to secure a remedy. ... In 1900, a
Savannah black entrepreneur addressed the National Negro Business League and appealed to
Northern black tradesmen to come South: ‘Come down and buy and sell to our people ... and you
will make money and have it, instead of the Hebrew having it, as he has it now.”*® Yet in the
decades after Emancipation, at the nadir of the experience of persecution, cruelty and violence,

Northern blacks understandably did not want to come to the South.”
Source: Merchants: The Marrow of the Southern Jewish Experience - Jewish Historical Society of South Carolina
https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/

“In the usual story of the Delta, little mention is made of Jews, who settled in the region starting
in the late 19th century. Jews were always a tiny percentage of the Delta’s population. They did
not work as sharecroppers and were rarely plantation owners. They were merchants, setting up
shop in countless Delta towns, many of which were little more than wide places in the road.
They established congregations and built synagogues in the Delta’s larger towns, in places like

Clarksdale, Greenville, Greenwood, and Cleveland.”
Source: Exploring the “Most Southern Place on Earth”


https://books.google.com/books?id=I-waBwAAQBAJ
https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/

https://www.myjewishlearning.com/2013/07/29/exploring-the-most-southern-place-on-earth/

“While the second phase of the war continued to be defined by economic survival, it was also
characterized by merchants returning to interior cotton towns and establishing or reestablishing
their businesses and the networks that facilitated the North-South cotton trade. This shift began
with the fall of New Orleans to the Union in 1862 but intensified the following year with Union
victories at Vicksburg and Port Hudson. These military successes opened the full length of the
Mississippi River for commerce, and global demand to restore the flow of cotton was
extraordinary. But resumption of the cotton trade was not easy; plantations lay in shambles, the
loss of life was staggering, and Confederates burned whatever cotton they could to keep it out of
Union hands. But in an attempt to meet this demand, merchants found opportunity in interior
cotton towns, leveraging networks to obtain cotton and credit and to provide an outlet for

whatever cotton they could secure.”
Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - pp. 71-72
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

“In the postbellum years, a myriad of structural forces aligned to position interior general store
merchants at the forefront of the cotton economy. The telegraph brought up-to-the-minute cotton
prices to interior markets, facilitating cotton sales closer to the point of production and bypassing
the need for factors in port cities. New compression equipment made it more efficient to prepare
cotton for transport directly from interior towns, usurping another prime function of the
antebellum cotton factor. Rapid expansion of railroad lines meant that cotton could now be
shipped overland, directly from interior markets to New York and other cities, and it also
fostered the development of new cotton market towns. Within those interior towns, the collapse
of Southern banks and Confederate currency meant that traditional financing structures could no
longer provide the credit necessary for the cotton economy. Instead, the burden fell to interior
general store owners, with capital saved from the war years or with credit networks to financial
centers such as New York. Jewish merchants, who had been concentrated in this niche at the
margins of the antebellum cotton economy, became the lifeblood of the Southern economy as the
changes of the postbellum years brought their niche into the mainstream.

“But despite the structural changes that positioned Jewish merchants for success in their niche
economy, that success was neither guaranteed nor linear, and it was closely linked to the
vicissitudes of the postbellum economy. Three distinct periods shaped mercantile life after the
war, and the ebbs and flows of these eras very much dictated both when and how businesses
could succeed. First, 1866-1867 was defined by floods, crop failures, disease outbreaks, and
depressed prices. Firms that had saved capital from the war often relied on these capital reserves
to survive, but new firms did not have that luxury. But in some of the region’s most important
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cotton towns, these new firms were predominantly operated by non-Jews, who were in the wrong
place at the wrong time, quickly extinguishing the burst of non-Jewish mercantile activity that
these merchants hoped would be their ticket to the bourgeoning industry. But the fortunes of the
region soon ticked upward, as a stronger economy defined a second period that lasted from 1868
to 1873. New businesses that emerged during this time generally found greater success than
those that had opened during the previous years’ economic downturn, and Jewish merchants,
who opened new businesses in the region in greater numbers during this period, were in the right
place at the right time. They worked directly with freedmen, which made good business sense,
broadening their customer base. But the Panic of 1873 ushered in the third period, 1873-1879,
which was accompanied in the ensuing years by yellow fever outbreaks, flooding, violence, and
political and legal instability, among other challenges—all of which made these years
particularly difficult for businesses. To survive these down years, merchants, Jewish and non-

Jewish, once again relied on ingenuity, capital reserves, and credit networks.”
Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - pp. 96-97
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

Side-note

Those yellow fever outbreaks are strongly connected to Rockefeller, the Marine Hospital
Service, the National Board of Health, the United States Public Health Service, and the
later creation of the NIH and its National Cancer Institute; along with the struggle for
quarantine powers. Rockefeller was also behind the U.S. CDC, China’s CDC, and the
creation of the World Health Organization as we know it today. In other words, those
yellow fever outbreaks were the birth of the infrastructure used for modern-day scam-
demics and government schemes using infectious diseases as weapons. “Disputes
between the three national government departments that already possessed medical
officers - the Army, Navy, and Marine Hospital Service - kept the idea of a central health
agency of the federal government from coming about. After a yellow fever epidemic of
1878 that swept through the Mississippi Valley, the Valley states felt that their only hope
against a future disaster was in a coordinated health service under national auspices. ...
When Congress convened in 1879, the sentiment of the public was unmistakable. There
must be no repetition of the disaster of 1878. The Army and the Marine Hospital Service
both sponsored bills relating to a National Health Department. The act that Congress
finally accepted in March of 1879 was sponsored by the American Health Association
and drawn by Mr. Eaton. It transferred from the Marine Hospital Service all the health
duties and powers conferred upon it up to that time, including all maritime quarantine.
The new act created a National Board of Health. ... When Congress was considering the
appropriation for the National Board that summer, the New Orleans press accused the
Board of ‘manufacturing yellow fever in the Mississippi Valley’ to frighten the national
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legislative body to give it more funds and continue its work.” (Source: The National Board of
Health - 1879-1883 by W. G. Smillie)

“Lehman Brothers worked with a plethora of firms, and in so doing assumed a central role in an
ethnic network that moved capital and credit to the Gulf South. Its ledgers from the late 1870s
through the 1880s read as a veritable ‘who’s who’ of Southern cotton businesses, allowing us to
reconstruct the network that Lehman Brother’s footprint left throughout the Gulf South. Here

again, these networks were built upon trust, and ethnicity mattered.”
Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen — p. 149
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

“Jewish merchants were particularly well poised to leverage these structural forces. Several of
the nation’s largest Jewish financial houses had escaped the war in a strong position and were
prepared to invest in the Southern market, reconstructing the same ethnic networks that had
emerged in the antebellum years. Lehman Brothers, for example, had speculated in cotton and
had made a fortune in the waning years of the war, and much of its postbellum investment was in
Southern cotton. Lehman Brothers worked closely with J. W. Seligman & Co. to bring global
capital to scores of cotton businesses throughout the Gulf South. While Gentiles operated many
of the businesses with which these firms worked, Jews operated a great number of them. In much
the same way as ethnic trust networks emerged in the antebellum years, these networks
blossomed in the new postbellum milieu. Once on the margins of the antebellum cotton industry,

Jewish merchants now concentrated in a niche economy that quickly became the mainstream.”
Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - p. 108
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

“With the utter collapse of the Southern economy in 1865, the Lehmans opted not to live and die
in Dixie. They moved most of the bank’s operations to New York City, while keeping important
family cotton enterprises in Montgomery and in New Orleans. The firm continued to provide
capital to scores of cotton merchants, most of whom were Jews. Some of the funds had been
generated by Lehman Brothers’ own businesses, and part was funneled from European and New
York Jewish-owned banks such as Hallgarten, Lazard Fréres, J. W. Seligman, M. & M. Warburg
and Kuhn, Loeb. Circulation of capital on this scale would have been difficult for members of

the National Negro Business League to replicate.”
Source: Merchants: The Marrow of the Southern Jewish Experience - Jewish Historical Society of South Carolina
https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/
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“In the case of cotton and the Gulf South, these family and ethnic connections mattered.
European banks financed much of America’s cotton industry, and businesses such as Lehman
Brothers cultivated overseas ethnic trust networks to access their capital. To facilitate these
global transactions, Lehman Brothers moved its flagship branch to New York, which was fast
becoming the center of both finance and the cotton industry, and which served as a gateway for
European investment. Scores of other Southern Jewish merchants also sent family members or
Jewish partners to New York, where they cultivated personal relationships with creditors, and
some opened branches there that provided them with direct access to credit and goods. These
firms then utilized their Southern branches to extend credit to smaller Jewish firms throughout
the interior—again, often through economic networks fostered by trust. In this way, Jewish
businesses in the Gulf South developed family and ethnic networks that provided desperately
needed credit to the war-torn South in a time of economic collapse, bank failure, and currency
devaluation. While some non-Jewish businesses followed a similar model, those that had been
reliant upon Southern banks or traditional sources of credit found themselves without the credit
needed to rebuild in the wake of the Civil War.?? Thus access to Northern credit in the years after
the war, when that credit was scarce, allowed Jewish merchants to survive years in which crops
were devastated by floods or when other circumstances occurred that prevented farmers from

paying their debts to their merchants.”

Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - pp. 20-21
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

“While ethnicity mattered, and many of the Black Belt firms with which Lehman Brothers
worked were operated by fellow Jews, Lehman Brothers did not limit its business to Jewish-
owned firms. It also worked with Renfro & Andrews, a wholesale grocery and provisioning
company in Opelika, Alabama, which had additional branches in Lafayette and Alexandria City.
Renfro & Andrews commenced business around 1872, and while it had taken on significant debt
by 1874, the firm was also doing ‘the largest [wholesale] business here.’ It was doing ‘a very
extensive [business] by advancing to “Farmers,”” and it had a cotton warehouse to supplement its
‘large mortgage business’ and cotton merchandise sales. Also in Alabama, Lehman Brothers
worked with the dry goods and grocery store of Wright, Frazier & Co., which by 1877 was
considered the ‘largest and safest’ business in town.*®

“Lehman Brothers also worked with non-Jewish firms outside of the Black Belt. Led by
Edmund Richardson and Augustus H. May, the New Orleans firm of Richardson & May also had
a close financial relationship with Lehman Brothers. Richardson & May was operational by
1867, and it took only a couple of years for the partners to be considered ‘wealthy.” By 1877, the
firm had become the ‘leading house in their line” and was deemed ‘probably the largest receivers
of cotton here,” worth an estimated $500,000 to $750,000. Members of the firm ‘generally pay
cash’ and ‘seldom + never’ ask for credit, and they ‘always have a surplus on hand for safe
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investments.” By 1880, Richardson & May was ‘considered to do the largest amount of cotton
and wealthiest,” and the partners also ‘stand high both commercially + socially.”*®

“Richardson & May did not operate only in the New Orleans market; it also controlled a large
and ‘presumably lucrative’ business, principally in Mississippi. One Dun recorder speculated
that Richardson was ‘said to be the richest man in the state.” He was also deemed the largest
owner of real estate in Mississippi, owning several plantations, and he was connected to Wesson
Mills in Copiah County. He had stores on ‘or near most of his plantations, where he usually has a
managing’ partner, for whom the support of Richardson & May carried a tremendous amount of
weight with credit reporters. Augustus May’s son also had the advantage of his father’s good
name, and his ‘connections are such as to assure them all the capital + assistance they may need.’
Another entry noted that May’s son ‘starts under favorable auspices, as his father—of the
wealthy Factorage house of Richardson + May, controls for him an extensive trade.”

“But a significant amount of Lehman Brothers’ business was transacted with fellow Jews, and
while this included firms in Vicksburg and the Bends and the Black Belt, Lehman Brothers also
worked with Jewish-owned firms that were located along the Mississippi’s tributaries. ...

“While Lehman Brothers worked with firms in the richest cotton lands and along river
tributaries, it also worked with businesses in interior railroad towns, including Meridian,
Mississippi. This included Marks & Lichtenstein, which emerged in 1873, grew rapidly, and
advertised ‘Choice Family Groceries, dry goods, boots, shoes, and plantation supplies.” One
credit reporter feared that it did not have enough capital to survive, but much of its growth was
likely due to its “very fair credit with certain houses in NY.” This included Lehman Brothers, as

the two firms transacted several thousand dollars’ worth of business in 1882.%%”

Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - pp. 155-156,
164
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Excerpts from Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era
by Michael R. Cohen

Julius Freyhan & Co.’s continued growth through the ups and downs of the economy was only
possible because of access to credit. In 1870 Freyhan was backed by his wife’s relative Leon
Adler, but a significant line of credit came from Lehman Brothers—a relationship that began as
early as 1877, although lost records may obscure an earlier connection. ...

While Freyhan, a Jewish merchant, shared an ethnic tie to Lehman Brothers, ethnicity also
mattered within his business; several of his most important and longest-tenured employees were
Jewish. Freyhan also hired family members. His business partners and later successors, Morris
and Emanuel Wolf, were his brothers-in-law. He also employed his nephew Morris Burgas, who
“kept the books, bought cotton and worked in Bayou Sara and St. Francisville.” He had an office
in Freyhan’s general merchandise store, and when Freyhan later moved to New Orleans, Burgas
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remained behind, in charge of buying cotton upstate and shipping it downriver. He also kept the
books for Freyhan’s Lane Cotton Mills, which was directly connected to Lehman Brothers.
Morris Burgas eventually struck out on his own, purchasing property from Freyhan and opening
a general merchandise store, and he continued to buy cotton and send it to New Orleans.™

With the credit extended by Lehman Brothers, Julius Freyhan could stock his shelves with
goods, selling those items for cash or on credit to his customers. ...

While Julius Freyhan & Co. offered credit to clients to purchase their goods, the firm also
played an informal banking role in West Feliciana Parish. “During much of the time of the firm’s
existence there was no bank in the parish,” noted the True Democrat. “Its operations had become
so extensive and its business relations with the public so intimate that it naturally was entrusted
with the care of the entire business of many of its patrons, a deposit there being considered as
safe as a deposit with any bank.”**

Freyhan was in the business of banking and selling on credit, and with the travails of the
economy and varying crop Yyields, it should come as no surprise that some of his customers
defaulted on their loans. When default occurred, land foreclosure was often the result. “The day
of reckoning came when the harvest was gathered,” noted the True Democrat, “and while the
records indicate oftentimes an exceeding leniency, J. Freyhan and Company became the owners
of a great deal of land.” Some people viewed Freyhan’s business “as an octopus, reaching out
tentacles to everything in sight,” the newspaper claimed. ... As a result of foreclosures and other
factors, Freyhan began to add a great deal of land to his portfolio. ...

Julius Freyhan & Co. thus provides an excellent example of how a business, with access to
Lehman Brothers credit, extended that credit to farmers and plantation owners throughout West
Feliciana Parish and beyond. However, there was another way for Lehman Brothers’ customers
in West Feliciana Parish and elsewhere to infuse that global investment through local economies,
and that was by selling at wholesale to smaller stores. These connections between wholesale and
retail firms were based on trust, and they were often between family members or those with
shared ethnicity.

While Julius Freyhan & Co. also had a wholesale operation, so, too, did the general store of
Picard & Weil, which was by many measures the second largest business in West Feliciana—
second only to Freyhan. Picard & Weil was a Jewish-owned firm that distributed Lehman
Brothers’ credit to other Jewish-owned firms in town. This firm was a partnership between
Simon Weil and his father-in-law Henry Picard, and it had begun its relationship with Lehman
Brothers by 1881. ... This credit facilitated the growth of their business.'” ...

Picard & Weil used Lehman Brothers’ credit not only to grow its own business but also to
offer credit to a network of local Jewish-owned businesses—particularly those of family
members. For example, backed by his brother Simon Weil, Lazard Weil opened a small business
in 1872, conducting “principally a negro trade” and selling “chiefly” to freedmen—much like
other Jewish-owned businesses in the early 1870s. His business continued to be “principally
confined to advancing to freedmen,” and he remained in business through 1880. Also “backed by
Picard & Weil” was S. Weil & Bro., carried on independently of Picard & Weil by Simon Weil



and a brother. This firm conducted a business “principally with negroes and small farmers.”
Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - pp. 170-174
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

And how did the Lehman brothers first gain their fortune?

Note: These Jewish merchants were connected to, and receiving Jewish privilege from, the
people who created the war, controlled the war, and controlled the banking system and economy
— the biggest thieves, conmen and mass murderers involved in the financial system and cotton
economy.

“In the antebellum years, Jewish merchants were on the margins of this booming cotton industry,
but three particular developments in this era laid the groundwork for their postbellum success.
First, Jewish merchants began to open general and dry goods stores in interior cotton towns.
When the traditional cotton factorage system would later break down, these interior general
stores would become the most important institutions in the cotton industry. Jewish merchants
would thus be in the right place at the right time, facilitating their entry into the cotton industry
and their integration into global capitalism. Second, a number of those Jewish merchants
accumulated a significant amount of capital during the antebellum years, providing them with the
resources to survive the disruption of the Civil War and to enter the postbellum years on sound
footing. And third, Jewish merchants began to establish family and ethnic networks that
connected partners within firms, brought global investment through New York to the Gulf South,
and provided credit to fellow Jewish merchants in the region. These three developments were
prerequisites that allowed Jewish merchants’ early toehold in the industry to later blossom into a

flourishing ethnic economy.”
Source: Cotton Capitalists: American Jewish Entrepreneurship in the Reconstruction Era by Michael R. Cohen - pp. 36-37
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

“‘For more than 300 years Jewish people have made their homes in South Carolina. Originally
welcomed as traders and merchants, they settled first in Charleston, Georgetown, and Beaufort,
but soon looked beyond these cities for opportunities to sell goods and set up shop,” says Lynn
Robertson, curator of the exhibit. ‘After 1865, Jewish merchants — many of German origin —
filled the commercial gaps on main streets left by the economic upheaval of the Civil War.
Beginning in 1881 the mass immigration of East European Jews to America brought these
newcomers to the South as well. Many, supplied and guided by regional wholesalers, began their
life in America as peddlers. By 1900, Jewish-owned stores were fixtures on downtown streets in

cities as well as in small towns across the state.””
Source: New Exhibit: “A Store at Every Crossroads: Documenting the Stories of South Carolina’s Jewish Merchants”


https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up
https://archive.org/details/CottonCapitalistsAmericanJewishEntrepreneurship/mode/2up

https://speccoll.cofc.edu/new-exhibit-a-store-at-every-crossroads-documenting-the-stories-of-south-carolinas-jewish-merchants/

“They are the Jews of the American South, fundamentally different from their Northern cousins,
and not simply because, historically, they assimilated more quickly and intermarried more
frequently. If the South, as Wilber J. Cash puts it in his classic The Mind of the South, is ‘part of
America and yet set apart most definitely from America, a nation within a nation,’ then Southern
Jews likewise are part of American Jewry but distinct, a people within a people. Southern Jews
have had a disproportionate effect on the history of their region. ‘Though Jews never comprised
more than 1 percent of the South’s population,” writes Louis Schmier in the Encyclopedia of
Southern Culture, ‘few phases of the Southern experience and few places in the South escaped
their influence.’... The Jews who lived in the South in the 18th and 19th centuries were almost
without exception peddlers and merchants — by the 1890°s their importance to the region's
economic well-being was such that a Georgia newspaper noted, with clumsy gratitude, ‘Where
there are no Jews there is no money’ — but in the decades immediately following the Civil War
they played an increasingly prominent role in the South’s political and social life as well. ... In a
perverse way, the persecution of blacks in the South served to deflect many potential problems
from the region’s Jews. Bertram Korn, a prominent scholar of Southern Jewry, argued that
blacks ‘acted as an escape valve in Southern society. The Jews gained in status and security from
the very presence of this large mass of defenseless victims who were compelled to absorb all of
the prejudices which might otherwise have been expressed more frequently in anti-Jewish
sentiment.” Approximately 40,000 Jews, most of them German immigrants, made their way to
the South in the fifty years between the end of the Civil War and the beginning of World War I.
The entrepreneurial and business skills of this group made the words ‘Jew’ and ‘shopkeeper’
synonymous in the Southern mind, and their names lived on long after they themselves were
gone: the Rich brothers in Georgia, the Thalhimers in Virginia, the Godchaux family in
Louisiana, the Levine brothers in North Carolina, Neiman and Marcus in Texas. And then there
were men like Oscar Straus and Adolph Ochs, who would go on to bigger and better things
elsewhere only after their forebears had first carved a niche for themselves in the South. Straus,
whose father was a peddler in Georgia, eventually became the owner of R.H. Macy’s in New
York; Ochs, whose mother was a charter member of Chattanooga’s United Daughters of the
Confederacy, bought The New York Times and turned it into a journalistic institution. Further
highlighting the accomplishments of the region’s Jews: no fewer than two dozen Southern towns
are named for Jewish peddlers or landowners, among them Marks, Mississippi; Kaplan,

Louisiana; and historic Manassas, Virginia.”
Source: A Tribe Apart: Jews of the American South - The Jewish Press
https://freerepublic.com/focus/fr/1401699/posts



https://speccoll.cofc.edu/new-exhibit-a-store-at-every-crossroads-documenting-the-stories-of-south-carolinas-jewish-merchants/
https://freerepublic.com/focus/fr/1401699/posts

“There is no denying how frequently Southern Jewry displayed a flair for enterprise. The
beginnings were invariably impoverished. But usually within a couple of generations, thanks to
fortitude and perseverance, astuteness and luck, material comfort had been achieved; and some
enjoyed genuine wealth. In virtually every city, a dry goods store became a major department
store: Godchaux in New Orleans, Thalhimers in Richmond, Goldsmith’s in Memphis, the Gus
Blass Company in Little Rock, Rich’s in Atlanta, Levy’s in Savannah, Cohen Brothers in
Jacksonville, Pizitz’s in Birmingham, Neiman Marcus in Dallas, Sakowitz’s in Houston, the May

Company in St. Louis, Hecht’s in Baltimore, and Garfinckel’s in Washington, DC.”
Source: Jewish Shopkeepers in the American South
https://www.myjewishlearning.com/article/jewish-shopkeepers-in-the-american-south/

“...thanks to fortitude and perseverance, astuteness and luck....”

“Gimbels, Macy’s, Filene’s, I Magnin, Neiman-Marcus, Bloomingdales, Bergdorf Goodman,
Rich’s of Atlanta, Kauffman’s of Pittsburgh, Lazarus of Columbus, Levi Strauss and even Sears-
Roebuck. All but the last were created by Jews and all were run by Jews, most of them dating
back to a German Jewish immigrant peddler who created a family dynasty. ... Neither Sears nor

Roebuck were Jews, but their partner, who soon bought them out, was.”

Source: Shopping the Rich Jewish History of Department Stores
https://boulderjewishnews.org/2012/shopping-the-rich-jewish-history-of-department-stores/

NEW BOOK: Blacks Picked Cotton, For Jewish Wealth
http://archive.today/VsAIW

Something similar, though not related to the NOI, happened with Jews denying having played a
role in the Confederacy. Once the information started getting out, several Jewish people started
putting the information out also. “We should be proud....”

FYT: I don’t indorse the NOI.

The Aftermath

“Their direct impact could not be fully and finally sustained, however. The decline of the
economic niche that Southern Jews enjoyed over a century ago can be attributed to multiple
causes, such as the emergence of investment banking; the rise of impersonal cotton exchanges;


https://www.myjewishlearning.com/article/jewish-shopkeepers-in-the-american-south/
https://boulderjewishnews.org/2012/shopping-the-rich-jewish-history-of-department-stores/
http://archive.today/VsAiW

the growth of new cotton-growing regions in Asia, Africa, and the American Southwest; and
periodic floods and insect infestation. The competition of mail-order companies such as Sears,
Roebuck made the brick-and-mortar stores less integral to the local economy. Though they
continued to appeal to customers, they began vanishing along with the yeomanry who once
shopped in them. A Department of Agriculture still exists, because farmers have remained
politically influential. But statistically they have become so insignificant that, according to the
latest census, they represent only 1% of the population. (Twice as many Jews live in
America.) Mechanical cotton pickers eliminated the need for cheap labor, and the men and
women who once picked cotton often migrated to Northern and Western cities. Competition
from behemoths like Walmart and www.amazon.com slammed the last nails into the coffins of

the general stores that had once flourished at the crossroads South.”

Source: Merchants: The Marrow of the Southern Jewish Experience - Jewish Historical Society of South Carolina
https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/

Excerpts from The Origins of Black Sharecropping

“Regardless of Supreme Court or federal resolve to insure freedmen’s Constitutional rights
beyond 1877, different policies may have arrested the drift towards institutionalized oppression
after Redemption. Chief among inhibitors to development and regional economic progress were
the financial and marketing intermediaries so crucial to staple agriculture. (Ransom and Sutch,
pp. 8-9, 12-13). The collapse of the Confederate monetary system was exacerbated by federal
banking regulations which discouraged development of national banks in agricultural regions, as
well as by federal taxes imposed on state-chartered banks. Indeed, the National Banking Act
(1864) cracked down on so-called wild-cat banks and heavily centralized banking operations in a
way that discouraged capital investment in the South and encouraged it in the urban, industrial
North.® Uncharted private banks—usually adjunct to other businesses such as general stores—
emerged to fill the artificial void created by these government policies.**

“These merchant-bankers could obtain a local monopoly power and exploit income generated
in Southern agriculture by charging excessive interest rates. Moreover, these merchants
encouraged dependence on cotton, and because landlords were as dependent on credit from
merchant-bankers as were tenant farmers, the South’s prosperity was curtailed by debt and the
wiles of fluctuating world cotton prices. Hence, financial institutions prevented savings and
investment and tended to stagnate the Southern economy. For this structural reason, the Southern
economy stayed disjunct from the rest of the national economy, which thrived during the same
time-frame. Moreover, the Southern Upcountry lost its characteristic self-sufficiency and became
more closely integrated into the rest of the South’s poverty and dependent on the same new
merchant class.*....

“Most figures used in attacking sharecropping as a racist, class imposition also come from
post-1890. By this time, railroads had penetrated the hinterland, a new merchant class had risen


https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/

in the towns and countryside, and debt cycles connected to merchant-banking and crop liens
were well advanced.®* ... The same dynamics and calculus that produced Northern political
dominance produced dominance in the field of finance. ... The North was more populous, in
addition to being more thoroughly franchised after the war; hence Northern interests dictated
federal Reconstruction policy, postwar Constitutional amendments, and federally chartered bank
policy. Moreover, it was Confederate fortunes that had been dashed. Many Northern fortunes had
been made by the Civil War, and it was this money there was to invest. It was natural the money
should be invested in the burgeoning cities and industrial potential of the North and Old
Northwest. It was natural that credit be extended to urban commercial enterprise in the North
over risky agricultural recovery in the South. ...

“Nevertheless, federal policies were particularly grievous to the South. The National Banking
System literally forbade use of real estate as collateral for loans, but land was all planters had left
after the abolition of slavery.® ... Numerous national measures provided positive incentive to
settle the West and to invest in the West, to the detriment of investment in the New South.
Moreover, the Immigration Act of 1864 legalized entry of contract labor from Europe and Asia
under terms worse than those of sharecropping (Heilbroner and Singer, pp. 141-145). The result
was an inexhaustible pool of cheap labor for the North and large capital reservoirs earmarked for
Northern and Western investment. The South’s economy stayed largely isolated, and the South

became a low-wage region in a comparatively high-wage country over time (Wright, p. 12).”

Source: The Origins of Black Sharecropping
https://www.jstor.org/stable/26475959?read-now=1&seq=15#page_scan_tab_contents

Who’s Story?

2 13

Take a look at these statements from a pro-Jewish article focusing on General Grant’s “anti-
Semitism” along with other “anti-Semitism” of the time. Notice what people were saying back
then, and see if it matches the information you’ve just read.

“Although anti-Jewish sentiment was apparent in the Union at the start of the war, it only
intensified as the war continued. Despite the North being the side to win the battles towards the
end of the war, anti-Semitism towards Jews only increased. Jews were accused of being disloyal
and siding with the Confederacy of being Demaocrats, or smuggling, supplying the Confederacy
and gold, speculating or financially ruining the nation. All Jews were viewed as peddlers, traders,
merchants, or bankers looking to get rich to the detriment of the North. The press and generals
within the Union army were the greatest proponents and disseminators of these ‘stereotypical’
views of American Jewry to the public. Throughout the war, Jewish loyalties were questioned in
both the North and the South, and depending on the region; they were accused of being traitors to
the other side. Most notably, in both the Union and the Confederacy, Jews were accused of not
fighting in the Civil War and instead were making money off the war. As Evans recounts, ‘That


https://www.jstor.org/stable/26475959?read-now=1&seq=15#page_scan_tab_contents

Jews didn't fight, but just made money off the war, is a canard that gained great currency in the
press during and in the years after the war.’

“The Northern press blamed all Jews for the economic troubles during the war, among the
accusations, The Jews were the secessionists, the ‘rebel spies,’ the ‘speculators,’ the
‘counterfeiters driving Anglo-Saxon firms out of business,” the ‘cause of the inflation.” The
scorn was specially reserved for Southern Jews; in the North, the press viewed them as ‘cunning
merchant-cheat and the speculator.” Southern Jews, particularly immigrants, had a bad reputation
within the South. As Evans observes, ‘The Southern press depicted Jews as “scavengers” who
were unpatriotic and therefore “un-Southern,” outsiders safely behind the lines, feeding off the
troubles of the South in its most desolate time.” The North was equally prejudiced against Jews
living in the Union, ‘accusing them of undermining the war effort and Jewish financiers of
making money off the war.” ... Union generals' anti-Jewish sentiment served as the primary
example of the anti-Semitism Jews experienced from the press and the public. As Korn indicates,
‘Some of the most prominent persons in the Union were imbued with prejudice against the
Jews.’

“One of the worst offenders was Major General Benjamin F. Butler of Massachusetts, who the
Confederacy named the ‘Beast.” According to Korn, Butler considered Jews ‘a tightly-knit and
highly-organized nation who set themselves apart and defended themselves against others even
when one of their groups was wrong.” Butler considered them all “traders, merchants, and
bankers.” Butler found the only Jews he came across had ‘been principally engaged in the
occupations [i.e. smuggling] which caused the capture which has occasioned this
correspondence.’ He accused all Jews of being disloyal and ‘supporting the Confederacy with
whole heart’ pointing out, ‘two of them certainly are in the Confederate Cabinet,” although only
Judah Benjamin was Jewish. ... The Northern was especially harsh in the Union-occupied
regions of the South. A northern Associated Press writer in New Orleans reported on three Jews
caught smuggling on Lake Pontchartrain, wrote, ‘The Jews in New Orleans and all the South
ought to be exterminated. They run the blockade, and are always to be found at the bottom of
every new villainy.” A Cincinnati Jew, who had been occupied Louisiana told Isaac Mayer Wise
about the press' attack on Jews, saying, ‘Local editors and correspondents of northern papers,
residing temporarily in [New Orleans], frequently ventilate their stupid prejudice against our race
in revolting newspaper hoaxes and downright lies.’

“The Northern press accused Jewish bankers of trying to ‘ruin’ the nation's finances; they
particularly attacked agent, August Belmont. The press' attacks were especially harsh on New
York Jewish bankers but also Jewish bankers at ‘any geographic points’ where the North and

Confederacy met.”

Source: Questioning Jewish Loyalty to the Union: Grant's General Order Number 11 and anti-Semitism during the Civil War

https://www.academia.edu/51071631/Questioning_Jewish_Loyalty to_the Union_Grants_General_Order Number_11 and_anti
Semitism_during_the Civil War
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https://www.academia.edu/51071631/Questioning_Jewish_Loyalty_to_the_Union_Grants_General_Order_Number_11_and_anti_Semitism_during_the_Civil_War

Sounds like a bunch of conspiracy theorists and anti-Semites to me.

And here’s an example of what we’re told today:

“The widespread economic exploitation of the Black community continued for generations after
slavery’s end, due to discrimination, violence, and terrorism. ...lynching that enforced white
supremacy through terror, sharecropping and disenfranchisement created a system of unchecked
racialized economic domination. ... Through sharecropping, white landowners hoarded the
profits of Black workers’ agricultural labor, trapping them in poverty and debt for generations.
Black people who challenged this system of domination faced threats, violence, and even
murder. Whites violently attacked and murdered Black people attempting to form sharecroppers’
unions in communities throughout the South in the early 20th century, including in Elaine,
Arkansas (1919); Camp Hill, Alabama (1931); and Lowndes County, Alabama (1935).”

Source: Sharecropping
https://eji.org/news/history-racial-injustice-sharecropping/

| just did a project on hip-hop music and the music industry (here or here), and it turns out that
the music industry has always been Jewish controlled. And from the very beginning they took
one type of Black music after another, after realizing its money-making potential, and showcased
it to the masses, making one genre of Black music after another in the industry. And since all
popular American music spawned from these different genres of Black music, this basically
created the music industry as we know it, still under their control. But in almost every single
case, if not every case, they would cheat and exploit the artists. And this is not even refuted by
historians; it’s just not brought up. In addition, the record labels were/are really just banks in
disguise, and record contracts are 100% like crop liens, which is the main reason why most
artists end up broke. Oh, and that ethnic network you’ve seen at work since the beginning of this
book, not only wasl/is it used to keep most of the money generated by artists confined within the
Jewish community, it was used to defame, attack, frame, and eventually kill Michael Jackson.



https://eji.org/news/history-racial-injustice-sharecropping/
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Puj1UF6Hbx_63GsblPN7ecspDe0565AJ?usp=share_link
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https://docs.google.com/document/d/1-dG-Ryyd2yrFqIKadlSg4w8uXs_4svUs/edit

Black-Jewish Relations in Commerce

This next portion of information comes from a very pro-Jewish article that is riddled with deceit,
justifications and contradictions, but if you can ignore it you can see the real truth. Note: What
you’re about to read focuses more on poorer Jews, but portrays them as all Jews.

Excerpts from Jewish Merchants and Black Customers in the Age of Jim Crow by Clive Webb

Before the end of the nineteenth century, Jews had established an eminent position within the
southern retail trade. As historian Stephen Whitfield asserts, “When we study the Southern
Jewish past in particular, we really mean business.”* Further research needs to be done in order
to assess accurately the scale of Jewish activity in all areas of retail. Anecdotal evidence does
nonetheless suggest that Jews were a significant economic force from the immediate postbellum
era onwards. Be it dry goods or groceries, clothing or kitchenware, Jews appeared to open their
stores at almost every country crossroads and on almost every city street. Frances Butler Leigh,
the daughter of a planter in Darien, Georgia, observed with obvious displeasure that “A good
many Israelites have found their way to this remote district,” each of them with "their tumble-
down shanties and Cheap Jack goods.” Such was the ubiquity of the Jewish storekeeper,
observed sociologist John Dollard, that southerners were wont to remark: “If there is a Jewish
holiday, you cannot buy a pair of socks in this whole country.”

It was through acts of commerce that African Americans and Jews in the South experienced
their most regular points of contact. A study of these commercial transactions, therefore, serves
as a prism through which to study the broader interaction between the two peoples. This article
examines Jewish businessmen in both rural and urban contexts. In the immediate aftermath of
the Civil War Jewish peddlers roamed the southern countryside selling their assorted wares.
Business success enabled them to establish their own stores which served as commercial centers
in many rural areas. By the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries Jewish merchants were
also well established in southern cities. The smaller of these stores traded exclusively with
African Americans. The larger ranked among the most successful department stores in the
region.

There are essentially two interpretations of the interrelationship between southern blacks and
Jewish businessmen. The first is most commonly associated with contemporary observers, both
black and white, who portrayed Jewish merchants as cunningly and mercilessly exploiting
African Americans. Such an interpretation is rooted in the traditional stereotype of the “shrewd
Hebrew” intent on amassing a personal fortune at the expense of others. Skilled in the art of
small talk, the Jewish merchant duped unsuspecting African Americans into buying goods they
did not need or receiving credit at a rate of interest they could not afford. As the German travel



writer Ernst von Hesse-Wartegg wrote of the Jewish merchants he encountered on his travels
through the Lower Mississippi in 1879-1880, “How wrong it would be to believe they have
become more high-minded and merciful in the American South than they were in Russia or
Poland.”® These accusations have in later years gained increasing currency among African
American writers. According to Harold Cruse, “it was from the Jewish storekeeper and trader
that the Southern Negro got his latent anti-Semitism.”’

The second interpretation can most clearly be seen in the often sentimental recollections of
Jews who grew up in the South during the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries.
According to this interpretation, Jewish merchants welcomed all customers without regard to
their race. Historian Louis Schmier has, for instance, painted a particularly romantic portrait of
the relationship between Jewish peddlers and their black customers. According to Schmier, the
relationship was based on mutual benefit and trust. The peddler for his part offered African
Americans fair prices and courteous treatment, which enabled them “to reclaim their dignity and
afford a better life.” In return, the black customer provided the peddler a regular income. As a
result, the interaction between Jewish peddlers and black customers assumed more than a purely
commercial character, binding them together through ties of loyalty and affection.? ...

The interaction began with those Jews at the lowest rung of the economic ladder, the peddlers.
Peddling was surely not the easiest way of making a living. With between fifty to seventy
pounds of goods stuffed into the pack on his back, and a further forty pounds strapped on in
front, travelling must have been exhausting. Squeezed into each pack, or “pekl,” was a variety of
merchandise including cloth, curtains, laces, needles and thread, ribbons, tablecloths, and
trinkets. With no horse or wagon to share his burden, the weary peddler walked the streets on the
outskirts of a city, or trudged the deserted and dusty paths from one remote farmhouse to the
next. ...

It is commonly accepted that peddlers derived much of their income through their trade with
impoverished rural blacks. ... Successful peddlers were eventually able to invest their earnings in
the establishment of a wholesale or retail store. Jewish store owners in the rural South earned a
bad reputation for their supposed mistreatment of black sharecroppers. The rates of interest
which they charged for credit purchases were allegedly exorbitant. As Mark Twain observed, the
Jewish merchants who established their businesses in the countryside after the Civil War
“supplied all the Negro's share of the present crop and of part of his share of the next one. Before
long, the whites detested the Jew and it is doubtful if the Negro loved him.”*°

It is uncertain whether or not the credit prices charged by Jewish merchants were exorbitant or
justified by market risk. According to Herschel Feibelman, Jewish businessmen “would lend
money, but they would also charge more than the larger groceries would charge.” Since stores in
poor rural areas operated on low profit and high risk it was inevitable that their owners should
charge higher interest rates. Feibelman nonetheless insists that greed also played its part. As he
puts it, Jewish merchants “took advantage of the whole pattern of society that was designed to
keep the black where he was.”*" This is not a statement of fact, but of opinion. What is needed is
a quantitative study of the interest rates charged by Jewish merchants. Only then will we be able



to determine if they deliberately exploited black sharecroppers. From another perspective, most
black storeowners, undercapitalized and struggling to remain in business, were unable to extend
credit to needy African Americans, and many white non-Jewish merchants were unwilling,
worried as they were that the more sharecroppers purchased on credit, the less likely they were
ever to pay the money back. By contrast, Jewish merchants earned a reputation for extending
credit to African Americans whenever it was needed. This they did cautiously. As Harry Golden
affirmed, the Jewish merchant sold to the sharecropper on credit “only on the same ledger sheet
with the name of the farmer from whom the Negro was renting or for whom he was
sharecropping. The ‘boss man,” as the Negro called the white farmer, had to go surety on the
credit sheet for the Negro's supplies.” Credit on condition, however, was better than no credit at
all. The system, as Sam Kallin suggested, worked to the mutual benefit of both the Jew and the
African American. Of the credit extended to sharecroppers, “the white owners of the farm would
stand good for it and we'd get paid for it next trip.” *°

It was not in remote rural areas but rather the towns and cities of the South where Jewish
merchants most commonly established their businesses. Peddlers who laid down their packs
and set up permanent places of business could seldom at first afford rents for shop space in the
more prestigious parts of town. Many settled on the other side of the railroad tracks, often
opening stores sandwiched between streets of black-owned homes. With his family living above,
behind or near the small wooden framed store, the East European Jew was one of the few whites
to be seen in the black section. These Jewish establishments provided one of the most familiar
points of contact between African Americans and Jews. ... Jewish names appeared above the
doorways of dry goods stores, clothing outlets, groceries, pawnshops and saloons. Nowhere was
this more obvious than on Beale Street in Memphis, commonly known as the black cultural
capital of the South. Nearly all the bars, clubs, and gambling joints had Jewish proprietors. As
George W. Lee remarked, Beale Street was “owned by Jews, policed by the whites, and enjoyed
by the Negroes.”°

Jewish merchants such as those on Beale Street earned a positive reputation for their
willingness to provide services that other retailers refused to offer. The treatment which African
Americans could expect from most white storeowners scarcely encouraged their business.
Always last to be served and seldom allowed to try on clothes, black customers were allowed
only to point at untried, ready-to-wear merchandise. It was only when the Depression left them
desperate for business that the majority of white merchants began to adopt a more amenable
attitude.?

Jewish tradesmen, in contrast, placed a much greater emphasis on personal service. By treating
African Americans with care and consideration, they accorded them a stronger sense of personal
respect than other storeowners. The historian Bell Wiley observed that the Jewish owner of a dry
goods store in his Tennessee hometown “got most of the black trade because he treated Negroes
as human beings and was kindly to them, taking time to joke, inquire about their families and
otherwise manifest interest in them.” Unlike other white businessmen, Jews extended such
courtesies in times of economic boom as well as bust. Jewish merchants therefore seemed more



sincere in their respect for African Americans. The civil rights activist Aaron Henry recalled
that the black community of Clarksdale, Mississippi preferred to trade with Jewish merchants
precisely because “you would consider them the better of the white element that you had
dealings with.”?

The greater willingness of Jewish businessmen to attract black customers can also be seen
through their use of advertising. Jewish merchants from the smallest storekeeper to the most
successful department storeowner advertised extensively in the black press. In January 1907, for
instance, readers of the Nashville Globe were met with an ominous message: “NOW IS THE
APPOINTED TIME.” Those who read past this dramatic headline discovered that this was less
an announcement of Judgement Day, than an invitation to buy “heavy fleece underwear” and
“Imported Fancy Sox” at “unheard of low prices.” The establishment where such offers were to
be discovered was “Nashville's Biggest Store! Hirshberg Bros.” As the Globe later observed,
Hirshberg Bros, was one of only two white stores in the entire city which advertised to its
readers. It was small surprise that the paper continued to “heartily recommend” the store.?? Black
newspapers across the South carried advertisements from other Jewish retailers, all encouraging
African Americans that their money was as good as that of any white person. A study of the
Atlanta Independent in 1907, for example, reveals a wide variety of Jewish advertisers, among
them grocer P. Laubenstein, tailors Kalish and Schwartz & Berin, store owners Eiseman Bros.,
and credit loan company Cohen and Russ.?

Another means by which Jews sought to attract African American customers was the
employment of a black salesperson. This provided prospective shoppers with a double incentive,
quality goods and more considerate service. As the Savannah Tribune observed, Jewish
storekeepers on the city's west side employed black sales clerks because they saw them as “a
great drawing card for Negro trade.” Savannah was not the only southern city where Jews took
the initiative in employing African Americans. Abe Goldstein, owner of a tire company in
Atlanta, appreciated the potential profit to be made long before his competitors. His decision to
hire O. B. Smith as a black salesman during the 1930s constituted a clear breach of conventional
employment practice.?” ...

One should nonetheless caution against arguing that there was a special relationship between
African Americans and Jews. Other marginalized immigrant groups including Greeks and
Chinese also traded openly with African Americans. In July 1899 five Sicilian storekeepers were
lynched in Tallulah, Louisiana. The murdered men had aroused the ire of the local community by
trading with black and white customers on an equal basis. ... Appeals to “buy black™ and help
establish a self-sustaining economy within the African American community were largely
ignored. As J. Harmon, Jr., put it, black consumers “could not be expected to give a man ten
cents for an eight-cent pound of sugar and two cents for race pride.” The Atlanta Independent
agreed. “If there is a Jew store on the corner and a Negro store around the block, or vice-versa,
and the Jew store sells for two or three cents less, the Negro will go to the Jew store because he
can get the same thing for less money.”

As this editorial suggests, there was initially a great deal of resentment that Jewish retailers



had attained their success at the expense of their African American rivals. This is certainly clear
from an address delivered by Hattie G. Escridge at the Atlanta University Conference of 1899. In
an impassioned speech on “The Need of Negro Merchants,” Escridge asserted that Jews attained
their wealth through the willful exploitation of others, none more so than African Americans.
When the Jew first settled in a black community he was often as poor as the other residents. Yet
soon, by selling unsuspecting blacks unwanted goods at grossly inflated prices, he “has a large
brick building, a number of clerks, and he and his family ride in a fine carriage drawn by
expensive horses.” African Americans would be better off buying from black business
establishments. Insisted Escridge, “I am sure what we might buy from the Negro could be no
more inferior than some of the things we have bought from the Jew, and | suspect his
recommendation of the article would be as truthful as that of the Jew.”** ... As has already been
suggested, African Americans resented what they believed to be their economic exploitation by
Jewish merchants. Bruce shared the same conviction that Jews were essentially parasites, living
off the producers of wealth. ... That professional success was most dramatically illustrated by the
scores of department stores operated by Jewish entrepreneurs across the South. Polish immigrant
Louis Pizitz arrived in the United States in 1889. After peddling his wares across Georgia, Pizitz
eventually opened a dry goods store in Birmingham. Such was the scale of his success that by
1937 the store was the largest of its kind in Alabama, employing some 750 people.*?

The experience of Louis Pizitz was characteristic of the striking business success achieved by
Jewish retailers throughout the South. Upon arriving in Richmond in 1842, William Thalhimer
opened a small dry goods store. Fifty years later Thalhimer Brothers was the largest department
store in the city and boasted branches throughout Virginia and North Carolina.** The triumphs of
Thalhimer and Pizitz were echoed elsewhere, with Jewish department stores to be found on the
streets of almost every major southern city. In Atlanta there was Rich's; in Birmingham,
Loveman, Joseph, & Loeb; and in Dallas, Sanger Bros, and Neiman-Marcus.*

The atmosphere which African Americans encountered in department stores was utterly alien
to that of the small independent retail establishment. When African Americans entered a Jewish
store in their own neighborhood, they were encouraged to leave their second-class citizenship at
the door. Department stores, in contrast, reinforced every idea of African American inferiority.
Reliant upon white customers for a high percentage of their profit, Jewish department store
owners were bound by local law and custom. Water fountains, restrooms, and restaurants were
rigidly segregated. Such facilities were not just separate and unequal, sometimes they did not
exist at all. Dan Phillips, whose family operated the M. M. Cohen department store in Little
Rock, Arkansas, testified that African American women even “had a problem buying
foundations, because stores didn't want them to try them on.” Where Jewish storeowners in black
neighborhoods might employ black sales clerks, there was no such sign of them on the sales
floors of southern department stores. “There were no black employees in selling,” admitted
Richard Pizitz, son of Louis, “they were essentially in house keeping, restaurants and back
functions.”*®

The discrimination suffered by African Americans unsettled those Jews who became actively



involved in southern liberalism during the inter-war years. These activists found it increasingly
difficult to reconcile the social activist teachings of their religion with the blatant segregationism
of many Jewish businessmen. Evidence of this can be found in a caustic item of correspondence
written by David Pierce, which appeared in a 1925 edition of The Crisis, the official publication
of the National Association for the Advancement of Colored People (NAACP). Pearce, himself a
southern Jew, complained that Jewish merchants were so dependent upon the goodwill of their
white customers that they did not dare to extend even basic courtesies to African Americans.

The Jewish tradesman, he alleged, “is satisfied to accept the situation as he finds it. He must
make money, he must be in the good graces of his gentile neighbors, and whatever personal
inclination he may possess to combat Negro hatred must be suppressed in the more vital and
immediate issue of earning a livelihood.” In April 1936, The Crisis printed a letter from Samuel
Rosenberg of Hampton, Virginia, which blamed the exploitative practices of Jewish merchants
for sinking African Americans deeper into the doldrums of the Depression. “One of the obstacles
which helps to lower his standard of living is the retail merchant . . . Southern Jews from Rabbis

to merchants regard the Negro as a second or third class being.”*’
Source: Jewish Merchants and Black Customers in the Age of Jim Crow by Clive Webb

https://www.bjpa.org/content/upload/bjpa/webb/Webb-
Jewish%20Merchants%20and%20Black%20Customers%20in%20the%20Age%200f%20Jim%20Crow.pdf

- “The second interpretation can most clearly be seen in the often sentimental recollections of
Jews who grew up in the South during the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries.
According to this interpretation, Jewish merchants welcomed all customers without regard to
their race.” He claims that the first interpretation is from people who saw it or went through it,
and the topic was about being cheated. The second is from Jews, and is about how Blacks were
welcomed. ... cheated vs. welcomed.

- “Jewish store owners in the rural South earned a bad reputation for their supposed mistreatment
of black sharecroppers. The rates of interest which they charged for credit purchases were
allegedly exorbitant.”

- “Jewish merchants such as those on Beale Street earned a positive reputation for their
willingness to provide services that other retailers refused to offer. The treatment which African
Americans could expect from most white storeowners scarcely encouraged their business.
Always last to be served and seldom allowed to try on clothes, black customers were allowed
only to point at untried, ready-to-wear merchandise. ... Jewish tradesmen, in contrast, placed a
much greater emphasis on personal service. By treating African Americans with care and
consideration, they accorded them a stronger sense of personal respect than other storeowners.”
With what percentage of Jewish owned stores was this the case? It’s being stated like it was
100%. And when it was the case, why was it being done? A careful examination of the history
of Black-Jewish relations reveals a pattern that suggests that most instances of this were most
likely just a show put on to get black people’s money. It’s just like the liberal Jews they spoke of


https://www.bjpa.org/content/upload/bjpa/webb/Webb-Jewish%20Merchants%20and%20Black%20Customers%20in%20the%20Age%20of%20Jim%20Crow.pdf
https://www.bjpa.org/content/upload/bjpa/webb/Webb-Jewish%20Merchants%20and%20Black%20Customers%20in%20the%20Age%20of%20Jim%20Crow.pdf

in the Civil Rights Movement — why were they really there, and why did they really say and do
what they did? As stated: “The historian Bell Wiley observed that the Jewish owner of a dry
goods store in his Tennessee hometown ‘got most of the black trade because he treated Negroes
as human beings and was kindly to them, taking time to joke, inquire about their families and
otherwise manifest interest in them.’” That doesn’t mean he actually liked them! Also stated:
“Another means by which Jews sought to attract African American customers was the
employment of a black salesperson. This provided prospective shoppers with a double
incentive... As the Savannah Tribune observed, Jewish storekeepers on the city's west side
employed black sales clerks because they saw them as ‘a great drawing card for Negro trade.’”
Like I said, “Why?” He later states: “When African Americans entered a Jewish store in their
own neighborhood, they were encouraged to leave their second-class citizenship at the door.
Department stores, in contrast, reinforced every idea of African American inferiority.” So, in the
White neighborhoods, when most of the customers were White, all of that welcoming kindness
to Blacks was gone. And he blamed it on White society.

And you just read paragraph after paragraph on how Jewish merchants enslaved Black and White
sharecroppers through debt, and raped the South till it was ruined. And it’s an established fact
that the merchants Blacks did business with would almost always cheat them and do dirty,
underhanded tricks to make sure they stayed in debt. But this guy is portraying those merchants
as fair and honest, and basically saying that all of the complaints and negative statements are
conspiracy theories and stereotypes.

Like always, when you see that all, or the majority, of the people who are screwing you over are
Jewish and you speak about it, it’s called a myth or anti-Semitism. It’s not what you and your
people have been experiencing first-hand for years. And when Jewish people are to blame ... just
blame it on non-Jewish White people. Here’s an example of what I was talking about when I
mentioned how deceptive that article actually is.

Excerpts from Jewish Merchants and Black Customers in the Age of Jim Crow by Clive Webb

The actions of the Jewish merchant were also impeded by another powerful ideological force,
anti-Semitism. African Americans' attitudes towards Jews were shaped by the Protestant
fundamentalist culture of the South. The conception of Jews as Christ killers, first learned by
their forebears on the plantations of the Old South, continued to exert a powerful influence in the
postbellum era. Not only had Jews rejected Jesus, but their every action was impelled by sinful
impulses. ... As this editorial would suggest, religious and secular stereotypes intersected in the
minds of many African Americans to create the caricature of the immoral and avaricious Jewish
merchant. Although African Americans did not entertain any ideas about Jews that were not



commonly shared by whites, anti-Semitism was clearly widespread within the black community.
“The Jews,” asserted William Wells Brown, “are good only at driving a bargain and getting
rich.”*

The black folklore of the time is full of tales about the unscrupulous Jew. North Carolina
blacks told of Jim Johnson, who bought a suit at Mr. Rubenstein's store. The first time Johnson
wore the suit, he found himself caught in the rain. So badly did the suit shrink, that the trousers
ended up around his knees, and the coat would not button. Enraged, Johnson returned to the
store, where he asked the proprietor, “Mr. Rubenstein, does you remember me, Jim?” To which
the Jew replied: “Sho, | remembers you,” looking at the suit, “but my! how you has growed!”
Similarly, the Huntsville Gazette ran a story concerning a shoe-store owner named Hoffenstein.
In this tale, Hoffenstein attempts to sell a pair of shoes which he claims are made of the finest
Prussian leather. When the customer tries them on, they are evidently too tight. “You don't vant
to buy a pair uf shoes more as dree sizes too big,” retorts Hoffenstein, “und go around de ladies
mit your feet looking like a gouple of railroad scrapers.” When the customer does agree to buy
the shoes, he is appalled to learn that they cost six dollars. After much protest, Hoffenstein
lowers the price to four dollars. Although the wholesale price for the shoes was a mere one dollar
and fifty cents, Hoffenstein is aghast. “My g-r-r-acious,” he exclaims, “dink how small de profit
vas.”

So strong a hold did these ethnic stereotypes have on the imaginations of African Americans
that they often refused to accept even the kindliest behavior of Jewish merchants on face value.
The novelist Richard Wright recalled of his childhood in Mississippi and Arkansas that African
Americans held an irrational hatred of Jewish merchants. Although the owner of one store had
done nothing to exploit his African American customers, Wright and his friends would,
whenever he walked past, sing: “A rotten egg/Never fries/A cheating dog/ Never thrives.” Black
sociologist St. Clair Drake remembered a similar episode which occurred as he walked past the
house of a Jewish family who owned a chain of stores in Staunton, Virginia. The lady of the
house invited Drake and his grandmother in for a glass of water, which they accepted. No sooner
had Drake returned home, however, than his grandmother solemnly warned him: “They'll cheat

you. You got to be careful.”®

Source: Jewish Merchants and Black Customers in the Age of Jim Crow by Clive Webb
https://www.bjpa.org/content/upload/bjpa/webb/Webb-
Jewish%20Merchants%20and%20Black%20Customers%20in%20the%20Age%200f%20Jim%20Crow.pdf

- “African Americans' attitudes towards Jews were shaped by the Protestant fundamentalist
culture of the South. The conception of Jews as Christ killers, first learned by their forebears on
the plantations of the Old South, continued to exert a powerful influence in the postbellum era.”
As stated in the last chapter: “If the freedmen were indeed victims of swindlers and profiteers,
that would explain the conjecture of historian Harold Cruse that ‘it was from the Jewish
storekeeper and trader that the Southern Negro got his latent antisemitism,’ rather than from, say,
Christian mythology.”


https://www.bjpa.org/content/upload/bjpa/webb/Webb-Jewish%20Merchants%20and%20Black%20Customers%20in%20the%20Age%20of%20Jim%20Crow.pdf
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- “As this editorial would suggest, religious and secular stereotypes intersected in the minds of
many African Americans to create the caricature of the immoral and avaricious Jewish
merchant.” It was all in their heads. “Although African Americans did not entertain any ideas
about Jews that were not commonly shared by whites, anti-Semitism was clearly widespread
within the black community.” These ideas, this “anti-Semitism,” was clearly widespread within
the Black community? So, most of our people felt this way about Jews back then? And if it was
so widespread, maybe it was so because the foul treatment was so widespread. And he said
Blacks had the same ideas about Jews that Whites had. So, White people couldn’t stand Black
people, due to being programmed with racism (which we’ll get to in the next chapter), and Black
people couldn’t stand White people, because of what they’ve said and done to them, but one
thing they both could agree on.... But it’s not based on anything factual?

- “So strong a hold did these ethnic stereotypes have on the imaginations of African Americans
that they often refused to accept even the kindliest behavior of Jewish merchants on face value.”
Maybe it’s because it wasn’t a stereotype, nor something imagined! Maybe it’s because over
time they learned it was all a trick; they realized it was just a front. As someone who has not
experienced this, but has researched real Jewish history, Jewish beliefs, and Jewish relations
with Blacks I know that this sort of trickery was so wide-spread and done so regularly that it
leaves me with no choice but to doubt and be suspicious of kind behavior from a Jewish person.
And I’'m nowhere close to being racist against any group of people, but the deceit and trickery is
so prevalent that | have no choice but to question (question, not condemn).

And notice how if you’re talking about what some Whites did to Blacks, it’s a fact; it’s a pattern
of abuse; it’s a history of mistreatment and exploitation; and it’s okay to talk about what those
people did to you and your people. But if they’re Jewish....

“Evidence is limited, but some Jewish shopkeepers nevertheless allowed blacks to try on clothes
before deciding whether to purchase them. In Jackson, for example, Cohen Brothers permitted
blacks to try on clothes. According to Edward Cohen, the store became ‘the only white-owned
business with an integrated rest room and water fountain.’* In Asheville, the Savannah-born
Harry Winner hired a black elevator operator as a sales clerk. Her job might have sparked a
boycott. But Winner successfully persuaded other department store owners to employ black
sales clerks on the same day, thus avoiding retribution at Winner’s Department Store, which also
became the first to display an African-American manikin.*® A few Jewish merchants advertised
in the black press and even hired black clerks. In mid-century Natchez Jewish firms allowed
members of the black bourgeoisie to open up charge accounts, and gave such customers the right
to try on clothes as well as the dignity of being addressed with ‘Mrs.” and ‘Mr.” In Atlanta some

Jews even extended credit to blacks who tended to live on the edge of financial calamity.”
Source: Merchants: The Marrow of the Southern Jewish Experience - Jewish Historical Society of South Carolina



https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/

Evidence is limited? Then why is it being made to seem like it was widespread? And the entire
paragraph translates to: I want Black business.

This next article is somewhat long, but it’s an eye-opener. It picks up where we left off in the
story of Black-Jewish relations. Let’s see if anything changed.

JEWISH EXPLOITATION OF AFRICAN-AMERICAN GHETTOS

https://archive.ph/eDh6N
Also archived here.

- “Behind every hurdle that the Afro-American has yet to jump, stands the Jew who has already
cleared it. Jewish shopkeepers are the only remaining ‘survivors' in the expanding black ghettos
... the lack of competition in the area allows the already-exploited blacks to be further exploited
by Jews...”

- “In 1967, Harry Golden put an apologetic, noble breadwinner spin on Jewish economic pre-
eminence in America's ghettos, and that massive Jewish exploitation of the African-American
poor had its positive sides: ‘The Negroes burned the Jewish stores in Watts in 1965 and Jewish
stores in Detroit twenty years earlier, because, in the main, Jewish stores were the only ones to
burn. The Jew was often the only white man in a Negro ghetto. He was there because he was
willing to take a chance he could make a modest living out of the poverty-stricken slum ... In
countless instances, the Jewish store was the place to which the Negro came when in trouble,
when a Negro parent needed a lawyer, or advice on other important matters. | do not mean that
there was no exploitation of the slum Negro. Indeed there was. The poor always pay more for
less and the Negro is no exception.” [GOLDEN, H. 1967, p. 61-62]”

- “‘High public profile as Jews was anathema,’ notes David Levering Lewis about decades of
Jewish civil rights involvement, ‘Support of and participation in the Afro-American civil rights
movement was seen ... as a stratagem exactly meeting Jewish needs ... [LEWIS, p. 554-555] ...
Upper class Jews ... increasingly encouraged the new Afro-American leadership ... which
employed agitation and publicity as principal weapons to force the glacial pace of civil rights. By
establishing a presence at the center of the civil rights movement with intelligence, money, and
influence, elite Jews and their delegates could fight anti-Semitism by remote control.” [LEWIS,
p. 555] In academe, notes Irving Horowitz, ‘while other minorities such as blacks, women, and
gay-rights activists take a high profile, the Jewish group has opted for a low profile.’
[HOROWITZ, 1., p. 91]”



https://merchants.jhssc.org/narrative/merchants-the-marrow-of-the-southern-jewish-experience/
https://archive.ph/eDh6N
https://web.archive.org/web/20210119235747/https:/www.islam-radio.net/thetruth/exploit.htm

The Jewish involvement in the Civil Rights Movement is always brought up as if the Civil
Rights Act and other changes that came out of that movement didn’t benefit them. And what
about the new age feminist movement that we see today, and other agendas? They couldn’t have
even happened without the passage of those laws. “Fifty-two years ago, the world changed for
American working women. That was the year Congress enacted the Civil Rights Act of 1964.
While it was a landmark achievement for African-Americans’ struggle for equality, the statute
also opened up significant opportunities for women and others. Title VII of the law barred
employment discrimination on the basis of race, national origin, color, religion, and — in an 11th-
hour addition — ﬂ.” (Source: This Women’s History Month, Celebrate Title VII for Banning Sex Discrimination in the
Workplace)

“Jacob Koppel Javits was an American lawyer and politician. During his time in politics, he
represented the state of New York in both houses of the United States Congress. A member of
the Republican Party, he also served as the state's Attorney General. Generally considered a
liberal Republican, he was often at odds with his own party. A supporter of labor unions, Great
Society and civil rights, he played a key role in the passing of civil rights legislation. ... Born to

Jewish parents, Javits was raised in a tenement on the Lower East Side of Manhattan.”
Source: Jacob Javits
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Jacob_Javits

Jacob K. Javits
http://archive.today/29VsC

Now watch 3:15 - the end of this video.

September 27, 1966: MLK—A riot is the language of the unheard
https://youtu.be/ KOBWXjJv5s?t=195

A Jewish New York Senator who grew up in a New York tenement asked that question. Of all
people.... And how do you think he truly felt about Blacks?

Now think back to how LBJ and others were done with MLK after that. “And when he opposed
the war the fake smiles definitely changed. Even so, the establishment considered it a shock, a
disgrace even, that King, in a speech he gave a year before he died, expressed his opposition to
America's military involvement in Vietnam. President Lyndon B. Johnson was outraged at what
he considered King's lack of gratitude. Johnson had supported the Civil Right's bill and the
Voting Rights Act, but after King's criticism of the war, the president reportedly referred to King

as “‘that godd---ed n---er preacher.’” (Source: Martin Luther King Jr.'s opposition to Vietnam enraged even some



https://www.aclu.org/news/womens-rights/womens-history-month-celebrate-title-vii-banning-sex
https://www.aclu.org/news/womens-rights/womens-history-month-celebrate-title-vii-banning-sex
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Jacob_Javits
http://archive.today/29VsC
https://youtu.be/_K0BWXjJv5s?t=195
https://www.nola.com/opinions/article_4f5d22f0-c1c4-5341-87ea-bd51f84f0f56.html

allies: Jarvis DeBerry) FYI: MLK didn’t know people were around him just to use him, just as
Malcolm X didn’t realize he was in a cult.

“After fleeing Nazi Germany in 1937, Joachim Prinz, a rabbi, tackled injustice in America. He
became the first rabbi to reach out to Martin Luther King Jr. and later spoke during the 1963
March on Washington.... For Jews, much of the impetus to align with African Americans came
after the domestic terrorism perpetrated against Jewish buildings and institutions during the late
1950s, including The Temple in Atlanta and Temple Beth El in Birmingham, Alabama, both in
1958. This has a disturbing correlation today, Butler said, showing information from the Anti-
Defamation League documenting the doubling of incidents of vandalism, harassment, and assault
during the last five years. These acts were part of the overarching violence that happened during
the Civil Rights Movement, Butler said, ‘and so the effect of this was to have many people who
were in the Jewish community decide to get involved in the Civil Rights Movement, not simply
because it was the right thing to do but because this was an existential threat against their own

communities.’”
Source: ‘Then and Now: Black-Jewish Relations in the Civil Rights Movement’
https://penntoday.upenn.edu/news/black-jewish-relations-civil-rights-movement

Cynthia McKinney: Tentacles of The Israel Lobby
https://odysee.com/@ZionistReport:6/cynthia-mckinney-%F0%9F%90%99-tentacles-of-the:c
*She’s not an anti-Semite.

Alternative sources

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=cYDu30Pb418

https://vimeo.com/568889568
https://www.facebook.com/CanaryMission/videos/the-anti-semitism-of-cynthia-mckinney/524629338661518/

Can someone please tell the Jewish community to stop pointing to Jews in the Civil Rights
Movement as proof that Jews stand with Blacks or are not racist against Blacks. Stop the
nonsense. And Jewish people using Blacks and racism against Blacks (mostly Jewish media
fabricated racism against Blacks) to get laws passed to protect “all of us” (really Jews) is still
going on to this day.

From a study in Harlem (40% Puerto Rican, 30% black and 20% white)

Their lack of shopping sophistication and their vulnerability to “easy credit” would suggest
that many low-income families encounter serious difficulties as consumers. The study found this
to be true. One in every five had experienced legal pressures because of missed payments. Their
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https://vimeo.com/568889568
https://www.facebook.com/CanaryMission/videos/the-anti-semitism-of-cynthia-mckinney/524629338661518/

goods were repossessed, their salaries were garnished or they were threatened with garnishments.
Many of the families in this position had heavy credit obligations that reached crisis proportions
when their income was suddenly reduced through illness or unemployment. ... Inability to
maintain payments was not the only problem these consumers encountered. A much larger
proportion—almost half of the sample—encountered difficulties because of the unethical and
illegal practices employed by the merchants. This group includes families who were seduced by
“bait advertising” and high-pressure salesmen into buying much more expensive merchandise
than they had intended to buy, families who were given erroneous information about the costs of
their purchases and families who were sold as new, merchandise that had been reconditioned.

The many incidents of “bait advertising” uncovered in the study can be illustrated by this
typical experience of a 26-year-old Negro housewife:

I saw a TV ad for a $29 sewing machine, so | wrote to the company and they sent
down a salesman who demonstrated it for me. It shook the whole house, but | wanted to
buy it anyway. But he kept saying it would disturb the neighbors by being so noisy and
he went out into the hall and brought in another model costing $185.... | actually had to
pay $220. He promised if | paid within a certain amount of time | would get $35 back.
But since my husband was out of work, we couldn’t pay within the time period, so I
didn’t get the refund.... I was taken in by the high-pressure sales talk.

It should be noted that these high pressure techniques often result in converting cash
customers into credit customers. People who have every intention of paying cash when they
answer the advertisement for the cheaper item suddenly find themselves buying much more
expensive merchandise on credit. ...

| am sure that the proportion of families who are victimized by unscrupulous salesmen is
much greater than our study uncovered, simply because many of these families do not realize
that they have been cheated. This discovery is often made by accident. For example, a family
may learn that it was sold a reconditioned TV set only when so informed by the repairman, or
they may learn from a friend that a particular item could have been obtained elsewhere for much
less. Occasionally one of these consumers would learn that he was overcharged by having an
item appraised. One middle-aged Negro housewife told us that she agreed to buy her daughter a
watch that a door-to-door salesman was selling for $60. “T gave him $3 down and got a payment
book in the mail. About a month later | had the watch appraised in a 125" Street store and |
found it was worth only $6.50” This woman tried to break the contract but did not succeed.

When she stopped payments the company sued her and won a judgment by default.
Source: The Merchant and the Low-Income Consumer
http://www.jstor.org/stable/4466140

I don’t agree with the heart of racism that this is coming from, nor the generalizations, but listen
to what Malcolm X was saying in the 1960°s and see if it matches what you’ve just read.


http://www.jstor.org/stable/4466140

Malcolm X on the Jews
https://www.bitchute.com/video/uvnwIJNxXHOAY i/

Alternative Sources
https://www.bitchute.com/video/ygSDXYIM4ikm/
https://www.brighteon.com/00000000-0000-0000-0006-008632805001

Malcolm X said this in the 60s and it’s STILL relevant today!!
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=aNKhfsxnOmM

“Parasitism is a close relationship between species, where one organism, the parasite, lives on or
inside another organism, the host, causing it some harm, and is adapted structurally to this way
of life. ... Parasites reduce host fitness by general or specialised pathology, from parasitic
castration to modification of host behaviour. Parasites increase their own fitness by exploiting
hosts for resources necessary for their survival, in particular by feeding on them and by using
intermediate (secondary) hosts to assist in their transmission from one definitive (primary) host
to another. ... Parasitism is a kind of symbiosis, a close and persistent long-term biological
interaction between a parasite and its host. Unlike saprotrophs, parasites feed on living hosts,
though some parasitic fungi, for instance, may continue to feed on hosts they have killed. Unlike
commensalism and mutualism, the parasitic relationship harms the host, either feeding on it or,

as in the case of intestinal parasites, consuming some of its food.”
Source: Parasitism
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Parasitism



https://www.bitchute.com/video/uvnwJNxHOAYi/
https://www.bitchute.com/video/ygSDXYlM4ikm/
https://www.brighteon.com/00000000-0000-0000-0006-008632805001
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=aNKhfsxnOmM
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Parasitism

Racism aqgainst Blacks

Creating Racism

Did Jews play a role in creating racism against Blacks? Just a “minor role.”
Let’s start with the Edomites/Idumeans. Who were the Edomites?

“Traditional enemies of the Israelites, the Edomites were the descendants of Esau who often
battled the Jewish nation. Edom was in southeast Palestine, stretched from the Red Sea at Elath
to the Dead Sea, and encompassed some of Israel's most fertile land. The Edomites attacked
Israel under Saul's rulership. King David would later defeat the rogue nation, annexing their
land. At the fall of the First Temple, the Edomites attacked Judah and looted the Temple,
accelerating its destruction. The Edomites were later forcibly converted into Judaism by John
Hyrcanus, and then became an active part of the Jewish people. Famous Edomites include

Herod, who built the Second Temple.”
Source: The Edomites
https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/the-edomites

Note: The forced conversion, but not the conversion, is disputed by some scholars.

“Though historians understand that Antipater’s family converted to Judaism in the second
century BCE, different stories had circulated in the wake of his sons coming to power. They
demonstrate the tensions that existed between the Jewish people and the powerful Idumaeans
who appear at this time. Nicolaus of Damascus, the court historian for Herod, wrote that Herod’s
ancestors were among the historical elite in Jerusalem who had been taken by King
Nebuchadnezzar into Babylonian captivity in the sixth century BCE. This account serves two
purposes; when the Persian King Cyrus sent the captives in Babylon back to Judea, it is likely
that some chose to settle elsewhere. A legitimate dispersion such as this would shroud the fact
that Herod’s ancestry is undocumented in the meticulous records of returned Jewish families.
Claiming a heritage among the Jews from as early as the Babylonian captivity provides
credibility for a pro-Roman and Hellenized Herod as a King over the Jews, for they were highly
contemptuous of him. Josephus explains this rendering by critiquing its author: Nicolaus wrote to
please Herod and would do so at the cost of truthfulness. Instead Josephus explains that
Antipater's family converted to Judaism during the forced conversions by the Sadducee-


https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/the-edomites

influenced Hasmonean leader John Hyrcanus. Hyrcanus threatened that any Idumeaan who
wished to maintain their land would need to be circumcised and enter into the traditions of the
Jews. Forcible conversion was not recognized by the dominant Pharisaic tradition, so even
though Antipater and Herod the Great may have considered themselves of the Jewish faith, they
were not considered Jewish by the observant and nationalist Jews of Judea. This influential
family was resented for their Edomite ancestry, their Hellenistic incursions upon Jewish

tradition, and their collusion with the Roman invaders.”
Source: Antipater the Idumaean
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Antipater the Idumaean

Lying about being able to trace his ancestry back to real Jews, where have | heard that before?
FYI: There were now two types of Jews — people who were Israelite/Jewish by ethnicity/genetics
and religion, and people who were Edomite by ethnicity and Jewish by religion. And to make
matters worse, observers who wrote about Jews after this time period would refer to the religion
of the people they were seeing. So, if you claim to be able to trace your ancestry back to “Jews”
who lived in or around Europe hundreds of years after this, that does not mean you actually can
do so, nor does it mean those people where Israelites, Jews by ethnicity/genetics. This is
especially true when the book of Acts, and historical documents on the 1% century C.E., speak of
European (White) converts throughout Europe; the book of Revelation speaks of people
pretending to be Jews in two different locations in Asia Minor; Spain and Portugal became the
convert capital of the world before the time you claim your ancestors lived there; and the DNA
evidence is debunked starting at page 39 of Anti-Semitism? here.

These people had been converted to Judaism around 110 B.C.E., and later saw themselves as real
Jews, though not accepted as such by all real Jews. They eventually took it further and wanted it
all. They wanted to be real Jews alone, and carried out a plan of identity theft. But there was a
problem; they had the wrong skin color. Looking at the Bible and Edomite history, they would
have looked more like Arabs (and probably been Arabs) while the Israelites looked like Blacks.
These people, along with real Jews, went to Babylon and took their occultism with them. They
also went to other locations.

Now we have to look at a people who were given the name “Gnostics” by writers and historians.
Though labeled a religion or religious movement, the writings and sects that popped up were
actually an agenda of disinformation, propaganda, and religion-creation designed to combat a
growing sect known today as Christians (followers of Christ/the Messiah). These “Gnostics”
adhered to occult doctrine that seems to have originated in India. The Egyptians, and even Plato,
had gotten their hands on this same doctrine, and it’s said that some Jews of the 1st century B.C.
did also. It’s widely accepted that the first “Gnostics” had to have been Jews, and I agree but
only if we’re talking about religion, not ethnicity. They had the teachings of the Jews, but some
of them spread doctrine that was totally against the God of the Torah. That doesn’t seem too
Jewish to me. This, and other evidence, led me to conclude that these people, at least the


http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Antipater_the_Idumaean
http://howmanyknow.com/2020/01/truth-bomb/

creators of this movement, were, or were mostly made of, people who were Edomites by
ethnicity, but Jewish by religion.

From the Gnostics we got many of the so-called early Church Fathers. And I’m sure so much
attention is placed on these people because they were NOT who they appear to be. As correctly
stated in How the Vatican created Islam by Alberto Rivera: “Sweeping changes were in the
wind. Corruption, apathy, greed, cruelty, perversion, and rebellion were eating at the Roman
Empire, and it was ready to collapse. The persecution against Christians was useless, as they
continued to lay down their lives for the gospel of Christ. The only way Satan could stop this
thrust was to create a counterfeit ‘Christian’ religion to destroy the work of God. The solution
was in Rome. Their religion had come from ancient Babylon, and all it needed was a face-lift.
This didn’t happen overnight, but began in the writings of the ‘early church fathers’. It was
through their writings that a new religion would take shape.” And the same way the controlled
opposition of today argue and fight with one another, whether it’s real or fake, these “Gnostics”
and so-called Church Fathers all did the same. And many of the tricks these occultists use today
were being used back then; Thesis > Anti-thesis > Synthesis is one of them, and it was used to
bring about the Catholic Church. But that’s another story.

Out of the chaos of this time period came a man named Origen. He seems to be the first to talk
about “black” skin in the way that he did. And you can make the argument that because of what
he said, and his popularity, that with him is where it all began.

“Origen of Alexandria (c. 185 — c. 253), also known as Origen Adamantius, was an early
Christian scholar, ascetic, and theologian who was born and spent the first half of his career in
Alexandria. He was a prolific writer who wrote roughly 2,000 treatises in multiple branches of
theology, including textual criticism, biblical exegesis and hermeneutics, homiletics, and
spirituality. He was one of the most influential and controversial figures in early Christian
theology, apologetics, and asceticism. ... Origen is considered by some Christian groups to be a
Church Father though he does not have this status in Orthodox Christianity. ... Almost all
information about Origen's life comes from a lengthy biography of him in Book V1 of the
Ecclesiastical History written by the Christian historian Eusebius (c. 260 — c¢. 340). Eusebius
portrays Origen as the perfect Christian scholar and as a literal saint. Eusebius, however, wrote
this account almost fifty years after Origen's death, and had access to few reliable sources on
Origen's life, especially his early years. Anxious for more material about his hero, Eusebius
recorded events based only on unreliable hearsay evidence, and frequently made speculative
inferences about Origen based on the sources he had available. Nonetheless, scholars can
reconstruct a general impression of Origen's historical life by sorting out the parts of Eusebius's

account that are accurate from those that are inaccurate.”

Source: Origen
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Origen



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Origen

Before we get to his statements, | have to give you some understanding on Nubia.

“Nubia, ancient region in northeastern Africa, extending approximately from the Nile River
valley (near the first cataract in Upper Egypt) eastward to the shores of the Red Sea, southward
to about Khartoum (in what is now Sudan), and westward to the Libyan Desert. Nubia is
traditionally divided into two regions. The southern portion, which extended north to the
southern end of the second cataract of the Nile was known as Upper Nubia; this was called Kush
(Cush) under the 18th-dynasty pharaohs of ancient Egypt and was called Ethiopia by the ancient

Greeks.”

Source: Nubia
https://www.britannica.com/place/Nubia
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Nubian Tribute Presented to the King
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/File:Nubian Tribute Presented to the King, Tomb of Huy ME
T DT221112.ipg

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/File:Nubians bringing tribute for King Tut, Tomb of Huy.jpg

The Nubians/Cushites/“Ethiopians” (almost always translated to Ethiopians in Biblical texts)
were known for their very unique dark skin, which was sometimes literally black. This was
something that stood out, and was spoken about by all people. It was one of the things they were
known for. “Can the Ethiopian change his skin, or the leopard his spots?”” — Jeremiah 13:23. So,
for someone to speak about their skin color is not abnormal, and to use them and their skin as an
example wouldn’t be strange.

Okay, now let’s look at Origen’s statements. Note: This is a translation so we must assume that
it’s correct. And he’s commenting on Song of Solomon (also called the Canticle of Canticles or
the Song of Songs) Chapter 1 (1, 2) and saying the woman has become black like the Nubians
from the sun, and that she represents the Church.

Go to the book below and read:

1. Page 91 to the middle of 98.

2. Page 103 starting at “’You will see...” to the end of the middle paragraph.

3. The last paragraph of 106 to the second sentence of 109 (finishing off the last sentence of
108).

Origen: The Song of Songs: Commentary and Homilies — translated by R. P. Lawson
https://archive.org/details/origen_202001/page/n93/mode/2up

It reminds me of current Jews trying to explain away why an Israelite is mentioned in a text as
having dark skin. FYI: People with melanin, people who are brown-skinned, get black under the
sun.


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/File:Nubian_Tribute_Presented_to_the_King,_Tomb_of_Huy_MET_DT221112.jpg
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/File:Nubian_Tribute_Presented_to_the_King,_Tomb_of_Huy_MET_DT221112.jpg
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/File:Nubians_bringing_tribute_for_King_Tut,_Tomb_of_Huy.jpg
https://biblehub.com/asv/songs/1.htm
https://biblehub.com/lexicon/songs/1-5.htm
https://archive.org/details/origen_202001/page/n93/mode/2up
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Excerpt from Origen: Homilies on Genesis and Exodus — translated by Ronald E. Heine

According to the trustworthiness of Scripture, no Egyptian was free. For “Pharao reduced the
people to slavery himself” nor did he leave anyone free within the borders of the Egyptians, but
freedom was taken away in all the land of Egypt. And perhaps for this reason it is written: “I am
the Lord your God who brought you out of the land of Egypt, out of the house of bondage.”?
Egypt, therefore, became the house of bondage and, what is more unfortunate, of voluntary
bondage.

For although it is related of the Hebrews that they were reduced to bondage, and that, freedom
having been snatched away, they bore the yoke of tyranny, nevertheless they are said to have
been brought to this state “violently.” For it is written: “The Egyptians abhorred the children of
Israel and with might the Egyptians violently oppressed the sons of Israel and afflicted their life
with hard works in mud and brick, and with all the works which were in the plains, in all of
which they reduced them to bondage by force.”® Notice carefully, therefore, how the Hebrews
are recorded to have been reduced to bondage “violently.” There was a natural freedom in them
which was not wrenched away from them easily or by some deception, but by force.

But Pharao easily reduced the Egyptian people to bondage to himself, nor is it written that he
did this by force. For the Egyptians are prone to a degenerate life and quickly sink to every
slavery of the vices. Look at the origin of the race and you will discover that their father Cham,
who had laughed at his father’s nakedness,* deserved a judgment of this kind, that his son
Chanaan should be a servant to his brothers,” in which case the condition of bondage would


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/File:Influence_of_pigmentation_on_skin_cancer_risk.png

prove the wickeness of his conduct. Not without merit, therefore, does the discolored posterity
imitate the ignobility of the race.

But the Hebrews, even if they be reduced to bondage, even if they suffer tyranny from the
Egyptians, suffer “violently” and by necessity. For this reason, therefore, they are freed “from
the house of bondage” and recalled to the original freedom which they had lost against their will.
For it is even provided for in the divine laws that if perhaps someone buy a Hebrew servant, he
may not possess him in perpetual bondage, but he may serve him six years but in the seventh
year he may depart free.® Nothing like this is proposed concerning the Egyptians. Nowhere does
the divine Law entertain concern for Egyptian freedom, because they had lost it willingly. It
leaves them to the eternal yoke of their condition and to perpetual bondage.

(2) If, therefore, we understand these words spiritually, what the bondage of the Egyptians is,
we recognize that to serve the Egyptians is nothing other than to become submissive to carnal
vices and to be subjected to demons. At any rate, no necessity coming from without forces
anyone into this state. Rather, the sluggishness of the soul and the lust and pleasure of the body

overcome each one.
Source: Origen: Homilies on Genesis and Exodus — translated by Ronald E. Heine — pp. 214-215
https://books.google.com/books?id=X_mSBavPcgq4C

“We find, then, that Origen’s manipulation of the trope of the biblical Ethiopian has now
turned back on itself: elsewhere the figure of the Church of the gentiles, the Ethiopian is here
linked with the powers of darkness to such an extent that redemption is made impossible (though
even in the De oratione there is some slippage: “unless God purifies them and makes them all
nourishing”). The darkness of the Ethiopian’s skin has dimmed the prospects of inclusion among
the people of God. A final passage provides the furthest point toward which Origen shifts away
from his vision of the Church as the Ethiopian bride. Origen comments on the phrase ‘the end of
the nations,” which occurs in a prophecy by Ezekiel on the destruction of the nations on the day
of the Lord (Ezek 30:3): This ‘is the hand of the Lord against the Egyptians, but those against the
opposing powers [are said] against the Ethiopians.’’* Ethiopia becomes a figure of demonic
forces (i.e., “opposing powers”). Such a conception has moved beyond the range of human souls

darkened by sin to spiritual powers that lie opposed to God.”

Source: The Blackness of Ethiopians: Classical Ethnography and Eusebius's Commentary on the Psalms by Aaron P. Johnson —
p. 175

https://www.jstor.org/stable/4125292

But that’s about it for Origen.

And now we get to the real statements — statements by very popular religious leaders, and found


https://books.google.com/books?id=X_mSBavPcq4C
https://www.jstor.org/stable/4125292

in very popular religious texts, that are undeniably the source of the negative connotation
associated with darker skin, and racism toward Blacks; and therefore worldwide racism in
general.

The Black Man's Burden
https://www.brighteon.com/e670af51-3e91-4889-ada0-99211b638503

Alternative source
https://odysee.com/@Writeous1:b/The-Black-Man's-Burden:d

Side-note

If you didn’t know, Muhammad didn’t write the Quran; it was written after his death,
supposedly by his companions/followers. So, why design this religion to have mass
murder, mass enslavement, and land-grabbing as something sanctioned under the religion
(this program in this machine’s computer)? We know the results. It decimated Black
populations, which included Israelites/real Jews, especially in the Arabia Peninsula and
Africa. But another religion was created which did the same thing to real Christians —
Catholicism. Catholicism mass murdered millions of Christians, and then said “I am
Christianity.” And the evil that Catholicism continued to do in the world was blamed on
Christianity, like the evil done by some Jews being blamed on Whites and Europeans.
Catholicism is not even an offshoot, branch or type of Christianity; it’s a totally different
religion made as a copycat and main antagonist to Christianity. But hardly anyone knows
this because the truth is hidden while the illusion is promoted, as it is with its antithesis
Islam. And the powers-that-be work hard to keep the lies going. See: A Lamp in the
Dark: The Untold History of the Bible by Christian Pinto and Adullam Films for further
information. But isn’t it interesting that for God’s two special groups, Israelites and real
Christians (non-Israelites brought into the fold of Israelites through Jesus), an adversary
was raised up? And isn’t it interesting that one religion was centered on a man/male, the
masculine, and another was centered on a woman/female, the feminine, as if to symbolize
Shiva and Shakti. Or do those two along with so-called Judaism (the Torah and “Jewish”
writings, not just the Torah), all buddied-up in Jerusalem, represent the pillars of the
Kabbalistic tree of life, which also has the masculine and the feminine as its outer pillars,
and a center pillar which is neither? Another interesting fact is that somehow a ban on
taking interest on loans, or excessive interest on loans, was made by both religions,
leaving Jews the only ones practicing this — leaving Jews with the upper-hand.



https://www.brighteon.com/e670af51-3e91-4889-ada0-99211b638503
https://odysee.com/@Writeous1:b/The-Black-Man's-Burden:d
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Genesis

Chapter 9

18 And the sons of Noah, that went forth of the ark, were Shem, and Ham, and Japheth: and Ham
is the father of Canaan.

19 These are the three sons of Noah: and of them was the whole earth overspread.

Genesis
Chapter 10
6 And the sons of Ham; Cush, and Mizraim, and Phut, and Canaan.

Cush — Nubia/Sudan/Ethiopia
Mizraim — Egypt

Phut — Libya

Canaan — the Levant/the land of Israel

“Brackman probably considers his own Ph.D. dissertation ‘hate propaganda’ by now. It is replete
with information and analysis that most of the Jews attacking me during the last seven months
would consider ‘hateful.”® “There is no denying,” said Brackman, discussing the Jewish
invention of the Hamitic Myth, ‘that the Babylonian Talmud was the first source to read a

Negrophobic content into the episode by stressing Canaan’s fraternal connection with Cush.””

Source: The Jewish Onslaught by Tony Martin — p. 34
https://archive.org/details/tonymartinthejewishonslaught/page/n21/mode/2up

“In the rabbinic exegetical anthology known as Midrash ha-Gadol or Midrash Rabba ( = The
Great Midrash), one finds a nearly identical recitation. As in the Talmud, Ham was said to have
copulated in the ark, as did the dog; however, here the raven was not mentioned. This statement
was attributed to R. Hiya, a prominent late tannaitic rabbi (ca. 250-350 C.E.) originally from
Babylonia who lived in Palestine.®” About Ham’s punishment, R. Hiya said: ‘Ham came forth
hammered (lit., coaled [i.e., blackened?]).” R. Huna, another leading early Babylonian rabbi,®®
expanded on some of the other talmudic material in the name of his teacher: “You have
prevented me from doing something in the dark [i.e., cohabitation], therefore your seed will be
ugly and dark-skinned.... You have prevented me from begetting a fourth son, therefore | curse

your fourth son.”®*”
Source: Jews and Blacks in the Early Modern World by Jonathan Schorsch p. 29


https://archive.org/details/tonymartinthejewishonslaught/page/n21/mode/2up

1. It’s Ham, the father of Cush, Mizraim, Phut, and Canaan that is the target, and therefore his
seed.

2. Their punishment was that they were blackened.

3. Their punishment was that they were given dark skin.

This was not about literal black skin like the skin of the Nubians. This was about darker skinned
people.

Curse of Ham

Midrash on Genesis (5t" Century)

“R[abbi] Huna said in R[abbi] Joseph’s name (Noah declared),
“you have prevented me from begetting a fourth son,
therefore | curse your fourth son.” R[abbi] Huna also said in
R[abbi] Joseph’s name: “You have prevented me from doing
something in the dark (...cohabitation), therefore your seed
will be ugly and dark-skinned. “R[abbi] Hiyya said: “Ham and
the dog copulated in the Ark, therefore Ham came black-
skinned while the dog publicly exposes his copulation.”

Freedman and Simon, Midrash Rabbah: Genesis, chap. 36

| —— A

Why would Israelites, whose people came in the same shades as these Hamitic nations, say such
things? What would be the reason for their own skin color then?

“Rabbi Yishmael ben Elisha Nachmani (Hebrew: »a1 Sxvnw» 12 vywox), often known as Rabbi
Yishmael and sometimes given the title "Ba'al HaBaraita" (Hebrew: 5va xn>12:7), was a rabbi of

the 1st and 2nd centuries (third generation of tannaim).”
Source: Rabbi Ishmael
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rabbi_Ishmael#cite note-je-1

“R. Yishmael (b. Elisha) was the head of an academy and R. Akiva's intellectual rival at a time
of harsh Roman persecution. His teachings had an important impact on Jewish law and thought.

Perhaps most famous among his teachings are his thirteen exegetical principles.”
Source: Rabbi Yishmael b. Elisha
https://www.sefaria.org/topics/rabbi-yishmael-b-elisha?tab=sources



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rabbi_Ishmael#cite_note-je-1
https://www.sefaria.org/topics/rabbi-yishmael-b-elisha?tab=sources

I don’t know the source, but in the Talmud it’s stated that rabbi Ishmael (1% and 2" century
rabbi), before the days of the Babylonian Talmud, stated something interesting regarding skin
color when trying to determine if someone had leprosy (nega).

Mishnah Negaim 2.1

The bright spot in a German appears as dull white, and the dull white spot in an Ethiopian
appears as bright white. Rabbi Ishmael says: the children of Israel (may I be atonement for

them!) are like boxwood, neither black nor white but of an intermediate shade.
Source: Mishnah Negaim 2.1 — translated by Dr. Joshua Kulp
https://www.sefaria.org/Mishnah_Negaim.2.1?lang=Dbi

... somewhere between the two, not exactly between the two, with skin that tans not burns.

English Explanation

The bright spot in a German appears as dull white, and the dull white spot in an Ethiopian
appears as bright white. A "bright spot"” is impure, but on a pale German (I assume this means
anyone from northern Europe) it will look dull. This would mean that he will be declared pure,
even though he should not be. On the opposite end of the spectrum, a dull spot, which should not
be impure, will look bright on an Ethiopian's skin. This will cause him to be isolated and then, if
it remains, to be declared impure. The question is how do we deal with this situation?

Rabbi Ishmael says: the children of Israel (may I be atonement for them!) are like
boxwood, neither black nor white but of an intermediate shade. Rabbi Ishmael says that we
use the skin of Israelites, which is dark but not black, as the barometer. This is because the laws
of negaim were stated with regard to Israelites. As an aside, Rabbi Ishmael offers to take upon

himself vicarious atonement for Israel's sins.
Source: Mishnah Negaim 2.1 — translated by Dr. Joshua Kulp
https://www.sefaria.org/English_Explanation_of Mishnah_Negaim.2.1.3?lang=bi

He said they are like boxwood, not white like “Germans,” but not black like Nubians.

“With rare exceptions, European sculptors of small-scale works turned to boxwood, a medium
that shares some attributes of ivory. Boxwood, native to the Mediterranean region, is dense, hard,
and capable of being highly polished, with an even grain and structure that yield masterfully
detailed carvings (17.190.453). The product of a shrubby plant, it can be sculpted only in
relatively small pieces. Sculptures in boxwood and related fine-grained wood were prized by
artists and collectors for their exoticism, rarity, and deep warm brown, often bronzy surface


https://www.sefaria.org/Mishnah_Negaim.2.1?lang=bi
https://www.sefaria.org/English_Explanation_of_Mishnah_Negaim.2.1.3?lang=bi

(47.3.2).”

Source: Ivory and Boxwood Carvings, 1450-1800
https://www.metmuseum.org/toah/hd/boxw/hd _boxw.htm

Ancient Boxwood
https://duckduckgo.com/?g=ancient+boxwood&iax=images&ia=images
*You might have to copy and paste the link.

But 200 to 300 years later some “Jewish” rabbis said Ham was given darker skin as a curse. In
other words, darker skin was a curse.

Curse of Ham

Babylonian Talmud (6t" Century)
“Our Rabbis taught: ‘Three copulated in the ark, and they
were all punished — the dog, the raven, and Ham. The dog

was doomed to be tied, the raven expectorates [her seed into
his mate’s mouth], and Ham was smitten in his skin.”

[Epstein, Hebrew-English Edition of the Babylonian Talmud, tractate Sanhedrin 108b]

- QNS

And yes, that’s the kind of sick stuff that’s in the Talmud.
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Curse of Ham/Canaan

Edwin Yamauchi concludes:

“... we see that over the centuries an
obscure text was so interpreted by
medieval Jews to explain the blackness of
Africans and was then used in turn by
Arabs, Europeans, and North Americans to
justify slavery and, until recently, by
Mormons to exclude blacks from their
priesthood.”

[Yamauchi, “Africa and the Bible” (1985), 31]

‘

Excerpt from The Black Jews of Africa by Edith Bruder

... in the sixth century AD, the Babylonian Talmud mentions that Ham, having supposedly
emasculated Noah, was thus cursed and condemned to be black; Ham is described as a sinner
and his progeny as degenerated, with negative moral and physical attributes:

Now | cannot beget the fourth son whose children | would have ordered to serve you and
your brothers! Therefore it must be Canaan, your first born, whom they enslave. And
since you have disabled me...doing ugly things in the blackness of night, Canaan’s
children shall be borne ugly and black! Moreover, because you twisted your head around
to see my nakedness, your grandchildren’s hair shall be twisted into kinks, and their eyes
red; again because you neglected my nakedness, they shall go naked, and their male
member shall be shamefully elongated! Men of this race are called Negroes, their
forefather Canaan commanded them to love theft and fornication, to be banded together
in hatred of their masters and never to tell the truth.®

Thus, from time immemorial, Africans have been considered to be the descendants of Ham,

carrying the stigmatism of Noah’s curse, occupying a proscribed and inescapable place in

biblical history.”35

Source: The Black Jews of Africa by Edith Bruder — pp. 42-43

That’s in the 6™ century (the 500°s).



* Curse of Ham

David Goldenberg also found versions of the Curse of Ham in
these muslim sources:

Ibn Ata (647-732)

“Ham begat all those who are black and curly-haired....Noah
prayed that the hair of Ham’s descendants would not grow
beyond their ears, and that wherever his descendants met
the children of Shem, the latter would enslave them.”

[Goldenberg, “Curse of Ham,” 33]

| — P R—_

“Wahb b. Munabbih, a south Arabian of part Persian origin (d. 728), who was considered an
expert in Jewish legend, is credited the following statement: ‘Ham, the son of Noah was a white
man, fair of face. God—Mighty and Exalted is He —changed his color and the color of his
descendants because of the curse of his father. He went off and his offspring followed him and
they settled on the sea shore. God increased and multiplied them, and they are the Blacks (al-
sizdan).”® Not only were black Africans thought to be descendants of Ham through the curse of
Noah, punishing Ham for observing his father’s nakedness as he bathed, but it also came to be
believed that, in accordance with the account in the Old Testament or the Torah, the punishment
made Ham and his descendants slaves of his brothers Shem and Japheth and their descendants,
i.e. Arabs, Europeans, and central Asians. In fact the Old Testament and the Torah do not say

Ham was turned black, but Arab thinking began to equate blackness with slavery.”

Source: Arab Views of Black Africans and Slavery by John Hunwick
https://glc.yale.edu/sites/default/files/files/events/race/Hunwick.pdf
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< * Curse of Ham/Canaan

Historian, David Brion Davis, comments that by the 8t" and
9th centuries, Arab writers

“...increasingly invoked the biblical curse of Canaan to explain
why the ‘sons of Ham’ had been blackened and degraded to
the status of natural slaves as punishment for their ancestor’s

”

sin”.

[Davis, “Slavery and Human Progress” 42]

-  ——

* Curse of Ham

Tabari, 923AD:

“Ham begat all those who are black and curly-haired... Noah
prayed that the hair of Ham’s descendants would not grow
beyond their ears, and that wherever his descendants met the
children of Shem, the latter would enslave them”.

[Brinner, “The History of al-Tabari” 1:223]

| —-—_— ...

“The interpretations of the Talmud and the Midrash of the curse of Ham were well known by
Jewish authors in the Middle Ages, as evidenced in the following description of the south of
Aswan by Benjamin of Tudela, the twelfth-century merchant and explorer: “There is a people ...
who like animals eat the earth that grows on the banks of the Nile and in their fields.... They go
about naked and have not the intelligence of ordinary men. They cohabit with their sisters and
anyone they can find.... They are taken as slaves and sold in Egypt and neighboring countries.



These sons of Ham are black slaves.”®”

Source: The Black Jews of Africa by Edith Bruder — p. 43

During the time of Benjamin Tudela, many Jews were living under Muslim rule.

“During his travels through Europe and the Middle East, the twelfth-century rabbi Benjamin of
Tudela stopped in two of the major world capitals of his day — Constantinople and Baghdad. In
Constantinople (present-day Istanbul, Turkey), the center of the still-powerful Byzantine Empire,
he noted that the local Jews were treated as undesirables and banished outside the protection of
the city walls:

No Jews live in the city, for they have been placed behind an inlet of the sea. [T]heir condition is
very low. . . the Greeks hate the Jews, good and bad alike, and subject them to great oppression,
and beat them in the streets. . . Yet the Jews are rich and good, kindly and charitable, and bear
their lot with cheerfulness.

“It is a picture that could have found an echo in many of the cities across Europe at the time,
where long-held restrictions were rapidly escalating into violence. But as Benjamin’s travelogue
suggests, not all medieval societies were so oppressive towards Jews, and in some places Jews
enjoyed considerably more freedom than they did in Christian-ruled lands.

“When Benjamin reached Baghdad, the center of the ‘Abbasid caliphate, he marveled at how
free, comfortable and easy the lives of the Jews were. Rather than the 2,500 Jews who lived on
the fringes of Constantinople, Benjamin reports 40,000 living in Baghdad. He writes glowingly
of the twenty-eight synagogues which were spread throughout the city and how beautiful and
richly decorated they were: ‘The great synagogue of the Head of the Captivity has columns of
marble of various colors overlaid with silver and gold, and on these columns are sentences of the

Psalms in golden letters.””
Soucre: The Jews of medieval Iraq and Kurdistan: Surprising insights from Rabbi Benjamin of Tudela’s 12th-century geography
https://jewishstudies.washington.edu/jewish-history-and-thought/jews-medieval-irag-kurdistan-benjamin-of-tudela/

“The Arab invasion of the Iberian Peninsula in 711 inaugurated a new era in the history of
Europe. Led by the Arab general Tarig, Berber military forces from Morocco quickly swept
through the Iberian Peninsula, extinguished the Visigoth Christian Kingdom, and inaugurated
nearly 800 years of Muslim rule in Spain. Henceforth, the territory of medieval Spain held by the
Muslims would be known as al-Andalus (Arabic) or Andalusia: The Jews applied the Hebrew

name Sefarad to it.”
Source: “Ornament of the World” and the Jews of Spain
https://www.neh.gov/article/ornament-world-and-jews-spain



https://jewishstudies.washington.edu/jewish-history-and-thought/jews-medieval-iraq-kurdistan-benjamin-of-tudela/
https://www.neh.gov/article/ornament-world-and-jews-spain

“The golden age of Jewish culture in Spain, which coincided with the Middle Ages in Europe,
was a period of Muslim rule during which, intermittently, Jews were generally accepted in
society and Jewish religious, cultural, and economic life flourished. The nature and length of this
‘Golden Age’ has been debated, as there were at least three periods during which non-Muslims
were oppressed. A few scholars give the start of the Golden Age as 711-718, the Muslim
conquest of Iberia. Others date it from 912, during the rule of Abd al-Rahman Ill. The end of the
age is variously given as 1031, when the Caliphate of Cordoba ended; 1066, the date of the
Granada massacre; 1090, when the Almoravids invaded; or the mid-12th century, when the
Almohads invaded.”

Source: Golden age of Jewish culture in Spain
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Golden_age_of Jewish_culture_in_Spain

“Moses ben Maimon (1138-1204), commonly known as Maimonides (/mar'monidi:z/) and also
referred to by the acronym Rambam (Hebrew: o7a»7), was a Sephardic Jewish philosopher who
became one of the most prolific and influential Torah scholars of the Middle Ages. ... Born in
Cordoba, Almoravid Empire (present-day Spain), on Passover eve, 1138 (or 1135), he worked as
a rabbi, physician and philosopher in Morocco and Egypt. ... During his lifetime, most Jews
greeted Maimonides' writings on Jewish law and ethics with acclaim and gratitude, even as far
away as Irag and Yemen. Yet, while Maimonides rose to become the revered head of the Jewish
community in Egypt, his writings also had vociferous critics, particularly in Spain. ...
Maimonides was born 1138 (or 1135) in Cérdoba, Andalusia, in the Muslim-ruled Almoravid
Empire, during what some scholars consider to be the end of the golden age of Jewish culture in
the Iberian Peninsula, after the first centuries of the Moorish rule. His father Maimon ben Joseph,
was a Spanish dayyan (Jewish judge), whose family claimed direct paternal descent from Simeon
ben Judah ha-Nasi, and thus from the Davidic line. Maimonides later stated that there are 38
generations between him and Judah ha-Nasi. His ancestry, going back four generations, is given
in his Iggeret Teiman (Epistle to Yemen), as Moses son of Maimon the Judge (hadayan), son of
Joseph the Wise (Hebrew: ooni, romanized: he-chakham), son of Isaac the Rabbi (Hebrew: 273,
romanized: harav), son of Obadiah the Judge. At the end of his commentary on the Mishna,
however, a slightly different genealogy is presented: Moses son of Maimon the Judge, son of
Joseph the Wise, son of Rabbi Isaac the Judge, son of Joseph the Judge, son of Obadiah the

Judge, son of Solomon the Teacher, son of Obadiah the Judge.”
Source: Maimonides
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Maimonides



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Golden_age_of_Jewish_culture_in_Spain
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Maimonides

“The Guide for the Perplexed was originally written in about 1190 by Maimonides in Classical
Arabic using the Hebrew alphabet. It was first translated in 1204 into Hebrew by a contemporary

of Maimonides, Samuel ibn Tibbon.”
Source: The Guide for the Perplexed
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/The Guide for the Perplexed

The Guide for the Perplexed 3:51

“I will begin the subject of this chapter with a simile. A king is in his palace, and all his subjects
are partly in the country, and partly abroad. Of the former, some have their backs turned towards
the king's palace, and their faces in another direction; and some are desirous and zealous to go to
the palace, seeking “to inquire in his temple,” and to minister before him, but have not yet seen
even the face of the wall of the house. ... I will now explain the simile which | have made. The
people who are abroad are all those that have no religion, neither one based on speculation nor
one received by tradition. Such are the extreme Turks that wander about in the north, the
Kushites who live in the south, and those in our country who are like these. | consider these as
irrational beings, and not as human beings; they are below mankind, but above monkeys, since
they have the form and shape of man, and a mental faculty above that of the monkey. Those who
are in the country, but have their backs turned towards the king's palace, are those who possess
religion, belief, and thought, but happen to hold false doctrines, which they either adopted in
consequence of great mistakes made in their own speculations, or received from others who
misled them. Because of these doctrines they recede more and more from the royal palace

the more they seem to proceed. These are worse than the first class, and under certain
circumstances it may become necessary to day them, and to extirpate their doctrines, in order

that others should not be misled.”

Source: The Guide for the Perplexed by Moses Maimonides — Translated from the original Arabic text by M. Friedlander, PH.D.
http://www.teachittome.com/seforim2/seforim/the_guide_for_the perplexed.pdf

Alternative sources
https://www.sefaria.org/Guide_for _the Perplexed%2C Part 3.51.2?lang=bi
https://www.sacred-texts.com/jud/gfp/gfp187.htm

If you read from “I will now explain” and skip the text that | underlined, you’ll see that the
underlined portion is not a part of the explanation. It’s an example followed by personal feelings
about the example. 1. He referred to certain people as not actually being human beings. 2. He
placed them in a rank/caste that includes human beings and an animal, similar to the ranking of
races and the lie of evolution we would later here from others. In what he said there is a superior
(supremacy) group and an inferior group. That was written in Classical Arabic in about 1190,
and translated to Hebrew in 1204.


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/The_Guide_for_the_Perplexed
http://www.teachittome.com/seforim2/seforim/the_guide_for_the_perplexed.pdf
https://www.sefaria.org/Guide_for_the_Perplexed%2C_Part_3.51.2?lang=bi
https://www.sacred-texts.com/jud/gfp/gfp187.htm

Arab/Muslim

Societal Order — 13" C.
Nasir al-Din al-Tusi (1201-1274AD)

"If (all types of men) are taken, from the first, and one placed after
another, like the Negro from Zanzibar, in the Southern-most
countries, the Negro does not differ from an animal in anything
except the fact that his hands have been lifted from the earth -in no
other peculiarity or property - except for what God wished. Many
have seen that the ape is more capable of being trained than the
Negro, and more intelligent.”

Tasawwurat (Rawdat al-taslim)

Societal Order — 14" C.
Ibn Khaldun (1332-1406AD)

"Therefore, the Negro nation are, as a rule, submissive to
slavery, because [Negroes] have little [that is essentially]
human and have attributes that are quite similar to those of
dumb animals, as we have stated.”

"beyond [known peoples of black West Africa] to the south
there is no civilization in the proper sense. There are only
humans who are closer to dumb animals than to rational
beings. They live in thickets and caves, and eat herbs and
unprepared grain. They frequently eat each other. They cannot
be considered human beings."

“Isaac ben Judah Abarbanel (Hebrew: prx> 2 77 HR1272%; 1437-1508), commonly referred to
as Abarbanel (?x1212R), also spelled Abravanel, Avravanel, or Abrabanel, was a Portuguese
Jewish statesman, philosopher, Bible commentator, and financier. ... Abarbanel was born in



Lisbon, Portugal, into one of the oldest and most distinguished Iberian Jewish families. The
Abravanel or Abarbanel family, had escaped the massacre in Castile in 1391. A student of the
rabbi of Lisbon, Joseph Chaim, he became well versed in rabbinic literature and in the learning

of his time, devoting his early years to the study of Jewish philosophy.”
Source: Isaac Abarbanel
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/lsaac _Abravanel

I don’t think any other person was more connected to the so-called 1492 Jewish persecution and
the launching of the trans-Atlantic slave trade than he was. But that’s another story.

“Continued Abravanel in his commentary to Genesis 10:1: [H]e is called Ham whether because
his heart is hot within him [paraphrase of Deut. 19:6] to chase after his desires or whether
because he is black and ugly, his skin and looks attributes like a Kushite. For Ham is from the
category of ‘and all the brown sheep [Gen. 30:35],” that is to say, black in opposition to Yefet,
who is beautiful in his form and ways.”

Source: Jews and Blacks in the Early Modern World by Jonathan Schorsch — p. 28

There’s a lot being said there.

“The characteristics of Abravanel’s Ham coincided, not surprisingly, with those he attributed to
Blacks as a whole. He stated as much himself in his commentary to Genesis 10:1, immediately
after telling readers about Ham’s nature:

And you will see how the characteristics of these three fathers are found in the nations
which come from them, for from Ham comes ‘Kush and Egypt and Libya and Kena’an’
[Gen. 10:6], for they are all until today ugly looking and their figures are black as a
raven, steeped in licentiousness and drawn after the animal lusts, lacking intelligence and
knowledges and lacking [political] states and the degrees of good qualities and bravery.”

Source: Jews and Blacks in the Early Modern World by Jonathan Schorsch — p. 35

He said that from Ham was born Cush/Nubia, Egypt, Libya and Canaan — the people of these
lands — and they were all until his day....


http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Isaac_Abravanel

“Whether a derivation of classical Jewish sources or of contemporary processes of identity
formation, for Abravanel one of the commonalities shared by Iberian Jews and Catholics was
their Whiteness. Reiterating a statement of Rashi’s, Abravanel wrote that the patriarch Abraham
recognized Sarai’s beauty at their journey into Egypt (Gen 12:11) because the Egyptians were
‘black and ugly,” while Sarai’s attractiveness ‘consisted of her whiteness.”*® The contrast led
Abraham to worry for her safety among people who had never before seen such beauty. Esav,
dominated by his passions, by his bloodthirstiness, by the red and black humors linked to
Kena’an and Yishma’el, whose descendants would be enslaved to those of Ya’akov, stood as the
opposite of Ya’akov in complexion and nature. Perhaps not surprisingly, among his other noble

qualities, Abravanel described Ya’akov as ‘a white man.’?*°
Source: Jews and Blacks in the Early Modern World by Jonathan Schorsch — pp. 48-49

209 - Abravanel, Perush al ha-Torah, ad loc.
210 - Ibid., ad loc. Gen. 23:19-24.

Kena’an = Canaan
Yishma’el = Ishmael
Ya’akov = Jacob/Israel/father of Israelites

“The link between blackness and slavery reached the Christian West late, and it was ironically
via Judaism. Just when the Portuguese were beginning to take their share of the African slave
trade, in the late fifteenth century, a celebrated Portuguese Jewish philosopher, Isaac ben
Abravanel, suggested that Caanan’s descendants were black, while those of his uncles were
white, and so all black people were liable to be enslaved. Genesis 9 gives no support to this
belief; nevertheless Abravanel’s innovative exercise in biblical hermeneutics now proved
extremely convenient for the same Iberian Christians who persecuted his own people, and later

for Christian slavers everywhere.®”
Source: Monks, the Pope, and the Origins of the Crusades: A Selection from Christianity by Diarmaid MacCulloch
https://books.google.com/books?id=7x4m20TRYzQC

“Abravanel’s reiteration of Aristotle’s theories assumed as well their climatic basis, hence the
distinction of Noah’s sons by continent.? It also maintained their deterministic quality.
Leadership and servitude derived from natural, inborn traits, even if these were introduced by
historical circumstances, such as a curse from a prophet (Noah) or God:

And about Ham it said: ‘And Kena’an will be a slave to him,” meaning to say that
Kena’an his son, most beloved to him [of all his sons], will serve Shem and Yefet. For
just as the philosopher [Aristotle] mentioned in his book on the leadership of the state, for


https://books.google.com/books?id=7x4m20TRYzQC

sages the desire for authority and mastery is natural while for those who work the ground
the desire [is] for servitude and being ruled over, which according to this is called
Kena’an, from the language of ‘submission,’ as | explained, for the animal life serves the
aesthetic life and yields to the intellectual life.?*”

Source: Jews and Blacks in the Early Modern World by Jonathan Schorsch — p. 22

“The Pirke de-Rabbi Eliezer is an aggadic-midrashic work on the Torah containing exegesis
and retellings of biblical stories.” (Source: Pirkei De-Rabbi Eliezer)

There seems to be a debate over dating the creation of the work, with theories ranging from the
1% century to the 10" century C.E.

Excerpt from Pirke de-Rabbi Eliezer

Noah brought his sons and his grandsons, and he blessed them with their (several) settlements,®
and he gave them as an inheritance all the earth.® He especially blessed'® Shem and his sons,
(making them) dark but comely,*! and he gave them the habitable earth.* He blessed Ham and

11 Cf. Cant. i. 5; but they were not “black”; the Oxford MS. (O.A. 167) reads: “white and comely.”

his sons, (making them) dark like the raven,* and he gave them as an inheritance the coast of the
sea.” He blessed Japheth and his sons, (making) them entirely white,® and he gave them for an
inheritance the desert and its fields;* these (are the inheritances with) which he endowed them.”

! Luria reads, as an emendation, “black and uncomely”; cf. Gen. Rab. xxxvi. 7. If our MS. Text be accepted, a parallel may be
found in Cant. V. I1.

2 ¢.g. the Egyptians on the seacoast, or the Sidonians on the Phoenician coast; cf. Jer. xlvii. 7.

3 The first editions add: “and beautiful.” Japheth as a word signifies “beauty.” The sons of Japheth were the migratory tribes
from the north. e.g. the Goths who settled in Europe. See Eth. Enoch Ixxxviii. 9.

Source: Pirké de Rabbi Eliezer : (the chapters of Rabbi Eliezer the Great) according to the text of the manuscript belonging to
Abraham Epstein of Vienna by Friedlander, Gerald — pp. 172-173
https://archive.org/details/pirkderabbieli00frieuoft

“Harold Brackman cited the fascinating and revealing emendations made to the color scheme of
Noah’s three sons that appeared in the first printed editions of the early medieval text Pirkei d’
Rabi Eliezar.%® Shem, originally ‘black and pleasing’ in earlier manuscripts, was Europeanized,
becoming ‘white and pleasing.” Ham’s description, ‘black as a crow,” was evidently deemed too


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Aggadic-midrashic
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pirke_De-Rabbi_Eliezer
https://archive.org/details/pirkderabbieli00frieuoft

ambiguous and was changed to ‘black and ugly.” Yefet, whose whiteness originally signified a
lack, now had his whiteness transformed to correspond with the new ideals of European beauty.
He became ‘entirely white and beautiful.” Brackman, unclear on when these changes were made,
wrote that these editorial revisions were in place by the sixteenth century. From a thorough
review of many manuscripts and early printed editions, | suspect that these changes derive from

the sixteenth century itself.”
Source: Jews and Blacks in the Early Modern World by Jonathan Schorsch — p. 184

Something similar occurred with references to ancient Egyptians — people stopped referring to
them as Black or being related to other Black Africans, and not because any evidence surfaced
showing otherwise.

“As my colleague Stephen Carter has argued, religious leaders often justified slavery as part of
the social order to which religion should defer,* but they also deployed Bible-based arguments
to support the notion that the Word of God sanctioned the slavery of Africans. The primary
biblical argument was Noah's Curse.?’ Noah had three sons, which Christian tradition associated
with the three great races: Japheth (European races), Shem (Asian races), and Ham (African
races).?” After rescuing humanity from the Great Flood, Noah planted a vineyard, the fruits of
which rendered himdrunk.?® Ham, the father of Canaan, saw his unconscious father naked and
reported it to his brothers, who covered Noah with agarment.?® Then comes the curse:[24] And
Noah awoke from his wine and knew what his younger son had done unto him.[25] And he said,
Cursed be Canaan; a servant of servants shall he be unto his brethren.[261 And he said, Blessed
be the LORD God of Shem; and Canaan shall be his servant. [27] God shall enlarge Japheth, and
he shall dwell in the tents of Shem; and Canaan shall be his servant.*® Medieval and early
modern Christian tradition read verse 24 as suggesting that Ham committed a lewd or sexual act
on his father and associated Noah's Curse as a general indictment of the Hamite race, namely,
persons of African descent. Thus understood, Noah's Curse provided an authorization for the
enslavement of the descendants of Ham (Africans taken to the American colonies) to the

descendants of Japheth (the English colonists).*'”

Source: Noah's Curse: How Religion Often Conflates, Status, Belief, and Conduct to Resist Antidiscrimination Norms William N.
Eskridge Jr.

https://digitalcommons.law.yale.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=4770&context=fss_papers

“Despite the fact that Europeans routinely justified the enslavement of Africans in religious
terms, arguing that they were bringing ‘heathens’ under the influence of Christianity, British
American slaveholders were often uncomfortable with missions, such as those sponsored by the
Church of England’s Society for the Propagation of the Gospel in Foreign Parts. Invested


https://digitalcommons.law.yale.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=4770&context=fss_papers

economically in the institution of slavery and committed to the notion of the inferiority of
Africans, many slaveholders worried that conversion would require manumission and disrupt
racial hierarchy. Even with assurance from church and political leaders that conversion to
Christianity did not mandate freedom for the enslaved, resistance among slaveholders remained
strong, as white Anglican cleric Francis Le Jau found in his mission work in early-18th-century
South Carolina, where the brutality of the slave system shocked him. Le Jau also faced
discomfort in a range of forms by slaveholders to shared religious commitment with blacks,
including the refusal of one man to take Communion when enslaved Africans were at the Holy
Table and queries from a woman about whether she would be forced to see her slaves in heaven.
Many European Americans could not imagine African Americans having the capacity to
understand Christianity and also feared that extending baptism and Christian fellowship would
convince the enslaved of their equality to whites. Consequently, the substance of Christian
teaching that most missionaries and slaveholders conveyed focused not on liberation and equality
but on divinely ordained racial hierarchy. Deploying the biblical story of Noah’s curse on Ham,
which Europeans had long interpreted as one of blackness and servitude, many missionaries
promoted a view that bondage was God’s will for people of African descent and that the
Christian scriptures enjoined them to be obedient to their masters above all else. It is not
surprising that this sort of theological framework did not appeal to the majority of enslaved

African Americans in colonial America.®”

Source: Religion in African American History by Judith Weisenfeld
https://oxfordre.com/americanhistory/view/10.1093/acrefore/9780199329175.001.0001/acrefore-9780199329175-e-24

Excerpts from Complicity: how the North promoted, prolonged, and profited from slavery by
Farrow, Anne

IF NATIONAL MEMORY COULD TOLERATE A PANTHEON OF RACE SCIENTISTS,
first place might be awarded, not to Jefferson, but to Samuel George Morton, one of
Philadelphia’s most eminent physicians. Starting in the 1830°s, Morton used measurements from
his world-famous collection of skulls to show that black people had the smallest “cranial
capacity” of all human types and were therefore doomed to inferiority. Close behind Morton
would come his disciples, Josiah Nott and Louis Agasiz. In the 1850’s they collaborated on a
landmark 700-page treatise, Types of Mankind, that was dedicated to Morton and exhaustively
proved that blacks were not even of the same species as whites. All three race scientists were
considered among the brightest minds of their time. ...

ORDINARY CHRISTIANS, HOWEVER, DIDN’T NEED MEDICAL THEORIES LIKE
Rush’s to explain how African’s became black, and bad. Most accepted the Bible as a basic
history text and read the few lines in Genesis about the curse placed upon Noah’s disobedient
son Ham as the key to an operating racial myth. Its supposed truth—that Ham was black and that
his progeny were doomed to slavery—became so common and so central to proslavery thought


https://oxfordre.com/americanhistory/view/10.1093/acrefore/9780199329175.001.0001/acrefore-9780199329175-e-24#acrefore-9780199329175-e-24-note-3
https://oxfordre.com/americanhistory/view/10.1093/acrefore/9780199329175.001.0001/acrefore-9780199329175-e-24

that the radical abolitionist Theodore Dwight Weld called it “a mocking lullaby, vainly wooing
slumber” in a troubled nation. Race scientists emerged to challenge both Ham’s cursed lullaby
and intellectuals like Dr. Rush, who believed that as degraded as blacks appeared to be, they at
least were descended from Adam. ...

Morton was winning an international reputation, and his stature grew even greater after he
published a sequel, Crania Aegyptiaca, in 1844. In it, Morton added data from the embalmed
heads of ancient Egyptians that in his view confirmed the ages-old permanence of racial
difference. ... Among the scientists who praised Morton’s work was an eminent Swede who
wrote that Morton had done “more for ethnography than any other living physiologist.”
Influential Southerners clamored for Crania Aegyptiaca after seeing advance copies that George
Robins Gliddon, one of Morton’s most important collaborators, carried on a lecture tour to South
Carolina. A professional diplomat and amateur Egyptologist, Gliddon introduced Morton’s
books to the Charleston Literary Club and to Governor James Henry Hammond, who vowed to
use Morton’s work in his proslavery writings. Gliddon’s tour also took him to Washington, D.C.,
where he was summoned to an audience with John C. Calhoun, the powerful South Carolina
senator who, between terms, was serving as secretary of state. Calhoun hoped Morton’s research
might help him deal with ongoing controversies related to slavery. ...

Soon after receiving Morton’s encouraging letter, Nott plunged ahead with more daring public
lectures in which, invoking Galileo, he declared that science—not the Bible—must decide the
true origins of mankind. More willing than Morton to openly challenge Genesis, Nott proposed
that God must have made separate races of men, just as He had made separate species of
animals. ... Louis Agassiz arrived in the United States already convinced that, following God’s
orderly plan, all living creatures occupied areas to which they were specifically suited. The only
exception was man, whose unique ability to adapt had allowed him to spread over the surface of
the Earth. Agassiz’s opinion changed virtually overnight, however, after he visited Morton, saw
his skull collection, which had grown to 600, and saw blacks up close for the first time. In
January 1847, given the honor of delivering the annual Lowell Lecture in Boston, Agassiz added
the weight of his reputation to the idea that blacks were a separate species. ...

The scientific theory of white supremacy was soon doomed, however. In 1859, Charles
Darwin published On the Origin of Species by Means of Natural Selection, which would push
the evolution of mankind far beyond the confines of Genesis and expose Morton’s, Nott’s and

Agassiz’s ideas of separate creations as the fantasies they were.

Source: Complicity : how the North promoted, prolonged, and profited from slavery by Farrow, Anne - pp. 182-191
https://archive.org/details/complicityhownor0000farr

FYI: Darwinism and the theory of evolution of mankind from animals is totally false, and has
been proven to be false, but when the powers that be have their arguments debunked, chances are
you’re not going to hear about it.


https://archive.org/details/complicityhownor0000farr

“There was the pseudo-scholarly study of ‘the Origins of the Black and Mixed Races’ published
by the Hebrew journal HaNachash telling that blacks were not the children of Adam, but slaves
created to serve in the garden of Eden.”” And there was the much publicized letter from Solomon
Cohen, a Jewish planter from Savannah. As late as January 1866, he wrote:

| believe that the institution of slavery was refining and civilizing to the whites—giving
them an elevation of sentiment and ease and dignity of manners only attainable in
societies under the restraining influence of a privileged class and at the same time the
only human institution that could elevate the Negro from barbarism and develop the
small amount of intellect with which he is endowed.”®”

Source: Jews and the American Slave Trade By Saul Friedman - p. 211
https://archive.org/details/jewsamericanslav0000frie

If these enslaved people were so dumb, how the heck did they learn how to do so many different
tasks successfully?

“Myth: Slaves engaged almost exclusively in unskilled brutish field labor.
Fact: Much of the labor performed by slaves required high skill levels and careful, painstaking
effort.

Fact: Masters relied on slaves for skilled craftsmanship.”

Source: Historical Context: Myths and Misconceptions: Slavery and the Slave Trade by Steven Mintz
https://www.gilderlehrman.org/history-resources/teaching-resource/historical-context-myths-and-misconceptions-slavery-and-
slave

And if Africans are so dumb, how is it that so many of them are going from literally nothing to
degrees and careers in healthcare, engineering, electronics, and more with only access to
education?

Excerpts from Noah's Curse: How Religion Often Conflates, Status, Belief, and Conduct to
Resist Antidiscrimination by Norms William N. Eskridge Jr.

When Abraham Lincoln was elected president in 1860, southern Protestant ministers called for
their region to do what the southern Methodists, Baptists, and Presbyterians had earlier done in
response to slavery's critics: secede. "In the period of warfare [1861-1865] as in that of the
secession crisis [1860-1861], clergymen were second to no other professional class in buttressing
the struggle for southern independence," supporting the liberty of Southerners to preserve their
way of life as well as their property interest in slaves.*’ In response to Lincoln's Emancipation
Proclamation of 1863, ninety-six religious leaders from eleven denominations issued "An
Address to Christians Throughout the World" condemning the "ruthless persecution” of the
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slaveholder and Lincoln's "malice” toward them, who were to bring salvation to their slaves
through the Christianizing institution of slavery.*®

Even after the Thirteenth Amendment, adopted in 1865, abolished slavery, some religious
leaders continued to invoke biblical arguments for slavery,* but increasingly, southern religious
leaders modernized Noah's Curse to address the post-slavery environment.” Thus, Reverend
Benjamin Morgan Palmer, the leader of the new Southern Presbyterian Church, transformed
Noah's Curse to support the liberty of religious southern whites to avoid close association with
blacks.”* Reverend Palmer spearheaded the backlash against “forced integration” in New Orleans
and was the main proponent for the de jure segregation of the races in the city's public schools.>?
His argument for racial segregation also brought the story of Noah's Curse forward a few
chapters:* Ham's grandson was Nimrod, the ruler of Babel®* and, according to Christian
tradition, the architect of the Tower of Babel, a project of human arrogance. To thwart
Nimrod's project, the Lord instilled in the builders different languages, so that the men could no
longer understand one another and then “scattered them abroad from thence upon the face of all
theearth."*® The lesson that Reverend Palmer and other southern ministers drew from this fiasco
was that if arrogant descendants of Ham (i.e., Nimrod) sought to disrupt the divine plan for
segregation of the races, the Lord would thwart those plans through divine dispersion that
reaffirmed the original design.>” Call this the "Nimrod's Hubris" argument for racial
segregation.®® Under this theory, it was a matter of religious liberty for devout southern whites
(and many blacks) to remain separate from members of the other race, and so the Southern
Presbyterians, Methodists, and Baptists religiously segregated their own congregations in the
period after the Civil War.*

As with secession, formal segregation of the races within churches became the model for legal
segregation of the races in southern states after 1877. A keystone for religious and legal
apartheid was legal as well as religious bans against miscegenation (interracial marriage); such
laws swept the country after the Civil War.*® Antimiscegenation was justified on religious
grounds, even in courts of law.®* "Mixing" of the races would invite interracial sexual congress,®?
which was a violation of God's Word expressed in Noah's Curse—a precept that religious
southern segregationists found reaffirmed throughout the Old and NewTestaments.®® Perhaps the
most-deployed biblical argument against interracial marriage was Isaac's Blessing to his son
Jacob: "And Isaac called Jacob, and blessed him, and charged him, and said unto him, Thou shalt
not take a wife of the daughters of Canaan," namely, women of African descent.®

Southern whites' strong aversion to miscegenation undergirded the systematic adoption of
apartheid laws in the South after Reconstruction.®® One of the pioneers of apartheid was
Louisiana, which had been racially integrated in many arenas throughout the nineteenth
century.®® The militant segregationist theology of Reverend Palmer, pastor of the city's largest
Protestant church, had an attentive audience in post-Reconstruction New Orleans.®’ Other
Protestant churches followed Palmer's lead, as did Catholic Archbishops who segregated parish
churches, parochial schools, and hospitals all over Louisiana.?® It is against this backdrop of
religion-based precepts and actions, as well as the social mores intertwined with religion, that the



Louisiana legislature enacted a statute in 1890 requiring separate railroad cars for the different
races—this was the statute at issue in Plessy v. Ferguson, which was the occasion for the
Supreme Court to insulate apartheid from judicial review for two generations.®

B. TOLERABLE RACIAL VARIATION: BLACKS' CIVIL RIGHTSUNDERSTOOD AS A
CHALLENGE TO RELIGIOUS LIBERTY

Once southern segregation was entrenched, Noah's Curse and the other scriptural arguments
lost much of their prominence, but their ideas were translated into the modernized discourse of
science and sociology. For example, the biblical arguments against interracial sexuality gained
support from science-based arguments that “colored” races were "inferior" and would yield a
horrifying “mongrel race” if crossbreeding with whites were to occur.”® Moderate apologists for
segregation defended it along pragmatic lines: racist attitudes-to which religion had contributed-
were so deeply entrenched in the minds of southern whites and many blacks that integration was
not practically feasible.”

The science-based arguments for segregation took on a bad odor in the 1930s and 1940s, as
scientists subjected them to witheringcritique.’® Moreover, the science supporting apartheid
suffered from guilt by association with the scientific racism of the hated Nazis.” Buoyed by
modern science indicting racial prejudice, the civil rights movement challenged apartheid with
increasing success after World War 11, but that success inspired a comeback for the religious
liberty arguments in favor of apartheid and against racial mixing.” Racial equality thus directly
threatened religion because churches themselves were largely segregated; only 0.1% of all black
Protestants worshipped in integrated churches at the end of World War 11.”> Congregations and
preachers within the United Methodist Church South, the Southern Presbyterian Church, and,
most strongly, the Southern Baptist Convention righteously attacked the Supreme Court's
decision in Brown v. Board of Education.’

An unusually detailed example was The Christian Problem of Racial Segregation, by Southern
Baptist minister, the Reverend Humphrey Ezell.”” The bulk of his book was a compendium of all
the Old Testament passages supporting the segregation of the races’® and barring interracial
marriages,”® as well as New Testament support, including the racially pure lineage of Christ®
and warnings against racial mixing.®* Science reinforced the lessons of Scripture, for, according
to the reverend, scientists demonstrated that there were profound physical, mental, and emotional
differences between the white and black races.®” Reverend Ezell synthesized the Noah's Curse

and lIsaac's Blessing arguments with constitutional arguments for American apartheid.

Source: Noah's Curse: How Religion Often Conflates, Status, Belief, and Conduct to Resist Antidiscrimination by Norms William
N. Eskridge Jr.

https://digitalcommons.law.yale.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=4770&context=fss_papers

I’m so sorry White people/the White man/non-Jewish Europeans, your reign is over. You can no
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longer be called the creators of racism or the fathers of racism.

Note: This prejudgment of people who have darker skin color (the browns to black) — labeling
them good or bad, superior or inferior, free or slave, etc. — has not only caused hell for Blacks
and others with darker skin, it has caused hell for the entire human race. 1It’s as if billions of
computers have been infected with a virus.

Pushing Racism

“It is hard to say when blackface as a theatrical device was invented, but it can be certain that it
is Shakespeare who popularized this form in his play Othello in 1604. It was common that white
actors acted black characters in Europe during that time. The blackface traditions were brought
to America by the English colonists. Othello was first performed in America in 1751 and was the
most popular ‘blackface’ play in early America. (Strausbaugh, 2006: 62—-64) However, things
began to change when Charles Mathews, a white actor parodied an American black whom he
claimed to have observed butchering the role of Hamlet. In that play, some actors were backing
up and singing comic dialect songs about ‘Coal Black Rose,” and a few others were staging black
stereotypes at the commencement of the Jacksonion period. It was in the year of 1832 that
blackface minstrel shows began to develop, when Thomas Dartmouth Rice presented his
portrayal of Jim Crow in New York. (Cockrell, 1997: 13-14) In 1848, blackface minstrelsy was
regarded as the national art, a distinctive art form born in the United States. (Lott, 2013: 217) ...
It was surprising that some black people also chose to black themselves up when first staging in
minstrel show because of the rules set by the white. But with more and more blacks participated
in the minstrel show, claiming the authenticity of their racial identity became a common demand

by the black performers.”

Source: Deconstructing the Blackface Minstrel Show, (Re)constructing African American Identity: the Case of Olio by Tyehimba
Jess

https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/10.1177/08969205211052616

I wonder if the new form, with its stereotypes, was a planned creation. It certainly would have
benefited the institution of slavery, being a visual representation of the beliefs created by Jewish
rabbis.

Additional Information
Minstrel Show Collection, 1831-1959 (bulk 1860-1940): An Inventory of the Collection at the Harry Ransom Center
https://norman.hrc.utexas.edu/fasearch/findingAid.cfm?eadid=00122
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“The first minstrel shows were performed in 1830s New York by white performers with
blackened faces (most used burnt cork or shoe polish) and tattered clothing who imitated and
mimicked enslaved Africans on Southern plantations. These performances characterized blacks
as lazy, ignorant, superstitious, hypersexual, and prone to thievery and cowardice. Thomas
Dartmouth Rice, known as the ‘Father of Minstrelsy,” developed the first popularly known
blackface character, ‘Jim Crow’ in 1830. By 1845, the popularity of the minstrel had spawned an
entertainment subindustry, manufacturing songs and sheet music, makeup, costumes, as well as a

ready-set of stereotypes upon which to build new performances.”

Source: Blackface: The Birth of An American Stereotype
http://archive.today/5BpnJ

“Before the Civil War minstrel shows gained world-wide popularity, with the American
companies performing in Europe and Japan. All levels of society attended: Thackeray and
Gladstone were two British fans of the minstrel shows, which also toured Australia. Visitors to
the US left accounts of the performances. Joseph Gungl, a German traveler, saw early slapstick
as the minstrels of one troupe began to ‘fight’ on-stage. As immigrants worried the people who
shared the American consensus, blackface Irishmen and even Chinese began to appear; these
must have appeared a little strange. Door prizes and familiar songs were staples; the jokes
changed from town to town, commenting on local issues. The shows were popular in Ohio,
where two black musicians claimed to have taught ‘Dixie’ to Dan Emmett.* The music and
humor of the blackface shows long outlived them-their puns and chicken jokes filled jokebooks
of my childhood. The soft shoe, buck-and-wing, cakewalk, and clogging are all minstrel steps
derived ultimately from African dancing, while songs like ‘Bile'em Cabbage Down’ and ‘Dan
Tucker’ are still enjoyed. Minstrel shows became part of circuses and fairs, and European-
American clowns took on minstrel characteristics which they still have. In 1865, the first black
minstrel troupe, the Georgia Minstrels, took the stage. Other art forms began to emerge- in 1869

a mixed troupe of men and women originated burlesque.”
Source: Rite, Reversal, and the end of blackface minstrelsy
https://www.ferris.edu/HTMLS/news/jimcrow/links/essays/comer.htm

“Blackface minstrel shows soared in popularity, in particular, during the period after the Civil
War and into the start of the 20th century, as documented in the Smithsonian National Museum
of African American History and Culture’s official blackface history. The widespread demeaning
portrayals of African Americans paralleled a period when southern state legislatures were
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passing ‘Black Codes’ to restrict the behavior of former slaves and other African Americans. In

fact, the codes were also called ‘Jim Crow’ laws, after the blackface stage character.”
Source: How the History of Blackface Is Rooted in Racism
https://www.history.com/news/blackface-history-racism-origins

“The essence of the blackface minstrel show as a native-born American theatrical performance
lies in the action of ‘blacking up’ the face. The white performers had to black up their face
before they staged in front of the audience. ... But the result of this blacking up is tremendously
surprising, especially for its audience who knew nothing about the black people at that time. The
audience would take everything that the masked white performers performed as what the real
blacks did in reality. One example that is frequently cited is Mark Twain’s mother, who watched
the blackface minstrel show and believed she was watching the black performers. (Lott, 20) In
this sense, the white became the black with the help of the burnt cork mask, that is, what was

imagined and counterfeit became what was real and authentic in the blackface minstrel show.”
Source: Deconstructing the Blackface Minstrel Show, (Re)constructing African American Identity: the Case of Olio by Tyehimba

Jess
https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/10.1177/08969205211052616

- “The audience would take everything that the masked white performers performed as what the
real blacks did in reality.”

Minstrelsy and the Construction of Race in America by Jason H. Lee
http://archive.today/x56Y8

- “One example of minstrelsy’s portrayal of blacks as compulsively loving food and merriment is
songster Dan Lewis’ tune ‘Moses cart Dem Melon Down.” In this song, the main character sings
jubilantly about the arrival of a cart of watermelons, a fruit that black Americans supposedly
could not resist.” So, this must be where White people got that from and why they actually
believed it was true.

“The portrayal of blackface—when people darken their skin with shoe polish, greasepaint or burnt
cork and paint on enlarged lips and other exaggerated features—is steeped in centuries of racism.
It peaked in popularity during an era in the United States when demands for civil rights by
recently emancipated slaves triggered racial hostility. ... ‘It’s an assertion of power and control,’
says David Leonard, a professor of comparative ethnic studies and American studies at
Washington State University. ‘It allows a society to routinely and historically imagine African
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Americans as not fully human. It serves to rationalize violence and Jim Crow segregation.’ ...
White performers in blackface played characters that perpetuated a range of negative stereotypes
about African Americans including being lazy, ignorant, superstitious, hypersexual, criminal or
cowardly. ... Several characters in minstrel shows became archetypes, as described in the
University of Florida’s digital exhibit, ‘History of Minstrels: From “Jump Jim Crow” to “The
Jazz Singer.”” Some of the most famous ones were Rice’s ‘Jim Crow,” a rural dancing fool in
tattered clothing; the ‘Mammy,” an overweight and loud mother figure; and ‘Zip Coon,’ a

flamboyant-dressed man who used sophisticated words incorrectly.”
Source: How the History of Blackface Is Rooted in Racism
https://www.history.com/news/blackface-history-racism-origins

“With the maturity of the blackface minstrel show, several stock characters emerged and became
the inseparable part of blackface minstrelsy besides the music and dance, like Jim Crow, Zip
Coon (northern dandy, who imitates the white in a clumsy way and is considered as a mockery of
the free blacks), Sambo (the idiot), Uncle Tom and Auntie Dinah (the faithful and devoted black
servants), etc. One of the most well-known character is Jim Crow, the ignorant, happy-go-lucky

‘darky’ on the plantation originally created and perfected by Thomas Dartmouth Rice.”

Source: Deconstructing the Blackface Minstrel Show, (Re)constructing African American Identity: the Case of Olio by Tyehimba
Jess

https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/10.1177/08969205211052616

Jews And Blackface: A Complicated History
http://archive.today/Hleww
https://www.jta.org/2019/02/06/ny/jews-and-blackface-its-complicated

“‘Everybody loves me. Those who don’t are jealous,” wrote singer Al Jolson in an advertisement
he published in the Variety newspaper in 1919, wishing him a happy New Year and a good year
for America.3! The top figure in the American entertainment industry knew he had a big ego, but
there was no one but him who deserved the title of ‘greatest entertainer in the world.” The rising
star of the Vaudeville Hall was able to sign a contract with the Shubert brothers on Broadway
and starred in the musical comedy Sinbad (1918). Hollywood was to be his next prey; it was only
a matter of time. ... Jolson was perhaps the most famous artist of his time in the blackface
minstrelsy. Wherever he wore a black mask, the audience responded with intensity and
excitement. ... Of course, he was not the only Jew to star in this theatrical field, but he was
probably the most successful. At the beginning of the twentieth century, while Jolson entered the
field of minstrelsy, it was considered a dying art.”
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Source: Chapter 1: Jokerman — The Black Mask of Al Jolson
https://www.degruyter.com/document/doi/10.1515/9783110723168-002/pdf

“But whereas the